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NOTARIAL CERTIFICATE

L HO E;UKZ 'lés}N{; 'LESLIE Notary Public duly autherised wnd
appointed practising in the Republic of Singapere DO HEREBY

CERTIFY AND ATTEST that the document “SECURITIES AND

EXCHANGE COMMISSION (AMENDED) SEC FORM 17-A -
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE
SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141 OF THE

CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES” dated 30 March 2013

hereunto annexed was signed and executed by WONG HONG REN and

the person named and mentioned in the said document for and on behalf

of GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION,

IN FAITH AND TESTIMONY

WHEREOF I have hereunto. subscribed

‘my name and affixed my seal of office this
30th day of March 2015,
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(AMENDED) SEC FORM 17-A v*n:,;*:,t;ﬁ::ééfﬂ%f“““’ y
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 ﬂ * é
" OFTHE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141 7
OF THE. mnpanmmw CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES !
b For ilie fiscal yeur en;aggg ;,_,1; ‘;m@mb@-; 201 4

4, Exact name.of issuer as speeified in its charter GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION
K& Coiiipany” ) _

| . . (SEC Use Only)
PI’QViI]LE Country or qthe; Jjurisdiction Indualry Classification Code:
of incorporation or organization

7. JO/F, The Heritage Hotel Manila, Roxas Blvd. Cor, EDSA Ext., Pasay City 1300
Address of principal office Postal Code

8. Tel No. (632) 854-8838 ; Fax No. (632) 854-8825
| Issuer's telephone number, including area ¢ode

Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if ¢hanged since last report.

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and R of the RSA

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Ouistanding and Amiount of Debt
Outstanding
Common Stock 87,318,270

(Inclusive of 33,600,901 treasury shares)
11::Are any orall of these securities listed on-a Stock Exchange.
Yes[x] No[] .

§ If'yes, state the name of such stock-exchange and the classes of securities isted therein:

‘Stock Excliange Philippine Stock Exchange”
Securities Common Shares




eports réquired fo'be filed by Seetion 17 of the S8RC and SRC Rule 17
Section 11 of the RSA #nd RSA Rule 11(a)1 thercunder, and Sections 26 and 141
rporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such
‘riod that the registrint was required to file such reports); - ”

Yespd  Nof ]
{b) Has boen subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.

13. State the aggregate market valiie of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant.

The aggtegate market value shall be computed by reference to the price at wh ich the stock
‘was sold, or the average bid and asked prices of such stock, as of aspecified date within sixty
{60) days prior ta the date'of filing, If a determination as to whether a particular persan ot
‘entity is‘an affiliate cannot be made without involving-unreasonable effort and expense, the
aggregate market value of the common stock held by non-affiliates may be calculated on the
basis of assumptions reasonable under the circumstances, provided the assumptions are set
forth in this Form, (See definition of "affiliate” in “Annex B”).

The share price of the Company as of 8 January 2015 is PhP24-and the total voting stock held by

'naﬁfam.iiates of the Cpmpany’i-s 7,334,289. Therefore, the aggregate market value of the voting
stock held by non-affiliates of the Companyis PhP176,022,936. "

~ APPLICABLE ONLY TO ISSUERS INVOLVEDIN
INSOLVENCY/SUSPENSION OF PAYMENTS PROCEEDINGS
DURING THE PRECEDING FIVE YEARS:

14 Chieck whether ihe fssuer has filed all documents and repotts required to be filed by Section

17 of the Code subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court
or the Commission. N.A.

Yes []  No Tl
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

15, If 47y of the following documents dre incorpotated by reference, briefly describe them and
identify the part of SEC Form 17-A into which the document ig incorporated:-

() Any annual report to $ecurity holders; N
(:b; Afiy proxy or information statement filed pursuant to SRC Rule 20 and 7. 1(b);
(¢} Any prospectus filed pursuant to SRC Rule 8.1-1.

PART - BUSINESS & GENERAL INFORMATION




ANy was registered with the Securities and Exchang;e Cormimission on 9 August 19392

marily © own, lease of mdhage one or more hotels, inns or resorts, all adjuncts and
accessories theréto and all other tourist oriented businesses as miy be necessary it connection
therewxf‘h

_‘houﬁ sinee t

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2014, the Company reported a net profit after fax of absut.

‘PhP0.393 million as against PhP83 million in 2013 and PhP165 millionin 2012.

There is no: bankruptey, réceivership or similar proceedings involving the Company. There afe

ne matenal reclassifications, mergers, and consolidation involving the Company, nor purcheses

or sales ef a significant amount of assets:not in the ordinary course of business of the Company.

The t‘*nmpsm:f”s main source of income is revenue from the hotel operations. The market for the
hotel services varied. The bulk of the room guests are-corperate clients from various countries.

“The majority of the room guests are Americans, Japanese, Koreans, Filipinos and guests. from

Southeast Asian nations, while food and beverage guests are mainly Filipinos.
Compefitive Position

The main competitors of The Heritage Hotel Manila are: Manila Diamond Hotel, Pan Pacific,
Traders Hotel, Dusit Thani Hotel, and Sofite] Hotel.

Based on information made available to us, the competitive position of these hotels is shown
below:

NAME . MPI __ARI L RGI

Hentage Hotel | 0.91 | 0.71 | 0.64
D;mm}u&ﬂm{é] 07 098 1,04
" tedes | o | om | oms
L ‘Sofitel Hotel | om { 24} 122 ]




T'means that the hotel is getting the fair

and Distribution and Charles Seafood Supply Branch.
Dependence on Single Customer

‘The Company’s main Source of income ‘is revenue from the operations of the Herftage Fotel,
The operations of the hotel are-not dependent on & single or a few customers.

‘Related Party Transactions

‘The Company in the niotmal course of business has enfered into transactions with its related
parties, principally consisting of cash advances. These advances are shown as “Due to related
‘company”, “Due to immediate holding company”, and “Due to intermediate holding company”
in the balance sheets.

The Company also leases its hotel site from a related company. The lfease contract on the hotel
site requires the Company to deposit PhP78 million to answer for any and all unpaid-obligations
that the Company may have under said contract,

On 11 August 2014, the Company and the related company, Harbour Land Corp (HLC), agreed
10 amend the Lease Contract to increase the rent from PhP10,678,560 to PhP17,797,608 effective
I January 2014 and to extend the lease contract from 2015 to 2040 for a period of another 25
years with no escalation of rent for the first 5 years but on the:6™ year, HLC will propose 2
revision depending on the market condition.

The Company has entered into a Management Contract with Elite Hotel Management Services
Pte. Ltd.’s Philippiries Branch for the latter to act as the hotel’s administrator, Under the terms of
the agreement, the Company is required to pay monthly basic management and incentive fees
based on.a certain percentage of revenue and gross operating profit,

Policy on Related Party Transactions

Section 3.2 of the Company’s Revised Manual on Corporate Governance requires all material

information to be publicly and timely disclosed through the appropriate mechanisms of the PSE’

‘and submited to the SEC. Such information includes, among others, related party transactions.
-All such'information should be disclosed.

Tt complianice’ with the Amended Implementing Rules and Regulations of the Securities
Regulation Code (“SRC Rules”), the Company must disclose the following-details for a telatéd
party coritract: _ "

ainds for Average Room Rate Tndex and

The hotel purchases its raw material for food and beverage (“F&B”) from both local aid foréign
suppliers: The top 3 suppliers for raw materials are Agathon Trading, Yulick Food Corporation



tbe related party.relationship;
ransaction {e:g. supply or services contract, loans, guarantégs);

otal amounts payable and receivable in the transaction from or to the related party;
the elements of ‘the transaction necessary to understand the Hsted company's financial
statenients, .

The Company must also’ disclose its transactions in which refated persons; such as directos,

officers, ‘subsiantial shareholders of any of their immediate families have a direct material

interest, such as the related person's beneficial ownership of the counterparty or share in the

No disclosure is needed for any fransaction where:

0 The transaction” nvolves services at rates or charges ﬁxeﬁ by law or gove'mrﬁéﬁ;ﬁf
guthority:

. The transaction involves services as a bank depository of fuiids, transfer agent, registrar,
trustee under a trust indenture, or similar services;

%,  The amotint involved in the transaction or a serfes of similar transactions has an
aggregate value of less than PhP2,500,000;.0r

4.  The interest of the person arises solely from the ownership of securities of the registrant.

and the person receives no-extra or special benefit thal was not shared equally (pro ruta)
by all holders of securities of the class.

In compliance with the provisions of the Corporation Code, a-contract of the Company with one
or'more of its directors or officers must be ratified by the vote of the stockholders representing at
least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock if any of the following conditions -are

abse

4  The presence of such director in the board meeting in which the contract was approved

‘was not necessary (o constituté a gliorum ibr-such--'mééting,

‘B The vote of such diréctor was not necessary- for the approval of the contract,

Full disclosure of the adverse interest of the directors or officers involved must be made at the.

stockholders’ mwﬁng_md the contract must be fair and reasonable under the circumstances.

Furthermore, the Company must comply with the provision of the Corporation Code which
requires @ contract between two or more corporations having: interlocking directors, where (i)
the interest of the interiocking director in one corporation is: substantial and his interest in the
other corporation is merely nominal, and (ii) any of the following conditions are absent:

& The-presence of such director in the board meeting in which the contract was approved

Was ot necessary to constitute a quorum for such meeting:

A



1o il of the contract.

feprese gﬂ-:-at least two-Lhirds {273} of the

: stock of ths cofporation where the interlocking director’s intefest is

3\ ._ full disclosure of the adverse interest of the interlocking director/s involved

at the stockholders’ meeting and the contract must be fair and reasonable under the

umstances. Staakhaidmgs excecdmg twenty {20%) percent of the outstanding capital stock’
- shall be considered substantial for purposes of interlocking directors.

“Patents, Trademarks, Ete,

The (‘fompany :cgmfcre& the tradeniame “The Heritage Hotel Manila™ with the Intelléctual
Praperty Office’s on.12 July 2000 under registration number 41995105127, Under current laws,
the registration is “valid for a term of 20 years, or up to 12 July 2020. The Tegisiration is

fénévable for another 10 years.

The C‘ampanw is.also authorized to use “The H’enmge Hotel Manila™ as its business name under
its Articles of Incorporation.

The- Cﬁmpany daes wot hold -any other patent, trademark, copyright, Hcense, franchise,
conecssion or royalty: agreement,

Government Approval and Regulation

”'{'I’le hotsl :apphes for Department of Tourisim: (“DOT™) accreditation annually. The accreditation
is based on the 2012 Rules and Reguiaﬁans 1o Govern the Accreditation of Accommodation
Establishments of the DOT, The DOT i mspects the hotel to determing whether the hotel meets
the criteria of the DOT. The DOT accredited the hotel and the Company-for the year 2014,

The Company is.not aware of any new government regulation that may have a material impact
on the operations of the Company during the fiscal year cavered by this report.

Development Activifies
The Compény did not uindertake any development activilies. during the last three fiscal years.

The Hotel cmployed a total of 334 employees durmg the year 2014, Out of the 334 employees,
192 are regular emiployees and 142 are casual employees.

The number 6f employees per type of employment is, as follows: 5.

“REGULAR | CASUAL | TOTAT. |

Hotel (')peratmg Statr (All operating dept) 132 | 131 1 263
Management/Admin/Security (A&G Dept) 27 1 127

Sales & Markem}g ‘ 11 3 14




rof employees as inyear 20135,

Theré até 1o existing collective bargaining agreements between the Company and its employees;

TTEM 2. PROPERTIES

'I“h Company leases its hotel site from Harbour Land Corporation, arelated cumpany The hote!
site is Tocafed at the corner.of Roxas Blvd. ami EBSA Extension, Pasay City.

The lease for fie hote! site is for a pamd of 25 years renewable for another 25 years. The lease
commenced on. 1 January- 199(} “The Company has renewed its lease effective 1 January 2014 for
another 25 years with monthly rental of PhP1. A83,134;

(1) In the middle of 2008, the Company received from the Bureau of Internal Revenuc
("BIR") a Final Decision on Disputed Assessment finding th¢ Company liable for
deficiency value added tax ("VAT") with respect to. the years 1996 to 2002 in total
amount .of PhP228:94 million, inclusive of penalty and interest from January 2003 to
‘December 2006, The Company subsequentlyfiled a petition for review with the Court of
Tax ﬁp_pea_l ("CTA") 10-contest such Final Decision on Disputed Assessment,

agarmzt the {‘Zfompanv and zts assets. On 12 September 2008, the Cempanv filed a Sui‘i:iy
bond with the CTA, and the CTA issued a Temporary Restraining Order enjoining the
BIR from further efforts at collection of taxes, particularly the implementation of the
Warrant of Distraint and/or Levy and the Warrant of Gamishment. :

“Iin 2009, the Company moved to have a preliminary hearing conducted to first resolve the

legal issue’ of whether or not the services rendered by the 'Gt:mpany to. PAGCOR is

subject t6 VAT af 10% rate. The CTA granted the motion and hearings were
subwqumliy condueied. On 18 February 2011, the CTA ruled in favor of the Company”

‘and cancelled the VAT deficiency assessment in fofo.

'C’ﬂmmzssmmr af' Inferﬂal Rwenue v, Aceszte (Phdzppmes) H
147295, 16 February 2007, the CTA, in its decision dated 18 i“ebmary 2011, eanceﬁe&

oreseen circumstance, for the year 2015, the Company will maintain mofe or less



decision wnde:md on 18 F ebmary 2()11 ﬁemrdmg to thi’: C'{‘A canméermg
e assessment against the Company for deﬁcwnoy VAT has been cancelled, the
CTA decmed it proper that the surety bond posted by the Company be discharged. The
BIR shortly filed an appeal with the CTA En Bang:

Ot beptﬁmbar 2011, the:CTA En Bane resolved to give cowrse to'BIR"s appeal, "The
Company filed its Memoraridum in Otober 2011. On 27" July 2012, the CTA En Bang
tesolved that consistent with the pronouncement of the Supreme Court in fhe casés of
'CIR vs. - Acesife Hotel Corporation and PAGCOR vs. CIR (G.R. no. 172087, 15 March
2011 ) hat services rendered to PAGCOR are exempt from VAT, CIR’s s petition has np
Teg 16 stand on and must necessarily fall. The BIR subsequently filed a Motion fir-
Reconsideration. '

On g October 2012, the CTA En Bane resolved that BIR"s Motion for Reconsideration
is-denied and the carlier decision of the CTA promulgated an 17 May 2011 is affirmed.
On 5“‘ December 2012, BIR filed: with the:Supreme Court a Petition for Review, As at’
‘e date of this report, the Petition for Review is still pending with the Supreme Court.

On 5‘5‘ May 2013, the Company filed its Comment/Opposition to the Petition for Review’
inid 1§ awaiting feedback from the Supreme Cowrt. On 17 October 2013, the Company
received a Notice from the Supreme Court directing’ BIR to file a reply (to the
Company’s. Comment/Opposition) within 10 days from BIR's receipt of the Notice,

1t a Notice dated 8 October 2014, the Supreme Court declared the petitioner’s (BIR)
Manifestation and Motion dated 11 April 2014 as unsatisfaciory compliance with its
Resolution dated 28 January 2013, and the Supreme Court further gave a grace period of
5-days forthe BIR to comply.

On 16 December 2014, the Company filed a Manifestation and Motion to Dismiss the
Petition of the BIR for non-compliance with the jurisdictional requirements. As at 12
January 2015, the Company has not received any further notices or directives from the
Supreme Court.

2) In the ‘meeting of the Board of Directors of Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation
("Corporation”) (“Baard“) on 27 October 2014, the Board approved management's
action to continue pursuing administrative remedies with the Bureau of Internal Revenue
(“BIR") in respect of the- BIR's tax assessment-on: the. Corporation for. the year 2008
("Tax Assessmcnt") *

The above actions will s¢ék BIR to- re-mvestigate the Tax Assessmient and review the
Collection Letter that the Corporation received from the BIR on 12 December 2013. Az
far 4s the Corporation i3 aware, the Collection Letter was issued by the BIR in connection
with a Formal Letter of Demand for alleged deficiency income tax, value added tax,
expanded w:thhoidmg tax, witholding tax on-compensation and documentary stamp tax

for the year 2008, in the aggregate amount of PhP508,101,387.12 consisting of

."iﬁy VAT “iﬁ' 'iﬁé anouiit 'df; -



524,562.09 from 20 January

another meoting of the Board held on.3 February 2015, the Board directed ity tag
~counsel to study further remedies in connection with the Corporation's receipt on iy

November. 2014, of the denial by the BIR of the Corporation’s request: for the

reinvestigation / recomputation of alleged tax liability arising from the Tax Assessght,

On 20 February 2013, the Corporation filed a Petition for Review with tlie CTA, to
ifivalidate the collection proceedings of the BIR.in respect of the Tax Assessment,

The Pelition is based on the Corporation’s jidsifion, as advised by tax counsel, that the
collection proceedings initiated by the Commissioner of Infernal Revenue is void because
the Tax Assessment did not comply with the requirements of law.and lacked factual and
legal basis. '
Other than the dbove matters, there are no material legal -proceedings to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.or affiliates is-a party or of which any of its property is the subject

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitited to a vote of the security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal
yearcovered by this report. ’

In the 15 May 2014 annual stockhalders’ meeting, the-following were elected as directors of the
Company: '

Wong Hong Ren;

Eddie Lay;

Bryan Cockrell;

Eddie Yeo; o

Mia Gentugays; {independent director)
Angelito Imperio; (independent director) and

Michele Dee Saiifos’

Please refer to the discussion in‘item 9 of this report.

PART I1 - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

v

previously by the Catparation, the reason for Ms. Dee-Santos’ resignationis that she bas been glven otiey
assignments by RCBC Trust & Investinents Division ("RCBC Trust"). Ms. Dee-Santos represented the shares held
by RCBC Trust in the Corporation. Ms.Dee-Santos was also a.member of the Audit Committes and Nomiination
Commitiee of the Corporation,
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Year2013 |

First Quarter

I3

NQ mavement

No movement

Second Quarter §

38

No movement

- No-movement

Third Quarter

41

Nomovement |

N movement

Fourth Quarter

355

25

No:movement

No movement

“The last recorded trade of the shares of the Company during the fiscal year covered by his report

vecurred on 11 October 2014, The share price was PhP25.

Holders of Securities’

The Company has only otie class of shares, 1.¢;, comiion shares; The total 0utstandmg common

shares as of 31: December 2014-is 87,318,270 znchxs;w of 33,600,901 treasury shares.

Asof 71 December 2014, the number of shareholders of the Company 1§ 497.

“Thié Tist of the top 20 shareholders is as follows:

; NAME OF SHAREHOLDER

NO. OF SHARES

% OF
SHAREHOLDING
(INCLUSIVE OF
TREASURY
SHARES)

67 | Grand Plaza Hotel Corp - Treasury stoz:ks

"33 600,901

37.33%

02 | The Philippine Fund Limited

28,655,932

313.43%

03 | Zatrio Pre Lid _

17,727,149 _

20.68%

04 | PCD Nominee Filipino

6,543841

e A R i e



0.26%

0.04%

. ”I;‘()Q{j-

<0.01%

7,000

<0.01% .

Yam Kum Chmﬁg

7,000

- <0.01%

170 {Yam Poh Choo—————

<0.01%

1} | Lucas M., Nunug =

4,713

~ <0.01%

10 ‘N'lhwdad Kwan __

3,983

<0.01%

13 ]

2 ;999

<0.01%.

114 JLe Ymg Tan-Laa

—001%

15, | Peter Kan

2 443

<0.01%

416 ['Romeo L. Salonga_ T

2400

<0.01%

17_ | Christopher Lim

<0.01%

18 | Robert Uy

2000

“0.01%

119 | Certerio Uy

1,000

_<.01%

Rolando Umali

1,000

: ”“5_(3,0-1-%

120

. Total

86,847,177

69.45%

Dividends

No dividends were declared for FY2014 and FY201%,

Dividend Policy

The nature: of the dividend, the dividend’ payment dafe and the aouni of the dividend are
deermined and approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Revent Sales of Unrchstered Securities

The Company dogs not have any unregistered sec

writies:

ITEM 6 MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION

(A) Full Fiseal Yea

Top 5 Key Performance Indicators.of the Company for the last 3 vears:

OR

PLAN OF

2014

2013

[ Current ratio (Solvency ratio)

1'84‘

1.88

Debv/Equity”

0.41

0.35

Assets/Equity”

41

1.36

Profit before tax margin rafio.

0.8%

21.24%

|5

33.06%

Interest rate coverage ratio

NA

NA

NA




'mpany !ms‘ no loans due 16 rhfrd parfy o re?w,

'(lurrent ratm zs, dcrweé‘ by dmdmg the curmm assets w:th the mrmnt habﬂmes ’I‘hm mcfzcafm'.

fiew PhP:
Versus saineé permd’flasi ycar

Debt o equuty ratio measures 4 company’ findncial iwerage ¥ is derived by dw:ﬁmg fotal
liabilities over eqmw This ratio- increased. E)} .06 as a result of hzgher liabilities and lower
equity. Lower equity is due to hi gher profit for the year.

_ﬁ\sse!sthuzw Tatio measures the proportion.of i equity used to finance asiets c)f the cenifany ‘and
( is derived by cimdm&,, total assels to equity. Total assets increased versug same period of last
‘year mainly due 1o hlgher cash balances.

_me [. bei“ore tax margm tatio s computed by dividing the pmf t Before tax ag,;:mst the fotal
revenue. This ratic measures whether the Company is-able to. contain ifs expenses i refation to
‘{he revenue. This ratio is significantly lower this year due to the fawct that the Company does not
‘havé any more rental income from a major tenant, PAGCOR since end of June 2013,

‘Inferest rate coverage ratio measures how casily-a-company can pay interest outstanding debis. Tt
is calculated by dividing carnings before interest and tax over interest expense. The Company
hias 110 Toans to third parties.or: related parties-and as sugh; it has no interest expenses.

Management is not awate of:

rhm wz!i result in or mat are feasmably hkr::iy w reauit in the Campany 'S hquxdﬁv
inereasing or decreasing in any material way, The Company is not having or
anticipate having within the next:12 months any cash flow or liquidity problems;
and the Company is 70t in default or breach of any note,- loan,. lease or other
indebtedness of financing arrangement requiring it to make payments. There is no
significant amount of the Company's ttade payables that have not been paid
within the stated trade terms.

e Any events that will trigger diteét or contingent financial obligations that is
material to the Company, including any default or novation of an obligation.

& All material pff-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obhgatmns}, and other relationships of the Company with
‘unconsolidated entities orother persons created during the repomng period,

. There dre rio material commitments for.capital expenditiires.




ny kno "'ktrén-és, events of unicertain : ‘“ye,e.;ﬁad_’gr.;th'at--arﬁ.ra-asam"iﬁly
éxpected 10 hiave a material favorable or unfavorable impdct on net salesor
revenues or income from continuing operatiots should be described:

Planse seg attachied chart for the relationship between the 'Cﬁbm_p%my and iis uliimate parent
company, -

Results of Operations:

‘ZR&V@HU@ aﬂcht ¥{180me Aﬁgl‘ Tiﬁ( {WNI AII‘“) . dfﬁ}e Cﬁmﬁﬁﬂy durfngtﬁa\faﬁf‘f 3 yeafﬁ afﬁ”&‘{g
followst pan, .

YEAR. “REVENUE — 4 Nf"a’f’m
| pHPO0O |  PHP000

“Soi4 | 4660471 | 303

_____ 2013 1 582653 | 85,576
2012 ' 687,318 " 165,476

2014 Resulis of Operations

For the year 2014, the Company reported revenue of PhP466.9 million coinpared with PhP382.6
million in 2013, Révenue recorded a fall of PhP115.7 million (19.8%) mainly due fo drop in
room$, food and beverage (“F&B”) and rental incomé as compared to 2013, Due 10 the fall in

revenue, profit after tax for 2014 was only PhP0:393 million versus PhPES.5 million. In terms of

i B e

EBITDA {Lamings before income tax, depreciation and amortization] for 2014 was PhP20.7
million vérsus PhP145.1 million in 2013,

Revenue:.

Rooms revenue decreased from PhP336 million to PhP3 12 million o PhP24 million (7%). The
‘main reason for the drop in réom revenue is fall in occupancy from-66% to 62% while Average
Room Rate fell by 2% from PhP3,101 fo PhP3,035. The newer hotels'in the Bay Area such as
olaire and the Resort World Hotels pose competition to the hotel. In-addition, for the full yeur

;:’ZQE_3}_,iﬁﬁi‘biﬁpﬁ’ny-60‘&3:né_f--ha%ff’.!&ﬁﬁﬁ&wﬁ‘ii;ﬁ contribute certain room nights to the hotel.

‘Food and Beverage (F&B) revenue reistered a-fall from PhP158 million to PhP141 million or-
PhP17 million (10%). The negative variance is mainly duie to the closure of PAGCOR operated

casing 11 the hotel in July 2013. The hotel is able {o increase its-revenue for Riviera by PhP3.3

million agairst prior year 10 offsel the lost of revenue from casino operaion.

Ofhers revenue consisi Hiainly rental ingome-and this segment fell by PhP73 million (90%) due
to the closire of PAGCOR operated casine in July 2013,

Cost ofsales: . ,
Total ¢ost of sales dropped by PhP3.4 million (5%) which'is consistent with the lowet F&B and
ofher operated départment revenue for the year.




i

‘efnms it chargt:s and cf)mmlssmn As ct)mpared to fhe prmr year, there isa é '
millian ¢ 5%).- Hotel is able ta implement enérgy saving measures which h

Dther mcome"(expenqm)

‘showed a drop by PhPT12.2 million (21%) due to lower revettue.

Seilmg bxpense:s

SHeYg Uversus 2013, Hence even with lower business, the hotel is able o maintain a Tower

overhead..

Administrative Expenses:
Atve experises mainly consist of management and incentive Te€s, saldries, credit card

-CGD‘II]]ISSIGH and &ues and ﬁubbmpu@n There is an-increase of PhP17 mﬂiiem (BY%) campa‘red fo-
Tast year and parf of the increase is higher sales and marketing expenses for the yeir,

“aii increase from PhP14.9 million to PAP22:0 million or 47% & during the year 2014,
the company reversed an dcerual which is no Ionger requzr@d

Intoime Tax Expeiise:
Tiicome tax. expense decreased by PP34 million due to sagmficanﬂy Tower profit before tax.

2013 Results of Operations

For the yeat 2013, the Company reported revetive of PhP382.6 million compared with PhP6R7.3
milfion in year 2012, Rcvcnuc droppecf by PhP104.7 million (15%) while profii after tay
decreased by Ph?”?g 8 miilion-(48%) versus prior year,

Revenpe:

Rooms revenug ¢ aged’ from PhP353 mlllwn to PhP336 million of PhP17 million 4%) The
holel managad 10 increase its -occupancy from 64% to 66%, however, Average. Rec:m Rate
(ARR) was lowered from PhP3,317.to PhP3,101 in order to compete. There are more new hotels
in the markel and the Totel as to reduce its ARR in-order to attract gliests.

Food and Beverage (F&DB) revenue re:gmtered a fall from PHP183 million to PHP158 milliod or
PRPZS million ( 13%) The negative variance is mainly due to the closure of PAGCOR operated
¢asinio in the hotel in July 2013. The hotel is able to increase its revenue for Riviera by PhP2
million agamsf prior year and also-banquet has increased its revenue by PhP2 million,

Cost of sales:

“Total cost of sales iiropped by PEPS.3 million (8%) which is ¢onsistent with the Tower T&B

révenug for the

rease c)f ?’hPZ 9".
to save 4.7%

S,



profit showed 4 drop by Ph svenue,

maintenanice, encfgy and conservation, salarfes,

ompared to the prior year, there is & drop of Phri4

frasigport chiarges and cor

million (1.6%). The. decrease is mainly. from Jower headcourt and &% such, payroll Cost has.

Adniinistrative Expenscst o o
Admiinistrative expenses mainly: consist of nranagement and incentive fees, salaries, credit card
comnitssion and difes and subscription, There is an increase of PhP1 ilion {10%) compared 1o
last year and part of the increase 1 payroli cost for sales and marketing as hotel has inanaged
o fitl up sotne vacant positions this vear. "

- an fncigase from PhPTL.T million to PhP{4.9 million GF 34% as there Is an cxchange:
nillion in this year ve-rsusfia:a{.ycar of PhPL.5 million,

fricome Tax Expense: o
Tnebing tax expense decreassd by PhP30.3" millionor 44% dug to Tower profit for the year:

‘Net indome affer ax fell from PhP165 tiillion to PHP83 million as a result of Tower reventie for
‘{hie year.

‘3017 Restlfs of Operations

% the Company rogistered a drop in revenue by PhP31.5 million (4.3%) a5
ypared fo the same period of last year. Net income afler tax recorded a fall of PhP1 0.5 million
o} telative to prior year.

Revénue:

Room fevénne decreased from PhP367.7 mitilion to PEP353,1 million or 3.8%. The fall in room
fevenue is malnly: due 16 drop in-occupancy from 67% in 2011 to 64% in 2012, As a result,
Revenug Per Available Room (Revpar) also decreased by 4%. The unfavorable variance is due ©
(he corporatg Segment but offset by the increase in package segment.

Food and Beverage (F&B) division also showed a fall n revedtie from PhP202.8 million o
PhP183 miffion or 9%. The 3:revenue centers, Riviera Café, Casfno and Banquet registered the.
Tall in tévenug. With ‘the ‘opening of the Resort World Casino Manila; it drew away the regular
cagino playersin the Hotel. .. ' | |

“Otfiers consisting ihainly of rental from & tenant Sworeased from PEP136:8 million to PhPI4LR!
maitlion of 3.5%.¢ ue o higher rental and a new fenant,




st
pansa& consist of pmpeﬁy npemnon mam’tena‘ﬁce -ehergy and conservation, sﬂamf;sz
and commission., As compared fo the prior year, there 15 an increasé from
'Ph’P:.?} 3.6 i6it 16, PEP217.8 million or PhP4.1 million (1.9%). The variance 18 attributable to
increase fn salaries aid property Operation, maintenance, energy @ and congervation.

Administrative EXpenses;

-Admmlstraiwe expénses mainly consist of management and ncentive fees, salaries, credit dord
'mmmzssmn and dues and subsmptmn There is-a drop from PhP196: Smillion (o }’hi’lﬁi
‘mitlion and this is artributable to thie Jower management and incentive fees which is ‘Gonsisterit
“with the Tower hotel revenue and gross operating profit for the year.

st

Offier income/{expensesy;
“IHere is4i ingréase from PAP7.5 miflion ‘t:;: PRP1L.T million or 47% as theré is an emhange gam

of” p P15 million ip this vear versus {ast year witha Toss of PhP2 million..

Tne{;«me tax e*ipense decreased by PhPS.3 m;ffuan oF 7.2% dﬁéfﬁ”’fﬁivér"?fé%fbr the year.

Net Income After Tax!
Net income after tx fell from PhP176° million to Ph?!éi mdimn ag i restlt of Tower revenue for-

{he vear;

Financial Conditions:,

for the Tast 3 years are a5 follows;

“The total assets and liabiities of the Compar

YEAR ASSETS | LIABILITIES -
| Cpmposg | PHPOOO |
014 | 1354310 399328
013 | 1363135 357,005
“3012. 4. 1,845249. 382109 %

2014 Findncial Conditions




 PhP1.354 billioi
jes-such as sﬁcuﬁﬁi};{

y equivalents: This balance consists of cash and fixed depasits placed with
banks. There is an increase of PhP31.2 million (15%) compared o the same period of [ast
year. Although the Hotel trading in 2014 is down significantly, the Company s still cash
flow positive. The increase fis-due to a new security deposit from 4 potential tenant of PhP23
| million and offset by the paynient to shareholders in second half of 2014 for share buyback
gxercise amounting to PhP49.2 million,

«  Receivables net This balance fell from PhP322 millio . PhP30Z million which i
consistent with iheé Tower revenue of the Company.

¢  Due from relafed parties: There is a:significant drop in this balance as'the Felated companiés.

setiled their oulstanding balance 1o the Company at year end.

% Prepaid expenses and ofher currenf assets: This mainly consists of prepaid input value atided!
1ax, insurancé premiuis, dues and subscription, The drop: is: mainly in prepaid incomg tax
anid input taxes given the reduced in revériue of the Company- for this year versus last year.

# ‘P'rog_eft:y”g_nc_f equipmetit net: Theré is: faﬂm iﬁ?s_“?lf‘xa'l-an_ce-fbg PhP22.9 million (3.5%) as a
result of depreciation charges for the yearoffset by addition to fixed assets of PhP13 million.

+ Investment in assotiate: Compated o the prior year, tis balance inorcased by PhPI 7
milfion (3.6%) due 'fo the improvément in the results of the associate and as such, thé
‘company recognized a profit on the share in income of associate,

w Defétred tax assets: This balance mainly perfains to deferred tax recognized for retirement

‘benefits, exchange gain/foss and impainnent of receivables. There is-an increase of PhP6.8
iillioir (122%) as there was a deferred tax on the impatrment of receivables, increase in
‘retirement benefits and lower actuarial gain this year.

Liabilitie

and Equity:

% °Due td rélated patties: Compared to fasi year, the balance has increased from PhP2.1 mitlion
o PhP6 million 4§ Company has not settled its obligations with the related companies. This
“will be sertled in first quarter of 2015, '

# ‘Tricoie tix payable: There iy an ihcome tax payable as at end of 2014 of PhP1.8 milfion.
~veérsu§ zero in 2013 even though Company has lower profit before tax as the Company has,
Highé'f"ﬁmﬁétax deduciible items this year.

deposit: This ‘balance consists mainly of deposits from customers and fenants.
Comipar Tast year, there 1s an increase of PhP26.9 million as there wis a new security
deposit of PhP23 million from a potential tenant which is in the process of negofiation with,

the Company-




s

_ i “'\"y:-’”f‘he Cfompany ammed tnr refireneitt enefits fiability
in acmrdance to the ac’suamal vafuat'wn yearly. There is an increase in accrual from PhP2L.9:

millicii 16 PhP26.6 million this year as in 2013, there was an gxperience adjustment of

‘iegative PhP2 million while the expﬂﬁencc adjustment for 2014 was Tower.

_;mﬂhcm due: to thc share. buyback exercise mndumed durmg the year 201 4.

2013 Finaneial Conditions

"i“ntaf assets for the yéar 2()13 éecwased hy ?’l’ﬂf’ﬁ? mx hcm (ﬁ%j miatwe te the samie pcrmr.i of

--'There 53 dacmase af PhP76 m;llmn {2’7%) c:ampa’red to ihiﬁ same f]ﬁf‘l ‘Oﬂf"}a‘ﬁf year.
7] ainly due 10 payment of share buyback exercise amounting to PhP142 million in
second halfof 2013 afid Tower revenue.

% Receivables net: This balanice increased by PhP18 million over same geriod last year due to

increase recgivables froni a major tenant.,

ﬁ‘e c”{aprcctatmn ¢ _.afges f@r ifie ¥

ferred tax assélst This balente decreased mainly due to fower balance for retitement
fits:

Tiabilities and Equity:

% Accounts’ ayabie and accmﬁti expenses: This balance dropped by PhP4.2 million comparcd
with pricr year and. this {s mainly due to lower frade payables which is consistent with the
Tower revenue.

 related parties: There s repayment fo related parties at nd for outst,andmg
escatid as such, this balance dropped by._ PhP4.7 niiliion compareé o the same period

:of last-year;

» Income tax paya‘i#’ie; Die 10 Tower profit and the Compdry has sufficlent ereditable
withholding tax, inicome fax. payable is zero ‘balance for lasi-quarter.




=Réf‘undz¥8‘fe ﬁ‘epasxts* ':im represents éepoms gwen by ierzams to ﬁw Cam;aany fbr lease af"
i !

‘f{i a'tenant.,

. Acumw m’é*i‘mmem Tlabii;ty 'Tius bzﬁance represents accruai for ratamment habzixty f‘ar-

;mzllaon relative 10 same period of ast year‘

s T reasury “stock ~There IS an inCrease in treasury stock by PhP142 million' versus Tast year

and this is a result of the ghare buybamk n2013..

2012 Financlal Conditions

yea I le Iiabi i ms”decreascd by }’hP5 2 rm.lh.on or i 3% 'f’he main (iecream in assus is due m_f
lower cash paﬁlhon

A&sets

&

%‘mcrea&a 1 mamfy due to increase in VAT due' from ?AQC{DR and ﬂEsu advanws to
¢contractor in connection with a renovation project.

+ -Due from related parties: In the normal -
related companies for working capital purpose. Tham is a dr{)__};\__ n the balance from

PhP3.T million 1o PhP1.] million due fo the related compdnies Have settled their
‘aufstanding balances to the Company as at year end.

w “fnvéﬁ‘mﬂes Tiiveritories consist. of “food, general supplies; beverage and tobaceo,
‘cngmccrmg supplms “The increase in this balance by PhP1.9 million is dif¢ 1o increase in
food inventory,

# Prepayments and other current assets: This balance consists of i mput value-added tax and

prepaid expenses which are mami} insurance:” ‘premium. There is an increase in bafance

s Deferred THX dssets: I}at’emd 1ax assets consist of retirément’ hablhiy, deferred rental
iricome, dllowance For impmrmmt ss on receivables and foreign e:xchanga gamflnso.
The fiicrense T balaiice by PhP18 million (18%) is due-to higher retirement liability,




= Liability and Equity: 3 " _ o
& Ascounts payable and acerued expenses: This decolint consists mainly of trade payables,

aceruied payroll and acerved utilities. There is a decrease in‘accrued trade payables by
PhP10.6 million (16%) due fo lesser volume of business for this year.

# Triconie tax payable: Tncome ‘tax payablé fell by PhPS.1 milfion (25%) ‘and this is
consistent with the ]Q'W'ifl"".pfﬁfﬁ’t for this vear..

« Dirg 1 related pafties: There is a drop in this balance by PhP12.4 million' (64%) and is
because the Company has repaid some ouistanding payables 1o its related companies.

% Other current Tabilities: This balance consisis of- ouiput VAT pavable, deferred rental and
Wwithholding taxes payablé. The increase in balance by PhP9 millior (4%) is due to highet

output YAT payables.

' ‘Accrued refirément Hability: T here is @i increase in PHPZ.7 milfion (8%) due fo provision
for refirement liability for the year 2012 A

« Refundable déy

the Company;

new fenant.

osit: “This balance is mainly for security deposits placed by tenants with
he ingrease in balance by PhP3.5million (13%) is due to the deposit of a

o Treasury siodk: This pertains 1o the shate buyback exersise conducted during the year.
O 25" June 2012, the Board approved a share buyback exercise of 1 share for every 25
shares and-at PhP50 per share. '

For discussions of these risks, see Note 25 ~ Financial. Risks and Capital Management to the
aéeOmpanying audited financial statements in Item 7,

FTEN 7, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

Please se¢ attachments.

ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH: ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

th ‘Accountanis on any matter relaling, Wi

There are no' changes and/or disagreements W / miafter relating, &
auditing scope and procedure duting the

acgountifig principles of practices, financial disclogures,
Tast wo fiseal years,

§ s exposire o various Tisks, inicluding liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk.




ITEM 9. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE. OFFICERS AND SIGNIFICANT EJMI’L()YEE&
OF THE REG IGTRANT

PART I = CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

NAME

OFFICE

CITIZENSHIP

FAMILY

| RELATION |

)

' Wan ﬁﬁmg Ren

. Ch&mmn & Prcsldem

'Smgapmr@aﬁ?

+ "No relation | 63

: Bryan Clockmll

| ‘Director:

Amerman

i No relation

‘ Eddie Tau

4 Dlrect(:ar

B._nu_s.h _

4 Norelation

Angelito Imperio: “

| Independent Director

Filiping:

¥ Norelation |

Mig Gentugava

Independent Director

_ Filipine

Norelation | 63 [

Eddie Yeo Ban Heng

BDirector/ Vice-

President/ Assistant
Cnmphdnce Officer/

General Manager of

- The Heritage Hotel.
“Manila

Malaysian’

T Notelation | 6

| Yam Kit Sung

‘General Manager of the |
‘Compaiy / Chief

Finance Officer/
Compliance Officet /|
"Chief Audit Executive - |

Singaporean

No relation | 44

| Catherine Serrano

Director of Finance /

Member The Heritage. |
Hotel Mam!a ;

.........................................

_. ";Commzttees .

Filipino

No'relation

' Geralcim@ Nono Gaw -

“Direcior of Marketing /7 |
‘Meémber The Heritage |
Hotel Manila ,
Management Executive |
Lommittee |

Filiping

No relation.

| Maria Christing

Macmsaet‘-ﬁaa”ﬁﬂn

J. | Corporate Secretary

Filipino

I~ No relation

Alain Chailes J, Velosg

- Assistant Corporate

Gretary’

I“‘lhpmo "

1 No relation.

| Arlene De Guzman

ik Treasurer

Filipino

% Up 1o the fourth civil degree ither by consanguinity or affimity,

"Wo relation




Under Arficle TV Section 7 of the By-Laws of the Company, the directors shall Hold office for
otie year siid unti] their successors are duiy clected and have quahﬁed

None: of the: ditectors and executive officers are related within the 4" civil degree of
Consang umny or affinity.

None of fhe fai}awmg evenis occurred durmg the past five years that sre material 10 an

evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director, person nominated fo ‘hecome a. director,

executive officer, pmmc;ter or control person of the mgmrani

d). Any bankruptey pf:mmn filed by or against any business of which such’person wesa geneml,

V’partner or execuhve officer either at the time-of the bania‘uptcy or within two year pr;ar to

#): Conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding;

c) 'Bemb subm}ect to any order, judgment or décres hnntmg sich pemon s ihvelvenent in any:

~ type-of business, securities, commodities or banking activities; and
d). Being found by domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction i in a eivil action to have
violated any securities or commodities law,

Business Experience

WONG HONG REN
CHAIRMAN & PRESIDENT

Mr Wong Hong Ren was first ¢lected Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors in May

1996, He was also an exeéciitive director of Millennium & Copthome Hotels plc, a public listed
company on the London Stock Exchange since April 2001. Mr Wong weas appointed Chief

Fxecutive Officer of Millennium & Copthome Hotels ple on 27 June 2011, He is also Chaitman

of Millennitum & Copthome Hotels New Zealand Limited and CDL Investments New Zealand
Limited, both of which are listed on the New Zealand stock: exchange. He'is also the non-
eXe
CDL Hospitality Trusts

BRYAN K. COCKRELL

DIRECTOR:

M. Bryan Cockrell, an American national has been a Director of the Company since May 1997.
*V{z* Cockrell“is the Chairman of the Patlifinder Group in the Philippines which has interests in
irism-related ventures, properties and other joint ventures undertakings and of the Gmup 5
frivestments in Vietnam. Before his stint in the Philippines, he held nurierous. positions iri

Singapore, Indonesia and Saudi Arabia. Mr, Cockrell is also a Director of Lafarge Republic In¢.,

g Hsted" company,

utive Chairmar of M&C REIT Management Limited which nianages the ?mgapore listed

H

ol



ANGELITO €. IMPERIO.
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

‘Atty. Imperio has been a Director of the Company continnously since August 1992:and during
tliat span of time, hie served as independent Director from 2001 to 2004, and again from 2008 up
to the present. He ‘,éy"‘ijéfmﬁk;jédﬁhis{_}f_;e_gg}'eéi’u’i:aﬁbﬁ”at*tﬁa University of the Philippines (LLB.) and
‘was admitted to the bar in 1966, He was a senior partner of the Taw fism SyCip Salazar
‘Hernandéez &Gatmaitan imfil his retirement in October 2004. He continued to serve the firm as of
counsel until August 2010 At present, his professional work is limited to.outside counseling,
particulaily on estate plafning, and serving as an official Appellate Court Mediator of clvil cases
pending in the Court of Appeals, o

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Atty. Genfugaya is a setifor partner and Head of the Banking, Finance and Securities Group of
8yCip Salazar Hemandez & Gatmitan.. She’has been a Director of the Company since Augiist
1992 and served a3 indépendent director since 2005. She was-admitted to the Philippine Bar in
1978 afier completitig her fegal education at the University of the Philippines (LL.B.). Aty
Grentugaya practices corporate and commercial jaw; 4nd has been named by Chambers &
Partiers and The Legal 500-as one of the world’s leading lawyers in banking and finance, and
comfnercial 1aW; She is a member of the ilippine Bar Association and the Makati Business’
Elib. Skic also serves in the Board of Directors of various companies.

EDDIE B.H. YEO o G e
DIRECTOR, VICE-PRESIDENT, ASSISTANT COMPLIANCE OFFICER & GENERAL
MANAGER OF THE HERITAGE HOTEL MANILA

¢ Bddie Veo is appointed as.a Direclor ard General Manager of The Heritage Hotel Manila on

15 January 20035, Prior to his ¢iirrent position, he was the General Manager of Copthomne Kings
Hotel Singapore from Janyary 1999 to 2004. He has more than'42 years experience in managing
and.developing hotel projects in Singapore, Malaysia, Thailand, Australia, USA and Vietnam.
He holds a Master of Business Administration from the University of South Australia, is a

Ceitified Hotel Administrator (CHA) from the Educational Institute of the American Hotel &
‘Motel Associatiorn, Michigan, USA and a Member of the Chartered Management Institute, UK.
1T ‘is the Vice President of the Singapore Philippines Association; Vice President of the
‘Malaysiah Associations £ the Philippines; and 2™ Vice President of SKAL Club of Manila. He
gits-on the Board of the

and the Foreign Chamber Council of the Philippines;

| Association of the Philippines, Hotel Federations of the Philippines




EDDIE €L LAT

DIRECTOR

Mi: Hddie Lt & ‘British nistional and was “appointed I):rectt}r ef ‘the Campany since 17 January
2005, He &bmnmd his MBA Trom the University of Durham, UK. He is a fellow member of both
the- Hang Kong Insfitute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Certified
Agéountants in UK. Mr: T.au'is also an associate member of the Chartered Institute of Bankers in
UK., HE has m ﬂ‘xan 25 years experience in the financial industry and has extenstve practical
EXPOSUIS anoial control, business planning énd operational management. He had worked
“with Hang Seng Bank, ‘Standard Chartered Bank, Bank Austria and The Long-Term Credit Bank
of Japan: For the past twelve years, hie Wil the Financial Controffer of thosé binks tht e
wvnrkcxi wuh ‘Mr, Lau had also served in the Hong Kong Manetary Autharity as a Bank
the banks® compliance in Hong Kong. Currently, Mr. Lau 5 the Senjor
Vice T’rcsxcicnt = "ﬂfzad of Gmup Finante and Company Secretary of Asia Financial Hﬁidmgﬁ
‘Limited, aTistéd eompany in Hong Kong. He joined Asia Financial Holdings L Aimited since July

2000:

_Ajcf_mﬁr X c*z;mfr

M. Yam obiained his Bachelor of Accountaney (Honors) degree from Ninyaij Technological
Unwwsﬂy in Smf,apore “Upon graduation, he joined the international accounting. firm, Price
“Waterhouse based in Singapore as an auditor-and Jater joined CDL Hotels International L;mlzf:d
(mw known s Millennfum & Copthorne Hotels International Limited) as an Internal Auditor. Th
1996, tie joined The Heritage Hotel Manila as an Qperatmns Analyst. and was appointed General
“Mamger of the Cemgemy in April 2000. In June 2006, M. Yam was appmntéd Vice President —
Assel Management (China) for HL Global Entevpnsgs Limifed, a cempamf listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange, He also sits on the Board of several companies in the HL Global
Enterprises Limited Groip.

ARLENE DE GUZMAK'
7}?}%3&5&&[6

rifan has been the Company’s Treasurer since August 1997 She is dlso &
and president. of the Company. She graduated with a B.S. Business Econonics
(c,um iaude) degree from thé University of the Philippines in 1981, Her bugsiness experience
includes: Senior Projéct Evaluation Officer, National Deveiopment Campany, Head, Financial
Risk M , Philipping Associated Smelting and Refining Cw;mraﬁnn (PASARY) and
eurrently Senior Vieé Presideit of the Pathfindér Group. She is presently a director and/or officer

of the various ‘companfes under the “Pathfinder Group, Grand Plaza Hotel Corp: and the.
Calumboyan Holdings Group. :

Ms Ariene de




MARTA CHRISTINA J. MACASAET-ACABAN

CORPORATE SECRETARY o

Ms, Mdudbaﬁt-mmbma 1 1 “partiiet Gf the Taw firm of qusumhmg ‘Tormes. . She joined
Quisumbing T6res in 1998 after graduating euim lau from.the University of the Philippines.
College of Law (L1B. 1998). She was also a tecipient of the Dean’s Medal for Academic
"Excellence and a member of the Order i’:ﬁf the Piirple Feather, the honors society of the University
‘of the Ph:hppmes Ctﬁ’ieg& of Law. - She was admitted to the Philippine Barin 1999,

carporate. and commercial laws with {ocus on foreign
¢ ‘ itions, mrpomiﬂ compliance., She has. represented multinational
.carpomtmn%‘cperalmg, i various mdustnes, such as pharmaaﬁutwai and healthcare, information
techndfagy, ol,ii:soummg fanufacturing and real estate, in Philippiie and ross-border
transactions, and advised on equity restrictions, investment structures and r&guialory :;L)mpl;ance :

for Philippiné business operations.

Ms, Macasaet—Acabanﬂ_ prag

Sha serves as corporate secretary and assistant’ corporale: secretary of vatious privdte comparies.
‘Shie s nof an officer br director of other public Companies or companies that arc grantees: of
secondary licenses from the SEC.

ALAIN CHARLES J. VELOSO
ASSISTANT CORPORATE SECRETARY

M. Veloso ¥ & senior associate of the faw firm qusumiwmg Tories. Mi Velosd's pmdweg
-.-cmpomte and commercial law, with focus on pharmaceuticals, sectifities, mergers Hnd
dcquisitions, -erergy and. natiiral resolirces, ‘infrastructure, and wmeuwmg He joined.
Quisumbihg Torres in 2006 afier graduatmg class valedictorian and cum laude from the
Uiiiversity of ilippines College of Law in 2006, He was also a recipient of the Dean’s
Madal f‘or Academm Excelience a member ni" th# Order ai the Purp!e Feaihar' @ Chief }usﬁce

; t’a oblammg his law dezgree Mr Veloso ﬂbtameci his BS. Acceumam:y ircm the

i of the Phlilppmes Tacloban College in 2001, graduating cum lawde. Mr. Veloso
paﬂ%t‘i the Phili ippine licensure exam for Certified Publie Accountants in 2001, He alse teachés
‘Transparmtmn and Public Utilities Law and Land Titles and Registration ai Centro Escolar
University School of Law and Turisprudence;.

Mr, Veloso is also the assistant corporale secretary of various yravaie: mmpames Fle is not df

nﬁ‘%cer or director of offier public companies 6r companies that are grantees of seec}ndary licenses”
from the SEC.
GERALDINE NONO GAW

DIRECTOR OF MARKETING, MEMBER ~ HERITAGE HOTEL MANILA MANAGEMENT
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
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| Boardof [ Wong | Bryan kﬂgéiii@

Ger‘ﬁﬂl!}e N Gaw joined the company in 2003 as the Director of Cafering and was promoted as-
)i -Mdrketmg il 2008, Prior to jeining the Heritage Hotel Geraldine held the.
position of Convention and Bsmquﬁ:i Sales Mamg&r from 1999 to. 2003 at the Manila Midtown
Hotel. She hay also ‘hild several senfor positions in various hotels in Metro Manila and Davao.
City, riamely the Mandarn Oriental Hotel and the Davao Insular Intercontinental Tnn. She is
wrenily o member of’ the Hotel Sales and Marketing Association. Geraldine graduated at the’
Kteneo De Davas Umversxiy with a Degree in Business Administration miajor in Accounting.

- CATHERINE A. SERRANO |

ﬁXECU?!VE COMMJ?W 5

_:M“ ‘ Qatherme A Sermno ;ome(i“ Cirand ?Iam H‘mte:"l Cio ation in Agpril 2009 as ity Acmzmimg"
M 1 ft"l}:rmmr of‘ Tmam.c: anc? rcwnti} 20!

_Q‘ammeme nm_;or in i\cmzmting at the Umversﬁy of the Assumpmn, San F emanﬁa Pampa%a

Prior’ to wcar”"ng in the ’%ici{e‘l mcfwatry Ms Sarmm hmed her skaﬂs in her f‘ eld f{ar 137 yearx wnh

‘Attendance Record

Meeting Attendance of the Company s Board of Directors in 2014

__ Namc e{" Diréctors ek
Mia Michele Mdm 1 Eddie
ﬁmkreﬁ lmperm Gentugaya | Dee- Lat Yeo

: Santos |
: :  (Resigned |
i | ; - effective |
: | A |
f October |
L i L .
‘Present || Present | Absent | Present. | Present

Dlrectars

]
g meetings' | :

‘ Meem’xg i
| with Board . {

of :
{ Directors)




| Present

[ Preserit’

| Present | Presenit

 Present | Absent

| Present

| Preseni

} Present:

+ Pregent

| Present
.‘é:

Present

Present

|

Present

Present

- Presem

{ Preseni

| Present | Present

Present

siiid

: 2 ()Clobel
12014

 Present”

| Present

'''''' Absent '

| Present

1 Present B

Present.

Present

3

27 Ocmbcr
2014

Pregent’

' ;F Absent

Ereﬁent 1 Absent.

N/A

| Present
E: ;3 §

: Presen{

[ Towl

o7 | 6 T

501,11 of T

Soutof 6 ‘ 6 outof 7

g:

7 out of.i’m;? i
1

Attendance |

YR ;;#1;43.%

i

B353% | 85.11%

100%

¥

Meéting Attendance of the Company”s Audit Committee in 2014;

Name of [}mctms

Bryan Cookell ]

Mlﬁ Gentugaya

Michele Dee-Santos
| (Resigned effective 10
| October 2014)

Pregént

4 Absént.

Pr&s&nt

‘Present

| Present

1 Pmsen’*’t

Present

Present

Present

| N/A-

T{Jf'v_ﬂ —

y 4out off%

& oulof 4

(2 out of 3

Percentage of

4 100%:

[100%

66.66%

| Aitendancs

Name of Directors

Eadie |
Lan.

“ chhe’i

Bryan :
‘Dee-Santos

Cockrell

Angsxvh
Tinpetio

| 11 February 2014 (Joint
| Meeting with Board of

Present

i

| Present

‘Absent

?regam

v he s SR,




| piveetors) J BN S I
{21 March 2014 |

;&bscnt ) Present TPresent | Present: | Present

“[Toulorz {ZoutolZ |Zouwterz |louef2 |Zowoiz |

i

[Percentago of Afendancs | 0% [ 100%  [100%  [50%  [100% |

ITEM 10, EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

1
£
!
i

EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTORS COMPENSATION

TOSTION |,

TSALARY | BONUS | OTHERS/ |

' DIRECTOR
| 1 OFEES 4
| 2014 | 5

J—— 5

T Chalrman & ?
L President 1
[ 'Eddie Yeo Ban Heng | General Managerof | 2014
v Hotel b
4 YamKitSung ~ | Generdl Managerof | 2014 5
L _the Company ¥ ’

L TS . - 1 | | ’
| Cathy Serrano._— § Director of Finance | 2014 — | ©
Director of Sales & | 2014 | % '

Marketing | ’i

2014 | 12327,371 | 756.719 | 88815

Directors as a -‘gmu_p k2018

12327371 | 756719 | 1,399,965

“The estinated total ompensition {or officery an | directors inyear 2015 is as follows:
Salary— PhP12.5 million
Bonus — PhPLOmillion.
Other-Fees — PhP1.5:million

FOR THE LAST 2 FINANCIAL YEARS - 2013 and 2012

NAME ] POSITION | YEAR | SALARY | BONUS | OTHERS/ |
| FEES

Wong HongRen | Charman & | 2013
President | 8

Fadio Voo BanTiofg | Goneral Mamsgerof | 2003 | | |
; H@tﬁl ' ST, ; ; ,

k| NPT "3 — > e S R

i R
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4

[VemKit Stmg f{iffgna__ral Manager of | 2013

o 1 the Company

| 'Cithy Serrano______ | Director of Finance | 2013

Gigi Gaw { Ditector of Sales& | 2013 |

_ Murkeing

To

TN :;l.fé;ﬁﬁ.S';rzii 048016 | 88,815

Directors T - T 11,494,626

T Al officers & — R i I{)j(}ﬁsazig 948‘016 ¥ ,583,44 7

Directors as'a groip” | 2013

I Name T FOSTTION | VEAR | SALARY | BONUS | OTHERS/
| I ' % DIRECTOR ||
: |

it
B

4. § A b | FEES
Chaiman & | 2012 |
President  ° i

i EE;E

General Managerof | 2012 ; ; | i §

Hatel o

“General Manager of | 2012 | |
| theCompany | |

| Exceutive Manager | 2012 ' ;‘

ikl Kl BN |
Executive Chef | 2012 ;

3012 11328636 | 1481,160 | 70,000

Direstors . 1 2012 TZ111.284

Allofficers& | T | 11328636 | TARL.160 | 2181284
Directors as a group | __ | sor7 | |

“The compensations of the dire
fuitth 8f remuiierdtion, There are no arrangements, such as consulting contracts, pursuant 10
‘which any director of the Company was compensated, or is'to be compensated, directly or
indireetly, during the Company’s last completed fiseal yéir, and the ensuing year, for any service
provided as director: |

There are fio-agreements that require, if any such executive officers resign of ate ferminated by

the Company; or if there is a change in control of the Company, the executive officers of the
be compenisated a total amount exceeding PhP2,500,000.

Conipany fo

MANAGEMENT

Security Ownership of Management

:}'I“’h

ctors are one-timé directars’ fees and do not itivelve any other

Y AND OWNERSHIF OF CERTAIN RENEFICIAL OWNERS AND.

i€ following table sliows the sharehiolding beneficially held by the officers ofthe Company as.
at 31 December 2014. - ST

ettt |




W 4 TITLE OF | NAME OF BENEFICIAL
‘ CLASS | OWNER'/ (_CI’I‘IZENSHIP) OF _ BENEFICIAL | CLASS
L . OWNERSHIP ~ §
“Common shares Yam Kit Sung 2,999 shares beneficial "ﬁess than 1%
. %-‘(‘imgapﬁrean} ................ i
Common shares | Eddie Yeo E share bm‘icﬁma} i Lﬁs;s, than | %‘
o '"(Mhiayé’iaﬁ)‘ f _ . F .

E 1 | The Ph‘: xppme Fund Bermuda | 28,655,932° 53.34% :
i) ' Limited 1§ | S . |
I Zatrio Pte. Lid. Singapore __ | 17,727,149 33.08% I
E 3 RCBC Trust & Filipine | 5835663 10.86% Tl

TAMOUNT

& NATURE

PERCENT

g f‘nl lowing enfities are directly or indirectly the beneficial owneis of more than 5% of the
“Conmpany’s vcafmg shares (comman) as of 31 December 2014

SN NAMEOF | CITIZENSHIP | NO.OF
| SHAREHOLDER | SHARES

d

:

“%OF
‘SHAREHOLDING
(EXCLUSIVE OF

TREASURY SHARES) |

??GM

T The Phiffppfne an&mtmﬁed is ﬁWned by
Shareholder's Name
4 ‘Hong Lebng Hotels Pre. Trd

Class of Shares Qwned

P.O. Box 309 Grand Cayman’ Ordinary”
N i West Indigs, Ciyman Islands’ ‘
2 f"ac;f‘ Te Far East (PFE) ?Inlﬂmg,s C{)rparatmn _
‘(formerly Istethmar Tnternational Corporation)
‘Suite: 270509, 27Flr, Jardine House irdinary -
‘I Connaught Place, Conral, Hong Kong -
3, Robina Manila Hause‘l)imitéd
&7F Banpkok Bank Bm!dmg Ordinary -

28 Des Voeiix Road, Central ng Kiong

% Held"

60%

20%

. 2{}%
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Exhibits

Natre

Reports-on SEC Form 17:C

The: folfowmg--:'
December 2014

erits: were reported fn. SEC Fofm 17-C during the period January 2014 1

[ Date of F’lhng of SEC. Form 17..(:

[T2 Tbruary 2014

Cﬁntm&t_vf Lf:a&u butw%n Harbour Land Cm’pﬁrmmz and
~ompany - Rent Increase and Extensionand Approval
| of the Record Date for the C@mpmy s Annual

Ssmekhmdars’" M@@tmg for2014

| Election of Directors and Re-Appointment of External
{ Anditors.

T6 May 2014

35 May 2014,

: Biiyback Timetable. anci Buybac‘?c Bacumenﬁs

STy 2014

| Result of the Bu

yhack_mehms

iE ifufy 2013

Completion of t

uyback of Shares

Renewsil of Contract of Lease

Deimise:of Ms, Mary Grace Magsalifi

Rt:s;,gaan@n of Mmhai& Dee-Santos as Dlmctm_
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nes R Qﬁiﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ@dé and Section 141 of
f the issuer by the undersigned, thereunto

. on_30 March 2015,

ong Hong Ren™

Vam Kit Sung
‘General Manager/” ¥
; Vice President Finance 1/

s g £ .ig“g:. .
Lt 7 o
ristinia MacaSaet-Acaban
i

iy

‘SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN (o before me this 30thday of March
affiani(s) exhibiting to me their Community Tax Certificates/Passports, as follows?

R T

Names CTC/Passport No.  Dateof Issue Pliice of Tssue

Wong Hong Hen EAVOREION 20 Ovtobe¥ 2014  Singapore

Y ~

o Sl Taing
Leshs .

C GEGTAtnE i
3 e g - AF W Y AF

o TN A 9{_)1‘-_ 4




SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 14th day of April 2015, affiants exhibiting to me the
following:

Yam Kit Sung Passport No. E3384874K issued on 7 September 2012 / Singapore
Christina Macasaet-Acaban  Passport No. EB7554126 issued on 5 March 2013 / Philippines

Doc. No. {to
Page No. [07
Book No. 267
Series of 2015.

ROLL ND, 61942
PYR NG, 8T 4750754/ 1,618 TIGIY
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FOREIGN SERVICE OF THE
REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES

EMBASSY OF THE PHILIPPINES )
Consular Section ) S.8.

:Singapore
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

L J. ANTHONY A, REYES  cConsul . ofthe

Republic of the Philippines in Sihgapore, duly commissio_néd énd gualified, do
hereby cerify that
HO SUK TSING LESLIE

before whom the annexed Instrument has been executed, to wit:

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESlPONSIBILiTY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION)

was at the time he/she signed the same NOTARYPUBLIC

and that his/her signature affixed thereto is genuine.

The Embassy assumes no responsibliity for the contents of the annexed

instrument.

IN WITNESS HEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal
of the Embassy of the Philippines in Singapore this day of 1 APRIL 2016

Service No.: 93318
O.R.No. :117780 By Gt
Fee Paid 34250 J. ANTHONY A. REYES



Phihipplnss x =
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NOTARIAL CERTIFICATE

TO ALL TO WHOM THESE PRESENTS SHALL COME

I, HO SUK TSING LESLIE Notary Public duly authorised and
appointed practising in the Republic of Singapore DO HEREBY
CERTIFY AND ATTEST that the document “STATEMENT OF
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS” hereunto annexed was signed and executed by WONG
HONG REN and the person named and mentioned in the said document
for and on behalf of GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION.

IN FAITH AND TESTIMONY
WHEREOF I have hereunto subscribed
my name and affixed my seal of office this

30th day of March 2015,

L

Lt

Ho Suk Tsing
Laslie
CeoT4fNo0
1 Apr 2014 = 31 Mar 201




GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

3 February 2015
Statement of Management’s Responsibility For Financial Statements

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Building, EDSA, Greenhills
City of Mandaluyong

The management of GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION is responsible for
all information and representations contained in the financial statements as of and for
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, The financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the Philippines
and reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates and informed judgment of
management with an appropriate consideration to materiality.

In this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting which
provides for the necessary internal controls to ensure that transactions are properly
authorized and recorded, assets are safeguarded against unauthorized use or disposition
and liabilities are recognized. The management likewise discloses to the Company’s
audit committee and to its external auditor: (i) all significant deficiencies in the design
or operation of internal controls that could adversely affect its ability to record, process,
and report financial data; (ii) material weaknesses in the internal controls; and (iii) any
fraud that involves management or other employees who exercise significant roles in
internal controls, '

The Board of Directors reviews the financial statements before such statements are
approved and submitted to the stockholders of the Company.,

KPMG Manabat Sanagustin & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the
stockholders, has audited the financial statements of the Company in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards in the Philippines and has expressed its opinion on
the faimess of presentation upon completion of such audit, in its report to the Board of
Directors and Stockholders.

10 Floor, The Heritage Hotel Manila, Roxas Blvd cor, EDSA Extension Pasay City

Tel: 854 8838 Fax: 854 8825
A MEMBER OF THE HONG LEONG GROUP SINGAPORE
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. ) ",.ﬂ“’"‘
Wong Hong Ren Yam Kit Surrg”
Chairman and Premdent tal Manager & Chief Financial Officer

Subscribed and swom to before me a notary public for and in the City of Singapore this
30th dayof _March 2015, the signatories exhibiting to me their Commumity Tax

Certificates/Passports details of which are as follows:

Name Gommunity-Tax-Certifreate/ Date Place of Issue
Passport Number
Wong Hong Ren E4908899H 20 October 2014 Singapore
Yeom¥itSung-
Notary Public
Doc. No. \ e A
Page No.
Book No.
Series 0of 2015 ARY PUaL!o

Ho Suk Tsing
Leslle
C2014:0100
£ Apr 2014 = 31 Mes 201




GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

3 February 2015

Statement of Management’s Responsibility For Financial Statements

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Building, EDSA, Greenhills
City of Mandaluyong

The management of GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION is responsible for
all information and representations contained in the financial statements as of and for
the years ended December 3 1,2014, 2013 and 2012. The financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the Philippines
and reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates and informed judgment of

management with an appropriate consideration to materiality,

In this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting which
provides for the necessary internal controls to ensure that transactions are properly
authorized and recorded, assets are safeguarded against unauvthorized use or disposition
and liabilities are recognized, The management likewise discloses to the Company’s
audit committee and to its external auditor: (i) all significant deficiencies in the design
or operation of internal controls that could adversely affect its ability to record, process,
and report financial data; (i) material weaknesses in the internal controls; and (iif) any
fraud that involves management or other employees who exercise significant roles in

internal controls.

The Board of Directors reviews the financial statements before such statements are

approved and submitted to the stockholders of the Company.

KPMG Manabat Sanagustin & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the
stockholders, has audited the financial statements of the Company in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards in the Philippines and has expressed its opinion on
the faimess of presentation upon completion of such audit, in its report to the Board of

Directors and Stockholders.

10 Floor, The Heritage Hotel Manila, Roxas Blvd cor. EDSA Extension Pasay City
Tel: 854 8838 Fax: 854 8825 ‘
A MEMBER OF THE HONG LEONG GROUP SINGAPORE
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Wong Hong Rén | Yam Kit Sun
Chaj aﬂaid President General Mangdger & Chief Financial Officer

Mawa
Subscribed an ﬁﬁvom t0 before me a notary public for and in the City of ___""this

day o 13 70115 2013, the signatories exhibiting to me their Community Tax
Certificates/Passports details of which are as follows:

Name Community Tax Certificate/ Date Place of Issue
Passport Number

1 Seplember 2602 | Singapere
YamKit Sung  fascqort fo- E3934HK fept Jswger

Doc, No.{f9q
PageNo. [0/
Book No. &7 T TS,

Series of 2015 e pey, MKT 4



GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012



REPORT OF INDEPEN]:IENT AUDITGRS

"The.Board of Directors and Stockholders
Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation

Report on the Financial Statements

We have eudited the accompanying financial statements of Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation,
which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the
statements of profit or loss, statements of comprehensive [ncome, statements of changes in equity
and statements of cash flows for each of the years in the three-year peried ended December 31,
2014, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information,

Management s Responsibility for the Financial Statemenls

Management is fesponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Philippine Finanecial Reporting Standards, and for such internal controf as
management determines is necessary (o enable the preparation of financial statements that are '
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, :

Auditors' Responsibifity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financlal statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amouats and
disclosures in the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or etror, In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal controf relevant to the entity’s proparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in otder to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall |
presentation of the financial statements, ‘

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to ptovide a
basis for qur audit opinion.

PRCHIGA Rog'suation No. 0003, velitf untit Decomber 1, 2018
SEt Accraditation No, 0004-FR-, Grovp A, valid until Novarrbat 10, 2017
IC kecraditesion Mo, F-20V4/D14-R, valid uniil August 76, 2017
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Opinfon

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respeots, the financial
position of Grand Plaza Hotel Corparation as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and its financial
performance and Its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December3 1,
2014 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, -

Report on the Supp!eme:ftary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations (RR)
No. 19-2011 and RR No, 15-2010 of the Bureau of Interual Revenue

Our sudits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 2§ to the financial
statements Is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a
- required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management, The inforination has been subjected to the auditing procedures applisd in our
audits of the basic financial statements, In cur opinien, the information is fairly stated in all
material tespects in rolation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,

LG Mambl ,, (.

Febiary 3, 2015 ;
Makati City, Metro Manila



R.G. Manahat & Co, Tetephene 43 {2} 886 7000

Tha kPMG Center, 8/F Fax +63 (2] B84 1986
G787 Ayalz Avanye Intamat v, kprng.com.ph
Maksil City 1228, Matro Manita, Philippines EMo  manila@kpmg com.ph

Branches: Sublc - Cebu - Bateod - llollo

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Grand Plaza Hote| Corporation

10" Floor, The Heritage Hotel Manila
EDSA corner Roxas Boulevard ’
Pasay City

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation,
which comprise the statements of financial posltion as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the
statements of profit or loss, statements of comprehensive income, staterments of changes in equity
and statements of cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2014, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
infurmation. !

Managemeni's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from maierial misstatement, whethet due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility s to express an apinion on these financial statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstaterent,

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disciosures In the financial statements, The procedures selzcted depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to frand or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal contro] relevant to the entity’s preparation and falr presentatlon of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the ciroumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivensss of the entity’s lnternal contral, An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimetes made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentatlon of the financial statements, -

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
hasls for our audit opinion,

© 2015 RG, Mersiat & Ce., o Phifpping pertsership and 8 menbel frm PRC-B0A Reglsttdian New 0003, valld unt) Dacember 33, 2016
ol the KPMG Aatanrk of Indapersant frms sififited with KPRE {ntamationst SEC Actadinllon No, Q0M-FRA, Group A, vakd until Naverbar 1D, 2017
Cooparedve IKPRIG Intarnetkoms?], 8 Swias snlity, SPMG fmsmatonel G Asstaditalion Na. F-20747014-R, vafid unli Augeal 28, 2017

plavitas ne Clisnl sarvicas. No maraber lrm ks dny suthority (o obliple

ot bind KPRAG Intainrtional of any othee mamber firm vis-b-vle third pactiep,
not dops KPME intarnatorsl heve any sugh suthgrity (o ebilgete or bind any
anambar firm Allrighta rasaresd,
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial staterments present faitly, in &ll material respects, the flaancial
position of Grand Plaza Hotel Corpotation as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and its financlal
pexformance and its cash flows for ench of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2014 in accordance with Phillppine Financial Reporting Standards,

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulatiﬂns (RR)
No. 19-2011 and RR No. 15-2010 of the Bureau of Internal Revenne

Qur audits wero conducted for the purpose of forming an opmion on the bagio ﬂnanclal
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 28 to the finarcial
statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements, Such information is the responsibility of
management, The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our
audlls of the basic financial statements, In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

R,G, MANABAT & CQ,

ADOR C. MENIA
Partner
CPA License No. 0029620
SEC Acereditation No, 0464-AR-2, Group A, valid until March 24, 2016
Tax Identification No, 112-071.634
BIR Accreditation No. 08.001987-10-2013
Issued May 9, 201 3; valid until May 8, 2016
PTR No, 47481 17TMC
Issued January 5, 2015 at Makati City

Febraary 3, 2015
Makati City, Metro Manila



R, Manabat & Co, . Telephone  +63 (2) 888 7000

The KPMG Canter, &F Fax +83 12) 834 1986
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Makat! Clty 1228, Metro Mandla, Philipgines E-Malt manila@kpmp.com.ph
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS :
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
' BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation

10" Floor, The Heritage Hotel Manila
EDSA corner Roxas Boulevaid

Pasay City

Wo have audited the rccompanylng financial statements of Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation as at
and for the year ended December 31, 2014, on which we have rendered our report thereon dated
February 3, 2015,

In compliance with Revenue Regulation V-20, we are stating that no partner of our Firm is
refated by consanguinity or affinity to the president or any member of the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of the Company,

R.G. MANABAT & CO,

ADOR C, MEJIA
Partner _
CPA License No., 0029620 ‘ -
SEC Accreditation No, 0464-AR-2, Group A, valid until March 24, 2016
Tax Identification No. 112-071-634 ‘ :
BIR Accreditation No, 08-001987-10-2013
Issued May 9, 2013; valid until May 8, 2018
PTR No. 474811 7TMC
Issued January 5, 2015 at Makati City

FPebruary 3, 2015
Makati City, Metro Manila
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GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION |

December 31

Note 2014 2013
ASSETS
Citrrent Assets ' o
Caslt and cash equivalents 4 26  P237,078,063 P205,390,655
Recetvables - net S, 14, 26 304,110,706 322,009,422
Loan recelvable 9, 14, 26 15,500,000 15,500,000
Due from related parties 14 25 350 1,885,100
Inventories & 13,993,229 13,582,447
Prepaid expenses and other current assels 7 12,230,638 18,482,934
Total Current Assels 582912,98¢ . 577,350,558
Noncurrent Assels ‘
Property and equipment - net 9 624,662,660 647,640,324
Investiment in an associate 8 I4 50,241,237 48,467,138
Deferred tax assets - net 22 12,398,139 5,571,856
Qther noncurrent assets 11, 14,20 26 84,098,741 - 8@9_5,79!
Total Noncurrent Assels 771,397,827 785,775,149
P1,354,310,813 P1,363,125,667
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities _
Accounts payable and accrued expenses i2, 25 P77,919.262 P77,567,689
Refundable deposits - current portion 19 23,997,300 -
Due to related parties 14, 20, 26 6,090,243 _ 2,} 15,421
Income tax payable 1,802,477 . -
Other gurrent liabifities 13,20 230,761,713 | 227,186,550
Tatal Current Liabilities 340,570,995 - 306,869,660
Noncurrent Liabilities |
Refundable deposits - net of current portion 19 32,122,519 | 29,120,790
Acerued retireinent benefits liability 21 26,634,668 Fo2Le4,177
Total Noncurrent Linbilities 58,757,187 51,035,567
Total Liabilities 399,328,182 357,903,227
Equity
Capital stock ‘ 873,182,700 §73 '.1 82,700
Additional paid-in capital ‘ 14,657,517 14,657,517
Remessurement gains on defined benefit plan 27 4,696,038 6,085,245
Retained earnings: _
Appropriated 23 1,680,020370  1,630,777,870
Unappropriated 25 62,446,376 111,294,978
Treasury stock 24 (1,680,620,370) (1,630,777,870)
Total Equity 654,982,631 1,005,220,440

P1,354,310,813 P1,363,125,667

See Nores fa the Firancial Statemsnts.



GRAND FL.LAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

i

Years Ended December 31
Note 2014 12013 2012
REVENUESR
Rooms P312,084,720  P336,688,035  P353,134,536
Food and haverage 141,017,832 158,290,397 183,057,051
Otlver operating departments 6,491,294 6,665,324 9,233,265
Others 20 7,353,953 81,009,951 _ 141,883,873
' 466,947,799 582,653,727 687,318,725
COST OF SALES AND -
SERVICES 5
Faod and beverage ' 53,388,923 56,283,435 60,673,470
Other opsrating depariments 2,897,083 3,466,334 4,461,453
56,286,006 59,749,969 68,134,923
410,661,793 532,903,758 ' 622,183,802
SELLING EXPENSES 16 211,628,674 214,534,010 l 218,024,030
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 17 117,135,639 199,528,308 ' 181 334,125
428,764,313 414,062,318 i 399,358,155
~ NET OPERATING INCOME S
(LOSS) ' {1%,102,520) 108,841,440 222,825,647
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
Intzrest ineomse 4,9 14 8,344,592 7,125,401 9,567,316
Forelgn exchange gain 180,991 7,126,239 1,504,399
Equity In net inceme of an associate & 1,774,099 611,039 455,258
Reversal of acoruals i2 14,767,900 - -
Others - 76,700 {414,424)
‘ 22,067,582 14,939,379 11,112,549
INCOME BEFORE . '
INCOME TAX 3,965,062 123,780,819 233,938,106
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 22 3.571,164 38,204, 143 68,571,560
NET INCOME P393,898 85,576,676  P165,366,636
Basié and Diluted Earnings
Fer Share 18 PO.01 P1.53 P2.83

Sez Noles 1o the Financial Statements.



GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

- STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
Note 2014 2013 2012
NET INCOME P393,598 PR5,576,676 . P165,366,636
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE , |
INCONIE (LOSS) 21
Ttem that will mever be ' :
reclassified to profif or loss |
Remeasurement of net defined i
benefit plan _ (1,984,381} (1,469,984) | 5,509,652
Income tax rolating to an item that :
will not be reclassified :
subssquently 805,374 440,995 - (1,652,895)
(1,389,207) (1,028,989) = 3,856,757
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE B |
INCOME (LOSS) (P995,309)

P84,547,687 P169,223,393

Sez Notes fo the Financiol Statements.



GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended December 31

Remeasarement
Common Additional . Gains on Treasury
Stock Paid-in Defined Benefif Retzined Earnings Stock
Note {Note 24) Capital Liability Appropriated  Unappropriated (Note 24y Totzl Equity
Balance 2t Jannary 1, 2044 P873,182,700  P14,657,517 P6,085,245 P1,630,777,870 PI11294.978  {PL630,TT7.870)  P1,005,220,440
Net income, for e period - _ - - - 393,808 - 393,298
Other comprehepsive income for
the year 2] - - (1389207 - - {1.389,207)
Total comprehensive inceme for
the year - - (1,389,207 393,892 (995,309
Appropriation for acquiskion of S )
treasgry sharves ) 2324 - - 49,242,500 {49242 560) €49.242 500Y (49,242 200)
Dividends declared 25 - - .- - . - - .
Balante at December 31, 2014 PST3182,700  P14,657517 P4,696,038  P1,680,620,370 P62,446,376  @LES0,020370)  POS4.982.631 -

Forward



GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY .-

Years Ended December 31
Remeasurernent ‘
Common Additional " Gainson Treasary
Stock Paid-in Defined Benefit Retained Eavaings Stock
Note Note 24} Capital Liability Appropriated  Unappropriated (Note 24) Total Equity
Balanice at Fanvary 1, 2013 P873,182. 00 P14,657,517 P7,E14.234 P1,483,311,220 P168,184,952 (P1483311,220)  P1.063,139,402
Net income for the period - - - - 85,576,676 - 25,576,676
Qther comprehensive income for
the year 21 - - {1,078 989) - - - (1,625,939}
Total comprehensive income for
the. vear - (1,028,989) - 85,576,616 84,547,687
Appropriation for acquisition of -
treasury shares 2324 - - - 143,465,650 {142 466,630) {142,366,650) (142,466,650}
Dividends declared 2% - - . - - - - -
Balance at December 31, 2013 : PR73, 182,700 P14,657.517 P6,085.245 PL630,777,870 PIIL294.978  (P1630,7717,370)  P1,005,220,440

Forward



- GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended December 31
Remeanirenient
 Common * Additional Gains on . Treasury
Stock Paid-in Defined Benefit Retained Earnings Stock
Note MNote 24) Capital Liability Approprisied  Uneppropriated Note 24) Total Equity
Balance at Javmary 1, 2012 o PE7IIS2700  P14,657.517 P1257477  PL369,513270 P241471288  (P1,369,513.270) - P1,132,568,05%
Net income for the petiod ) - - - - 165,366,636 - 163,366,636
Orher comprehensive income for
the year 21 - - 3,856,757 - - 3,856.757
Total comprehensive income for - ‘
he year . 3,856,757 165,366,636 - 165,223,393
Appropriation for acquisition of ,
treasury shares 23, 24 - - 118797950  (113,797950) - {(1IE797.950)  (118,797.950)
Dividends declared 2% . - . . - (119,855,022} - (115,855,022
Balance at December 31, 2012 P873,182,700 - P14,657.517 P7114234  PLABE31ILI0  P168,184952  (PLASE3IL220)  PLG3, 139,403

Sex Notes 10 the Financial Statersenis.



GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

- STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS

 Years Ended December 31

Nate 014 2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES . . .
Icome before income tax P3,965,002  P123,780,819 iP’233,938,196
Adjustments for; ' :
Depreclation and amostization 10, I7 38,864,197 36,293,759 | 37,563,273
Retirement benefits cost 21 2,952,313 2,824,344 | 3,876,365
Provision for (recovery of) ‘ :
Impairment losses on _ !
teceivables 17,26 13,156,558 27,260 : (50,045}
Interest income 4.9 14 {5,344,592) (7.125401) ¢ (9,567,316)
Unrealized forelgn exchange loss .
(gain) ‘ -1,380,284 (3,497,543) 1,135,365
Equity in nef Income of an '
assoclate 8 {1,774,099) {611,039} (455,25%)
Loss on disposal of property and
cquipment ‘ - - 433,175
Dividend income - - (18,750}
Operating income before working ‘
capital ¢hanges 53,199,723 151,692,699 266,855,005
Decrease (increase) in; ‘ ' .
Recelvables (1,779,537) (13,464,592 (17,565,236)
Inventories (410,783) 978,254 {1,970,649)
Due from related parties 1,884,750 242,922 976,223
Prepaid expenses and other
current assels #,252,296 (2,686,503) (14,575,351
Increase (decrease) In: :
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses 351,573 {4,211,202) (1,975,531)
Due fo refated parties 3,974,822 {(4,728,066) {12,485,845)
Refundable deposits 26,999,029 (2,111,085, 3,576,820
Other current liebilitles 3,575,163 3,001,261 8,147,416
Cash generated from operations 94,047,037 128,803,288 230,982 850G
Interest raceived 11,866,287 + 2,595,709 12,597,854
Income taxes paid . (7,999,596} (50,262,007  (62,177,410)
Retirement banefits paid 21 (217,003) (5,808,525) (1,015,701)
* Net cash provided by operating
actlvitles 97,696,725 75,328,465 180,387,593

Forvard



Years Engded December 31 |

Note 2014 2013 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM
. INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additicns to property and

equipment i0 (P15,886,53Y)  (P13,096,096y  (P13,471,050)
Proceeds from disposal of property

and equitpment - - 1,133,80]
Dividend received ‘ - ) - 18,750
Net cash used In investing activities (15,896,533) (13,096,096) (12,318,499)
CASH FLOWS FRONM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES o
Acquisition of treasury stock 24 (49,242,500)  {142,466,650) (118,797,950
Dividends paid 25 - . - (119,855,022)
Net cash used in financing activities (49,242,500)  (142,466,650)  (238,652,972)
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE

RATE CHANGES ON CASH .

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,380,284) 3,497,543 (1,135,365)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE)

IN CASH AND CASH ' ' '

EQUIVALENTS 31,187,408 (76,736,738) (71,719,243}
CASH AND CASH ' '

EQUIVALENTS AT ' :

BEGINNING OF YEAR 4 203,890,655 282,627,393 354,346,636
CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS AT ,

END OF YEAR 4 P237,078,043 . P205,890,635 P282,627,393

,Sée Noigs to the Firanclal Statemers.



GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION
NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Reporting Entity

Grand Plaza Hotel Cotporation (the “Company™) was incorporated and registered with
the Philippine Securities and Bxchange Commission (SEC) on August 9, 1989 primarily
to own, lease or manage one or more hotels, inns or resorts, all adjuncts and accessories
thersto, and all other tourist-oriented businesses as may be necessary in connection
therewith, The Company is a public company under Section 17.2 of the Securities
Regulation Code and its shares are listed on the Philippins Stock Exchange (PSE). The
Company is 54% owned by The Philippine Fund Limited (TPFL), a corporation
otganized i the Islands of Bermuda. The ultimate parent of the Company is Hong Leong
Investment Holdings Pte Ltd., a corporation organized in Singapore.

The Company owns and operates The Heritage Hotel (the “Hotel"), its only operating
segment, which is a deluxe class hotel that offers 450 rooms and facilities and amenities
such as restaurants, function halls, and a coffee shop, The address of the Company’s
registered and principal office is at the 10™ Floor, The Heritage Hotel Maniia, EDSA
corner Roxas Boulevard, Pasay City.

2, Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRSs)., PFRSs are based on International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
PFRSs consist of PFRSs, Philippine Accounting Standards (PASs), and Philippine
Tnterpretations issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FR5C}.

The financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2014 were approved
and authorized for issue by thé Board of Directors {(BOD) on February 3, 2q15.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis ‘of accounting
except for present value of the defined benefit obligation less fair value of'plan assets, if
any. i

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Company's financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the
Company’s functional currency. All values are rounded off to the nearest peso, except

when otherwise stated,

Use of Estimates ar ents

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRSs requires
management to nake judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
aceounting poticies and the reported amounts of assets, liabllities, income and expenses,
The estimates and assoclated gssumptions are based on historical experlence and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of asseis and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Although these estimates are
based on management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may
differ from these estimates, '



Judgments are made by menagement on the developments, selection and disclosurs of the
Company’s critical accounting policies and estimates and the application of these policies
and estimates. :

The estimates and underlying assumptions area reviewed on ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in'the periad In which the estimate Is revised if the
revislon affects only that periad, of in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following presents the summary of these judgments and estimates, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Determirning whether an Agreenient Containg a Lease

The Company uses its judgment in determining whether an arvangement contains a lease,
based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date and makes assessment of
whether the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific assot or assets, the
arrahgement conveys & right to use the assat and the arrangement transfere substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company.

Operating Lease

The Company has entered into various lease arrangements either as a lessor or a lessee,
In determining whether all significant risks and rewards of ownership remain with the
* Tessor or transferred to the lessee, the following factars are considered:

a. lhe ownership of the asset does not transfer at the end of the fease torm;.

i .
b. there is no option to purchase the asset at a price that is expected to be sufficiently
lower than the fair velue at the date the option becomes exercisable such that, at the
inception of the lease, it Is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised;

c. the fease term is not for the major part of the economic life of the asset even if title [s
not transferred; .

d. at the inception of the lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments does
not amount to at least substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset; and

e. the leased assets are not of such a speclalized nature that only the lessee can use them
without major modifications.

Company ag Lessor . :

The Company has entered into a lease of its commercial spaces, The Company has
determined that it retains all significant risks and rewards of cwnership of these spaces

which are leased out under operating lease arrangements (see Note 20).

Company as Lesseg ' :
The Company has entered into a lease of land. All the significant risks and rewards of

ownership of the leased land remain with the lessor, since the leased property, together
with the buildings thereon, and all attached permanent fixtures will be returned to the
lessor upon the termination of the lease (see Note 20},



Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Receivables

The Company maintains an allowance for impainnent losses at a level considered
adequate to provids for potential uncollectible receivables, The level of this alfowance is
cvaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the collectabllity of the
accounts, These factors inchide, but are not limited to, the fength of the Company’s
relationship with the customers, customers’ payment behavior and known market factors,
The Company reviews the age and status of receivables, and identifies accounts that are
to be provided with allowance on a regular basis. The emount and timing of recorded
expenses for any period would differ if the Company made different judgments or
vtilized different estimates, An incresse in allowance for impairment losses would
Increase the recorded administrative expenses and decrease current assets, |

As at December 31, 2014 and 2043, allowance for impairtment losses on trade recsivables
amounted to P13,312,179 and P155,621, respectively (see Note 5). As at December 31,
2014 and 2013, the carrying amount of receivables amounted to PBO#,HO,?UG and -
P322,009,422 (see Note 3), : 1

Estimating Net Reafizable Value of Inventories

In determining the net realizable value of inventorics, the Company considers inventory
obsolescence, plysical deterioration, physical damage and changes in price levels or
other canses based on specific identification and as determined by management for
inventories estimated to be salable in the future, The Company adjusts the cost of
inventory to recoverable value at a level considered adequate fo reflect market decline in
value of the recorded inventories. The Company reviews iis inventories on a regular
basis to identify those which are to be written down to net realizable values,

Inventories, at cost, amounted to P13,993,229 and 13,582,447 as af December 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively (see Note 6). C

Esttmating Useful Lives of Properly and Equipment 4

The Company estimates the useful lives of property and equipment based on the period

over which the assets are expected to be available for use, The estimated useful lives of
property and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ

from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial

obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets. In addition, the estimation

of the useful lives of property and equipment is based on collective assessment of internal

technical evaluation and experience with similar assets, It is possible, however, that’
future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought

about by changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded

expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances,

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying amount of property and equipment
amounted to P624,662,660 and P647,640,324, respectively (see Note 10).

Estimating Reolizability of Deferred Tax Assels

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting date
and reduces deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.
The Company also reviews the expected timing and tax rates upon reversal of temporaty
differences and adjusts the impact of deferred tax accordingly. :

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company's deferred tax assets amounted to
P14,410,727 and P9,229,081, respectively (see Note 22).



Estimating Retlrement Benefits Obligaitons

The determination of the obligation and retirement benefits cost s dependent on the
selection of certain assumptions used by the actuary in calculating such amounts. Those
assumptions include, among others, discount rates and salary Increase rates, '

The Company’s retirement benefits liability amounted to P26,634,668 and P21,914,777
as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, In 2014 and 2013, the retirement
benefits cost recognized in profit and loss amcunted to P2,952,313 arid P2,824,844,
respectively, Cumulative actuarial logs amounted to P6,708,626 and P8,693,207 for the
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 21),

Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Nonfinancial Assets

The Company assesses impairment on nonfinancial assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances Indicate that the oarrying amount of such asset may not be recoverable,
The factors that the Company considers jmportant which could trigger an impairment
review include the following:

® significant underperformance relative to the expected historical or projected future
aperating results; _

" significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for
overall business; and ' :

n  significant negative industry or economic trends.

An impairinent loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds ts
t¢coverable amount,

There were no impairment losses on the Company's nonfinancial assets recognized as at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, :

Estimating Provisions and Contingencies ‘ _

The Company, in the ordinary course of business, sets up appropriate provisions for its
present legal or constructive obligations in accordance with its policies on provisions and
contingencies. The estimate of the probabie costs for the resolution of possible claims has
been developed in consultation with its legal counsel and is based upon an analysis of

potential results, o

There were no provisions or contingencies recognized as at December 31, 2014 and
2013,



3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all the years
presented in these financial statements, except for the changes itt accounting policies as
axplained below, -

Adoption of New and Revised Standards, Amendments to Standards and Interprstations
The Company has adopted the following amendments to standards and interpretations

starting January 1, 2014 and accordingly, changed its accounting policies.

v Offsetiing Financlol Assefs end Finemeial Ligbilities {Amendments to PAS 323
These amendinents clarify that: '

e An enlity currently has a legaily enforceable right to set-off if that right is:
- not confingent on a future event; and
- enforceable both in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptoy of the entity and all counterparties; and

e Clross settlement is equivalent to net settlement if and only if the gross settlement
mechanism has features that!
- eliminate or result (n insignificant credit and liquidity risk; and
- process recefvables and paysbles in a single settlement process or oycle,

The adoption of these amendinents to standards .an'd interpretations did not have any
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

» Recoverable Amount Disclosures jor Non-financial Assets (Amendments (o PAS 30).
These natrow-scope amendments to PAS 36 address the disclosure of information
about the recoverable amotnt of impaiced assets if that amount is based on fair valua
less costs of disposal, The amendments clarified that the scope of those disclosures is
limited to the recoverable amount of impaired assets that is based on fair value less

costs of disposal,

The adoption of these amendinents to standards and interpretations did not have any
~ significant impact on the Company’s financial statements. . ]

New and Revised Standards, Amendmenis to Standards and Interpretations Net Yet
Adopted :

A number of new and revised standards, mmendments to standards and Interpretations are

effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2014, and have not been applied in

preparing these financial statments. Except as otherwise indicated, none of these is

expected to have a significant effect on the financlal statements. Those which may be

relevant to the Company.



:I‘h‘a Company will adopt the following new and revised standards, amendments or
improvements to standards in the respective effective dates: '

To be Adopted (No definiie date - Griginally January 1, 2013}

To be Adopted on January 1, 2016

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2009), PFRS 9, Financiol Instrmments (2010) and

PFRS 9, Financial Instruents (2013)

PFRS 9 (2009) introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. Under PFRS 9 (2009), financlal assets gre classified and measured
based on the business model in which they are held and the characteristics of their
contractual cash flows, PFRS 9 (2010) introduces additions refating to financial
liabitities. : - '

PFRS 9 (2013) introduces the following amendments: -

e A substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will allow entities to better
reflect their risk management activities in the financial statements;

¢ Changes to address the so-called ‘own credit’ issue that were already included in
PFRS 9, Financial Instruments to be applied in isolation without the need to
change any other accounting for financial instruments; and

#  Removes the January 1, 2015 mandatory effective date of PFRS 9, to provide
sufficient titne for preparers of financial statements to make the ansition to the
new requiremenis, ‘ :

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and 4 martizatlon {Amendments
{0 PAS 16 and PAS 38). The amendments (o PAS 38, Intangible dssets introduce a
rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based amortization methods for
intangible assets is inappropriate. This presumption can be overcome only when
revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible assct are
‘highly correlated’, or when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of

revenue.

The mmendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment explioitly state that
revenue-based methads of depreciation cannot be used for property, plant and
equipment. This is because such methods reflect factors other than the consumption
of economic benefits embodied in the asset - e.g. changes in sales volumes and

prices,

To be Adopted on January 1, 2017

PERS |5, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. This replaces most of the detailed
guidance on revenue recognition that currently exists under PFRSs. The care
principle of PFRS 15 is that an entity recoguizes revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
Entities will apply a five-step model to determine when to recognize revenue, sid at
what amount. The new standard provides application guidance on numerous topics,
including warranties and licenses. It also provides guidance on when to capitalize
costs of obtaining or fulfilling & contract that are not addressed in other accounting

. standards - e.g, for inventory.



PERS 13§ is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April [, 2017, Early
adoption is permitted under PFRS, The standard may be adopted retrospectively, or
as of the application date by adjusting retained earnings at lhat date and disclosing
the effect of adoption on each line of profit or loss (the ‘cumulative effect approach’},
Practical expedients are avallable to those taking a retrospestive approach,

Non-derivative Financial Instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables,
Ioan receivable, due from related parties, deposits (included under other nencurrent
assels), accounts payable and accrued expenses, due to related parties, refundable
deposits, and other current liabilities except for output VAT payabls, withholding taxes
payable and defesred rental, !

The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial Hability in the statements of ‘
financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
In the case of a regular way purchase ¢r sale of financial assets, recognition and
derecogaltion, as applicable, is done using seftlement date accounting,

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair valus, which is the fair valve of the
consideration given (in vase of an asset) or received (in case of a liability). The fair value
of the consideration given or received is determined by reference to the transaction price
or other market prices. If such market prices are not reliably determinable, the fair value
of the considoration is estimated as the sum of all future cash payments or receipts,
discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest for similar instruments with
similar maturities. The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those
designated at FVPL, Includes transagtion cost.

Subsequent to initial recagnition, the Company classifies iis financial assets in the
following categories: HTM investments, AFS finencial assets, financial assets at FVPL,
and loens and receivables; while the Company classifies its financial liabilities in the
following categories: financial iiabilities at FVPL and other financial lisbiiities. The
elassification depends on the purpose for which the investments are acquired and whether
they are quoted in an active market. Management determines the classification of the
Company’s financial assets and financial Habilities at initial recognition and, where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting date.

The Company has no finencial assets at HTM investments, AFS financlal assets,
financial assets at FVPL and financial liabilities at FVPL.

The measurement of non-derivative financial insttuments subsequent to Initial
recagnition s described below: :

Loans and Recefvables, Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assety with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are not
entered into with the intention of immediate or short-terin resnle and are not designated
a5 AFS financial asseis or financial asset at FVPL, Loans and recelvables are carried at
cost or amortized cost, less any allowance for impairment losses, Amortization is
determined using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognized or Impaired, as well as
through amortization process. '

~ Included in this category are the"Compaity’s cash and cash equivalents, recelvables, loan
receivable, due from related parties and deposits.



Cash Includes cash on hand and in banks, Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original
maturitics of three months or less from dates of acquisition and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. |
Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertaing to nonderivative financial Habilities
that are not held for trading or not designated at FVPL at the inception of the Liability,
They are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, these are
measured at amortized cost, taking Into account the impact of applying the effeciive
interest rate method of amertization (or accretion) for any velated premium, discount and
any directly attributable transaction costs.

Tncluded in this category are the Company’s aceounts payable and accrued expenses, due
to related parties, refundable deposits, aud other current liabilities except for output VAT
payable and withholding taxes payable. :

Offsetting Financial Assets and T iabifitic: S

Financlal assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the nsset and settle the liability simultanecusly, Thiz &5 not generally the case
with master netting agreements, and the related assets aad liabilities are presented gross
in the statements of financial position.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

»  the rights to receive cash flows from the assct have expired;

» the Company retains the right to recelve cash flows from the asset, but has assumed
an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a
“nass-through™ arrangement; or

» the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:
(a) has transferred substantially ail the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b) has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset, :

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a ‘pass-through” arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in the asset.

Continuing involvement that takea the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum

amount of consideration that the Company could be required to pay.

Financial Liabllities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligaticn under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or has expired, ‘

When an éxisting financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantlally different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
lisbility and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amouats is recognized in profit or loss. ‘
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Determination of Fair Values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the
determination of fair value, for both financial and nonfinancial assets and Habilities. Fair
values have been determiined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes, when
necessary, based on the market values, being the sstimated amount for which aszets could
be exchanged on the date of the valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in
an arm’s length transaction sBer proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion. When applicable, flrther information
about the assumptions made in determining fair values is discfosed in the notes specific
fo that asset or liability,

The different levals of fafr value of financial instruments carried at fair value, by
valuation method have been defined as follows:

» Level I: quoted prices (umadjusted) in active markets for identical mssols 6r
liabilities;

n  Level 2: inputs other than quoled prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (f.e., as prives) or indirectly
(i.e., derlved from prices); and '

1 Level3: Iuputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs},

Inventorieg ‘ _ ‘
Inventories are measured at the Jower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined

using the first-in, first-out (FIFQ) principle, and includes expenditures incurred in
acquiring the inventories and bringing thetn to their existing location and condition. Net
renlizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of selling expenses. Obsclete inventories are disposed of and related
costs are recognized in profit or loss,

Investment in an Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Company has significant influence, but not control,
over the financlal and operating policies. Significant influence is presurned to exist when
the Company holds between 20 and 50 percent of the voting power of anathpr entity.

Investment in an associate is accounted for under the equity method of accounting and is
recognized Initially al cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs, The
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the Company’s share of the profit
or loss of the assoclate after the date of acquisition untif such time the Company loses its
significant Influence. The Company's share of the profit or loss of the associate Is
recognized as “Equity in net income of an associate” in profit or loss.

The Company discontinues applying the equity method when its investment in the
investee company Is reduced to zero, Accordingly, additlonal losses are not recoghized
unless the Company has guaranteed certain obligations of the investee compatty, When
the investee company subsequently reports nef income; the Company will resume
applying the equity method but only after its share in net income equals the share in net
fosses not recognized during the period the equity method was suspended.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation, amortization
and impalrment losses, if any. '



Initially, an item of propetty and equipment is measured at ite cost, which comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset fo working
f:‘ondition. Subsequent expenditures are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it
is probable that future economic benefits, In excess of the originally assessed standard of
performance, will flow to the Company. The costs of day-to-day servicing an assst are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incuried.

Depreciation is computed using fhe straight-line method over the estimated useful tives
of property and equipment, Leaschald improvements are amortized over the gstimated
useful lives or the term of the lense, whichever is shorter.

The estimated useful lives are as foilows:

‘ Number of Years _
Building and building improvements 46 --50
Furniture, fixtures and gquipment 5-10
Transporiation-equipment 5 :
Leasehold improvements 5 or term of the lease

whichever is shorter

Estimated useful lives and depreciation end amortlzation methods are reviewed al gach
reporting date to ensure that they are consistent with the expected pattern of economic
benefity from these assefs, : :
]
' |
When an asset is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
- economic benefits are expected from its disposal, the cost &nd accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impaitment losses, if any, are removed from the accounts and any
resulting gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal is recognized in profit or

loss.

Imipairment of Assets

Financlal Assels
Financial assets are reviewed for impalrment at each reporting date,

Asseis Carried at Amoriized Cost. If thers is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on receivable carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financizl asset's original effective interest rate {i.e, the effective
inferest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shal! be
reduced through the use of an allowance agcount and the amount of the loss is recognized
in profit er loss, Interest incorne continues to be uccrued on the reduced carrying amount
based on the original effective interest rate of the asset, Receivables together with the
pssaciated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and alf collateral, if any, has been realized or has been transferred to the Company. If in
a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment [oss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring sfter the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a future write-off is [ater recovered, the recovery is recognized in profit or loss, Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, to the extent that
the eatrying amount of the asset does not exceed its gmourtized cost at the reversal date,
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The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individuafly assessed financlal asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in # group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and that group of financlal assets is colleclively assessed for
impairment, Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in the collective
assessment of impairment, For the purpose of specific evaluation of impairment, the
Company assesses whether financial assets are impaired through assessiment of
collectability of financial assets considering the debtor’s capacity o pay, history of
payment, and the availability of other financial support, For the purpose of collective
gvaluation of impairment, if necessary, financlal assets are grouped on the basis of such
credit risk characteristics such as debfor type, payment history, past-due stafus and terms,

Assets Carried at Cosi. 1f there is objective cvidence that an impairment loss is incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not caried at fair value because its fair value
cantot be reliably measured, the amount of the fmpairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of cstimated future:
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Nonfinancial Assets ‘

The carrying amounts of the Company’s nonfinancial assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) is the greater of its
value in use and Hs fair value loss costs of disposal, Value in use is the present value of
the future cash flows expeoted to be derived from an asset or CGU, while fair value less
costs of disposal is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset or CGU in an arm’s
length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of digposal, In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assessments of the time
valus of money and the risks specific to the asset, For the purpose of impairment tesiing,
assets that canot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets {hat generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other pssets or groups of assets or CGUs, An impairment lfoss is
recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its COU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit ot loss.

Impairment losses recognized {n prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decteased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amcrtization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Capital Stoek S
Capital stock are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue

of common shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of
any tax effects.

Additlonal paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the initial issuance of
capital stock. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted
from additional paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefit,
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Treasuiy Stock |

‘When share capital recognized as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration
paid, which includes directly ettributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognized as a
deduction from equity, Repurchased shares are classified as treaswry shares and are
presented in the reserve for own shares, When treasury shares are sold or reissued
subsequently, the amount reccived is recognized as an increase in equity, and the
resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented in additional paid-in capital.

Retained Earnings

The smount included in retained earnings includes earnings attributable to the
Company’s equity holders and reduced by dividends, if any, on capital stock, Dividends
on capital stock are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are
declared by the Company's stockholders. Dividends for the year that are approved after
the financial reporting date are dealt with as an event after the financial reporting date.

Retained earnings may alsa Include prior year adjustments and the effect of changes in
accounting policies as may be required by the standards’ transitional provisions.

Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue is recognized when it i3 probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of revenyie can bs measured reliably. Revenue is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received ar receivable, net of retumns, trade discounts
and volume rebates, The fellowing specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognized;

Room Revenue: Revenue is recognized upon actual room occupancy.
Food and Beverage: Revenus is recognized upon delivery of ordst,
Gther Operating Departiments.: Revenue is recognized upon rendering of servies,

Other Income: Rent income from operating [ease is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the lease term,

Interest incame which Is presented net of tax, is recognized when eamed,

Costs and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Forelgn Curreney Transactions K

Transactions in foreign currencies are tvapsiated to Philippine peso based on (he
prevailing exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates prevailing at
the reporting date. The resulting foreign exchange gains or losses are recognized in
profit or loss, '

Operating Segments ' ) :

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged sither In
providing related products or services (business segment), or providing products or
services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those other segments,
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The Company determines and presents operating segments based on the information that
is internally provided to the Chief Operating Officer, who s the Company’s chief
operating declsion maker, The Company assessed that its hotel business represents one
segment, '

Operating Leases - Company as Lessee ‘ o .
The Company leases the land it occupies from a related party under 4 long-term lease

agreement, Management has determined that all significant: risks and rewards of this
property remain with the lessor, Accordingly, such lease is accounted for as operating
lease.

Operating l.eases - Compatiy as Lessor
Leases whete the Company does not transfer substantially afl the risks and benefits of

awnership of the assets ars classified as operating leases, Rent Income from operating
leases is recognized as income on a stralght-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct
costs incurred it negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognized as an expense over the lease term on the same basls as rent
income. Contingent rents are recognized as income in the period in which they are
earned.

Taxes

Income tax expense Is composed of current and deferred tex. Income tax expense Is
recognized in profit or loss, except to the exfent that it relates to items recognized directly
in equity or in other comprehensive income, in which case It is recognized in equity or
other comprehensive income, S

Current Yax

Current tax assets and Tiabilities for thie cwvent and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected ta be recovered from or paid to the tax suthouity. The tax rates and tax
Iaws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted 4s at

reporting date, :

Deferred Tax

Deferved tax assets and labilitles are recognized in respeet of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabifities for financlal reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes and the carryforward tax benefils of unused net
operating loss catryover (NOLCO) and unused tax credits from excess minimum
corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax {RCIT). Deferred tax
is not recognized for temporary differences on the initial recognition of nssets or
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss; temporary differences related to investments in
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will
not reverse in the foreseeable future; and taxable tempotary differences arising on the
initia} recognition of goodwiil.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it Is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the
carryforward tax benefits of unused NOLCO and unused tax credits from excess MCIT
can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting dats and are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
Untecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable income will allow the
deferred tax assets to be recognized. : : '
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Deferred tax assets and linbilities are measured at the lax rates that are expected to apply
to the year when the asset is rezlized or the llability is settled, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a lzgally enforceable right o offset
current tax liabilitles and assats, and the defetred taxes relate to.the same tax authority on
the same taxable entity. 4

Palne-added Tax (VAI). Revenue, oxpenses and assets are recognized net of the amount
of VAT, except:

* where the VAT incurred on 8 purchase of assets or services ate not recoverable from
the tax authority, In which case the VAT is rocognized as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the.expense item as-applicable; and

* teceivables and payables that are stated with atount of VAT included.

The input and output VAT are jpresented at gross and included under prepald expenses
and other current assets and other current liabilities in the statements of financlal
position.

Earnfngs Per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its common shares,
Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
commen shares outstanding during the year, after giving retroactive effect to any stock
dividends declared during the year, if any. Diluted EPS is determmed by adjusting the
tiet income for the effects of ail dilutive potential shares.

Rolated Parties i

Parties are considered related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control
the other perty or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control or significant influence, Related parties may be individuals or corporate

entities,

Employee Benefits

Retirement Cosis

The Company's net obligation in respect of the defined benefit pian is calculated by
estimating the amount of the future benefit that employees have earned in the current and
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit cbligations is performed on a periodic basis by a
qualified actuary appointed by the Company using the projected unit credit method.
When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is
limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan, To caleulate the
present value of economic benefits, consideration Is given to any applicable minimum
funding requirements,
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Remeasurements of the net defined benefif liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the éffect of the asset ceiling
(if any, exoluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income.
The Company determines the net inferes( expense (income) on the net defined benefit
Hability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual petiod to the then net defined benefit
liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined liability (asset) during
the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and
other expenses telated to defined beneflt plans are recognized in profit or loss.,

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change
in beneflt that relates to past service or the gain or less on curtailment is recognized
immediately in profit or loss. The Compaty recognizes gains and losses on the
seftiement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement ocours. ‘ :

Short-term Employee Benefils ' |
Short-term employee benefits are éxpensed as the relsted service is provided. A liability
is recognized for the amount expested to be paid if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the

employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions j :

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, It is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying ‘economic benefits will be required to settlo the obligation and a reliable
estitate can bo made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
moey 18 materiel, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at & pre-tsx rate that reflects current market assessinents of the time value of money
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the linbility. Where discounting is used, the
increase fu the provision due to the passage of time is recognlzed as an interest expense, .

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized In the financial statements but are disclosed in

the notes to the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of rescurces
embodying economic benefits is remote. Confingent assets are not recognized in the
financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statemenis when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable, -

Events After the Reporting Rate :

Any event afier the reporting date that provide additional Information about the
Company’s financial position at the reporting date (adjusting event) is recognized in the
{inancial statements when material, Any event after the repcrting date that is not an
adjusting event is disciosed in the notes fo the financia! statements when material.

4. Cashand Cash Equivalents

This account consists of!

Note 2014 2013

Cash on hand and in banks © P69,719,296  P21,996,327
Short-term investmeniy 167,358,767 183,894,328

26 P237,078,063  P205,890,655
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?ash in banks earny annual interest at the prevailing bank deposit rafes.  Shert-term
ittvestiments consist mainly of time deposits which earn annual interest ranging from
§.15% to §.5% in 2014, 2013 and 2012, Interest income earned amounted to P669,592,

P2,450,401 and P4,892,320 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 202,
|

respectively,

5, Recefvables

This account consists of:

2013

Neorte 2014
Trade:
Recelvables from Philippine Amusement
and Gaming Corporation (PAGCOR) P232,582,149  P232,582,149
Charge customers 26 36,448,610 30,053,275
Others ' 9,788,887 10,309,653 .
248,819,646 273,345,077
Interest 14 1£,012,498 17,534,193
Utility charges 17,405,243 17,434,978
Others 10,185,458 - [3,350,795
317,422,885 322,165,043
Less allowance for impainment logses on
trade recelvables 26 13,312,179 135,621
26 P304,110,706  P322,009,422

Tiade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on a 15 to 30 day credit
term, ‘

Receivables from PAGCOR include billings for output value added tax (VAT) as at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The collection of this amount is still pending
as PAGCOR s seeking clarification from the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) whether
PAGCOR is subject to VAT considering its status as a government corporation. The
corresponding output VAT payable from the billings to PAGCOR s likewise not
reinitted to the BIR pending the clarification from the BIR (see Note 13).

Under Revenue Regulation 16-2005 “Consolidated Value Added Tax Law” which fook
effect on November 1, 2005, it was legislated that PAGCOR is subject to the value added
tax of 12%, Management believes that this law has a prospective application and
therefore the previously recorded VAT on transactions with PAGCOR (prior to
November 1, 2005) would have to be reversed when the position from the BIR is
secured. '

In the middle of 2008, the Company received from the BIR a Final Decision on Disputed
Assessment finding the Company liable for deficiency VAT with respect to the years
1896 to 2002 in total amount of PhP228.94 million, inclusive of penalty and interest from
January 2003 to December 2006, The Company subsequently filed a petition for review
with the Court of Tax Appeal (“CTA") to contest such Final Decision on Disputed
Assessment, *
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The BIR further issued a Warrant of Distraint and/or Levy and Warrant of Gamishment
against the Compary and its assets, On September 12, 2008, the Company filed a surety
bond with the CTA, and the CTA issued a Temporary Restraining Order enjoining the
BIR from further efforts at collection of faxes, particularly the implementation of fhe
Warrant of Distraint and/or Levy and the Warrant of Garnishment.

In 2009, the Company maved to have 4 preliminary hearing canducted to first resolve the
legal issue of whether or not fhie services rendered by the Company to PAGCOR is
subject to VAT at (0% rate. The CTA granted the motion and hearings were
subsequently conducted, On February 18, 2011, the CTA rulad In favor of the Company
and cancelied the VAT deficlency assessment in toto.

As mentioned in the CTA Resolution, In line with the declsion of the Supreme Court
(SC) in Phillppine Amusement and Gaming Corporation (PAGCOR) vs. The Bureau of
Internal Revenue, et al,, the CTA, in its decision dated February 18, 2011, cancelled the
BIR’s assessment against the Company for deficiency VAT in the amount of Php228.94
million for texable years 1996 to 2001, In its resolution dated May 17, 2011, the CTA
denled the Commissioner of the Bureau of Internal Revenue's Motion for
Reconsideration of the CTA's decision rendered on February 18, 2011, According to the
CTA, considering that the asscssment agairst the Company for deficiency VAT has been
cancelled, the CTA deemed it proper that the surety bond posted by the Company be
discharged. The BIR shortly filed an appeal with the CTA En Bane.

On September 1, 2011, the CTA Er Bane resolved to give course to BIR’s appeal. The
Company filed its Memorandum in Qctober 2011, On July 27, 2012, the CTA En Bane
resolved that consistent with the pronouncement of the SC in the cases of BIR vs, Acesite
Hotel Corporation and PAGCOR vs, BIR, that services rendered to PAGCOR are exempt
from VAT, BIR’s petition has no leg to stand on and must necessarily fall. The BIR fited
a Motion for Reconsideration, : :

On Cetober 8, 2012, the CTA En Banc resolved that BIR’s Motion for Reconsideration is
denied and the earlier decision of the CTA promulgated on May 17, 2011 is affirmed. On
December 5, 2012, the BIR filed with the SC a Petition for Review,

On May 6, 2013, the Company filed its Commert/Opposition fo the Petition for Review
and is awaliting feedback from the 8C, On October 17, 2013, the Company received a
Notice from the SC directing BIR to file a reply within 10 days from receipt of Notlice.

On October B, 2014, the 8C declared the petitioner’s (BIR) Manifestation and Motion
dated April 11, 2014 as unsatisfactory compliancs with the Resolution dated January 28,
2013, The 8C directed the BIR fo comply with the Resolution by submitting within 5
days from notice the required documents, = i

On December 16, 2014, the Company filed a Manifestation and Motion te Dismiss the
Petition by the BIR for non-compliance with the jurisdictional requirements. As at
February 3, 2015, the Company is still waiting for the $C’s decision. '

The Company will continue to pursue its case with the SC and will file the necessary
disclosure on the outcome thereof following the issuance of the judgment of the SC,

The Company’s exposure to credit risks and Impairment losses related to f{rade
veceivables from charge customers ave disclosed in Note 26.
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6. Inventortes

This aceount consists of’

Note 2014 2013
Qeneral supplies P5,057,137 P4,065,362
Food ‘ 4,801,467 4,031,072
Engineering supplies 2,673,754 4,192,739
Beverage and tobacco ' 960,322 1,046,567
Qthers _ - 500,549 266,707

15 P13,993,219

P13,582,447

There was no write down of inventorieé. to NRV in both 2014 and 2013,

7, Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

"This ageotmt consists oft

. 2014 2013

Input value-added fax P6,726,359 P11,200,662

Prepaid expenses C 4,703,774 - 5,404,404

Prepaid income tax : - © 1,124,718

Cthers 800,505 | 753,750
12,230,638

'P18,482,934

Input vahie-added tax is current and can be applied against output value-adélled tax,

Prepaid expenses consist of insurance premiums, dues and subscriptions fecs.

2, Investment {n an Associate

Investment in an assoclate pertains to the 40% ownership in Harbour Land Corporation
(HLC), a Philippine corporation engaged in the real estate business (see Note | 4).

This secount consists of

2013

2014
Acquisition cost P48,200,000  P48,200,000
Accumulated share in net earnings: ,
Balance at beginning of year 267,138 (343,901}
Bquity in net income of associate during the year 1,774,099 . 611,030
Balance at end of year 2,041,237 267,138
P50,241,237 P48,467,138
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A summary of the financial information of HLC follows:

2014 2013

Total assets ' ‘ P150,962,634  P152,860,101
Total Habilities 79,389,215 - 85,721,931
Total equity, net of subscriptions receivable of

P54 million . 71,573,419 67,138,170
Revenue , : : 17,797,608 10,678,560
Net income 4,435,249 1,527,597

9. Loan Receivable

This pertains to the loan granted to Rogo Realty Corporation (RRC}, a cumpany under
comnton control, which is collateralized by RRC's investment in shares of stock of HLC
with a cariying value of P72.3 million as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 and Is payable
on demand with interest rate of 5% per snnum (see Note i43. . ;

i

Interest income earned in 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounted to P775,000 for each year.

16, Property and Equipment

The movements and belances in this account are as follows:

Bull{ling and Fursllure ‘
Bullling Pizlures and  Tramporiaflon Leagehold
Imprevements Equipment Eguipment . Improvements Totnl

Cost
Belance, Jeruacy 1, 2013 Pa85.905.220 P370,711,558 P4,158,158 P185,157  P1,361,160,133
Addltions 10,717,492 2,378,694 . - 13096096
Belance, December 31,2013 996,622,622 273,690,252 4,158,198 ©OIBR ST 1,374,256229
Additions 12,155 980 3,734,553 - . 15,846,933
Halance, December 3, 2014 1,008,774,602 376,824,808 4,158,198 I85,157  1,390,142,762
Accemulrted Depreciation

and Atzerdizatlon
Balancs, Jenuery 1, 2013 387,903,561 287,875,230 4,158,198 185,157 690,322,146
Depreclation and nmprtization ) :

during the ysar 22352903 13,535,856 - . 16,293,75¢
Bulance, Decerber 31,2013 410,26) 464 301,811,686 4,158,198 385,187 726,615,905
Depreciation and astortization ’ .

during the year 24,217 529 14,626,668 - . - 38,864,197
Dalance, Dectinbor 31, 2014 414,498,992} 326,431,754 4,158,198 388,157 765.450,10%
Carrylng Amoun{
December 31, 2012 P585,58,158 PE1L279, 166 ’ P P - 7547,640,324
December 31, 2014 PET4,278,69¢ 80,357,081 r. ‘ P - 814,662 640

No impairment loss was recognized for the Company’s propetty and equipment in 2014,
2013 and 2012,
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11, Other Noncurrent Assets
* This sceount consists oft

Note 2014 2013

Lease deposit 14,2026 P78,000,000 78,000,000
Miscellancous investments ind deposits _ 5,085,791 5,085,791
Othgrs _ 1,010,000 1,010,000

P84,095,791 P84,095,791

Miscellangous Investrments and deposits consist of utility and rent deposit, |

12. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
This aceount consists of!

Note 2014 2013

Trade P42,252,080 743,608,896
Accried payroll 19,420,513 16,254,895
Accrued utilities ' 10,663,237 14,940,930
Accrued other liabilities ‘ 4,767,671 1,946,158
QOthers 815,761 316,810

26 P77,919,262  P77,567,689

The Company’ s exposure to liguidity risk related to trade and other payables are
disclosed in Note 26,

During the year, the Company has reversed ity accruel of payatile to CDL Hotel (Phils.)
‘Corporation (CDL), a related party, until March 2011 due to the liquidation of the latter
wiich amounts to P14,767,900, The accrual pertains lo the management and incentive
fees arising from management contract with CDL,

Trade payables have normal terms of 30 to 45 days,

13, Other Curront Liabilities

This account consists of:

Note 2014 2013
Output VAT payable . J P206,953,990  PZ06,505,652
Payable to employees 26 9,949,840 9,300,026
Withholding taxes payable : 3,055,506 2,011,057
Qthers ‘ 26 10,802,377 9,369,815

P230,761,713  P227,186,550

Output VAT payable represents output tax charged to PAGCOR, as discussed in Note 5.
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14. Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, the Company has transactions with Jis related parties.
These tramsactions and account balances as at December 31 follow:

'dumma‘ing‘ Bilince

Ameunt Due from Dl lo

Categary/ of the Related Rieleted - )

Transastion Year Note _ Trposetian Pariley Farties Terms Condllieny

Aswotlale

¢ Lease deposil 204 20 L P78,000,000 F - Required Tessa  Collec tible vpon
deporit onthe  {ermineton of
loased tand o cotifracl

2013 . 78,008,000 - Required loase  Colleatible upon
deposilonthe  termination of
' Yeosed land the conitact
2112 - 78,080,020 " Required lease  Collectibie upon
depesit e bfie  terminalion of
legsed lend the conlract
= Imleresl fncome 2004 14h 3,900,000 - o 5% perrnnum Unisecuredy oo
' of ke Teass © impairment
: ’ tdepoalt
2013 1,900,000 6,125,290 . 5 peranngin Unzecored; no
of the feass impairmen!
) : deposil
2012 3,900,000 2,225,290 ] 5% perannum  Unsepured; no
" ofthe kaso mpairment
deposit
v Adysiteas 2044 lr 24,550 = -« De and Unsecuced; na
' demnndable;  Impairment
ron fnteresl
. berring
W13 135,037 133,037 . Dus and Unsecured; no
demazdsble; jmpairment
non inferest
: beprng
» Renl expanise 2014 17,20 19,797,608° - e - B and Unsecured
‘ demandable;
now interest
o bearkng
2013 10,678,560 . . Due and - Unseoured
' . demandable;
#on Inleresl
bearing
202 . 1D673,560 - 1,904,343 Daeand Unsecured
' ) demandable;
non {nberest
' bearing.

1 Remt Intome i1 e, 20 opo0r 96,3140 - Dye tnd Unsecured; ne
demardable;  impafrment
mer foterest
bearing

tinder Coninten

Contrel L )
s Munsgementand 004 i 20,816,244 - 4,684,895  Dueand | Umieczred
ineentive fres i demendable;
non inferest
hearlny !
013 2500591 - 1424180 Dusand " Unsecured
demandable; |
non fnferesl
beating
iy 29,641,201 . 2,349,691 Duednd Unsecured
demandable;
non interest
bearing

» Advances 204 lda 1,233,815 - 19405348 Dus antl " Ungecured; o
demandable]  Impelrment
ren fntevesd

_ benr!?‘ﬁ Ungeeured
; ; Due & nsecured; nio
3 276,17 170,083 61,40 dernandable; Impairment
nen inlerest
bearing
2012 15,763,656 2,178,022 2,583452  Dueand Unsecured; no
: . dermandabls; impalrment
nor interest
bearing

Forward
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Ouistending Palence

. Antownt " Due from Dug {o
Chtegary/ of the Retateit Teduted
Transaglivn Year Notg  Trazessetlon Partles Porflea _~ Terms Condilfons
T Loan 014 Ne B A PI5.500,000 P. Due and _ Ungecuredy ug
. . demandable;  Impalrment
Interest
Btiring
il . 15,500,000 . Due and Unsecured; no
demandable; impairment
inferost
: bearng '
2012 . 15,500,000 . Due and Uneecurad: no
: demandable;  imparment
‘ Inferest
bearing
" Interest income W Me 775,000 F1000,000 . 5% pergnnuem  Unzeeured| no
of the loan impeirment
recelvirhty
2003 000 11,186,249 . 5% pergomm Unseoured; no
o ) of the loan Tspaizment
recslvably '
Wiz 775,000 _10.611,249 L. % perannemt  Unsevured: ho
. ’ ' of the fosn impajrment
recelvable

® Rent Income 200 e 264,000 160,500 . Dueand . Unyeeured; no
: demandatife;  Ipeirment
fon Inferest

bearing
Key Managememn
Persoanel of the
Entliy '
v Shost larm 1 M 19201720 . .
stployee 013 19,283,747 . -
benefits 2012 11,386 566 - -
TOTAL 2004 P104, 757,150 PE,090,243
TOTAL 2013 P112,896,639 P2,115,421 ‘
TOTAL 02 ' B{0BAGH 361 P6,843,485 N
: t
Due from related parties are included in the following accounts:
Note 2014 | 2013
Receivables - net 5 8, 20 P11,2585800 P17,511,539
Loan receivable 9 15,500,000 15,500,000
Due from related parties : 350 ‘1,885,100
Other noncurrent assots 11, 20 78,000,0800 78,800,0000

P104,757,150  P112,896,639

a. In the normal course of business, the Company grants/obtains advances to/from
related parties for working capital purposes. These advances are non-interest bearing,
unsecured and are receivable/payable on demand. S

b, The interest reccivable from HLC, its associate, represents the uncollected interest on
the lease deposit of the Company to HLC at 5% a year (see Nate 20), The related
interest income amounted fo P3.9 million for each of the years in the three-year

period ended December 3, 2014,

¢ The inferest receivable from RRC, an enfity under common control, represents the
uncellected interest on the loan granted by the Company fo RRC at 5% a year
(see Note 9). The related interest income amounted to P0.78 million for each of the
years In the three-year periad ended December 31, 2014,
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d. The Company has a Management Agreement with Elite Hote] Managemont Services
Pte, Ltd - Philippine Bianch {Elite), an entity under control, under which thie latter
provides management, technical and administrative sgivices, In return, the Company
pays monthly basic management and incentive fees based on & peicentage of the
Hotel's revenue (2%) and gross operating profit (7%) starting April 2011.

o. The rent income from HLC, RRC and Elite, its associate and under common control,
represents the sub-lease poition of an office space consisting of 20 square meters, 25
square meters and 65 square melers, respectively, located at the Hotel. The lease
covers a period of 2.5 years untll December 31, 2016, renewable upon written
agreement of both parties.

f.  Transactions with Kev Management Personnel _ _
" The total remuneration of key management personnel in the form of short-term

© employee benefits is shown below:

i
s
0
!
1

. 2014 2013 2012
Dirsctors of hotel operations  P3,732,760  P3,671,418 | P3,053,604 -
Bxeoutive officers 16,568,960 15622329 18,332,962

P19,.301,720 P19,293,747  'P21,386,566

The Company doss not provide post-employment and equity-based ~compensation
benefits to its Board of Directors and Expatriates. %

15, Cost of Sa!cs_and Services

This account consists oft

Note 2014 ' 2013 | 2012

Inventories af beginning
of year 6 P13,582,447 P14,560,701 P12,590,052
Purchases ' 56,696,788 58,771,715 67,105,572
Available for sale and use 70,279,235 73,332,416 79,695,624

Inventories at end of vear ¢ (13,993,225) (13,582,447) _ (14,560,701)
P546,286,006 P59,749,969 755,134,923
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16, Selling Expenses

This account consists of:

|

Note 2014 2013 2012
| |
|

Salaries, wages and
employee benefits: 2i - :
Faod and beverage P32,252,688 P34,125259 P40,214,428
Rooms 30,393,903 29,707,598 27,921,985
Other operating
departments 1,285,659 1,272,489 - 1,300,854
- 63,932,250 65,105,346 69,437,267
Property operation, :
malntenance, energy
and ¢onservation 98,794,538 103,083,854 104,829,993
Guest supplies 9,602,307 9,984,630 9,769,720
Commission 8,423,737 6,231,033 3,313,766
Transport charges 6,490,719 6,931,548 8,516,011
Laundry and dry cleaning 5,097,076 5,186,222 5,494,644
Kitchen fuel 2,652,540 2,841,429 4,153,321
Printing and stationery 2,105,581 2,358,083 2,525,723
Housckeeping expense - '
night cleaning 1,539,193 1,344,239 -
Music and entertainment 1,078,670 1,003,012 059,495
Operating supplies 1,028,138 1,186,414 1,681,695
Cleaning supplies 644,809 115,512 779,811
Perinits and licenses 606,050 350,633 © 331,558
Miscellaneous 2,633,066 8,152,015 6,231,022

P211,628,074  P214,534,01¢  P218,024,030
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17, Administrative Expenses

This account consists of’

Note 2014 2013 . 2012
Hotel overhead
departments
‘Bularfes, wages and
employee benefits: 27
Administrative and .
general P35,637,618 P35,176,442 P32,318,676
Engineering 11,792,037 R,727,296 9,071,697
Bales and marketing 7,972,648 7,857,515 6,006,970
Human resources 1,423,807 2,743,667 2,633,855
: 57,826,110 54,504,520 50,031,198
Management and : :
incentive fees 14 20,816,244 25,020,591 29,641,201
'Credir card commission 6,265,220 5,918,815 5,563,850
Dues and subscription 3,803,774 3,071,583 2,231,370
Data processing 2,166,924 2,438,617 1,425,280
Telecemmunications 1,174,547 2,070,823 [ 411,073
Entertainment 905,428 867,063 848,183
Advertising 790,253 1,240,189 1,077,385
Awards and social
retivitles - 702,428 686,714 . 557,943
Miscellaneous 2,861,583 4,162,326 1,589,080
97,402,511 99,981,241 - 94,376,563
Corperate office -
Depreciation and
amortization 0 38,864,197 36,293,759 37,561,273
Leasged {and rental 14, 20 17,757,608 10,678,560 10,678,560
Impairment logses on
receivables 13,156,558 27,260 -
Taxes and licenses 12,227,976 8,680,760 11,698,192
Property tax 9,265,761 9,265,681 9,265,631
Insurance 9,071,572 12,620,164 | 11,491,995
Corporate office payrol! '
and related expense 7,409,803 1,584,995 | 4,412,330
Professional fees 6,977,782 7,446,688 ¢ 7,262,330
Directors’ fees 1,311,151 1,494,626 2,111,285
Office supplies 272,205 1,033,836 1,255,902
Trangportation and travel 704,986 131,533 388,636
© Utility charges - 7,464,596 - .
Miscellaneous 1,973,529 824,609 829,378
119,733,128 99,547,067 86,957,562
P217,135,63%  P199,528,308 P181,334,125

«25.




18, Tarnitigs Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed as follows:

A 2014 2013 2012
Weighted average number of
eommon shiares; '
Balance at beginning of year P54,702,219 P47,551,532 . - P59,927,511
Weighted average number of '
shares acquired during the year 1539,141) {1,560,672) (1,484,974}
‘ P54,163,078 P55,990,880 P58,442,337
;Gid 2013 2012
Net income for the year ' P393,898  P85,576,676 . P165366,636
Divided by weighted average. — o :
number of outstanding shares 54,163,078 55,990,880 58,442,537
: P0O.01 P1.53 ' P2.83

There are no potential dilutive common shares in the yeais presented.

19. Refundable Deposits

This aceount consists of?

Note 2014 ] - 2013
PAGCOR 200 P25349438  P25349,438
Others 30,770,381 | 3,771,352
} 56,119,819 | 29,120,790

Less: Current porfion 23,597,300 ’ -

P32,122,519  P29,120,790

The refundable deposit pertains to the deposit paid by the lessee of the Compeany as
required in the lease agreement. ‘

In October 2014, the Company has & potential tenant whe will oecupy the previously
space rented by PAGCOR. The potential tenant paid the lease deposit amounting to
P23.99 million upon signing the Memorandum of Agreement,

20, Lenses

Company as Lessor
The Company leases certain portions of the Hotel premises to third parties with options

for extension/renewal upon mutual agreement of the parties. The leases Include
provisions for rental increment of 5% upon renewsl of the contracts subject to
renegotiations of both parties,
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The lease agresments with the third parties réquired the latter to give the Company lease
deposits which amounted to a total of P50,731,770 and P26,734,470 as at December 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively, and are shown as part of “Refundable deposits” in the
statements of financial position, Rent income amounted to P2,209,159 and P75,556,780
i 2014 and 2013, respectively, and is shown as “Others” under Revenue In the
statements of proflt or loss. .

On Mareh 31, 2011, the Company and PAGCOR, agreed to amend and- lnclude
additional spaces in the Contract of Lease. The amended lease contract s binding until
July 10, 2013,

On February 15, 2012, the BOD of PAGCOR has decided not fo renew the contract of
lease ‘which ended on July 10, 2013, Refundable deposit from PAGCOR is not yet

returned to the latter pending reconciliation of account between both parties,

. ¢

" Company as Lesses :
The Company leases the land occupied by the Hotel from HLC, its associate for a period
of 25 years up to January 1, 2015, On August 1, 2004, the Company, as lessee, and
HLL, as lessor, agreed to amend the Contraot of Lease wih Option to Purchase exeented
by the parties on November 12, 1991 covering the leass of the !and The amended

contract provides for the following:

a, Annual rental on the land of 110,678,560;

b, Required lease deposit (shown as part of “Other noncurrent assets” in the statements -
 of financial position) of P78 million; and

‘6. Interest rate of 5% per annum on the lease deposit which the lessor Is obligated to |
pay to the Company. )

On August 11, 2014, the Company and HLC agreed to amend the lease contract to
increase the fee from P10,678,560 to P17,797,608 starting Janvary 1, 2014 and to extend
the fease contract from 2015 to 2040 for a penod of another 25 years willi no escalation
of fee for the first S years but on the 6" year, HLC will propose 4 revision depending on
market condition.

The rent expense on the land amounted to P17.80 million, P10.68 million and P10.68
mifllon as shown as part of leased rental under “Administrative expenses” account in

2014, 2013 and 2012,

Future minimuin rental obligations on the land gre as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Dite within one year P17.797,608 710,678,560 . P10,678,560
After one year but not moye than :
five vears 85,988,040 - 10,678,560
- More than J years 338,154,552 - -

P444,040,200  P10,676,560  P21,357,120
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21, Retivement Cost

The Company has an unfunded, noncoutributory, defined benefit retirement plan
covering substantially all of its employees, except for its Board of Directors and
Expatriates. Tt provides a retirement benefit equal to eighty-six (86%) of monthly salary
per year of services payable to an employes who retires at age of 60 with at least § years
in service. Annual cost is determined using the projected unit credit inothod. The
Company’s [atest valuation date is December 31, 2014, i

The recognized liability representing the present value of the defined benefit obligation
presented as “Accrued retirement benefits Hability” in the Company’s statements of
financlal position amounted to P26,634,668 and P21,914,777 as at December 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively. ‘ i

The movements in the prasent value of the defined benefit cbligation are as follows:

2014 2013
Ralance at January 1 P21,914,777 23,428,474
Tncluded in Profit or Loss ' .
Cuirent setvice cost 1,988,063 1,442,564
Interest cost e 964,250 1,382,280
_ 2,952,313 2,824 844
Included in OCI |
Remeasurements loss:
Actuarial [oss {gain) arlsing from:
Financial assumptions (1,144,185) 3,504,119
Experience adjustment 3,128,766 (2,031,135)
: ‘ 1,984,581 1,469,984
Others : ‘
Benefits paid _ . - (217,003) (5,808,525)
Balance at December 31 ‘ P26,634,668 P21,914,777

The amounts of retirement benefits cost which are included under “Salaries, wages and
employee benefits” under operating expenses in the statements of profit or loss for the
years ended December 31 are as follows:

4 2013 2012

Curvent service cost T pyossges  PLAA2,564  P1,894478
Interestcost - | 964,250 1,382,280 1,981,887
Retirement benefits cost P1,952.313 P2,824,844 P3,876,365
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The actuarial gain, before deferred incoms ftaxes, recegmzed vnder “Other
comprehensive incame” in the statements of comprehensive income aud statements of
changes in equity are as follows:

2044 2013 2012

Cumulative actuarial gain at the

beginning of the year P8,693,207 Pi0,163,191 ~ DP4,553,539
Actuariel (loss) pain arising :

from: ‘ ‘

Financlal assumptions 1,144,185 £3,501,1(9) 5,993,430

Experience adjustment {3,128,766% 2,031,135 {483,778
Retiremeni benefits cost P§,708,626 P8,693,207 P10,163,191

The net accumulated actuarial gains, net of deferred tax emounted to P4,696,038,
P6,085,245 and P7,114,234 as at December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, as
presented in the statements of changes in equity.

Principal actuarlal assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

. 2014 2013 2012
Discount rate 5% 5% %
Future salary increases 3% 3% 3%

Assumptlons rsgarding future mortality have been based on pubhshed statistics and
mortahty rates of the 1985 Unisex Annuity (able.

Sensirivity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuanal
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the amncunts shown below:

. Increase . Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) ' {P2,667,348) P3,116,315
Futuie salaty increase rate (1% movement) 2,998,221 (2,616,459)

Although the analysis does not take into account the full distribution of cash flows
expected under the plan, it does pwvnde an npproximation of the sensitivity of the
assumption shown, |

These deﬁned benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity
visk, interest rate risk, and market {investment) risk,

The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation .is 13? years as af
December 31, 2014 and 2013,
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Maturity analysis of the benefit payments:

2014
§ Vears but
Carrylng  Coutractusl Less than L.ees than Mere than
Amaunt Cash Flows 5 Yenrs 18 Years 19 Years
Retirement heneflis
- ltebBility P26,634,568  P132.635407 Pi1,844,190 P9,331,424 P111,459.714

The Conipany is. ot required to_pre-fund the future defined benefits payable under the
Retirement Fund before they become due, For this reason, the amount and timing of
contributions to the Retirement Fund are at the Company’s discretion, However, in the
event a bensfit claim arises, the Company will be liable to pay its employees.

22, Income Tax

The companents of the Company’s income tax expense are as foliows:

2014 2013 2012
Current tax ekpense : - P9,802,073 P34,405,405 P70,467,505
Deferred tax expense (bengfit) {6,230,509) 3,798,738 (1,895,945)

P3,571,164 P38,204,143 P68,571,560

The reconeiliation of the income tax expense computed at statutory Income tax rate to the
income tex expense shown in profit or foss is as follows: ‘

| 2014 2013 2012
Tncome before lncome tax 73,065,062 FP123,780,819  P233,938,196

Income tax expense al stakitory |

tax rate (30%) P1,189,519  P37,134,246 [ P70,181 459
Additions to (reductions in) _ i

income tax resuting from the

tax effects of: '

Tncome subjected to final tax (200,879) 735,123y . (1,467,696}
Equity in net income of an -
assoviate (532,230) (183,312) (136,577)
Non deductible expense :
(nontaxable income) 3,114,754 1,988,132 {5,626)

P3,571,164 P38,204,143 P68,571,560
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The components of the Company's deferred tax assets (liabilities) are as follows:

Assets i Lighliitics Net
2014 2013 2014 2003 20M 2013

Acgpraed relirement , . .

benefily Hability P10,001,988  P9.182,395 P - po- Pi0,002,988  P9,182,395
Allowance for . ‘

impalrment logses on - '

receivables 3,993,633 46,686 . . 3,993,653 46,686
Unrealized foreign :

exthargs Joss (galn) 414,056 . - (1,049,263} 414,086 (1,049,263
Actunsial gali on defined : - '

bensllt plan (2,012,388)  (2,607,962) _ (2,012,588)  (2,607.962)

Pl4,410,727  P229,08|  (2,002,588) (P3.657,22)) FI2,398,13%  P5,STLESE

23. Appropriafion of Retatned Earnings ! |

' : R

The Company has eppropriated the amounts of P49,242,500, P142,466,650 and

P118,797,950 in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, to finance the hequisition of

treasury stock during those years, _ : A
i

14, Share Capital

a. Capital Stock

. 2014 ¢ - 2013
Authorized - 115,000,000 shares at 10 par
value shares
Issued ' ' §7,318,270 87,318,270
Less treasury stock (33,600,981) (32,616,051}
Total issued and outstanding © 53,717,369 54,702,218

b, Treasury Stock
The movement of freasury stock as at December 31 are as follows:

2014 2013 2012

Balance at beginning of year 32,616,051 29,766,718 27,390,759
Acquisition of treasury stock ‘
_during the year . 984,850 2,849,333 2,375,959

33,600,501 32,616,051 29,766,718

25. Dividend Declaration

On May 15, 2012, the Board of Dircctors of the Company declared cash dividends
equivalent to P119,855,022 out of the unrestricted retained earnings as at December 31,
2011 payable on or before June 22, 2012 to the stockholders of record aa of May 29,
2012, Mo dividends were declared in 2014 and 2013, As at December 31, 2014 and
2013, there were no dividends payable. | : ‘

.41 -



26, Financinl Risk and Caplta] Management Objectives and Pollefes

The Company has exposure to the following tisks fiom its use of financial instruments;

»  Credit Risk : _ |
v Liquidity Risk |
x  Market Risk |
|
This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks,
the Company’s objectives, policles and processes for measuting and managmg risks, and
the Company's management of capital. :

The maln purpose of the Company’s dealings in financlal instruments is to fund its
aperations and capital expendmzres i
The BOD has overall responsibility for the establishment and OvelSlght of the
Company’s risk management fratnework. The BOD, through the Executive Committee,
is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies,
The committee identifies all issues affecting the operations of the Company and reports
regularly to the BOD on its activitles.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the
risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk iimits and controls, and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits, Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities, All risks
faced by the Company are incorporated in the annual operating budget, Mitigating
strategies and procedures are also devised to address the risks that inevitably occur so as
not to affect the Company's operations and detriment forecasted results, The Company,
through its training and management standards and procedures, alms o develop a
disclplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand thels
toles and obligations,

The Company’s Awdit Committes assists the BOD in fulfilling its oversight
responsibility of the Company’s corporate governance process relating to the: a) quality
and Integrity of the Company’s financial statements and financial repmﬁng process and
the Company’s systems of internal accounting and financial controls; b) performance of
the internal auditors; ¢) annual independent audit of the Campany’s f' nanocin! statements,
the engagement of the independent auditors and the evaluation of the independent
auditors’ qualifications, independence and performence; d) compliance by the Company
with legal and regulatory requirements, including the Company’s disclosure control and
procedures; ) svaluation of management’s process to assess and manage the Company’s
enterprise risk issues; and f) fulflilment of the other responsibilities set cut by the BOD,
The Audit Committee also prepares the reports required to be included in the Company's
annual report, .

- Credit Risk ‘
Credit risk represents the risk of loss the Company would incur if credit customers and
counterparties fall to perform thelr contractual cbligations. The Company®s credit risk

arises principally from the Company’s trade receivables,
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Exposure to credit risk is monitoted on an ongoing basis. Credit checks are being
performed on all clients requesting credit over cerfain amounts, Ciedit is not exfended
beyond authorized’ limits, established where appropriate through consultation with &
professional eredit vefting organization, Credit granted is subject to regular review, to
ensure it remains consistent with the olients’ current credit worthiness and appropriate to
the anticipated volume of business,

The investment of the Company’s cash resources is managed so as fo minfmize risk while
seeking to enfiance yield, The Company’s holding of cash and money market placements
exposes the Company to credit risk of the counterpatty if the counterparty is unwilling or
nnable to fulfill its obligations and the Company consequently suffers financial loss,
Credit risk management involves entering into financial transactions only with
counterparties with acceptable credit rating. The treasury policy sets aggregate credit
limits of any one counterparty and management annwally reviews the exposure limits and
credit ratings of the counterparties,

Receivable balance is being monitored on & regular basis to ensure timely execution of
necessary intetvehtion efforts,

The carrying amount of financial assets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 represents the
maximutm credit exposure. The maximum exposure 10 credit risk at the reporting dates is
as follows: ‘

. Note 2014 2013

Cash and cash equivalens : '
(excluding cash on hand) 4 P236,282,56)  P205293,155
Recelvables - net ' 5 14 304,110,706 322,009,422
Loan receivable - 9,14  15500,000. 15,500,000
Due from velated parties ' _ 14 ‘ 350 1,885,100
Lease deposit : : ‘ ‘ 11 78,000,800 78,000,000

P633 893,619  P622,687,677

Details of trade receivables from charge customers as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 by
type of customer are as follows: -

Nole . 2014 2013
PAGCOR : P8,%36,199 ' P§,936,199
Credit eards 4,158,078 5,394,442
Alrlines 7,310,132 4,960,973
Corporations 5216038 | 4,313,158
Travel agencies 3,389,783 . 4,223,105
Qthers : 7438374 3,125,398

5 36,448,610 | 30,953,275
Less allowanics for impairment losses on .o
trade receivables - charge customery 3 387,679 155,621

: P36,060,931  P30,797,634
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The Company’s most significant customer, PAGCOR, accounts for 24.52% and 28.87%
of the trade receivables from charge customers as at December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Revenues from PAGCOR approximately amounted to P98,193,426 and
P202,933,825 in 2013 and 2012, respectively, and represent 17% and 30% of the
Company’s tolal revenues, respectively. Ag mentioned in Note 20, PAGCOR hag decided
not fo renew the contract of lease which etded on July 10, 2013,

The aging of trade recelvables from charge customers as at December 31, 2014 and 2043
fs as follows: , .

2014 2013
Gross Gross
Amount  Impairiment Amaunt Impalrment
Current ) P17,083,679 . P14,792,658 P -
Over 30 days - 7,006,072 . 5,982,920 -
Over 60 days 2,208,643 - 795,860, .
Over 90 days 9,450,216 387,679 0,181,837 155,621

P36,448,610 ' P387,679 P30,953,275 Pi55,621

Receivables from PAGCOR amounting to 8,936,199 included in over 90 days are still
collectible based on management’s assessment of collection history, thus no impairment
was provided. In addition, any amount outstanding from PAGCOR can be offset against
the deposit received from it as discussed in Note 20,

The movements In the allowsnce for impairment fosses in respect of trade receivables
during the year are as follows: .

i Amuunt_
Balance at Jenuary 1, 2013 : P128,35]
Provision in 2013 ‘ : 27,260
Balance at December 31, 2013 | 155,621
Provislon in 2014 113,156,558
Balance at December 31, 2014 P13,312,179

The allowance for impairment losses on (rade recelvables as of December ﬁi, 2014 and
2013 of P13,312,179 and P155,621, respectively, relates to outstanding accounts of
customers that are more than 90 days past due and portion of receivable from PAGCOR

account,

The table below shows the credit quality of the Contpany’s financial assets based on their
historical experience with the corresponding debtors,

As at December 31, 2014

Grade A Grnde B Grade C Tatal
Cash in banks and ,
cash equivalents P236,282,563 F - P - P236,282,563
Receivables - net 36,388,353 35,140,204 232,482,149 304,110,706
Loan recefvable - 15,500,000 - 15,500,009
Dus from related partles 350 - - 350
Logse deposit 78,000,000 - - 78,000,000

P350,671,266 P50,640,204  P231,582,149  PG63I3BII61D
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As at December 31, 2013

Grede A Grade B Grade C Tatal

Cash In banks and
cash equlvalents P205,293,155 - P - F - P205,293,153
Receivables - nét 32,239,657 54,675,306 235,004 459 322,009,422
- Loan receivable Co. . 15,500,000 - . 15500,000
Due from related parties . {,885,100 - 1,885,100
Lease deposit ‘ 78,000,000 - - 78,000,000

P315,532,812 P72,060,406  P235,094,459  P622,687,677

Giade A receivables pertain to those receivables from customers that always pay on time
or even before the maturity date, Grade B includes receivables that are collected on thelr
due dates provided that they were reminded or followed up by the Company. Those
recelvables which are collected consistently beyond their due dates and require persistent
effort from the Company are included under Grede C. ' L

Cash in banks is considered good quality (Grade A) as this pertains to deposits in
reputable banks, E

Liguidity Risk _ 1 _
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Company manages liquidity visk by forecasting
projected cash flows and mantaining a balance behween continuity of funding and
flexibility in operations, Treasury conlrols and procedures are in place to ensurc that
sufficient cash Is maintained to caver daily operational and working capital requirements,
Management closely monitors the Company’s future and contingent obligations and sets
up required cash reserves as necessary in secordance with interpal requirements.

The Company’s total current labilities'as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounted fo
P116,573,695 and P306,869,660, respectively, which are less than its total current assets
of P$82,912,986 and P577,350,558, respectively, Thus, the Company has sufficient
funds to pay for its current liabilities and hes minimal liquidity risk.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and other market prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objuctive of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the

return.

The Company is subject to various markst risks, including risks from changes in roon
rates, intevest rates and currency exchange rates. : :

‘Room Rates -

The risk from room rate changes relates to the Company’s ability to recover higher
operating costs through price ncreases to customers, which may be Hmited due to the
competitive pricing environment that exists in the Philippine hotel industry and the
willingness of customers to avail of hotel rocms at higher prices.

The Company minimizes its exposure to risks in changes in room rates by signing
cantracts with short period of expiry so this gives the Company the flexibility to adjust its
voomn rates In accordance to market conditions. Also, there are minimal changes in room
rates in the hotel industry. : . -
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Interest Rate Risk

The Company has no interest-bearlng debt obligations to third parties and its receivables
are subject to fixed interest rates. As such, the Company has minimal interest rate risk,
Foreign Currency Risk ' ' ‘
Financial assets end financing facilifies extended to the Company were mafnly
denominated in Philippine peso and have minimal transactions in forelgn currency, Net
foreign exchange gain from the revaluation of the Company’s cash and caz:sh squivalent
amcunted to P180,991 and P7,126,239 for the years suded December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, As such, the Compnany’s foreign currency risk is minimal,

Fair Values x
The falr values together with the carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities
shows in the staterments of financial position ave as follows: !

2014 2013
Carrylng Carrying
Amount  Falr Value Amount Falr Val_ue
Cash and cash equivalents P237,078,063 P237,078,063 P205,890,655 P205,890,655
Receivables - nat 304,110,706 304,110,706  322,009422 322,009,422
Loan receivable 15,500,000 15,500,000 15,500,000 15,500,000 -
Due from related parties : 350 356 1,885,100 1,885,100
Lease deposit “1§,000,000 78,000,000 78,000,000 78,000,000
Accounts payable and accrued '
EXponses 77,919,262 77,919,262 71,567,689 77,567,689
Due to related parties 6,090,243 6,090,243 2,115,421 2, 115421
Other current liabilitiea* 20,752,217 20,752,217 18669841 18,669,841

*Excluding payables 1o goveriment -

. Esttmation of Fair Values ' . :
The following summarizes the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the

falr values of financial instruments reflected in the table:

Cash
The fair value of cash approximates its cerrying amount due to the short-term nature of

this asset.

" Receivables/Due from Related Partfes/Loan Receivabie/decotnts Payable and Aecrued
Expenses/Due to Related Parties/Other Curreni Liabilities Except for Quiput VAT
Liability and Withholding Taxes Payables, and Deferred Renial

Current receivables are reported at thelr net realizeble values, at total amounts less

allowances for estimated uncollectible accounts, Curtent liabilities are stated at amounts

reasonably expected to be pald within the next twelve months or within the Company’s
operating cycle. Due to/from related parties and loan receivable are payable on demand, -

Shor{-term Investments/Other Noncurrem Assels
" Shott-term investments and other noncurrent assets are interest bearing, The carrying
value of short-term investments approximates its fair value, because the effective Interest
rate used for discounting the short-termy investment and other noncurrent assets
epproximates the current market rate of interest for similar transactions,
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27, Contingencies

Capital Management : '

The Company’s objectives when managing capitel are W increase the value of
shaveholders’ nvestment and maintain high growth by applying free. cash flow to
selective imvestiments, The Company 5et8 strategies with the objective of establishing 2

versatile and resoutceful financisl management and capital structure-

The Chief Financial Officet has overall responsibility for monitoring of gapital In
propoition 10 visk, Profiles for capital ratios Bve set in the tight of changes in the
Company’s external environment and the risks underlying the Compaiy's business

operations and industry.

The Comparny monitors capitaf on the basis of the debi-to-equity ratio which is caleulated
g total debt divided by total equity. Total debt is equivalent 10 accounts payable and
acorued EXpENses, income rax peyable, due to related parties, other current liabilittes,
refundable deposits and accrued retirement peneflts Hability. Total equity comprises
mainly of the capital stock, additional paid-in capital and retairied oarnings:

There were 00 changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the

year.

Ag it Decernbel 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company is compliant with the minimum public
float requirement by the philippiue gtock BExchange (PSE). .

The Company has 115,600,000 shares registered with the SEC as at December 31, 2014
and 2013, Asal December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company issue/offer price ta P25 and
P45 based on the Philippine gtock Exchange (PSE) website, The total pumber of
shargholders is 506 ns at December 31, 2014 and 2013,

The Company, in the ordinary gourse of tusiness, i8 2 patty certain assessment, claims
and litigation, The outcomme of these assesgments, olaims and lifigation cannot be

presently detormined, In the opinion of management and the Ccmpany’s"negal counsel,
the eventual Hability avising from these assessments, claims and Jitigation, if a0, will not
f operations.

have 2 material effect o8 the Company's fingneial position O results ©
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28, Supplementary Information Required by Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)

In additlot to the disclosures mandated under PFRSs, and such other standards and/or
conventions as may be adopted, companies are required by the BIR to provide in the
notes to the financial statements, certain supplementery information for the taxable year,
The amounis Ielatmg to such information may not necessarily be the same with those
amounts disclosed in the financial statements which were prepared in accordance with
PFRSs, The following Is the tax information xequited for the taxable year anded

December 31, 2014
1. ' Based on Revenue Regulations (RR) No, 19-2011

A, Sales/Receipts/Fees

Regular/

. *Normal Rate

Sale of services . P325,929,967

Sale of goods 141,017,832
P466,947,799

B, Cost of S8ales/Services

Regnlar/

Normal Rate

Cost of sales ‘ o
Merchandise/finished goods inventory, beginning: P13,582,447
Add: Purchases of marchandise/cost of goods |

manufactured : 56,696,788

Total goods available for sale 70,279,235
Less: Merchandise/flnished goods mventory! end (13,993,229
P535,286,006

C. Non-Operating and Taxable Other Income

Regulay/

Normal Rate

Interest income P4,674,995
Others 19,826,718
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D, Iteimized Deductions (lf Company did not avall of the Optional Standard

Deduetion)
Regular/
‘ __Normal Rate
Salaties and ailowances ' ' P126,432,853
Repairs and maintenance-materials and supphes : 98,794,538
Digpreciation \ ' 38,864,197
Management and consu!tancy fee 20,816,244
Office supplies 14,864,096
Insurance . 9,071,872
Commissions : 14,688,957
Taxes and Heenses , 11,717,275
Rental : 17,797,608
Professional fees 6,977,782
Transportation and travel 7,195,705
Dues and subscription ' i 3,893,774
Fuel and oif | 2,682,540
Data processing : 2,166,924
Representation and enterfainment , | 1,984,698
Directors fee ' i 1,311,151
Advertising : _ | 790,283
Other hotel expenses _ 22,470,366
P402,489,933
IL. Based on RR No, 15-201¢
A, Value Added Tax (VAT)
1. Oufput VAT : K P55,009,243
Aecount title used: '
Basis of the Output VAT:
Vatable sales - . P458,410,362
Exempt sales . 2,689,321
Zero rated sales: - 5,848,116
P466,247,739
2, Input VAT . ‘
Beginning of the year P11,200,062
Current year’s demestic purchasss:
a,  Goods for resale/manufocture or further
processing 7,627,134
b. Services lodged under other aecounts 21,394,456
Less: Applied input VAT during the year 33,498,293
Balance at the end of the year ‘ - P6,726,359
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B, Withholding Taxes ‘

P20,805,321

Tax on compensation and benefits
Creditable withholding taxes | 8,274,623
Final withholdipg taxes ? 72,583
P129,152,527
C. All Other Taxes (Locrl and Natlonal)
Qther tuxes paid during the year recognized under
“Taxes and licenses™ acconnt under Operating
Expenses i
Real estate taxes P9,265,761
License and petmit fees 1,748,246
Others 703,268
P11,717,275
D, Deficiency Tax Assessments
Perlod Covered Amount*
2001 P765,104
2002 228,943,589
2608 262,576,825
2019 1,656,322
P493,941,840

*duount of basic deficiency fax asressments, whether protexted or nol,

E, Tax Cases

As at December 31, 2014, the Company has the following fax cases:

g. 2001 - Settled basic tax due of P403,130 on March 2010, as agreed on tho
Letter of Abatement flled. Request to waive the interest and surcherges of

P346,140 is still for approval at BIR LTS.

b: 2002 - PAGCOR VAT cage filed against the Company.

¢, 2008 - The Company’s menagement, with the assistance of its tax counsel,
is studying further administrative and/or legal remedies in relation to the
Company's request for re-Investigation and re-computation for alleged tax

liability. :
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A. BOARD MATTERS

1) Board of Directors

E ' |

Wumbar of Directors per Articlas of Incorperation

7 (reduced tg 6 a5 of 10
Cctobpr 2014, folowing 1
resignation of Michela Des.
Actual pumber of Directors for tne ysar Sanios)
(a} Compasition of the Board
Co.mpista the tabls with information on the Board of Directore:
Mominatorin 3:;?;35{;;
Type [Executiva If the last 1B, stats Na. of
Dirsctors (ED), Non« nominasa, alaction (if Pate ‘tha Elected when yBars
Namsa Executive {NED) identify | ID, state the firat aumbar of {Annual/Speclal | served
or Independent the ralationghip | electad aars Meating) as
Director (IDJ]. | principal | 'withthe . | . | Jo2S director
nominator) Dy o . .
‘ ;ﬁong Hong | ED ;2; ‘ Ope? flrt:fur ]gg{\gay 131!\:23); Anrial { Dalated: 18
an e | nomination
e é?r’ n 11 L N IR S ~{ Dalatad: 2073
Limited
("TPFL") .
Bryan NED TPFL DOpen floor 18 May | 15 May Annual . ,{ Deletad: 17
Cockrell nomination 1997 204 ek ) { Tatered: 2013
: 1 :
I\Dﬂichela NED 1rgc:e;c: Opan ficor ;.f_ A 12 hgay Annust { Deletedi 8
se- st nomination Fobraary {2014 | .
Santos! 2006 De!etet?.: 2013
(Reslaned
ag of 10
Qclober
2914 L .
Angelilo D NLA, Zatrio Pis. ?Q&‘;Juzguat 18 May Annual ---»-'-‘{Deletem o0
Imperio Lid,; Mo Ak ARSI A S
relation Served a5 { betete 2013
1D 2001-
2004, and
2008 to
present
Eddie Yeo | ED TRFL Gpan fioor | 13Jdan | 16 May | Annual KT ~{ Deleted: 9
\ nomination | 2005 [QGH L e e
Eddie C.T. | NED TTPFL Openfloor | 17 dan | 18 Mey | Annua) Delated: 0
Lau nominaion * | 2008 | QQI&__ i T
Mia D NA. The Phi i;ppma 5 Aug 15 May Anngal pelated: 20
Geniugaye Fund Limited; 1892 2014, { Dalateds 2013

esizned 1ea umpbs,-; offthe Toard af Ditenoss effective 10 Octoher 2014
br] of resinnation s thus sle hag been g_\g] ol assignments b : A

T'})»lf-mn {REBE Trust™, s Dee-Santos represonled e gh,;jgg held by RCBC Trygt in sl Corporation, Ms. Dee Snm;:e, was also p

member of iy Au] [Lcnsml!lcc aod Nomingtion Committes of the Cernorgien.

As diselosed Dmm“ﬁh lﬂ f?w
. Q 5




Served as
1D 2005 -~

No relation l .
praaent

{b) Provide a briaf summary of the corporate governance pollcy that the board of directors has adapted. Pleass
emphasize the poileyfies relative to tha treatment of all sharehaidars, respect for tha rights of minority
shareheldars and of other stakehioiders, disclosure dutles, and beard responsibiiities,

The Corporation ha¢ adoptad its own Revised Corporaie Governance Manual ("CG Manuai™), -which is almad io
Inatfiutionsiize the principles of good corperate governence in the entirg arganization. As a polley, the Soard of
Dlractors {'Board"), Management, employeas and sharsholders of the Corporation balieve that good corporate
povernance is & necessary component of what constitutes scund strategle business mansgemant and undartakes to
create and maintain awareness within the organization,

Shereholders - The CG Manus! ensires that sharsholders are afforded rights and that minority sharehelders'
Interests are protected.

Minority sharafielders - the CG Manual emphasizes that the minority shareholders shouid ba aflowed to participate in
datermination of corperate acts.  Specifically, the Boerd should glve minorlly stockholders the right t¢ propose ths
holding of meetings and the itsms for diseussion in the agenda that relate direcily to the business of the Corporation,
The By-Laws of the Corporation provides thaf sharsholders reprasenting at last ten percent {10%) of ths outstanding
capital stock of the Corporation may request the holding of B spacial shareholding’s mesting.

Discivsure duties ~ Under the CG Manual, the Corporation has adopled & poliey that requires management io
disclose related-parly fransactlons. Aleo, item 5 of the CG Manual requlres the disglosure of all materiat informatlon
abeut the Corpurstion which could adversaly effect its vigblity or the interests of the stockholders. This ingludas:

+  mamings resulls

+ ecqulsiion or disposition of useets
+ . remuneretion

Bosrd Responsibiities - It is the general responsibitity of the Board (o foeter the long-term success of the Corperation
snd sscure it austained competitivensss In a mannar consistent with its fiduclary respengibiily, which If shal
axerclse in the best interest of the Corporation and lts shargholders, The Board shalf condus! Hself wth utmost
herasty and integrity In the discharge of #s dutles, funetlons and reaponsibiiities.

(e} How pftan does the Beard review and approve the vislon and migsion?
The Corpo‘ratlon kas no fixed period sel for the Board's review of the vision and misslon,
Dirgetorahip in Other Companles
Directarahip in the Corperation’s Group

Identify, as and If appilcable, the mambers of the company's Hoard of Dlracters who hold the office 6f
dirgctor In other companias withie e group;

Director's ) Type of Directorship
Name {Executive, Nan-Exacetive,
intlependent). indicate If

Corporate Name of the Group Company .
‘ dirgctor is also the Chairman,

| Wong Herg ATOS Holding AG : Direcior
Ran

Belijing Fortune Hotel Co,, Lid. ] : - | Direetar

Lepal Reprasentaiive

Blrkanhead Hoidings Piy. Ltd. : Diracter




Blirkenhead Investmanis Py, Lid,

Diréictor

CDL Entertainment & Lelsure Ple Ltd Dirattar
CDL Hotels (Korea} Lid, 1 Director

s Chelman
COL roteis (Laouan) Limited Director
CDL Hotsls (Singapore) Pl Lid Rirestor
CDL Motsls Holdings New Zgaiand Limited Direcior
CRL Holels Japan Pte. Ltd. ‘Diractor
GDL Investments New Zealand Limited Directar

| ) Chalrnan

COL Land New Zealand Lim|ted Directer
COLHT MTN PTE, LTD., Citeclor
Chaneery Limited Direcior
Cify Hotels Ple. Lid. Diraetor
Copthorna Orchid Hote! Singapora Fts Lid Diractor
First Spongor Capital Limited Diractor
First Sponsar Greup Limited Blractor
Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation Cirecler/Chairman/President
Harbour Land Corporation Dirgclor '
Harrow Entertainmani Pte Lid Director
Hosplizllly Holdings Pie. Ltd. Diractor
Hoteleorp New Zealand Ply Lid Diracior
Idaa Vallay Group Limited Diractor -
intarnational Design Link Pte Lid Dirsetor
KN Hodings Limited Direcior
Klngsgate Heldings Pty, tid, Diractar
Klngsyaie Hotel Ply. LK, Diragtor
Kingsgate International Corperation Limited Non-Exscutive Biractor
Kingsgate international Ply Lid, Director
Kingsgate invesiments Piy. Ltd. - Director
Londeon Britennia Hotel Limited Director
M&C {India) Haldings Fte. Ltd. Diractor
M&C (Mauritius) Holdings Limied Diractor

MEC Business Trust Managament Limited

Non-Executive Director
Chalrman

#48C Holdings [Thalland) Lid. Dirsetar
MAC Hospitality Holdings {Asia) Limited Direclor
M&C Hospitality International Limited Director
14&C Hotel Enterprises (Asla) Limiad Director
| M&C Hotei Investmenie Pte, Ltd. Director
M&C Hotats Koldings Japan Pte. Lid, Direstor
M&C Hotels Holdings Limilad Director
M&C Hotais Holdings USA Limitad Cirastor
M&C Hotels Japan Pta. Lid. Directar

M&C REIi'I’ Manzgament Limited

Non-Exacufive Direetor
Chairman

Millenntum & Coptharne Hotel Holdings (Mong Kang)

Director
Limited
Mitlennium & Copthorne Hotals {Hong Kerg) Limited Ciiractor
Millennlum & Copthorne Motels New Zealand Limited Direstor
. i Chairman
Miliernium & Copthorme Hoiels plo Dirgctor
Execytive Dhrestor
CEQ
Millennium & Copthorna Hotala Ply Lid Director
Miltannium & Copthorng Infernatlonal Limlted Dirastor
Mittennium & Copthorne Middie East Holdings Limitad | Director
Diractar

Nawbury invesiments Pte Lid




PT Millennium Hotels & Resorts Prasident Comm!ssioner

PT. Millennlum $hlh Jakarta Hotel Cummissioner

Quantum Limiled Diractor

Republic Hotals Suzhou Pte Ld Diragtor

Republic Iconic Hotel Pte, Lid, - Dirsctor

RHR Capltal Pte, Lid, Director

Rogo Realty Corporation Director.

The Phitippine Fund Limited Ditector & Prasident
' TOBCAP Limited Dirselor -

Zatrio Pte Lid Dirsctor

Zillian Holdings Limitad Diraciar

1] Dlrectarsr_!!p in Other Listed Companles

tdentify, as and If applicabls, the mambers of the company's Beard of Directors who are also directors of

publicly-listsd companies outside of Its Group:

Dlrector's Name Nama of Listed Company

Type of Dlrectorship {Executive, Non-Executive,

Independant). lndicate If director Is alno the
Chaiman}

Bryan K. Cockrsll {1) Scutheast Asla
Cement Holdings Inc,

{2} Republic Coment Carp.

{1} Chairman
{2) Director
{3) Director

{liny Relationship within the Company and iis Group

Provide keen detalle, as and If appllcéble. of any relation among the members of the Board of Direciors,
which links tham to slgnificant sharehalders In the company and/or in its group:

Director's Narne Name of the Significant Shareholder DRescoription of the Relationship
VWong Hong Ren TRPFL Piineipal-narmines )
Bryan Cockrall TPFL Princlpal-nomines
Michsla Dee-Santos ; ‘
(Resignkd as of 10 October 2014} RCBC Trust Frinclpai-nemines
Eddie Yeo TPFL Prineipal-nominas
Eddla . T. Lay TPFL Princlpel-nominaa

v}

Has the company set iimit on the- number of Board Soats in other campanies (publlcly Nsted, ordinary and

companles with secondary |lcanse] that an Individual dlrector of GEC may haold simultanecusiy? In
particular, 1s the limit of five board seata In other publicly llated companiss impossd and obssrved? If yes,

btiefly describe cther guldslings;

Guldellner

Maximum Number of Dirgetorship In other
tompanies -

Exacutive Director

determination of numbsr of
directorships for the Board:

& direcior

*

Non-Executive Plrector | Age of the director

Accarding to the CG Manuel, the
fullowing guldalines shaif govarn ihe

+  Tha nature of the business of
tha corporations of which heis

+  Number of directorshins/ astive

The CG Manual does not provide a parlicutar lim#;
however, It provides that axscutive directsrs shall
submit themselves to a reasarable number of
directorshipa In othar companias and that in any cass,
the capacity of each direeter to ditigently and effisiantly
perform his duties as board member shall not be
compromised.

The same fimitatlon applies to independant, non-
axesutive diractars who serve as full-Gme expcutives in
other companles. ' i
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memberships and officlal

CEQ posltions held in ather The same Iimit appiics.
corporations or organizations,

provided that directorshigs in
affiliates, subsidiaries or othar
corporafions related to the
Corporation shall not be
counted

»  Posslble sonflict of intarest -

i The optimum number shail ba
‘related o the capacity of a director
o efficiendly and diligenily perform
“their duties fo the boards they serve.

Sharsholding In the Company

| .
CGomplete the following table on the members of the company's Board of Directors who directly and indirestly
cwn ghara In the company:

Numbear of Direct Nurmber of Indirect shares / Through {nams % of Gapltal

Name of Diréc!or Bhares of record gwner) Stock
Weng Hong Ren - 1 9 Less than 1%
Bryan Cockral| : 1 . 0 Less than 1%

Michels Dee-Santos
{Rpsigned effective 10 .

Dctober 2014) 4 0 Less than 1%
Angelito Imperio i 0 Less than 1%
Eddle Yeo 1 0 Less than 1%
Eddie Lau 1 0 Less then 1%
Mia Gentugaya 1 il Less than 1%
Total 7 ] Less than 1%

2) Chairman and CED

{a} Do diffarent persons assums the rols of Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEO? If No, describe the
checks and balances fald down to ensure that the Board gets the beneflts of independent viaws.

Yes No

Generally, the Board is the governing bedy of the Corporation, and ali corporaie acis are approved by the Board. There
ara adeyuate checks and balances in the corporale gevernance structure of the Corporation to ensure that there s an
appropriate batence of power, increased  accountability and batter capacity for Independant declsion-making by the
Board (&g, board review, internal control, and Audif Commitiae}.

Firatly, there |2 a proper delingation of the functions of Chair and GEQ provided by the Corporation's By-Laws;

s Article V, Section & - defines the poalition of Chaif;man of the Beard
+  Article V, Seclion ¥ -defines the position of Pragident CEG

Secondly, the CG Manual cantaing provisions 1o anstre that the Board has mechanisms o ensure proper thacks and
batances in the managemant and aparafion of the Corporation. These include:

+ Sections 2.2.1.3 (vi) {0 (ix) and Section 2.2.1.4 (iv) - on the powers, dulies and responsibilitiss of the Board and
director )
s Section 2.2.2.1 ~ on the creation and funciions of the Audit Committes




s . Seclior 2.5 ~ which requires the Board fo provide ateckholders with » balanced and comprehensibla assessment
of the Corporation's pefformance, position and prospests on & quarerly basis, inchudlng interim end cther reports
that could adversely &ffect its business, as welf as reports to regulators that are required by faw. )

« Section 2.8 . reguires the Managemant te provide adequate and timely information 10 the Board, scknowladgas
the Board's access to Managemeni and the Corporate Secretery, and the Board's discretion io make further
Inquirles on Managament action and not to rely solaly in information provided by Management

»  Section 74 - Board's salf-rating system 1o assess Board and Management performence

Under Sae, 2.2.1 of the GG Manual of the Corporation, the Board is primailly responsible for the governance of the
Corparation. Gorollary to setting the policies for the accomplishment of the corporate okjactives, It shall provide an
independsnt chack an Marmagement, .

Thirdly, the Gorporation has an Audit Committee and lts own Audit Compniftee Charter ("Charter®), wilch provides for the
duties an¢ responsibiliiss of the Audlt Committee and lays down the rules and procedures that govern the condyct and i
‘performanca of the duties of the Audit Commities. The powers, dutizs, and respansibiities of the Audit Cormittee inciude
access to auditors and mansgement, review of audi proceduras, and oversight of financlal management functiona,

ldentify the Chalr and CEO:

Chalrman offhe Board Weng Hong Ren

CEQ Presidaont Wang Hong Ren

(b} Roles; Agcountabillties and Dellverables
Deflne and clarify the roles, accountabliities and deliverables of the Chalrman and CEC,

Chairman . Chisf Executive Officer
Roles According ts the Corporatlon's By- Laws, The President Acls as the Chief Executive
. . the Chairman, i present, presides st all Officer of the Corporation, He presides aver
maeilngs of the stockholders and of the reetings in the absence of the Chaliman,
Board. Tha Chairman also performs alf He also performs all dulies incitant to the
other dutles as from time to ime may be office of the Presidant and such other duties
assigned to him by the Board, as may from time to tima be assigned to him
' by the Beard or as prescribed by the By-
Laws,
Accountabilities He is responsible for tha genera! care and

supervision of the busingss and affairs of
the Corperation. Corporate acts and
sontracts outside of day-fo-day operations
generslly require Board approval, -

Delverahles He signs with the Corporate Secrefary or
Assistant Corporate Secratary certificates of
atoek of the Corporstion, He alse provides
the stockholders and the Board such
reports, memoranda, avcounts and dats -
which may be required of him. He also
signe off on lhe paricdic fiings and reports
of the Corparation (e.g., Arnual Repan,
information Stetement, Firancial
Statements, ets.) submitied to regulatory

agencies and the PSE,

Expigin how the beard of directers plan for the succesmﬁ of the CEQ/Managing Dirsctor/Prasident and the fop

key management positions?

The CEO/Prasident and other key offfeera of the Corporafion under Its By-Laws, ars elected every year In fhe
organizational meeting of the Board. Except for the SECQ/President of the Corporation {who is not covered by.an
amploymant contract with fhe Corporation), the Rey officers of the Corporation are alsa on twe-year empleyment
contracis that may be renewad for ancther wo years upen mutual of the parties.
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Furthermore, under Arllcle VI, Sectivh £ of the Corporation’s By-Laws, the Chairnan, Fresident, Vice-Fresideni(s), the
Goneral Manager, the Secretary, and Treasurer “shall hold office until his successcr is elected and gualified In his
stead, or unti he shali have resigned or shall have been ramaved in the manner as provided in the By-Laws,

Qiher Exacutive, Non-Executive and Independant Directors

Duss the company have a pollcy of enauring diveralty of experience and background of directore in the board?
Pleasg explain.

Accaording to Section 2.2.1.3 of fhe GG Manua!. Itis & poiicy of the Corporation that the Boar& has a duty to implement &
urocess for ihe selection of Directors whao can add valus and contribute indspendent judgment for the formulation of
sound corporate strategies and policles,

Furthermore, 2 out of the 7 directers, or approximately 28.6%, are required to be independent directors as defined by
tha CG Manual, '

Does it ensure at [east one non-executive diractor has an experiense In the sector or industry the company
balongs to? Pleass explaln. : '

Yes, Accorging ks the CG Manual, Ses. 2.2.1.5, In addition to the qualifications required by law for all direciors, the
Corporation also requires that the non-sxecutive director be a member in gocd standing v @ ralavant industry,
business, or professlonal organizations, More particuladly, Sectlon 2.2.1.1. of the CG Manua! mandates that the non-
executive director should possess such qualifications and staturs that wolild snable them to effectively participate in the
delfiberstiens of the Boayd.

The CG Manual also provides that a direcior should aveta suticient tme io familiatize himself with the Corporalion's
susiness. He should be constanfly aware of and knowledgaeabie with the Corporation’s operations to enable him to
meaningfully contributs; to the Board's work, He should attand and actively pariicipaie in Boerd and commiftes
mestings, review maeling materlals and, if called for, ask questions or seek explanation. A director should have a
warking knowledge of Hhe statutary and cegulatory requirements that affect the Corporation, inchuding ite arficles of
incorporation and by-laws, the rules and regulations of the SEC and, where applicabls, the raquiremants of relavant
regufatory agencies. A director should also keep abreast with industry davelopments and business trends in order to
promote the Corporation's compatitiveness.,

Deflne and clatlfy the rales, accountabilities and dellverablas of the Bxecutive , Non-Executive and
Indepentdant Directors: .

The Corporation's carperate governance documents do ot axpresaly provida for the roles, accountablities, and
daliverables of the executive, non axecuiive, and Independent directors. However, the By-Laws and CG Manual of the
Corporaiion provids for the powers, duties, and responstbifitles of the Board and of each director of the Carparation.

) ) Exacutive Non-Executive ‘I Independant Direstor
Rolas . Articla IV, Saction 1 of Atticle v, Section 4 of tha | Aricle IV, Section { of the By-
the By-Laws ofthe - | By-Laws of the Gorporation | Laws of the Corporation
Corporation provides provides that uniess X provides that unless otherwise
that unless otherwise - | olhanwise provided by law, * | provided by law, the powers,
providad by law, the the powars, business ang | business and property of the
powers, business'and | properiy of the Corporation Corperation shall be
properly of the shall be exerclsed, esxesglaed, conducted and
Corporatich shaii be conducted end controlled sontrolled by the Board.
exercised, conducted by the Board.
and cantroiied by the
Board.
Azeountabilities Under Sac. 2.2.1 of tha | Under Sec, 2.2.1 of tha €@ | Under Sec. 2.2.1 of the CG
’ €@ Manual, the Board Manuai, the Board Js Manugl, the Board Is primarily
|8 primarily raspansibia | primanily responsible for the | responsibla for the
for the yovernante ¢f | govemnance of the governants of the
the Corporation, - | Corperation. Corciiary 1o Corporation. Caroliary to




Corollary to setting the
policles for the ‘
accomplishment of the
corparate objectives, #
shall pravide an
Independent check on
Kanagemant.

Under Sec. 2.21.2 of
the CG Manua!, it shall
be the Board’s
responsibiiity to foster
tha iong-term success
ol the Corporation and
$ecure its sustained

| competitivenass ina

manhat canslstent with
ts fiductary
responsibiity, witleh i
shall exercisa In the
best Interest of the
Corporation and lts
sharehaiders. The:
Board shall conduct
itself with utmost
honasty and intagrity in
the discharge of its
dutles, functions and
responsihiiities, The
Board shail formulate
the Corparation's visien,
mission, strategic
objectivas, policies and
procedures that shalf
gulde ts setivities,
Including the means to
sffectivaly monitor
Management's
performance,

Sec. 2,214 ofthe CG
Manuel provides that a
director's offica is one of
frust and confidenca. A
director shouid act in
the best interest of the
Corporation in a mannar
characterized by,
transparency,
acequntabliily and
fairngss. He should alse
exarcise leadership,
prudence and intagrity
in directing the
Corparatian towards
systained progress,

1 setling the policies for the

accamplishment of the
ceorporate objectivas, it
shalt provide an
indepandant check on
Management,

Under Sec. 2.2.1.2 of the
CG Manual, It shall he the
Board's responsibiiity to
toster tha long-term
succass of the Corgoretlon
and secure 15 sustainad
competitiverass In &
manner consistent with its
fiduclary responsibilfty,
which it shall exercise in
the best interest of the
Corporation and jis
shareholders. The Spard
shall condust itself with

utmost honesty and v

imtegrity in the discharge of
its duties, funciicns and
responsibilities, The Board
shall formulate tha
Corporation’s vision,
misslon, sirategic
abjectives, pedicies and
procedures thai shall gulde
its activitiss, including the
means o effectively
montiar Managament's
pedfomance.

Ser, 2.2.1.4 of the CQ
Manuat provides that a
diractor's offica is one of
trust and confidence. A
director should astin the
kest intarast of the
Carpoeation In & mannar
characterized by
fransparency,
accountabillty and fairnass,
He should also exernise
leadership, prudance and
Integrity in directing the
Corporation fowards
sustained pragress.

setting the policies for ke
gecomplishment of tha
corporate sbjsetives, it shall
provide ai independent chack
an Managemant.

Under Sec. 2.2.4.2 of tha CG
Manual, 1t shall be the Board's
rasponsibillty te fosler the
long-term success of tha
Corperation and sscure its
sustained compelitiveness ina
manner consiatant with its
fiduciary rasponsibifity, whizh
it shall exercise In the best
intarest of the Corporation and
its shareholdars, The Boarg
shall conduct itsef with utmeast
honesty and integrity In the
discharge of its duties,
functions and ragpensibitiss.
The Board shall fermulate the
Cerperation’s vision, misslon,
strategic objectives, policles
and procadures that shall
guida its actlvities, including
{he means to effectively
menitor Management's
parformance,

Sec. 2.2.1.4 of the CG Manual
provides that a director's offfce
is ona of truat and confidenpe.
A director should act inthe |
buest interest of tha ’
Corparation in a manner
characterlzed by
transparency, accountability
and fairness, Me should also
axercise leadership, prudencs
and integrity in directing the
Corporetion towards sustained
progress.

Deliverables

Under See, 2.2.1.7 of
{he CG Manual, the
members of ths Board
should attend its ragular
and special meelings in

Under Seo, 2.2.1.7 ofthe -

€5 Manual, the mambers
of the Board should attend
He regular and specisl
meetings in person or

‘Undar See, 2.2.1.7 of the CQ

Mahual, the mambers of the
Brrard should attend iy reguiar
and spacial mestings In
parson or rough




person or through
teleconferencing
candusted In
accordance with the

the SEC.

Sec. 2.5 of the CG
Manusl raquires the
Board o provide
sipckholders with a
belanced ard
comprehenslbla
assessment of the
Corporation's
perfermance, position
and prospacis an a
guarery basis,
including interdm and
cther reports that could
adversely affect its
business, as well a8
reporis io regulaters

rules and regulations of

ihat are required by iaw.

thraugh tetecanferancing

conducted Ih accordency
with the rules and :
regulations of tha SEC,

Sec. 2.5 of the CG Manual
raquires the Board to
pravide stockholders with a
balanced and
comprehensible
assessment of the
Corporation's perfformancs,
position and prospesis ona
quartery basis, including
intesim’ and other raports
that could adversely affeqt
Its business, as well a4
reports o ragulators thal
are requlred by law.

tafecontarencing conducted In
ascardance with the rujes and
regulations of the SEC.,

Sec. 2.5 of the 86 Manual
requires the Beard to provide
stockholders with a balanced
and comprehensible
assessment of the
Corparation's parformancs,
position and prospects on a
quartery basis, including
interim and other reports that
could adversely affect its
business, as well as reports to
reguiators that are required by
law.

Independent directors shouid
always atterd Beard
meetings, The Board may
ratuie the presence of at
igest ong indspendent diracta:
in alt Beard mertings,
However, the absence of 3n
independent directer will not
alfect the quorum
requirement,

Providae the compnny'a: dofinitlon of “Indepandence” and describe the company compliance to the definiflon,

; .
Ths Corparation's Guidelings for Selection of Candidates for Independent Directer ("Guidslines”) provides the following

dallnition:

Definition of Indepandé
corpotation, its parant of

nt Direelor - An independsnt director is & pargen othar than an officer or employee of the
r subsidlaries, or any othar individual having & financial or other interest In the business of the

Corporation, its parent or subsidiariss, er any other individual having a refaticnship with the corporation which would
interfere with the sxercise of Indapendeni judgment In carrying out the responsivilities of a director, 1t refers to a persen
who, epart from his feés and shareholdings, is independent of management and free from any business or cther

relafionship that could,
judgment in carrying out

(i) Is hot & directey

of could reascnably be percsived o, malerlally interfers with his exercise of independent
nis rasponsibilitizs as & director of the corporation. it inchides, among others, any persch who:

or officar or substantial stéckhoider of tha Corporation or of iis related cormpanles.or any of its

substantial shareholders {other than as an Independenl giractor of any of the foregoing);

s net a relative of any dirsstor, officer, or substantial shareholder of the Corperation, any of its related
companles, or any of its svbstan!lal shareholders, for this purpose, ralatives Includes spouse, parent, shilg,
brother, sister, and the spouss of such child, brother or sister.

is nol agting as a nominea or reprasentative of a substantial shareholder of the Cerporation, any of its ralated
companies or by any of its substantial shareholders within the last flve years,

Has not been employed In any exacutive capacity b the Corporation, any of ifs related companias of by any of
s substantial shareheidere within the Iast flve yedrs.

Is not retained ae professional adviser by the Corporation, any of itg relaiad ccrnpames or any of its substantial
sharahoidars within the last fiva years, elther personally or thraugh his firm;

Has not engaged and does not angage In any transaction with the Carparafion or with any of jts related
companies or with any of its substantlal sharsholders, whether py himself or with any other persons or through
a firm of which he is a pariner or a company of which he is & director or substanfial shareholder other than
transactions which are conducted at arms length and &re immaterial or insignificant.

{in

{iiy
(iv)
W)
(viy

In complianza with this dafinition, eniv the candidates whose nominations are confirmed by the Nomination Commities
to be in accordance with such rujes, guideiines and criteria to govern the conduet of the nomination shall be sligible to
ba elected as indapendant directors.
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As such, bath Atly. Gentugaye and Ally. Imperle, the Incumbent independent daraclors, have no ralation whatsoever to I
thelr nominaters, TPEL and Zatric Pte Lid, respectively, . i

Dooe the company have a term limit of five consscutive years for indepandent diractors? if after two yeers, the
company wighes to bring back an Independent director who had served for five years, does it limit the term for
no morg than four additlonal years? Please explaln.

The Corporation complies with SEC Memorandum No. 8, Series of 2011 ("$£C MC §-11, providing for term fimhs of
independent directors to he reckonad from the terms commenging after 2 January 2013, Thus, the COIpDI’S!lOnS
independent directors ean serve as such for five consecutive years. Afier the completion of the five-year service period,
an Indepandent diractor shall be ineligible for electon as such, uniess the independent director has undergens a
‘cooling off’ period of two years, Afler the "cocling off" perivd,” the independent director can serve for another five
canseoylive years. Afer setving a8 Indagandent direstor for 10 yoars, the independeant director shall be porpstually
barred from being elested &a such In the sems company, Al the previous ferms served be existing indepandent
diracters shall nol be included in the application of the term limits. Thus, the independent directors of the Corporation
shall ba efigible for reeiaction a8 independant directors for the next five consecutive years from 15 May 2012, subject o
tha "cocling off" perled provided In 8EC MC 9-11.

4) Changes In the Board of Directors (Executive, Non-Exesutive and Independent Directors)

{n) Reglgnation/Death/Remaval
Indicate any changs In the composition of the Board of Dirsctors that happened durlng the perfod: -

Name - Positlon Date of Cassation Reason

NA,

(h) Selsction/Appolntment, Re-election, Disqueflfication, Removal, Relnstatemant and Suspenslon
' Dascribe the procedures for the selectionfappoiniment, re-election, disqualification, removal
Instatement and suspension of the memhbers of the Board of Directors. Provids details of the
processas adopted {including the frequency of election} and the qriteria employed In each procedure:

Procedurs Procass Adoptad _ Gritarla

a, Selection! Appolntmeant

() Executive Directors The By-Laws provide that all directors

..\ shall be elected annually and shall hold |l Me shall have al least ons shate of
(iion-Exseutive DIrecter . [ otrice yntil the annual mesting held next stock of the Corporation;
to hig elaction and unti his successor|ll.  He shafl be aif least a coliege graduate
shell heve been eiected and shall have| -~ or he shell have been sngaged or
quadified, or untl his death or until he exposed 1o the business of the
shall resign or shalt have been removed corperation for atlesst five years;
«  Annual meeting: held on the 15tk of |1 He shall passess integrity/probily;
May every year v, He shall be atisast 21 years old;

v. He shall be asalduous;

vi. He must have a college sducation or
aquivaient academlic dagrae;

vii. He must have a practical understanding

of the business of the Corporation;

« if the election i3 not held on the
anaual meeting, then it shall be
held &t m special mesting as soon
as theraafter as the same may be

i +
convenienty held vilil. He must be 8 member In good standing
’ Notice: at loast 15 days before the in relevant indusiry, business or
masting profassional

¢ Quorum: the hclders of at least the [ ix, erganizations: and
majority of the culstanding capitalix, He must possess previous business
stock entitled to vote should be experience,
prasant parsonally or by proxy

«  Nominetion: Stockholders
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nominaiing candidates for election
shall show proof . that  such
candlidates hava all the
quelificafions and none of ihe
disquaifficaticns

v Deliberativna of the Nomination
Comrittae; Al least a mslorily ¢f
the members of the Committes
shall atiend and they shall
daotermine f one is qualified, Only

those qualified based on their|-

determination may be elected.
s Voting: sunulative voting

{iiiy independent Direclors

Under the Corporation’s By-Laws. the
Corporation shall elect such number of
independant diractor/(s) as the relsvant
lawe or raguiations may require,

At lsast threa {3) months hefore the
annual stockholders' meeting in which
an independent director/{s) shall b

etectad, or at such fime as the relevant
law or regulation may frem time o iime

prescribe, the Incumbent Board shalt
meet -to appaint a  Nor:ination
Cemmittaa,

The Nomination Committes shall consist
of ‘at least threa (3} members, one of

whom  shall be &n incumbent
indegandent diractor,
The Nomisalion Committee  shall

prepare the list of candidates for
indepandent director/{s} based upon
qualfied candidates nominated by the
stockholdars, The Nomination
Gommities, eubject to the approval by
the Board, shall promulgata the reles,
guidelines and criteria fo govern the
cenduct of the nomination. Only the
candidates whose, nominations  are
confirmed by the Nomination Camm/itee
to be in accordance with such rules,
guidelines and criteria to govern the

teanduct of the nemination. No other

nemination shall be anterained sfter the
lIst of candidatas has been finalized and
submitted to the Chalman No further
nomination shall be entertalined or
aliowed on the floor during the
stockholders’ meating,

The Chalman of the Board, or in his or
her absence, lhe designated chairman
of ihie stockholders' mesting, shall
informn the stackholders attending the
stockholders’ mesting of tha mandatory
requirement of electing Independent
diractor/{u}. In cass of failure io slect an
independenl director, the Chalrman
shal cell & separate election during the

s

vi.
vil,

vlii,

X.

He shail have et least one shaere of
stock of the Curporation;

He shall be at least a college graduate
or he shall have been engaged or
exposed {o the

businass of ihe corparation for at least
five years;

He shall possess Integrity/probily;

He shait be at jeast 21 years old;

He shall be assidusus;

Ha riust havae a collége sducation or
eguivaient academic degree;

& musl have a practical ynderstanding
of the business of the Corperation;

He must ba a member In good standing
in relevant industry, business or
professlonal

organizagons, and

He must possess prévious business
axperiance. .
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sams meating to fill the vacanty.

b. Re-appointment

(i) Bxecutive Directors

The By-Laws provide that af directors
shall be slacted annually and shall hold
office urtll the annual meeting hald next
o his election- and until his successor
shall have been elactad and shall have

gualified, or uatil his death or unfil he i

shalf resign or shalt have.been removed

o Annual masting: held on the 15th of
fMay avery year

e If the election is not held on the

arnual mesting, then It shali be
held at & speclat mesting as soon

ag thersefiar -as the same may be ||

caonvantantly hafd

« Nofice: at laast 15 days before the
masting '

s Quorum: the hofders of at least the
majority of the outstanding capltat
stock entitisd to vele should be
prasent personslly of by proxy

»  Veling: cumulative voting apgliss

V.

vi,
v,

wiif.

X

Ha shall have at isast ona share of
atock of the Corporation;

He shall ba st lsast a college gratuaie
or he shall have been ahgaged or
expased o the

pusiness of the corporation for el feast
five years;

He shall passess integrity/probity;

He shail bo at laast 24 years ald;

He shall be assiduous;

He must have & college educativh ar
squlvalent academic degres;

He muat have & practical understanding
of tha businass of the Corporatien;

He must ba a member in good sianding
in relevent industry, - buslpess or
professtonal )
organizations; and
He musl poseess previaus buslness
experlence,

(h)Non-Executive Directors

The By-Laws provide that all directors
shall be elected annuelly and shall hold
office until the annual maating heid next
1o his election and unti ‘hls successor
shall have bean siected and shall have
qualified, or until his death or untf he
shall resign or shall have baan ramoved

s Annuval meeting: held on the 15th of
iMay every year

s If the election is not held on the
annual meeting, then it shall be
held at a special mesting as soon
a3 thersafter
convenlently haid

» Notice: at lzast 15 days before the
meeting .

»  Quorum: the hotdars of at least the
majority of the outstanding capltal
stock entitied to vole should be
presant personally or by proxy

+  Yoting: cumulative voting applies

as the same may be |,

V.

i,

il

He ahalF heve at least ona share of
stock of the Corporation;

He shall be at laast a college grlduata
or he shall have been engaged of
exposed to the

business of the corporation for at least
five years!

Ha sha! possess Integrity/probity;

Ha shall ba at least 21 years oid;

He shall be asslducus;

Mé must have a callege educatlon or
squivalant acadsmic degree;’

He must have a practizal understanding
of the buginess of the Sorperation;

He must be a member in good standing
in relevant industry, businéss or
professional :
organizations; and
He must pessess previous business
experisncé,

(Ih Independant Directors

The By-Lsws provide that sll directors
shall be elected annually and shall hold

office untlt the annual mesting held next: |

to his elaction gnd unti his successor
shall have baen elected and shall have

He shali have at lsast one share of
stock of the Ceorporation;

He shall be at least a college graduate
or he shall have been angaged of
axposed fo the
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qualified, or until his doath or unt! he
shall resign or shall have been ramoved

e« Amual meeting: held on the 15th of
May avery year

« [t the election Is not held on the
annuat meating, then it ahall ba
hald at a special mesting as soon
ae fliaraafiar 248 tha same may ba
convanliently heid :

« Notice: at least 18 days before the
maeting ’ ’

»  CQuorum: the halders of at lzast the
majurity of the outstanding capltal
sfock entitled to vote should be
presant personeally or by proxy

»« Voling: cumulative voling apgpiies

In compilance with MC 811, the
Corporation's Independant directors are
covered by a term Iimit of fivs
consecutlve  years, subject to the
"eooling-off" pericd of two yoars as
providad in MC 9-11,

fli. iwsiness of the corporation for at least
five years;

Iv. He shall prssess Integrity/probily;

v. Heshall be atisast 21 years old,;

vi. He shall be assiducus;

vii. He must have & college education or
equivalent academic degras;

vill, He mus! have a practical undarstanding
of the bualness of the Corporation;

x, He must be a mamber it pood standing
in relevant industry, business or
profagaional

X. organizations; and

xi. Ha must possass previous businass
aexperience.

g. Permanent Disqualification

() Executlve Directors
(iilNen-Executive Direclors
(iiiy independent Directors

Imay be removed, elther with or without

The Hy.Laws provide thai any directer

cause, st any time, by the affirnativa
vote of 2/3 of the oulntanding capital
stock enttied fo vole at & regular
mesting or at a special meeting called
for the. purpese and held afier due
notice. The wvacancy in the Board
caused by any sush removal may ba
filed by the siovkheiders at such
meeting without further notice, or ot any
regular or special meeting called for tha
purpese after due notice,

Furthermore, the GG Manual provides the
following addafllonal disqualifieations:

Any person whe has  been  finslly
convicied by a competent judicial or
administrative body of the following: {i}
any ctime involving purchase of
securities, (i) any crime ariging oul of
the person's conduct ae an undérwriter,
breker, dealer, invesimsnt company,
invesiment adviser, principal distributor,
mutual fund dealer, futures commission
marchant, commodity trading advisor,
fioor broker; and (iii) any orime adsing
out of his relationship with a bank,
quasi-bank. rust company, investment
house or ae an affliated parson of any
af them. '

{.  Any parsen who, by reason of any
misgondust, after hearing or frigl, is
permgnenily of tempararly enjoined by
wrter, judgment or decrea of the SEC or
any caurt or other agministrative body of
cempetent jurisdiction from: {iy acting
&8 an underwriter, broker, dealer,
Investment  company, investment
adviger, princlpal distributer, muidal

. fund | desler, futures  commisgion
merchant, commodity irading adviser,
floor broker: (i} acting as a director or
officar of & bank, quasi-bank, trust
company, invesiment house, invastrment
company or en affiliated person of any
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L,

vi.

vil,

vill

of them; (i} engaging in ar continuing
any conduct or practice in connection
with any such activity or willfully
vivlating laws governing securitiss, and
banking aciivities. Such disqualification
shall also apply when such person is
aurrently subject to an effective order of
the SBSEG or sny courl er other
administrative body rafusing, revoking,
or suspending any ragisiration, license,
or permit lssued under the Corporation
Code, Securifies Regulation Codae, or
any other law administered by the SEC
of the BSP, or under sny rule -or
regulation promulgated by .the SEC of
BSP, or otherwise resfrained to angspe
In any activity invalving securitles and
banking, Such person s @lap
disqualified when he ig currently subject
t& #h affactive ordsr of a selfregulatory
organization suspending or expelling
him from mamberahip or participation or
from  ssseciating wih & member or
participant of the organization.

Any parsen finally convieted judiclally or
administratively of an effense Invalving
maral turpitude, fraud, embezzlament,
theft, sstafa, counterfaiting,
misappropriation, forgery, bribery, false
oath, perdury or ether fraudulent act or
lransgressions :

Any person finally found by the SEC or
& court or pther adminisirative body to
have willfutty violated, or wilifully aided.
abetted, counseled, Induced. or
procured the violation of | any provision
of the Securitiss Reguiation code, the
Corparation Code, or any other law
administsred by the SEC or BEP, orany
rule, reguisilon or order of the BEC or
BSP, or whe has filed a materially false
or misleading application, report or
registration sielement required by the
SEC, or any rule, regulstion or ordar of
the SEC.

Any perscp judicially declared to he
Ingalvant,

Any- person finaliy found guilty by &
forelgn court or equivalant finangial
raguwiatory authorlty of gols, violatlons or
misconduet simiar to any of the acts,
viclations or misconduct listad above

Any affilisted persan whe ia inelighle,
hy reason of paragraphs () lo (v} above
te serve or act In the capacities listed in
thase paragraphs

Any person sonvicted by final judgment
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of an offerize  pupishabie by
imprisonment for a pericd exceeding 8
years, of a vinlation of the Cerpuration
Cade, committed within § ysars prior to
fo date of his slection or appointment

d. Temporary Disqualification

{1} Executlve Diractors

(iiNon-Execulive Ciractors

A temporasily disgualified dirsclor shall,
within 80 businass days from such
disquailficstion, take the appraprizie
action to remedy or comesct the
disqualification. If he fails or refuses fo

da so for unjustified reasons, the
disgualification shall bacome
permmanant,

Under the CG Manual, any of the following
shall bs & ground for temporary
disgquanlifieation of & director:

Refusal to comply wilth the disclosure
requitements  of  the  Securities
Regutation Code and its Implementing
Rules and Reguiations. The
disqualification shall be in sfact as long
_as the refusal persists.

. Absencs in more than fifty (50) parcent
of all regutar end aspecial maelings of
the Beard during his incumbency, or
any twelve {12) menth period diring the
szld Incumbsncy, uniess the absernce ia
due to illness, death in the Immediate
famlly  or  serlous accldent. The
disiualification shall apgly for purposes
of the succeeding election.

fi. Dismissa! of termination for cause ag
director of any corporation coversd by
the Gede. The disqualification shall be
in effact untll he has cleared himself
from any involvemnant.in the catse that
gave rise to his dismissal or termlnation,

Iv. 1fany of the judgments or orders cltad in
the grounds for permansent
disqualification has. not yet become
fingl,

{iil) intependent Dirattors

A temporarily disqualified director shall,
within 8C business days from such
disguaiitication, take the appropriate
action o remedy or correct the
disquelification, If he fails or refuses to
do 8o for unjustified reacons, the
disqualifization shal! hecome
porrmanent,

in compliance with MC 8-11, tha
Corporation’s Indepandent dlrectors are
covered by a lerm limit of five
censeculive years, subject io  the
"eaoling-off" perlad of two ysars as
pravided in MG 811, .

According to the CG Manual, In additicn to
the above-mentioned disqualifications, an
independent _ director shall alko e
disgualltied if his benseficial equily ownership
in the Corporation ar its subsidiaries and
affiliaies exceeds 2% of is subscilbed
vapitel siock, lhe disqualification shail be
lifted er later complied with,

8. Reamoval

{iy Exacutive Directors

i

i

3

i
{iNNwr-Executive Directols

The By-Laws provide that any directoer
may ba removed, sither with or without
ocause, at any fime, by the affirnative

Mey be with or without cause. An example
of & removal for cause s pravided for by
Section & the CG Manual, whish mandates
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(i) independent Directors

vote of 2/3 of tha oulstanding caplial
stock snitled to voie at a regular
meeting or et » special meellng

callad for the purpose and held after due
rotica. Tha vecancy in the Board
caused by any such rémoval ‘may bs
filled by the steckholdars at such
meeting without further notice, or-at any
regular or special meeting caliad for the
purpose after due notice. -

The Compllancs Officar  decides
whgther or not any violation of the CG
Manuaf has been committed, and shslt
racommend  to  the Chairman  the
Imposable penalty for such violation, for
further review and approval by the
Board. This 13 subject %o the
requirements of due pracess, notise and
hearing.

rameyal of the director for a third vioiation.of
the CE Manual,

f, Ro-Instatement

{iy Exscutiva Dlrsctars

{H)Non-Executive Diractors

{illy indepandent Directors

The Sy-Laws provide that any vacancy
caused by disqualfication may be fllled
by the majosity vote of the remaining
direciors then In office, conslituting &
gquorum, and each direclor so elected
shall hold office for &

tarn to expire at tha naxt ennual
alaction of  directors, and umtl hls
successors shall be duly elected and
qualified, or untll his death, until he shall
resign or shall have beer removed in
the manner hareln provided,

Under 8ec. 2.2.1.5 of thet CG Manual, a
temporerly disqualified director shall, within
sixty (60} busiess days from such
disqualification, fake the appropriate action
't remedy or correct the disqualification, If
he fails or refuses %o do 8o for unjustifled
reasons, the disqualificaflon shall bacoms
permanent.

g. Suspension

(f Exseutive Diractors

(ﬁ)Non-ExecutE\}e Diractors

{iil} Independant Directors

According to the GG Manual, the
Compliance Officer decides whethar or
net any viglatior of the CG Manual has
bean committed, ard shall recommend
fo the Chairman the imposable penalty
far sueh violation, for further review and
approvs! by the Board. This is subjsct to
the requirements of due process, notice
and hearing,

A directar shall be suspended from office for
a second viclation of the provistong of the
C& Manuat :

Voting Result of the last Annual General Meeting

Name of Diractor

Votas Recelved

Weng Hong Ren

Bryar Cockrell

stackholders” mesting,

Eddle Lau

whereby a motion to

Eddie Yeo

To faclitate the condust ¢of the proceedings of the ahnual

the stockholdsrs adopted a system of voting
elact the diregtors wae presented and the

meeting was advised that If there is no objection fo a nomination or
matien to apprave a proposed resclution regarding the nomination,
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Michale Dee;-Santos | It will be understacd that the stockholders present ar represented in
: today’s meeting vote in favor of the nomination. Based on this

Angetlle imparl (indgpendent Director) ayatem of voting, the five regular girectors and the two independent
dirsctors, being the only nominaes to the Board, ware unanimously

Mia Gentugaya ; iracts
i g8y (Inr}e!:endem Dlrctor) “electad in the last annual stockholders” maeting.
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{indesendent Direclor), Eddie Yeo (Ganeral Mansger of the Hetel Director, Management Committee msmbcr AsslslanL

§) Orlentation And Edugation Program
#) Disclose defally of the company's orlentation program for new dfrectors, If any.

A diractor, before assuming his roie as such, ls raquired 10 attend a seminar on corporete governance canducted by & duly
recognized private or governmant instituts, Furdhermare, Section 4 of the CG Manual allows the Board to sllecate funds for
the purpose of conducting an crlentation program or workshop with regérd te the requirements of the CG Manual,

b) State any In-house training and external courses aftended by Directors and Senlor Management for the past
thrae (3) years:

{ Dieleteds 23 November 2010°
{ Deletad: and Knowledgs Insfliuta

Complianca Officer), Eddle Ley {Dirscler), Mr. Yam Kit Sung (Genera; Manager CFO, Compliance Offn:er and Chief { Deleted: Y and Wr,
Audit Exsoutivey, and Alain res Welosa (Assistant Gomorale Secretar { Datated: |

Qn 21 Octoner 2014, Ms, Maris Christing J, Macasat-Acaban, the Corporele Secretary of the Corperation, eltended the:
Seguities and Exchange Somraission-Philippine Slock Exchange Corporate Governance Forum at the Rize! Ballroom of
fhe Maketi Shangr-La Hotal, .

¢} Continuing education progrems for directors: pregrama and seminars and ?uund!ah!es attended during the

year..
Name of Dirgctor Officer Date of Training Program Name of Training
. ' Inatitution .
Wong Hong Ren [dsMay201a | Coporate Govemance | SyCip Gorres Velays & Co., || Deleted: 23 Novembar 2019
Seminer , ~{ Deteted: ard Knowledge instiluls
Bryan Cockrali JEMay2014 | Corporate Governance 1 SyCip Gojres Velayo & Co, ‘
Eaminar ~{ Deleted: 24 July 2006
Eddia Yec A8Mayzotd L ‘gorporate Governance | 3yClp Gorres Velaye & Co, . [ Deleged. 2008
eminar
- ’ = 5 Deletad: Corporate Governance Institule of It
Angelito G. lmparle SEMay 2014 Qg{gf‘rﬂts Goverence |.SyCle Qorres velayo & Qo Philipgines / Flnanclal Execulives Institute of 1
B aseinora . Philipainas / Management Associstion of the
Mia G, Bentugaya 2.3 March 2008 Orientation Course on institute of Corporate Philippines
: : . Corporate Governance Direclors -
Mizhela D. Santes 2March 2014 . ...1Goporate G 2GR Gores Velayo £ Co. | 1% { Daletad: Viorkshop
Fraining, ' [ Deleted: 2.3 March 2008
{ Deleted: Qriantation Course on

{Da]etled: instilute of Corpora te Directors
[ Deleted: 2.3 Mareh 2009
{ﬁe!eted: Qriantatior. Coursa on

B. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUGT & ETHICS

1. Discuss briefly the company’s policies on the following business conduct ¢r sthics affecting directors, senlor
management and smployess:

{ Deletad: fnslitule of Corporate Direclers

Busihess Diractors Sanior Management Employasas | Deteted: 6 Decambor 2005
Cenduct & . Deleted: Instliute of Corparate Directors }
Ethics : "t Insurance Institute for Asia and the Pacifl
{a) Conflict of He should avoid s:tuations thatmay | The Corporafion adheres fo | Engaging in competitive ey
Interast compromise hls impertiality; the policies of the Group business operation Is ' [ Daletorh: Orlontalion Course
requires fuli disclosure for any actual | (Millennjium & Copthorie considared & grave offenge,
or potential conflict of interest, as Hotels plc} which cufline the :
wel) as Inhibitien frum partizioating standards of behavior
in daclslon-making. i there iz & raquired of all amployees
centinuing meteris confiict of when acting on the Group's
interast, he shauld seriously behaif which include acting
cenalder raslgnation, prafesslonaily, with honesty,
Integrity, ohjectivity and In
compliance with ali
applicable legal ard
regulatory requirements.
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(b6Y Conduct of
. Business-and
Fair Deafings

The basic principle is that a director
should not use his positien to profit
or gaih some benefit or advantaga
for himaeif and/ or his related
Intarests.

|

|
|
|

The Board of Directors has
impiamantad an anti-bribary
polloy which pronibits the
offering, the

giving, the solicitation or the
aceeptance of any bribe,
whaeiher cash or cther
Inducemant.

it Is the Company's and
the Group's policy to agree
tha terms of payment with
suppliars at the
commencement of the
trading or contraciual
relatlanship and to operate
within such tarms

subiact to satisfastory
completion of the suppliers’
ohbligations. 1t does not
follow any particular
puldalines astablished by
third parties,

Engaging in enmpetitive
busineas cperations wit The'
Heritage Hotat ("Hotsl™)
prernises s a grave offanss.

Unautherized foraign currency
dealings is considered a grave

| offanse

Marchandising or engaging in
why king of parscnal business

| or activity during working fours
| or while inside the Hotel

premisas gndfor anywhers
within its vicinlty is considered
a minor offenss,

{c) Recelpt of
gifte from third
parties

A director shoutd not uss hls

positien to preflf or gain some
hanefit or advantage for himself
andsor his relatad intarasts. He
should aveid situations thal may
compromise ns impartiatity, If an
actual or potential conflict of interesi
may arfse on the pan of a direclor,
ha should fully and immesdiately
disciose it and should not pattisipats
in the dacision-making process. A
director who has a sontinuing
material conflict of Interast shouid

seriously consider resigning from his |’

posiiion,

Tria Board of Directors has
Impiemented an anti-hricery
policy which prohibits the
offering, the giving, the
solicitation or the
accepiance of any bribe,
whether cash or other
inducement.

Borrowing of receiving money
cemmigsions, promisas of
seliciting material favors or any

| other consideration from

suppliors, customers of other

| persons with which the

company has an existing
husiness relationship for the
purpose of parsenal gain or
benaflt is a grave offense,

Soliziting and collectian any
form of contributions or
denations for any purpese nol
authorized by the Managsmant
is & minor offangs,

{d} Compliance
with Laws &
Ragulations

A director Is required o have &
working knowledge of tha siatutery
ghd regulatery requirements that
sffect the Corporation, including its
articles of incorporation and by-laws,
thas rules and regulations of the SEC
and, whera applicable, the
requirsments of relavant regulatory |
agenscies.

The Corporalion adhares 1o
the policlas of the Group
which outline the standards
of behavior required of all
amployess whan acting on
the Group's Sehalf whish

"include aging
‘vrofessionally, with honasty,

intagrity, objectivity and In

‘| campliange with ail
{ applicable legal and
reguiatory requirements,

‘| Ttia Board of Directors has

implemenied an ant-bribery
palicy which prohibits the
effering, the

giving, the solicitation or tha
scceptance of any bribe,
whethar cash or ¢lher
inducamant.

Engaging ot conniving In any
anomalous trensactions not
covered Ip any other rule of the
Hotel Code of Conduct ("Code

| of Genduct’} is a grave cffense.

Inducing, encouraging, of
aheiting any employee to
engage In prohibited acts
orfany practice in victation of
company policies ls & major
offense.

Lriminal convigtion in any court
of law or commission of & crime
during working hours but within
the Hotal's premisas Is & grave
offense,

2%




(e) Respeot for
Trade

Secrets/Use |

of Noa-publie
Information

A dirsctor is required te keep securs

and confidential all non-public

Informatlon that e may acqulrs or
laarn by reason of this position as
diractor, He should not revel
sonfidential Informetion 1o
unavthorizad persons without
authorlty of the Board.

The Corperation adhares o
the poficies of the Group
which culline the slandards
of bahavier required of all
employeas when acting on
tha Group's behalf which
include acting

professlonally, with henesty,

intagrity, objactivity.and in
compliancs with all
applicable fegal and
regulatory requiramaents. |

Leaking ona's salary
Infarmation or thet of snothar is
2 majer ofense, '

Lesking out MHate! Trade
Secrets or confidential
information to vnautherized
parsons is & grave offerse

{fy Useof
coempany
Funds, Assets
and
Information

Excapt for ressorable per diems,
dirsctars are entilied only to the

compansation as may be granted by

them by the vele of majorlly of the
stockholders represanting atleast a
majority of the outstanding capital
stock.

The Corgoration adharss to
the pollcies of the Group
which outling the standards
of behavior required of afl
employees when acting on
the Group's behall which
include acting
profassionally, with honsesty,
integrily, objectivity and in
compliance with alt
applicable legal and
repuiatory requirements.

A number of provisions In tha
Code of Conduct consider
unauthorized use of eempany
asgats for one's banefit as a
major affense. Moreover,
unauthorized access ta
computer files by braaking
passwords is a grave offense,
Malversatizn of company funds
also a grave ofense,

(g} Employmant

& Labor Laws
& Policles

A director Is required fo have &
working knowledge of the statutory
and regulatory reguiremeants that
affect the Corporation, including its
articles of incorparation and by-laws,
the rules and regulations of the SEC
and, whars applicable, the
raquirerents of relavant reguiatary
agencles. :

The Corporetion adheres o
fhre poficies of the Group
which ouliine the standards
of behavier required of all
employaes when acting on
the Group's behalf which
include acting
profeasicnally, with honasty,
Integrity, objectivity end In
complianse with a1
appllcable legal and
regulatory requiremants.

Inciting, inztigating, proveking
or participating In any riots,
disorders, or any conzerted
aelivities as siow downs or any
other act thet intands lo
gaholage the operations and
businese of the Halal is a grave
offanse.

(h) Olsclplnary
action

For violations of the C&G Manual
(1) First viotation: reprimand

{2} Second vielution: suspension
{3} Third viclatlen: removal

Under the Corporation Code, and
prevailing jurispruderce, a directar
of a corporation may be held lizble
for damages for the acts of the
corporallon, undar the following
clroumstanges;

{13 He wiltfully and Knowingly vote
for or agsent o patently
untawiul acts of the corporation;

(3) Hels gulity of gross negligence
or bad faith in directing ths
affaira of the corporation;

{3) He acquires any personal or

pecuniary Interest in conflict

with their duty as such
diresctors;

He consants %o the isauance of

watered stocks or who, having

{4

-

Any viclation of the policies
of the Group which outfine
the standards of behavior
raquired of all employees
may be a ground for
disciplinary action (i.e.,
reprimand. $uspenslon, or
ramoval) of 2 senior

managermen? officer,

Issuing statements inimical to
the reputation of the
cerporation is 8 majer offense,

Minor Offenses

1+ istoffense - Verbal

Warning .
+  2nd < Written Warning
s 3rd s 1wesk suspension
v 4th - dizmiszal
Major Cffenses
« 1si-1 week suspension
v 2nd - 2 weeks suspansion
+  3rd - dismigsa!
Grave Qffersy
»  isi-dismiseal
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knowledge heretf, dogs not
forthwith fille with the corporate
secrelary his written abjection
theralo;

{8) He agrees to hold Himael
personally and solidardy liable
with the corporation; ar

{6} He is nrade, by a specific
provision of taw, to personally
angwer for his corporate aetlen,

(i) Whistta
Blower

To anable the members of the
Board to properly fulfilf (heir duties
and responsitliities, Managasment
should grovide them with complete,
adsyuete aind Ymialy informalion
abeut the metters (o ke taken in
thaip rqeeiings.

Reliance on Infarmaltion valuntearad
by Menagemont would rol be
sufficlent In all elrcumatances and
further inquiiies may hava to ba
made by a member of the Board to
enable him fo properly peiform his
dutias and responsibilities. Hence,
the members sbculd ba givan -
independent access to Management

and im;a Corperate Secretary.

The _in?armat!on may inclade he
backgl{ound or explanation on
matters brought before the Board,
disclosures, budgs!s, forecasts and
internal financial documents.

The members, alithar indlvidually or
as a Board, and in furtherance of
their dulies and responsibilifies,
should have access to independant
professional advice that directly
relate fo their funstlons and
rasponsibiiities as directors of the
Corporation, 2t sueh raazanabls
cast to be borne by the Corporaifon.

Whistie-blowing procedures
arg in place to enahia
empioyaes to ralse
cancerns Aboul ahy activity
they considar o be yniawfu,
is & braach of awtharity, falls
kelew acgepted standards
of practice, amounts to
impropar conduct or coulg
damage the Group's
repulation.

Refusal tc answer inguiries or
paricipata in any Investigation
suthorized by the Hotsi,
provided such answers or
participation will not viclate
constituilonal rights Je
considered a majar offensse,

() Confict
Ressiution

Itia the duly of the Board o . .
estabiish and maintain an alternative
dispule resolution lo amizably sattle
conflicts betwaan tha Corporation
and stockhoiders or third paries or
requiatory authoriliss.

The Corporation adheres to
the policies of tha Group
which outine the sfandards
of behavior required of all
employeas whan acting on
tha Group's behall which
Inciude aating

1 professionally, with honesty,

integrity, abjectivity and in
compliance with all
applicabie lagai and
ragulatery requiremsnis,

Disciplinary procedures are
governsd by the fellowling
staps:

1. Submission &f incident raport
2. Writlen explanation from
offender

3. Investigation by deparimant
haad

4. Accomplishment of Cffense
Subject to Corrective Astlon
{{OSCA"} form

5. Submissicn of O8CA form fo
HR deparment

6. Discipfinary inferview
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2, Hae tite code of ethles areonduct been dlsseminated to all directors, serlor management and employees?
Yes. ’ .

3. Discuss how the company Implements and monitors compliance with the code of ethics or conduct.

For Dirantors

The CG Manual provides far the appelnfment of the Compliance Oficer whe fs respensible for monftoring compliance with
- the pravisions and requiraments, as well s vielations, of the CG Marnual and the Revised Cods of Corporats Governance,
and {ssues a certification regarding the ievel of compliance of the Corporation,

The Corporation complies with tha rules, reguiafions, and issuances lssued by govermmient authbrities perialning to
carporate governance and is tcommitted to adhering 10 gosd corporate governance principles. ° ' '

Saction 7.2 of the CG Manual provides that the ©& Manual shall be reviewsd guarierly uniess the Board provides
otherwise, ‘Moreover, the Audit Commiting of the Corporation reports regularly to the Board its quartery review of the
financlal performance of the Corporalion, : '

Impiementation of the Revised Code of Cofporete Govemarce

In compliance with Article 8 of the SEC Memorandum: Clreular No. 6, Serles of 2008 or the Revised Cede of Corporate
Governance, the Board, in a meeting held on 28 Cctober 2009, spproved the amendment of the CG Manual. The,
amendment of tha Corporation's Manual on Corporate Governance wes mada to establish and implement the
Corporation’s corporata governange rules in accordance with tha Revised Code of Corporate Gavarnance. For the year
2012, the Corposition, s directars, officers and employess subsiantially compiled, and has taken redsonable acllon
towards womplying, with the feading practices and pringiples on good corporate governance #s embodied i the
Gorporation's Manual on Corporete Gavemnanee, and in the Revised Code of Corporate Gavernance, .

Annugl Corporate Govarnence Repor for Listed Companies

" The Corporation annually updates lts Armual Corporate Governance Report, which is pusted on ihe Cor'poration's website.

Eot Sprlor Management and other errigroysas

The Code of Conduct provides for penalties for eny transgrassion of the Code of Conduct, renging frarm verbal warning to
dismissal. [f is the immadiaie Supervisor/ Head whe is duty-bound to inform the Cerporstion of such a transgression
committed by his suberdingts by Hling an Ihcident report to his Department head within 24 hours. The offender will then be
required by the said department head to issus a written explanation. After investigation, the -Depariment head
accomplishes an OSCA report which conteins his recommandation, and fhen submits # to the Human Resourcss
Department far the implemantation of the penalty,

4. Related Party Transactiong
Polisies and Procsdures
Degeoribe the company’s polleles and procedurss for the review, spproval or ratification, monltoring and
racording of related party transaction between and among the company and its parent. joint venturss,
subsidiaries, assoclates, affiliates, aubatantial stockhofders, officers and dirsctors, Including thelr spouses,
children and dependent sibilngs and parants and of Interlocking direcior relationships of members of the

Board:
Related Party Transastlon Palicles and Frocedures B :
(1) Parent Company The Cbrporalion‘s CG Manual requives information including related pery

transactions  to be publicly and timely disclosed through the appropriate

(2) Joint Ventures mechanisms of the PSE and submitted to tha SEC.

{3) Subsidiaries in compliance with the Amended Implementing Rulea and Ragulalions of tha

Securities Regulation Code ("SRC Rules”), the Corporation must disclose the

{4) Entities Under Comman ) feliowing details for & related parly contract;

Coniro!

(5) Substantial stacl:khcide;-s 8, the nature of the relatsd parly relationshlp;
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o

the type of transaction (e.g. supply or services contract, ioang, guaranises);

(8) Officers Including
the tofal amounts payable and receivable in the transaction from cr to the

spouse/chiidren/siblings/parents

©

relaled party;

|
(7) Diractors Inciuding the wlemenis of the {rans&ction necessary to understand the llsfed

spouse/children/siblings/parents d

company's financiat statersents,
(8) Interlocking diractar .
relationship of Board The Corporaticn must aiso disclose its transections In which related persors,

. such- ag directors, officers, substantiai shareholders or any of their immediate
‘familiss have a diract material interast, such as the ralated person's benaficlal
ownarship of the counter party or share in the profits, bonus, or commissions out
of the fransaction,

No disclosure is needsd for any transactioh where;

4, The transaction involves sewvices at rales or charges fixad by law ar
govemmuantal authority;

b. The transactlon involves services as a bank depository of funds, transier
agent, reglstrar, trustee under a trus! indenture, or similar services;

€. The amount iavolved in the transaction or a sarles of similar
transactions has an aggregate value of ass than PhF2,500,000; or

d. The interest of the person arices solely from the ownershlp of securities of
the repistrant and the peraon receives no exira or special benefit that was
nol shared aqually {pro rata) by all holders of securities of the class.

In aomplignce with the provisions of the Gorporation Code, a contract of the
Corporation with one ar marg of its directors or officers must be ratified by the
vota of the etockheiders representing at Jeast two-thirds {2/3) of tha outstanding
caphal stock if any of the following conditions are absent:

&. The prasenca of such dirsctor in the board mesting In which the contract
was sppravad was not necessery to consgtitute & quorum for such mesting,
D, Tha vote of such director was not necessary for the approval of the sontract,

Full disclosure of the advarss Interast of the directors or officers invoived must be
made at the stockhoiders' meeating and the contract must ba fair and reasunabie
undsr the circumstances.

Furthermere, the Corporatien must comply with the provision of the Cerperation
Coda which requires a contreet betwsen fwo or more corporations having
interlocking directors, where (i) the inferest of the interlocking director In one
corporation is substantiel and his interest in the other corporation is merely
nominal, and (it} any of the following conditiens are absent:

a, Tha presence "of such director In the board maeting in which the contract
wasa approved was nof nesessary to constitute a quorum for such meeting.
b, The vote of such directar was rot necessary for the spproval of the contract.

lo ba rafified by the vota of the stockhaiders representing at least two-thirds (2/3)
of the outstanding capital stock of tha corporatiocn whare the interocking
dirsctor's. interest is nominal, Similady, full isclosurs of the adverse interast of
the interiocking director/s Invalvad must be made Bt the stockholders' mesting
and the contract must bé fair and reasonable under the cirgumstances,
Btackholdings exceeding twenty (20%) percent of the outstanding capital stock
shall be considered substantial for purposes of interiocking directors.

Corfiict of Interast )
(I} Directors/Offlcers and 6% or more Shareholdars
Idantify any actual or probable conflict of interast {o which direttors/officers/§% or more shareholders
may be Invalvad,
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Detills of Confllet of Interest {Actual or Probabla)

Name of Diractoris .None
Name of Offlcar/s None
Name of Significant Shargholders None

{Ill Mechanlsm

Degcribe the machanism lald down to detect, datarmine and resofve any possible conflfet of interest between
the campany and/er Its group and thelr directers, officer and significant sharsholdars, ’

Diroctors/Officars/3ignificant Shareholders

Corporafion

earnings rasults

- 4 s e

remunetration

The Carporation has adopled a policy that reguires management to disclose
related-parly transactions. Item 5 of the GG Manua! requires the disclosure of
&l material infermation about the Corporation which could advarseiy affacts
its viahlilty or the Interests of the stpckholders. This Includes:

acauisition or disposition of assels '
ralated parly transactions

Group

Fisase see above.

6. Fahily, Commerclal and Contractual Relations
{a) Indicate, If appizable, any relation of & famlly, commercial, contractusl or business nature that exists
betwaen the helders of significant equity (8% or more), to the extent thet they are known to the company;

Names of Pelated &lgnificant
Shareholders

Type of Relationship

Brlat Daseription of the Ralationship

N.A.

(s} indicate, if applicable, any réiatron of a commaercial, contractual or business nature that exist bstween the
holders of signiicant equity (5% or more)-and the company:

Names Related Significant
Shareholders

Type of Relatlonshlp

Brisf Description

Millennium & Copthorng Holals pic

Indlrect beneficial owner of more
than 5% of tha culstanding sharas
of the Corparation fthrough s
indirect sharaholdings in TRFL)

The Corporation has emlered into a
Manragement Agreement with Eite Hotal
Management  Services  Fte. Lid,'s
Phillppinas Branch for the latter to act as
the Holal's administrater, Undar the terms
of the agreameni the Corporstion is
required to pay manthly Daslc management
and Incentive faes based on a ceriain
percentage of revenie end gross aperating
profit,

(¢) Indicate any shareholdar agreemants that may Jmpact on the control, gwnership and strategic direction of the

company:

Names Shareholders

% of Capltal Stock aFf'ecled

{Parties})

Brief Description of the Transaction

N.A.
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6) Alternative Dispute Ruolutlan
Describa the alfarnative dispute resolutlon system adoptad by the company for tha last three {3) years In
amlcably settling confilcte or differences between tho cerporation and its stockholders, and the corporation
gnd third partles, in¢luding regulstory authorities.

Aftornative Dispute Rasolution System

Corporation & Steckhoiders . The G Manua! smpowers the Board to astablish and |

Cotparation & Third Partlss . maintain 2n sitemative dispute resolutlon system in the

Corporaflon  that can amicably setile confiicts or
difterences between the Corporalion and its stockhoiders,
and the Corporation and third parties, including the
reguisfory aulhorities, The Board has yet to have the
opportunity to adop! an allernative dispute resoluilcm
system,

Corporation & Regulatory Authorliles

C, BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE
1} Are Board of Directors’ meetings scheduled befare or at the baginning of the year?

Regular mestings of the Buard are held at the and of sach quarter, and at such tlmés as the Board shall from time to
time by resalution determine. Special meetings shall be held when called by the Chaafman the President, or by
the Secretary atthe requas! cf any 1 of the diractors.

2) Attendanca of Dlrectors

o, of Mastings
Held during the | - No. OF
, - Date of yeoar(l.e,, from. 1 N N
Board o Name Eloction | Januay 2014t | Meotings ) % | e
31 Dacember : L
2014)
Chalrman . Wong Hong Ren 15 Msy 2014 e i 100%
Member l Bryan Cockrell 16 May 2014 7 g 85.71%
i Michele Dee-Santes M
Mombar {ﬂeésgned offective 10 October | |0 May 2014 [ 5 83.33%
BRI : ‘
Member Eddls Lay 15 May 2014 7 6 85.71%
Member Eddie Yeo 13 May 2014 I 7 100%
Independent Angelito imperio - 15 May 2014 7 8 86.71%
tndependent Wia Gentugaya - 15 May 2014 7 5 100%

Do ronwexscutive directors have a aaparata meeting during tha y2ac without the presence of any executive? if yes,
how many times?

Na,
Is the mlnimum quorum requiremant for Board decisions set at two-thirds of board mambers? Plaase explaln

No. In line with the requirements of the Corporation Cods, majority of the directors ahall consiitute 8 quorum for the
fransaction of busiess
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4) Access to Informatlon
{4) How many days In advance are Board papars for Board of Direclors meetings provided to tho Board?

No particufar pariod by which Board papers should be provided to the Board |s required. Nonetraless, the CG Manual
requires Management to provide ta members of the Board with complete, adequate, and #mesly Infermation sbout the
matters to be discussed in the meetings, Lsually, Board papers for Board meetings are provided te the Board at leasi a
waak before the date of the mesiing.

(k) Do board members have independent access to Management and the Corporate Secretary?

Yes. The CG Manual exprassly provides Managemant should provide the Board with cotmplata, adeqi}at'e and timely
information, and that directors be given diract sccess to Management and the Corparate Secretary. It aisc provides that
sych information may include the background or explanation on matters brought before the Board, disclosures,.

budgests, forecasts, and internal financial documents.

(c} State tha policy of the rale of the company secretary. Does such role include assisting the Chalrman n
preparing the board agends, facilltating trefning of dlrestors, keeping directors updated regarding any
relevant statutory and regulatery changes, ete, ' -

Part of the duties of the Corporata Secraetary, as provided for by the CG Manual, Is to be responsitle for the
safakeaping and preservation of the Integrity of the minutes of the meetings of the Board and its committees, as well
a3 the other officlal records of the Corporation, and to inform all members of the Baard of tha agenda of meetings
and o ensure that the members have before thers accurate information that will snable them to arrve at Intelligent -
declsions, Furthermore, he is required by the CG Manua! fo be aware of the laws and reguiations necessary In the
performance of his duties and to use such knowledge to ensure that all Board procedures, rules and regulations are
strictly followsd by the members; and to ensura that all Board procedures, rules and regulations are strictly feilowed
by the members - i

The Carporate Secretary i required to stfend all Board meetings, unless Justifizble causes prevent him from dolng
30, Moregver, tha Corporation also has an Assistant Corporata Secretary who Is required to attend such mastings in
the absence or unavailabiily of the Corporate Secretary. As such, the Board members have easy access o the
services of the Corporate Secretary, '

{d) 15 the company secretary tralnad In legal, accountancy or company secretarial practices? Please explain
shoult the answer be i negative.

Yes, The Corporate Secretary, Ms. Christing Macasaet-Acaban Is a periner of the Jaw firm of Quisumbling Torres,
speeializing in corporata and commerclal law. The Assistant Corpbrate Secretery, MF, Alain Charles Veloso, le a -
senior assoclate also of the aw firm Quisumbing Torres; he also speclalizes in corporate and commercig! law and
securities law. In addition, Mr. Veloso I8 a'se a Carified Public Accountant. ! :

Both Ms, Macasaet-Acaban and Mr, Valoso also serve ms gorporate secratary or assistant corpdrate secretary of
various private companies,

{6} Committes Procedures . ]
Disclose whather there is a procecure that Divectors can avail of to enable them lo get information

negessury io be able t¢ prepare In advance for the meetings of different commitiees; N
Yes Mo :
Committee Details of the Proceduras
Executive N/A
Augh The Charfer reguires the (General Manager of the Gorporation o

rander to the Audit Commitee an annual report on the activitles,
purpose, authorlly, respensibility, and performance of the internal
audif depariment of the Corporation,

The Audit Committee shall have unlimied diract actess to the
internal end axternal auditors of the Corporation, as weil as lg the
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management and stafi of the Corporation, particulady the Chief
Executive Officar and the Chigf Finansial Olficer. |4 this connaction,
tha Audit Commilies may request the zuditors and the managament
of the Corporation to be present at such meetings of the Audit
Commitiee as the Augit Committee may require.

Under the GG ianual, the intemal Audiior 5 required 1o submit lo
tha Audit Commitiee and Management an annual repod on the
Internal  audit deparment's activities, responsibilites and
perfarmance ralative to the audit plans and strategies as approved
by the Audit Committea, The annual report should includs
significent risk expesuras, contral issues and such other matters as
may be neaded or requasted by the Board and Management,

‘Nominafion The Nomlnation Committee, subject to the approval of the Board,
shall promulgeis ihe rules, guidelines and ¢riteria o govern the
sonduct of the nomination, Only the candidates whose nominations
ara confirmed by the Nomination Commitias to ba in acsordance
with such rules, guidalines and critaria shait be eligible fo be slectad
as Independent directors,

Remuneratlon The Molel Management Executive Committee of the Corporation,
which perferms the functions of the Remuneraticn Committes,
geathers and reviews market information an salary or compernsation
of othar hetels In making its decisions and recommendatmns

Othars(spacify) i N.A,

in addition o the foregoing.'tha Sesratary Is required to inform the members of the Beard, In ascordance with the by laws,
of the agenda of their mestings and ensure that the members have before them accurate information that will enable them
{o arrlve at inteliigant decislons on mslters that require their approval,

Under the CG Manusl, 1o enable the membars of the Board to properly fultlii thair duties and responsibitities, Management
Is required to provide ihem with complete, adequate and timely information about the matters ta be taken in their mestings,

Reliance on information voluntsered by Managamént waould aot ba sufticient i all clrcumstances and Jurther ingulries may
have to be mada by 8 member of the Board to enable him 1o propery parform his duties and respensibiiities, Hence, the
membare shoulil be given independent access o Managsment and the Corpurate Secretary.

The informatisn may Include the background or explanatlon on matiers brought before lha Board, disclosures, budjats,
forecasts and Internal financial documents.

The mambars, elthar Individuatly or as a Board, and in fuﬁharsnce of ihelr duiles and responsiblities, should have access
to independent profassional advice that directly relate to their functions and rasponsibilittes as directors of the Gorperation,
at such reascnable cost to be borna by the Corporation

&) Extornal Advice ,
indicate whether or not a procedurs nxlsts whersby directors can recalve external advics and, If so, provide

datalls:

Prodedires Datalls

Managament provides information t the Board To enabie the members of the Board 1o properly fulfil thelr

i dutise and responsibilittes, Management provides them with
| compiete, adequate and timaly infarmation abou! the mattars
1o be taken in their mestings,

The Board has access {0 Indepandent professional Tha (nembers, either individually or as a Board, &nd in
advice turtherance of their dutine and respontibiliies, has access lo

: Independent professienal advize that direclly relate fo thelr
functlons and responsivifiies as directors of the Corperation,
at such teasonable cost to be borne by the Cerporation.
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Trternal Audiior raports to the Audit Committee

“The Audit Commitiee Is required to establish end Ideniffy the

reporting line of the internal Auditor 1o enable Bim to propery
fulfilt his duties and respansibiiities, He shall functionally report
direclly to the Audit Commitiee,

The Audit Committee shali ensure that, in the performance of
the work of the Infermal Audhor, he shall be free from
Interferance by outsida parties, ’

Internal Auditor has access to information and personns|

Fursussl to the conduct of the intarne! audit, the internal
auditers has free and full access to ail relevant Information,
data, records, properties and perscnnel.

Audit Committes hes access to audiors and
Managsment

The Audk Commitiee has uniimited dirsct access to the
internal and external suditors of the Corporation, as well as fo
the managemant and staff of the Corporation, particulary the
Chisf Exascutive Officer and the Chief Financlal Officer. In thia
conneclion, the Audit Committe2 may reguest the auditors and
the managament of the Corporation lo ba present at such
meetings of the Audit Commitiee as the Audit Committe may

require. . '

£) Changa/s I exlsting pollcles

‘Indieats, If applicable, any changels Intreduced by the Board of Directors {during its most recent tarm) on
exlsting policles that may have an effect on the business of the company and the rgesonis for change:

Exlsting Pollelas Changes

N.A,

Resson

D. REMUNERATION MATTERS
1) Remuneration Procass

Process : CEC Top 4 Highest Pald Managemant Officers

{1) Fixed remuneration |Undertha By-Laws, the Board fixes he Under the By-Laws, the Board fixss the
salaries and bonuses of ajf officers of the sataries and benuses of alt cfficers of the
Corporation, Corporation:

{23 Variable . Nona nong

ramunaration -

(3) Per diem aliowance Nene nons

(4} Bonus Fixed by tha Board as wek. Fixed by the Board as well.

(5} Stock Tptlons and nona none

other financlal

Instruments ‘ .

{8} Cthers (speciy) None none

Disclose the progess used for determining the remuneration of the CEQ and the four (d4) most highly
compensated management offlcers: The Chairman and President/CED dess not recelva remunerstlon from the
Corporation. The remuneration of olher executives / management officers are based on their employment contract and
bonus are based on the Corporation's perfarmance and their individual parformance.

The CG Manual prevides the followlng process end pollsy for the remunaration of diractors and officers (ncluding the GEO
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and Managament officers);

Thie Board shall fix the satares and bonuaes of all ofﬂcera The fact {hat an-officer is alsc a director shall not preciude him
from recelving a salary or bonus. .

The levels of remuneratldn of the Corporation sheuld be sufficient to be able to atiract and retaln the services of qualified
#nd compatent directors and offlcers,

Excapt for reasonable per diems, directors shall be entiied only compensation as may be granted to them, as such, by the
vote of the siotkholders representing at least & majority of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special maeting of
stockholders. No director should participate in deciding on his remunaration.

In rio cass shall the total yearly compensation of directurs, as such, exceed ten parcent (10%} of the net income before
Ineoma tax of tha Corporation during the prececing year. :

The Corporation’s annual répoﬂs and Information and proxy statamen:s shall include a clear, concise and understandable
discloaure of all fixed and variable compensation that may be paid, directly or Indirectly, to its directors and lop four {4)
managemearn cfﬂcers during the preceding fiscal year.

The Hetel Management Exscitive Commitles e appointod annually by the Board to perform tha functions of the
Remuneration and Compensatics Committee, which is to establish & formal and transparent pracedure for developing a
policy on remuneration of directars and officers to ensure that their compensation s consislent with the corporation's
culture, strategy and the business environment In which Il pperates,

2) Remuneration Polizy and Structure for Executive and Non-Bxecutlva Directors
Bisclose the company's pelicy of remunaration end the structured of ita compensation packags. Explain how
the compansation of Exacutive and Nun.Executive Diractors is salculated,

Remuneration Polloy g:’:f::; of Compensation How Compensation is Calculated

Exacutiva Directors Tha By- Laws/ CG Manual | The execulive officers of the | Remunaration as axeculive diteciors:
state  that  except for | Gorporation, as such, are paid | fixed and approved by tha Board.
reasonaile per diems, [ @ monthly fixed salary with
directors, as such, shali be | varlable bonus depending on | Remuneration as directors: ihe
entited  only fo  the | parformanca. propesed  remuneration  will  be
compensalion as may be presanted to the atockheldess for
geanted to them bythavots | In  addillon, they receive | approval at the annuel stockholder's
of the stocknholders | compensation as  one-time | meeting.

representing at least a | directors fees in their capacity
malority of the oulstanding | as dirsctors.

at @ regular. or special
meefing. 'n no case shall
the total yearly
compensation of afl
directors, as such, exceed
10% of the net income|
before  tax of the
Corparation  during  the
preceding year.”

fn addition, the Board fices
the saieries and benuses of
all officers, The fact thaf an
officar is also a directer
shail not praciude him from
recaiving 8 salary or bonus.

Non-Exacutive The By- Laws/ C3 Manual | Tha campensation of the Remuneration as directors: the
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Dirsctora

slate thatexcept for
raasonable per diems,

diractors, as sush, shall be

entitled only fo the
cornpensation as may be
granted to them by the vola
of the stockholders
represeniing ut leasta
mejerity of the outstanding
at a regular or special
meeilng: In no casa shall
the tota) yasrly
cempensation of gif
directors, & such, excead
10% of the net income
before tax of the
Cerparation during the
preceding yesr.

directors ara ang.time
diraclar's fees and do noi
invalve any other form of
remuneration, There are no
arrangements, such s
somzensatory plan or
arrangement or consuiting
aentracts, pursuant o which
any director of the Corporetion
is to bs compensated, directly
orindiractly.

Thera are no arrangements,
such as compensalory plan or
arrangement or cansulting
contracts, pursuant to which
any director of the Corporation
was compensated, or is to be
compensated, directly or
Indirectly, during the
Corporation’s Jast completed
figcal year, and the ansulng
yaar, for any service provided
as director,

proposed remuneration wiil be
prasenied to the stockholders for
approval sl the annual stockholder's
meeting.

: Do stockholders have the opportunity fo approve the declsion on total remuneration (fess, allowances, benefits-In
kind and other emoluments} of board of directors? Provide datalls for the last (3)three years,

‘Yes. The Board presented the proposed remungratien to the stockhalders for ¢

heir approval at the annual stockholder's

mesting. )
Remunaration Scheme Date of Stockholders Approval
| Year 2013 15May 2004, o o] Dalotad: 2012
| R Vear 2012 My 2003 | Deletad: 2011
i Year 2011 MAYQUIZ o e Deleted: 2010

3) Aggregate Rem uneration

Complete the following table on the aggregate remuneration accrusd during the most recent year:

Non-Exscuthve
Directors {other

withnalging taxes /

withhoiding taxas 7

withhpiding taxes /

. Remuneratlon lfem Exscutive Directors than Independent Independant Diractors
. directors) )
(a) Fixad Remuneration 4803000 (netaf | USDS.000 (nelof . [dISD8200(netof | ..( Deletod: USDS

"‘Lbeteted: usos

withholding taxes 7"

directot

whhholding taxes 7™~

director

withholding taxes |
director .

director dlrector director -
(b} Variable Remuneration { Deleted: LSDE _
( &} Per Diem Allowance v 1
(d) Bonusaes o
{&)8teck Cpllons andfer ofher financial
insfrumants
{f} Other {speclfy) . . oo
|| Total USDE000 (natof - [USDS00C (neter _ 18DEZ00 (netol | _.~{ Deleted: USD6

{ Delated: UsDS
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B Non-Executive Blrector
Cther Banefits - gigcutiva Birpctors {other than Indspendent Independent Directors
I ' i rirectors}
. ! none : Hona : noneg
1) Advances |
] hone - | none none
2} Gredit Granted i o
i nona none . nona
3} Pensien Plan/s Conlrlbutions
{d) Pension Flans Obllgations none nohg nane
incurred ¢ ) .
E none nona none
(a ) Lifs ingurance Pramium : .
hone none none
{f} Hospltafization Plan .
nong nane . none
{g) Car Pian
hene ' nona : none
{n) Cthaers {spacify) '
Total ) Q 2 ¢}

4) Stock Rigits, Options and Warrants

(a) Board of Diregtors . :
Complets the following fable, on the mambers of the company's Beard of Directors who own or ars entitied
to stock rights, optlons or warrants over ths company's shares:

© Tofal %

. . Number of
. Niumber of Direct Number of ingiract from
mmm’” Name Qptlons/Rights/Warrants Optlan/Rights/Warrants equivalent Gapitat
shares
Stock
L NA
b} Amendments of lncentive Programs
Incentive Program Amendments’ ) Dato of Stockholders Approval

N.A

Indlcate any amendments and discentinuation of any Incentlve programs Introduced, Including the criteria
usad I the sreation of the program. Distlosa whather thess are subject to approval during the annual

Stockholders Maating:
B Remunaration of Managemaent

Idantify the ﬂve‘ {8) mambare of managemant who ars not at the same fime sxecutive directors and Indicate the
total remuneration recelved during the financlal yees :

| Name of Officer/Poasltion Total Remuneration
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Yarm Kit Sung

Gigl Gaw (Direcior of Sales and Murketing)

Catherine Semang (Rirector of Finsnce
Mary Grace Magsalin (Diractor of HRY (Passed away

on 22 August 2014}

Romingo Naz Jr (ChiufEnqmeg}

{ Deleted: PhP2.12 milllon for 2012

I Daletad: Johnny Yap - Executive Manager o

the Motel

E. BOARD COMMITIEES

13 Number of Members, Functiors and Responsibitlties
Provide detalls on the Humber of members of each committes, its functlons, kay responalbllltlss and Ghs
_powerfautharlty delsgated to it by the Board: .

Ng. Of Mambers

: Committee ; ]
Committag £p NED o Gharter Functions Kay Responsibllltfes Power
Audit 0 2 i Yos CG Manual: Charter: ]
{1} Unlimzed direst
{1} Assists the Board | {1} Review and uccoss ta the intarna)
in aversight appfovs the scops end external auditors

rasponsibility for the
financial raponting
pregass, syslem of
Internal contral, audit
procass, and
menitering of
compliance with
spplicable laws, nies
and ragulaiions;

(2} Provide oversight
over Managements
aclivitles In
mraneging credit,
rarkel, liquidity and
othat risks

{3) Ovarsight
funclicns over the
Corporalion's Internal
and extarnal )
auditors; to ensure
that such auditors act
indapendanily fram
sach other and that
beth auditors are
given unrestriclad
accass to all records,
ate.

(4) Reviaw the
annual internat audlt
plan tv ensure ig
eonformity with tha
Corparation‘s
chjestiver

{5} Priar to
commaneameant of
{he audl, {0 discuss
with the axigrnal
auditer the naturg,

and frequency of the
audit of tha
Corporaticn and the
annual internal audit
plan that management
shalf propose

(2} Review the
progross And siptus of
ail Imernal audit and
axternal pudit
racommendations and
heir implemeniation

{3; Monitor and
evaluate the adeguacy
eifectivenass of the
Corparation's inferna
controt systam

{4) Check all firancial
raprty with reapecl
to tha proper
somplience of the
fimancis! management
handbaok and
peantinant accounting
standards and
ragulalory
requirements.

{5} Revlew the
Finaneie!
Management
Handbaok and
perform ovarsight
financial management
functions, particularly
in areas of managing
credit, market,
liquidlly, oparational,
tegal and sther risks of

of the Corporation, &8
well as o the
managament and
stalt, particularly the
CEQ and CFO

(&) May require the
auditors and the
maragament io be
present in mésglings of
1ne Audd Commiltes

(3) Free full and
accass to all ralevent
information, data,
racords, proparties
and perganne!

14} Tha Audit
Committes shall
recommend to the
stockholders who shall
act as ho axternal
auditor of the
Carporation
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scope, and expensas | tha corporation, as
of the audit, and wall By arisis
BHEUR prOpe! managemant,
coordination if more
than ana audit firm 18 { (6) Elevate to

involved in the 1 ternationai
i activity standards the
| accaunting and
{8) Monltor and audiling processas,
i evaluaia the practices and
o adsquacy and rmethadalogias of the

! { sffactivansss of he Corperstion. The Audit
Lorporation's intame| | Commillee shal

[ controf systam, determine whater the
: irciuging inancial aceounting syslerm of
! rapofing controt and  § the Corperation is fully
! information compliant with
! lechnology sucurlly | Inte-nalionet
% . Attaurting Standards.
! {7} Roview tha If the Audit Cammittee
| feports submitted by ¢ determines that is rot
the internal and fully cempliant, ihe
externai auditors Audil Commiltes shali
provide for an e .
{8} Review tha ascountabillty
guarterly, haif year statement that shali
and annual firancial specifically idanlify the
statemeris befare officars and parsennal
thal submission to regpansible for the
the Beard differant tasks
required to raise io
{9} Coerdinate, International
monitur and facililate | Accauniing Standards
compliance with tha accounting system
faws, rulas and of the Corporation,
regulations Tha Audli Commitles
shall zls0 provide for a
{10} Evaiugie snd definite tmstable

determina the non. within which the

addit work, if 2ny, of | aceounting system
-the extsrnal apsiter shall hacoma fully
comphiant with

{11) Establist and intarnationar

idantity the reporting | Accounting Siandards.
fine of the Intamal
Augiitor to enable him
to propery fulfill his
dulies and
responsivilitias

(12§ Ensure that In
tra parformance of
tha work of the
Internal Auditer, ne
shall ba fres from
any Interferenca from
outsida partles

(13} Lay down the

i propar chacks. and
balances o ensure
that the Board gely
the banefil of
independant visws
and pargpactivas

Nominaticr 1 3 1 * |- Nona Ths Nomingion Commities prapares the list of candidsies for
i independent diresters bssed upan qualified candidetes neminatad by the

slockholders,

1t also promuigaies rules, guidetines and criteria to gevern the conduct of
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nemination, subject 1o tha approval of the Board.

| in addition, the Nomination Committea may alse revlew and evaluate the
gualifieations of all persons nominated to'the Board and other
appaintments that require Baard approval .
Remuneratf 4 Nene . The Hotel Managemen! Executive Commities I8 appointad snnually by
on and tha Board te perform lhe functlons of tha Remuneration and
Compensati Compansatian Commitles, which is to gsleblish a formal and traneparent
an procadure far devaloging & paliey on remuneration of diractors and
officars to amsure that thelr compansation is consistent with the
corporation's culture, lrategy and the business environment in which i
aperetea
Others
{specify)
2) Committee Membars
{a} Exgsutive Commlitiee
Dato of No, of No. of Length of
Offica Name Anpalntmoent Meelings Meetings % | Barvica in the
PR Held Attantiod Commitiae
N.A, '
b} Audit_t:omm!ttea_
No. of No. of
- Date of - s Length of Service
Dffice Nams Appalntmant Me;e;;r;ga ;ﬂt::’t‘lgg; h In the Committes
Chairman (ID) R Mla 5 CIEN CA00% dyears ]..{ Deleted: 26 July 20137
entygays . N
Member (NEDQ) | Bryan Cockreli | 15 May2014 | 4 100% Cdayears | { Deteted: 10
. i "1 Deleted: 25 July 20139
Member (NED} Michele Dee- | 15 May2014 | 3. |.. ... i IR SYears o™ [
oo ‘ | Deleted: 12
gifective 31 [ Deleted: 26 uly 20137
Docgmbaer i\
2014) { Deleted: 6
¢} Nainlnatlon Committes .
Date of Ne, of Ne, of Length of
Office Name Meetings Meatings % Service In the
Appaintment Hald Atiended Committee
Chalrman How;;gen waMay.2gld | S R SR P o AZyears % Detetacdt 26 July 20137
™| Dateted: 11
Bryan 15 May 2014 .
Memker (NED} Cackrell 4 2 { Deleted: 26 July 2073y
Migh 1 -
Dse-léaar:taos 45 May 2?.,.&1 P SR _ [Dﬂﬁtedl 11
Member (NED) m 2 1 { Peleted: 26 July 20731
. RS Deleted: &
Qecember [_
2014} .
Member (1D) 'j\m”i:'r'f: V5 May 2014 i g PR TV NN IR T N weeeevro{ Dialeted: 28 July 20437
Member (NED) Eddile Lau 18 MayeQid S e —ADDY e Byears { Delated: 26 July 20134
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) Remuneratlon and Gompensation Commiftee {this function is performed by The Hotel Managemant Exacuflve

Commiftos) .
Dats of No. of No. of Length of
Offlcs Hama Appolatmant |- Meetings Meetings - % Sarvice In the
pb ) Held Atftended Committes
I chaiman Ygl:f;‘:ﬂ R R E S RSP SR ESUDSVIAR SU VIR M WZYeRrs. | { Delated: 26 July 20137
: ” | belated: 11
 stamber (€D) Eddio Yeo | o Mag 0L o - N N B YOS L {[ oeteres s
I - - ' - ' :
it Membar !\IG:;:{:;:; Jﬁ...Mélt.?.@M_g ETPTPE {1 WUSUUORE: SRR ¥ I VAN ,iyearso ( Batatads 11
Mary Grace | 15 May20id [T [ years | " peleted: 26 yuly 20131
Magsalin l .
Deleted: 4
Mernber (zassed 0 NA N.A [ oe
away on 22 ) NA A . { Dalabad: 25 Juy 20131
August | peleted: 5
2014}
Member csaéfr;fﬂe o4, May 201 & oo e N | oo 2. Y83 L] Debetedt 26 July 20137
- - : { Datatea: 1
e} Others (Spocity) [ ] .
Provide the garme information on alf other committees constituted by the Board of Directors:
KB Date of No, of No. of Length of
Ofifee Name Appointment Meatinge Mestings % Service In tha
it Hetd Attended Commitisa
Chaiman NA, M.A, A N.A A, N.A.
tember {EL)) iN.AL MN:A, N.A N.A. NA N.A.
Member (NED} N.A, N.A, N.A. N.A, N.A. N.A.
Mamber (1D) N.A, N.A. N.A N.A, N.A. N.A,
Member N.A. NA, N.A, N.A. N.A, N.A,

3) Changesin Cammittes Mambers

Indicate any changes In committes marabership that occurred during the year and the reason for the

changes:

Name of Commilites Name Reason
Executivg “NLA N.A.
Audi N.A. N.A.
Nemination N.A, N.A.
Remuneration N.A. N.A,
Cithers {specify) N.A. N.A,
4}  Work Dene and lesues Addregsed

Describe the work dona by each committes and the significant issues addressed during the year,

foiliewing functions:

(1} Assisled the Board in oversight
respansibility for the financiat
reporting precess, system of

Name of Committae Work Doneg Issues Addressed
Exscutive N.A, N.A. )
Audit The Audit Committee performed the | The Audit Commitiee was able to addrass the

following issues, ameang others:

{1} Reviewed the guarterly, half-yearand annual
financlal stateménts before their submission to
tha Board, with particular focus on the following
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Internal contral, audit process, and
monloring of compliance with
applicable laws, rules and
regulations,

(2) Provided oversight over
Management's acllvities in
mengging cred!t, markes, Nouidity
" and othar risks

(3) Performad aversight functions
over the Carpocation’s Internal and
axiernal auditors,; to ansurs that
such auditors act independently
fram each othar and that both
auditors are glven unrastricted

-| #ecess to all racords, ate.

{4) Reviewed the ennual audit plan
{o ensure ite conformity with the
Corporation's objactives

{8) Prior to commencament of the
audit, discussed with the external
auditor the nature, scops, and

. expensas of the audh, and ensure
proper coardination ¥ mors than
one audlt firm is involved in the
activily

{8) Monltored and evaluated the
adequacy and effectiveness of tha
Gorperation's Internal control
systam, including financial reporting
contro} and information technology
secyrity

(7} Reviewed the reports submitted
by the internal end extermnal audifors

(8} Reviawad the quarerly, half
year and annual financla
statements before their submission
to the Board

(9} Coordinated, monitored and
taclitated compliance with faws,
rules and regulations

| (10} Eveluated and determined the'
rion-audit work, If any, of the
axternal auditer

{11) Conducted a salf-assesement
of tha practices of the Audit
Commitlee, in relation to the bast
practices and standards,

matters:

e .Any change/s I eccounting policles ané
practices

«  Major judgmental areas

*  Significant adjusiments resulting from the
sudit

‘T -Golng concern assumptions

»  Compllance with accounting stendards

»  Gompliance wilh tax, legat and ragu!slory
raquiraments. '

(2} Ensurad that the perfarmanca of the work of
he auditors are fres from any interferanice from
outside parilas

(3) L.aid down the propar checks and balances fo
ersure that the Board gets the benetit of
Independent views and perspactives

{4 |dentified areas of improvement In the
practices of the Audit Committee, in relation 1o
the best practices and standards ’

s




Noriination

The Nomination Commiitee
performad the following funstions:

(1} Promulgated rules, guidelines

and critaria o govern the condust of
-nominaticn of independent

direstors, subject to the approval of
tha Board

(2) Preparad the list of candidatss
for indepandent directors based
upon qualified candidales
neminatad by the stockholders

{3} Reviewed and evaluated the
qualifications of ali psrsons
neminated io the Board and ather
appointments that require Board
approvsl

The Nomination Committes was able fo review
and evaluate the guaifications of nominees for
indapendent direclors and perscns nominated o
the Board and other appointments that require
Bozrd approval.

Remunsration and
Comgpensation Commiftee

The Holel Management Executive
Commitiae, acting as the
Ramynaration end Compensatian
Commiites, resommended the
remuneration of the regular
directars and the independent
diractors of tha Corparation.

The Remuneration and Compensation
Commites was able to ansure that the
campensation of the direciors is consistent with
the Cerporalion's sulfure, strategy and the
business snvironment In which i oparates,

|
y
|

Othars (apecify)

N.A.

N.A,

5) Commitiae Program ‘

Provide a Hst of prong

sms that eath committes pians to underiake to address relavant issues In the

imprevement or enforcament of affactive governansy for the coming year.

Name of Committes

Flannad Frogram

{ssues to he Addrasbed

Exacutive

NA.

N.A,

Audit : i

The Audit Committea plans to
continue performing ita functions
and responsibiities, as provided In
its Charter and the CG Manual.

The Audit Committes will centinue 10 addrass the
following issues, amaong others:

{1} Review e guaderly, haif-year and annual
financiai statements before their submissicn to
the Board, with parficular focus on the following
ratters:

«  Any ch'angeis in acseunting policles and
practices
+  Major judgmenta; areas
s+ Significant adjustments resuling from the
_ audit ) ) )
v Going concern assumptions

1+ Compliance with accounting standards

«  Compliance with tax, iegal and reguiatary
requirements.

(2) Oversight for the financlal reporiing process,
systern of intemal control, sudit process, and
munitoring of sompllance with agplicable laws,
rulas and regulations;
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(3} Oversight over Ktanagemenl's activities in
meneging credit, market, liquidity and othar rigks

(4) Oversight aver the Corporation's Imtemal and
external auditors; 1o ensure that such auditors
aci independently fram each clher and that both
sudiors arg given unrestiuted access to al!
records

(5} Ensure that the performance of the wotk of
the audltors are fres from any Interference from
outslde parlies

{8) Lay down the proper chacks anme hslances to
ensure that the Board gela tha benefit of
Independent views and perspectives

(7) dentfy arsas of Improvement in the prectices
of the Audlt Committes, in relation {o the bast
practices and standards

The Nomination Cammitlea wit cantinue to

Nemination The Nemination Commitee pians to
cantinue perferming its functions review and evaluale tha qualificetions of
and respensibilitfes, as provided in nettineas for indspendent directors and persans
the CG Manual. nominated to the Board and other appoiniments
that require Board approval.
Remuneration The Remuneration and The Remuneretion and Compensation

Compensation Committee plans to
continua parfarming s functiona
and responsibilities, 28 provided in
the GG Manual,

Committee will cantinue to ensure that the
compensation of the directors is cansistent \mth
the Corporation's cuiture, stretegy and the
business environment in which it cperates.

Cthers (speclfy)

N.A,

N.A,

F. RIBK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

1) Disclose the following:

{2} Overali rlek management philosophy of the company; .

(b} A statement that the directors have reviewed the effectivensss of the risk management system and
commenting on the adequacy thereof;

{c} Perlod covered for tha review;

{d} Hew oftan the risk management system I raviewed and the dirsctors’ critarla for asgessing e

offectivenass; and

{e) Where no review was conducted during the yaar, an gxplanation why not.

Cverali Risk Managsemant Ph{fosonhy gnd Revigw

The CG Manual provides that It Is the duly of the Board o identify key risk areas and fo monfor this fscturs with due
diligence o enable tha Corporation to anticipete and prepars for possitie threats to s operational and - -

flnancual viabll Ity

' Then rigks heve baen ldentified as: lquldity risk, credit risk, and market risk,

The Board has overall responsitiity for the establishment and oversight of the Corporation's figk management
framawerk. The Board Is responslble for developing and monitering the Carporﬂtﬁan % Mgk managearment pohc?en The Joard
identifles all | msues affectfng ihe operations of the Corporation.
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The Corporatlen's dsk management policies are established to identily and analyzs the risks faced By the Corperation, to
sot appropriate rlsk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policles and
systems are reviewsd regulady to reflect changes In market conditions and the Corporation’s activities. All risks faced by
the Corporation are {ncorporated in the annual operating buogst. Mitigating sirategins and procedures are 4lso devised to
address the risks that inevitably cccur so as not o affect the Corporation’s operations 8« detriment forecasted results,
The Cerporatitn, through Its lralning and managemant standards ang procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which aii employses understand their .

rolas and obligations.

The Board constituled the Corporailon's Audit Gommities to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight respensibllity Yor the
Corporation's corporate governance process relating to the: a) gualty and integrity of the Corperation's financial -
statements and financial repering process and the Corporation’s systems of internal accounting and financial controls; b)
performance of the internal auditors; c) annual indepsndent sudit of the Corpcratios’s financlal stalements, the
engagemen! of the independent audltors and the evaluation of ihe independent auditors' gualifications, indepandenne and
performance; d) sompliance by the Corperation with legal and regulatory requirements, including !he Corporafion’s
disclosurs canbrol end procedures; &) evaluation of management's process to sssees and manage the Corporation's
enterprise risk issues; and f} fultilmerit of the othar respansibilities et out by the Board, The Audit Commites shall also
propare the reports requirad in be included in the Corporation's annuat report. '

2) Risk Polley
{a) Gorporation
Give a general description of the company's risk management policy setting out and assessing the risk/s
covered by the systam (ranked acecoriing to poliey), #leng with tha abjective behind the policy for sach kind

of risk:
Risk Rapostira . - | Risgk Management Pollcy OCbjective
Cradi Risk Credlt rigk represents the sk of The investment of the Corporation's cash resources
. logs the Corparation would incur if is manuged so 88 to minimize 116k while sesking to

credit customars and counterpartias | enhance yield,
fall to perform their contractuat
cbligations. The Corporation's
credit risk arises principally from the
Corporation’s trade receivablas.

Liquidity Risk : Liquidity risk 15 the risk that the Treasury tontrols and procedures are in place to
Corporation will not ba able to meat | ensure that sufficiant cash is maintained fo cover
its financial obligations as they fall daily operational end working capital requirements,
due, The Corporation manages .
liquidity risk by forecasting
projected sash Aows and
maintaining & balance between -
continuity of funding and flexibility.

Market Risk Markst risk is the risk that changes | The objective of market risk management fa 1o
’ In market prices, such as tareign manage and contre! market risk exposures within
exchange rates, interast rates and accaptable paramsters, while aptimizing the-
other market prices will affact the raturn.

Corporafion's income or the value
of #ts heidings of financial
insfruments.

The Corporation is subjsct io
various market risks, including risks
fram ehangas in room ratas,
intarest ratas and surrenpy
exchange rates.
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{6) Group

Give a genersl descripfior of the Group's sk management policy, setting out and assessing tha riskls
soverad by the system (ranked according to priorlty), zlong with the objective behind the policy for sach king

of rigk!

Risk Exposturs

Risk Managament Polley

Objective

Events that adversely
Impact domestic or
international travel

Sustainad levels of occupancy and ranm
retes can be adversely effacted by events

| that reducs domestic or international

trave!, ‘Such events may include acls of
tarrorism, war or percalved Increased risk
of armad conflict, epidamics, natural
disasters, Increased cos! of fravel and
industria! actlon. These svenis may

be focalized o & particular country,
regian ‘or could have & wider Internaflonal
parspeciive, sspecially where = large
glrpor, for axample, is a mejor Aub for
wordwida travel. Reduced demand will
impact on revenuas and operaticnal
profitebility,

| The Group has in place continpancy and

recovaty plans to enable it to respond to
major tncidents or crises,

Contingency and reccvery plans are put
in place to enable the Group to respond
to msator incidents or erises,

Poiitical and economic
developmants

Major avents affecting either sconamic or
political stakity on a global end regianal
fevel rapreseni an exposure (o the Group.
Economis events could includs
recesslonary pressures which would
have 6n Impact on the Group's revenues,
operating costs and profitability, Politieat
rIsks [nclude changes In the regulatory
snviranment in which the Group's
businass activiies aperats, Including
reslrictions on the repairiation of lunds or
control over the ownership of assats,

Many of these risks are bayond the
central of the Group and the fime-frames
for daveloping appropriate risk
management approaches can ofien be
very short, Manegement is continually
vigilanito political and economic
developments and sseks to ldentify
emerging risks at tha earliest opportunlty,
The Group implements ownsrship
siructures, infernal controts and takes
such stepe aveilable to It to minimlze
these exposures o the greatest extent
nessible,

Maragerent is continually vigilant to
political and economic developments and
sasks fo ldentify emerging risks at the
earliest opportunity, The Group
rnplements ownership siructuras, inlarnal
eentrols and takes such steps availabis to
it io minimize thess axposures to the
greatast sxtent posaibla,

The hotel industry.supply
and demand cyols

The hotel indusiry operatas In an
inharently cyslical markat place. A
weakening of damand, or an increase in

| market raom supply, may iead to

downward pressure on room ratas which
in furn would lead o a negative effect on
opérating performance,

The (3roup has management systems in
place designad fo create flexiblilty in the

Management syatems putin

place ara designed to craate flexibiity in
the operating cost basa sa as to cotimize
operating prafiis in volatile frading
conditions, such as the profit protaction
vians Inltiatad during previous market
dawn-turns.

operating cost base so a2 to optimize
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opefating prafits in volatile trading
conditfans, such as the prefit protection
plans intliated during previous maket
down-furns, ' i

Human resources

Execution of the Group's stralegy
depends on Its ability to attrast, devalop
and ratain amployees with tha
appropriate skills, experiance and
aptitude,

The Group hias a strong seivice culturs
supported by recognition systems,
compensation and benefits
arrangemanis, training and development
progranimes. The Group has appropriate
systems for recruitment, reward and
compensation and performancs
management, Labaor retations ara actively
managed on 3 regionst and local basls.

“The Group has a;}pmprité systams for

recruiment, reward and campansation
and performance managemaent. Labor
relafions are actively managed on a
regional and lacal basis,

Management agresments

An element of the Group’s strafegy

is to salectively Increage the number of
management contracts to operate hotels
owned by third-parties, primarily tocusing
on the Middle East regicn. In this regard,
the Group faces competition from
astablished ginbal and regicnal brands.
Successful execution of this strategy will
dapend on the Group’s ability {o leentify
sujtable management opporunitiss,
sacure contracts on suitabie contragtual
terms and ensure that contractual
commiiments are met and ratained going
forward,

The Group has daveloped a management
team in the Middle East reglon that has
tha riecessary skills and resources i
pursue this efement of the Group's
strategy. A structured process for
acquiring new centricts has been
implementad and a priority 18 to ensure
that the critical roles are filed and
operational management is integrated
into the Group system.

Joint venturag and
subsidlariss with minority
sharahnldare

The Group has enfered inte a number of |

Jolnt ventures in certhin markets and is
thersfore subject to the risk of non-
parformanca on the part of the minarity
pariners especially when the strateglc
objestives of the partners aré not fully
aligned.

For thesa joint venlures, the Group has
appolnted representatives who are,
assigned responsibiitles o manage the
relafionship with the joint veniura
parinars in arder to enhance the
allgnment of business ohjeclives,

Manage the relationship with the joint
venture partners in ordar to enhance the
alignment of business objectives,

Treasury rlok

. The Group trades In numerous

international curransias but reports its
Fnanclal results in sterling. Flustuatlons in
currency sxchange rates may sither be

| aceretive or dilutive to the Group’s

reported trading results and the Group's
net asset value. Unhedged interest

rats exposyras pose a risk o the Group
when interest rates rlss, resulting In
ereased Eouis of funding and an mpact
on overall financle! performance, Gradit
risk arizes from the risk of financial loss If
a financial counterparty faila to mest its
contractual obligations in respect of its

Marnage foraign currancy transactions
axposurs , interest rate risk, and credit
risk.

44




doposits or short-term Investments.

Foreign currancy transactions exposure
is primarlly managed through funding of

| purchases from oparating income

streams arfsing In the same currasicy,
Interast rate hedges are used to marage
interest rate risk o the extent that the
perceivad castis considered to outwelgh
the benefit from the flexibiity of varlable
rate borrowings, The Group actively

‘[ monltors the need and timing of such

hadges. invesiments in shori-term
instruments are with counterparties
approved by the Board taking into
account the counterparty's credil rating
and g maximum limit as to the amount
thet may be deposiied.

Tax risk

The Group's businesses opsrate in
numarous fax jurisdlctions, Changes in
tax laws In any of those Jurisdictions may
have advarse consequances on the
Group's profits. Similady the Group’s
interpretation and application of various
{ax faws may be challenged, Tax
authorilias in man Jurisdictlons are
increasing thelr focus on corperate lax
affalrs In order to maximize tax racelpts.

The Group seaks o minimize tax rizk by
ensuring that appropriate accounting
systems, processas and inlernal contrals
are In place to ensure that taxes are
calculated accurately and pald on g
timaly kasis, in compliance with tax
leglslation, A co-operative approach is
undertaken in respect of provision of
information to tax authorities during tax .
audits and investigations, and externat
tax advisors are engaged in each tax
Jurlediction where necessary to advise
on such maiters, and to give guidance

on the implementation of any changes in |

tax legislation. Full review of tax
implications Is carried out prior to
urderaking any transactions involving
new activities ar structural changes, and
axternal tax planning advice 18 oltained
where appropriate. The Board and Audit
Commitiee receiva reguler updates on
{ax managament issues,

Minimize tax risk.

Compliance and litlgation

The Group operatas in many Jurisdiclions
and fs expesed to tha risk of non-
complignce with increasingly complex
statutory end regulatory requirements. in
addition the Group may be at risk of
litlgation from varloug partles with

which It Interacts, either though diract
contractusl arrangements or fram the
provision of services. |n certain countrias
where the Group operates, paricularly in
emarging markets, lecal practices and
the lagal envirenment may be such thaf it

Monitor changes in tha regulatory
anviranmant in which it cperates, Identify
its compliance obligations and implement
approprigte somplance pregrammes end
tas progesses In place to manage the
risks associated with Its various
contractual rsfationships.

45 .




8 somatimes afficu for the Group %
enforce ifs legal rights.

The Group continuas fo monitor changes
in the regulatory envirohment in which

it oparates, identfy its compliance
obligations and implemant appropriaie
compliance programmaes end has
presesses in place to manage tha risks
assoclated with is various contractual
telationships, These include
comprehensive policies for efhics and
businass conduet, antl-corruption and
bribery, gifts and hospitality ang |
charitable donations, There Is training for
reisvant staff, .

Safety, health and
shvirenment

As a significant property owner and
oparator of hotels in multiple jurisdictions,
the Group Is exposed to a wide range of
regulatory requirements and ctiigationa
suncemning the heath ang safaiy of
employess, visitors and guests. Failure o
implemeant and malntain sufficient
conirels regarding hesfth and safety
Isgues could expose the Group to
significant sanctions, both civil and’
criminal, finansial penaities and

rapulational demags.

The Group has established and
maintains health and safety and
snvirenmental management sysisms that
are aligned with the requirements of 150
14501 and OHSAS 18004, By working &
British standards, the Group is commifled
& working 1o the highes? standards of
haalih and safety and to an
internationally accredited system.

Work ta the highes{ standards of health
and safety anc o an internatienaily
aseredited system,

Intelectual proparty rights
and brands

Fulure development wikl, in par, be
dependsnt on the recognition of the
Group's brands and perception of the
valugs inherent in those brands.
Consislent delivary of produst quaiity i
vitally important to Influencing consumer
prefarence end creating and maintaining
value percaption. Historicaily the Group
has mainly cperatad proparties which it
awns. The trend lowards managing
third-party praperties, primarily In the
Middle East region increases the risk that
produet quality may not ha deliversd in
accordance with the Group's standards,
Thiz may increasa the Group's exposure
to liligallon, Ingrease risks io reputation,
raduce revenues and become an -
Inhiiting fastor or engoing development,

Substantial invesiment continues to be
mada in pretecting the Group's brands

‘from misuse and infringsment, by way of

trade mark registralion and domaln name

Frotact the Group's brands

from misuse and infringement, by way of
trade mark registration and domain name
protection and ensure maintenance of
etandards by davelaping strang working
relationships with hotel owners and
underaking regular monitoring of servics
Halivery, .

protection, Management seeks fo gnsura
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maintanance of standards by developing
sirong woerking relationships with hetel
owness and undertzking regular
matitoring of service delivery.

Properly ownoréhlp

The Group's slretegy is o be both owner
and manager of hote! proparties. Growth
of the Group's portfalio of swaed assets
Is depardant on the avallablifty of
suitable developmant sitas, acquisitions
and agccass to funding. A limit on such
opporiunities may have a negative impact
on future operational grofitability,
Property ownership requires angoing
investment in the form of preventative
maintenance, refurbishment, significant
capltal expanditure and product
develogment. There is also the possible
loas of caplia! due to unlnsured events
and reductions i asset velues as a rasult
of demographiz changes in the markets
in which the proparties ate located.

The Group continues to develop property
specific asset management plans which
focus on tha capltal requirements of each
proparty In terms of tegular malrtenance
and praduct enhancement. The Groug -
has rigorous menagement systems o
ranftor major capital projects to ensure
they are propery managed and delivered
&h time and within budgeted parametars,

Insurance

Not all risks ara Insured, either becayse
the caver is not avadiable In the merket or
that zover fa not available on
cammaercially viable terms. The Group is
exposed to the risk of cover not being
continually available. Availabllity may be
influsnced by factors outside the Group's
controf, which could raduce the market's
undarwriling capacity, breacdth of policy
coverage or simply make the cost of
cavar too expensive, The Group could be
expesed to unlnsured third-pary claims, -
[0s5 of revenua or raductlon of fixed
assat .

values which may, In turn, have an
adverse effect on Group profitability, cash
flows and ability to satisfy banking
covenants,

The Group's insurance requirements are
regulariy reviewad to ensure that the
tover obtained is appropriate to s risk
wrofife and afier taking Inte astount the
level of retained risk the Board conslders
lo be appropriate, reiative 1o the cost of
tover avallable in the market place,
Insurence covers are arranged with a -
varlety of insurers 1o ensure that
arrangements are not overly
concentrated an a imited number of
carriers. Choice of insurance

cartlers is dapendant on satisfaction of a
number of relevant fectors including a
raview of the Insurers’ secusity ratings.

The Group's Ingurance raquirements are
reqularly reviowed to ensure that the
caver obtained is epproprizte to #s risk
profile, - . :

Insurance covars are arranged with a
varlety of ingurers to ensure that
arrangemenis are not overly concentrated
on & limited number of carfers.

Information Techneology
systems and Infrasfructure

L.

In order to maintain its compelitivansss -
within the market glace the Group will

need to ansure its IT systems deliver tha
necessary frading plaiferms and provide

The Group invests In systams that are
trivd and testad so that as much -
operational resilience as possibie, cost
constdaralions permitting, can be

management with accurate and timely

obtained, Investment '8 made In robust
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infarmation.

infrastructure technology fo provids &
reliable operating platferm. Crisis
managament and disasier recovery
plans are in place for business eritical
systema, Management regulady reviews
iT requirements and risks to prioritiza
implementaticn of changas and
Improvements,

Data privacy

A significant proportion cf the Group's
eperating revenus is recelved from
customers through credit card
transactiong and the Group has an
abligation to keep sacure customars’

During the last yaar the Group has
committed significant resources to
achisvermnaent and maintenance of the
necassary T infrastructure, operafing
controls and tralning asscclatad with

credit card and other perscnal detalis
Non-compliance with daila privacy
regulations, which differ by Jurisdiatian,
coyid result in fines and/or other
demages bieing incurred. Additionslly, the
peyment card industry requires the Group
to comply with data securlty standards
{PCIDSS) as & condition in eredit cand
merchant agresments. Faijure to tomply
with these standards could result in
contractual penaliles and withdrawal of
cradit cerd paymeast fusiites.

data privacy apg PGRLDSS,

(c} Minority Shargholders

Indicate the principal risk of the exercise of contralling shareholders’ votlng power,

Rlsk to Minorlty Sharehinlders

stockholders

Althcugh there are cerlain torporate governance measures In piaga, the combined shareholdings of the principal
wil be able to elect a majority of tha dlractors, control the managsment and policies through the Board and
affatt corporgta Iransactlons without the concurrance of the minority stockholdars, except in fimiled circumstancas provide
in the Corporation's Articlas of Incerporation or, By-Laws, and CG Manua! pursuant to laws réquiring mmorsty shareholder

aggroval for cerlain Zranaacﬂans

3} Gontroi System Set Up

{a) Company

Briefly describe tm control aystems set up to aysead, marage and centrol the maln Issuals faced by the

company:

Risk Exposure

Risk Assessment
{Menltoring and Measurement Process)

Risk Management Control
{Btructures, Procedures, Actions Taken}

Credit Risk

Exposure to credit risk is monitorad on an
cngoing basis. Credit shecks are baing
parformed on all clients requesting credil
cver certain amounts,

_ CredltIs neot extended beyond authorized

limits, established whare approptiate threugh
gonauliation with &
professional credii veiting organization,

Credit granted is subject o reguiar review, to
ansure |t remains congistant with the clients’
current eredit worthinses and appropriats to

The Corporation’s hoiding of cash and money market
placermanis sxpose the Corporation to credil risk of the
counierparty If the counterparty is unwilling or unable
fo Tulfilt i#s cbiigations and the Corporation
conssdguently saffers financlal loss, Cradi rsk
management involves eniering inte financis! .
transasiions only with counierpariies with acceptabla
eredit rating. The freasury policy aets aggragate cradit
lirits of any one countarpanty ang management
annually revigws the exposure limits and credit ratings
of the counierpdrtles

Racaeivabla batance is being monitutad an & raguiar
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the antlcipated volume of business,

hasis to ensure timely sxeculion of necessary
“intervention efforts,

Ligquldity Risk

Management closaly monitors the Carporation's future

and contingent obligations and seta up required cash .
reserves as necessary In accosdance with intemal
requirereants.

Markat Risk

Fiaanclal

(1) Room Rates

The flsk fram rosm rate changes relates to
the Corporation’'s abilily fo racovar highar
operating costs through price Increases fo
customers, which may be limitad due to the
competilive pricing environment that sxists in
the Phiiippine hotsl Industry and tha
wiliinghess of customers to avail of hotsl
rooms at higher prices.

(2) Interest Refs Rigk

The Corporation has ne Intersst-bearing
debi obligatiens to third partiss. As such, the
Cosporation has minimal Interest rate risk.

(3) Farsign Currency Risk

assets end financing fachities
extended to the Corporation were mainly
denominated in Philippine peso and have
minimal transactions in foreign currency. As
such, the Cerperation’s Toreign currency risk
is minimal. ‘

(1} Room Rates.
The Corporation minimizes its expesure to risks in
changes in room ratas by signing contracts with short
period of expiry so this gives the Corporation the
flexibllity to adjust its room rafes in pecardance lo
market condilions. Also, there are minimal changas.in
room rales in the hote! Industry.

(2) Inferest Rate Risk
The Ceorporafion has no

interest-bearing  debt
obligations to third parties, ’

(3} Forsign Currency Risi
The Corporation’s forelgn currency rlsk Is minimal.

{b} Group

Briefly dascribe the control systems set up fo asseas, manage and control the main Issue’s faced by the

company:

Risk Expogura

Pracesas)

Risk Assessment
{Monttoring and Measurement

Risk Managsment Control
{8tructures, Procedures, Actions
Taken)

Events that adversely
Impaet domastic or
international travel

profitabliity.

-Sustalned levels of occupancy and room
ratee can bo adversely affected by events
that reduce domestic or Intamational
travel. Such events mey include acts of
tarrorism, war or perceived Increased risk
of armad confiict, spidemics, natural
disastarg, Increased cost of travel and
industsial action. These avents may

be localized o a particular country, ragion
or could have & widar Internationat
parspective, aspecially where a large
alrport, far example, 1s a major hub for
warldwide travel. Reduced demand will
Impact en revenuss and operational

The Group has in placs contingency and
recovery plans o eneble il to respond to
malor incidents or crises,

Political and economis
developments

Major evants affesting either economic or
politizal stabllity on a global and regionat
tevel represent an sxposure to the Group.
Economic events could Include
recasalonary pressures which would have
ar impact on the Group's revenuss,
oparating costs and profitability. Potitical
¢k include changes In the regulatory
savirenment 7a which the Group's
business activities operate, including

Wany of these rigks are beyond the

control of the Group and the tme-frames
for daveloping appropriate Hek
management approaches can offes be
vary short. Management is continually
vigilant to political and economic
developments and seeks to identify
emerging risks at the eadiest oppertunity. |
The Greup implements gwnarship
structures, Internal controls and takes
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restrictions on the repairiation of funds or
control over the ownership of assels.

such steps available to it to minimize
thesa exposures {o the greatest exient
possible.

The hotel Industey supply
and demand cycle :

j

The hotel industry operates in an
inherently cyclical markel place. A
weakening of demand, or ah increase In
market room supply, may iead to
downward pressure on ropm rates which
In turn would ipad to a negative effect on

-pperatlng performanse.

The Group has management syslems in
piace designed io create flaxibility in the
operating cost base so as to optimiza
operating profits in volatie trading
cendilions, such as the profit protection
plans initiated during previcus market
down-turns.

Human rescurces

T
|
1
|
;
\
|

Execulion of the Group's sirategy
depends on is abiily to atiract, develop
and retain employaes with the
eppropriata skills, experience and
aptitudea,

The Gradp has & sireng service culiure
supported by recognition systems,
sompensation and benefits

‘arrangements, training and development

programmes. The Group has dppropriale
systems for recrisiment, reward and
compensaticn and performance
managament. Labor relations ara activaly
managed on a ragianal and iocal basis.

Managament agreements

An slemant of the Group's sirategy
is to seiectivaly increase the number af
management contracls to operate hotels

owned by third-parties, primarily focusing |

on the Middle East regicn. In this regard,
the Group faces competition from
established global and reglanal brands,
Buccessfyl exscution of this strategy will
depend on the Group's abliity to identify
suitable management opportunities,
sequre cortracts on suitable contractust
terme and ensure that contractual
commitments are met and retained going
forward, )

The Group has developed a management
team In the Middle East region that has
the necessary skilis and resources o
pursue this element of the Group's
strategy. A siructurad process for
acauirlng new contracis has been
implemented and & priority i8 to ansure
that the critical roles are fhied and
operational management is integrated
inte the Sroup system,

Joint ventures and
subsidiaries with minority
shareholders

The Group has entered into a rumber of
jaint ventures in certain markets and s
therefore subject to the risk of non-

pedormance on the part of the minority

partners aspecially when the strategic
objectives of the pariners are not fully
slignad, :

Fer these jolni vanturas, the Group has
appointed representatives who are
assigned responsibiliies to manags the
relstionship with the joind venture pariners
in order to enhanse the alignment of
business objectivas,

Treasury rigk

The Group trades in numerous
intarnatioral currancies but repods ite
financial resulis in sterling, Fluctuations In
currency exchange rates may efther be
accrative or gilutive to the Group's
reporiad trading rasulis and the.Group's
net assel vaiue. Unhedged intsrest

rate exposures pose a risk to the Group
when intarast rafes. rise, resulting in
increased costs of funding and an impact
an avarall financial performance, Cradit
rigk arises from the risk of financiai loss if
& financial counterparty iails to meat Ha
contractyal obligations in respact of its
deposits or short-term Investments.

Foreign currancy transactions axposurs is
primariy managed through funding of
purchases from opareting income
streams grising in the same currency.
interest rote hadges are usad to manage
intarast rate risk o the exteni that the
perceivad cost is considered to outweigh
tha bensfit from the fexibilly of variable
rale borrowings. The Group actively
moniters the need and fiming ¢f such
hedges. Investments in shori-term
instruments are with counterpartios
approved by the Board taking into
account the counterparty’s cradit rating
and a maximumm limit as fo the amount
that mey be deposited.

Tax risk

The Group's businesses cperate In
numercus tax jurlsdictions. Changes in
tax lawsa In any of those jurisdictions may
have adveise sonsequences on the
Group's profits, Stmilardy the Group's
interprefation and application of various
tax laws may be ghalienged. Tax

The {3roup seeks to minimize tax risk by
ensuting that apprapriate accounting
systams, processes and internal conlrois
are in place to ensura that taxes are
ealculated acsurately and paid on &
timely basls, in compliance with tax
legisiatipn. A co-operative approach is
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atthoritias In'man Jurisdictions are
Increasing their focus on corporate fax
alfairs in order to maximize tax recaipts,

underiaken in respect of provision of
information {o tax authoritles during tax
audits and investigations, and sxtarnal
tax advisors are engaged in each tax
jurisgiction where necessary to advise
on such matters, and to glve guidance
an the implarmentation of any ehengas in
{ax leglalation. Full raview of tax
implizations is carried oud prior to
undertaking any transactions invdlving
new activities or strustural changes, and
axtarnal lax planning advics is obtained
where appropriste. The Board and Audit
Committae recelve regular updatss on
tax management issues,

Compllance and litigation

The Group opsarates In many jurisdiclions .

and is exposad to tha risk of non-
compliance with Increasingly complex

" siatutory and regulatory requirements, In

addition the Group may be at risk of
ftigation from various pariies with

which it interacts, either through girect
contraciual arrangsments or from the
provision of services. In cerain countries
whera the Group operates, paricularly In
emerging marksts, local pracfices and the
legal environment may be such thatitls
somelimes difficult for the Group o
enfarce ity lagal rights.

The Group continues to moniter changes
in the regulatary environment in which

it oparates, identify its compliance
obligations and implamant appropriate
compliance programmas and has
procasses In place to manage the risks
associatad with s various sontraciual
relationships. These include
comprehensive policies for ethics and
buginess conduct, antl-corruption and
bribery, gifts und hospitality and
charitable donations. There is training for
refevant staff.

Safety, health and
enviranment

Ag a significant proparty owner and
oparator of hotels In multiple Jurisdictions,
the Groug ls exposed lo a wide range of
reguiatory requiramants and abligations
concerning the haaith and safety of
employees, visitors and guasts. Fajiure to
implsment and maintain sufficiant
tantrols ragarding heaith and safety
issues could expose the Group to
significant sanctions, both civil and
eriminal, financial penaliias and
raputational damage.

The Group hiag establishad and maintains
health and safety and environmental
management systems that are aligned
with the requiraments of IS0 14001 and
OHSAS 18001. By worklng fo British
standards, the Group Is committed to
waorking to the highest standards of heslth
and safely and to en internationally
accredited system, Details of progress
made in Improving the Group's
managemaent syslams are contained In
the Corporate Saclal Responslbifity report
on pages 29 to 31,

intellectual property rlghts
and brands ;

Future development wil, In part, be
dependent on the recegnition of the
Greup's brands and perception of the
valugs inherent n those brands.
Consistert delivery of product quality Is
vitalty important to Influencing consumer
preferense and craating and maintaining
value percepiion, Historically the Group
has reainly opsrated properties which it
owns. The trand towards meanaging
third-party propertlas, primasdly in the
Middle East raginn increases the risk that

‘product quality may not be dellverad in

accordance with tha Group’s standards,
This may Increase the Group’s exposure
fe litlgation, Increase risks to reputation,
reduce revenues and becomes an
inhiblting factor an ongelng development.

Substential investment continues {o be
made in protecting the Group's brands
from misuse and infringement, by way of
irace mark registration and domaln naima |
protection. Managerant segks {0 ensure
maintenance of standards by daveloping
sirang working relafionships with hotel
owners and undertaking reguiar

manitoring of service delivery.

Progerty ownerahip

The Group's strategy Is to ba both owner
and rmanager of hotel properties, Growth
of the Croup's portfolio of owned assats

The Group centinuas 1o develop property
specific asset manegement plans which
fogus on the capital requirements of each
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is.

dependent on the avaliability of sultable
developmeant sites, acquisitions and
access to funding. A lmil on such
opporturiies may heve a negativa Impact
on future operational profitability. Property
awnarship reguires ongaing investmant in
the form of preventative malntenance,
refurbishment, significant capitai
axpenditure end product devetopment,
Thets Is also the pessible luss of capital
dus fo uninsured events and reductions in
agaet values as a resull of demographic
changes in the markats in which the
properies.are jocaied.

progerty in terms of regufar mainfenance
and product enhancement. The Group
has rigorous management systems Lo
monitor major capital prajects 1o ensure
they are proparly managed and defivered
on time and within budgeted paramelers,

insurance

Noi all risks are Insured, efther because
the cover i siot available inthe market or
that cover I8 not avaliabla on

‘commercially viable tarms. The Group ja

expesed 1o the rsk of cover not being

continually available. Avaiiabliily may ba
infiuenced by factors outaide the Group's
control, which could reduce the market's

{ underwriting capasity, breadth of pelicy

soveragé or simply rake the cost of
cover tod expanslys, The Group could be
exposed o uninsured third-party claims,
lss of revenue or reduction of fixed asse!
vaiues which rmay, In furn, have &n
adverse effect on Group profitatiity, cash
flows and abiity to safisfy banking
covenanls.

The Croup's insurance requiremants are
regularly reviewed o ensure that the
cover chtained is appropriate te its risk
profiie and after taking inte account the
lavel of refalned risk the Board considery
o be apprapriate, relative to the cost of
cover available in the market plags.
insurance covers are arranged with a
vaitety of insurers to ensgre that
arrangements are not ovarly concantrated
on a fimited

number of carriers, Ghoice of insurance
carriers is dependent on satisfaction of a
numbper of ratsvant faslors including a

review of the insurers’ security ratings.

Information Technclogy
systoms and Infrastructure

In otdar to maintaln its competitivanass
within tha marks? place the Group wil
naad o ansure its 1T systems dsliver the
necessary trading platforme and provide
managemant with accurate and timely
information. !

The Group invas!s in systems thal are
tried and tested so that as much
operational resilience as possible, cost
sohsiderations permitting, can be
oblained. Invesiment is made In robust
Infrastrusture technology to provide a
raliable operating piatform. Crisis
managemant and disasiar recovery
plans arg in place for business critical
systems. Management reguiarly reviews
IT requirements and risks (o prioriiize
Implemaniation of changes and
fmorovemenis.

Data privacy

A significant proportion of the Group's
oparaling revenué is received from
customaere throlgh cregit card
traneactions and the Group has an
obligation to keép secure sustomers’
credit card and other personal detafls.
Non-gompliance with data piivacy
regulations, which differ by jurisdiction,
sould resultin fines and/or othar
darmages being inousred, Additdonally, the
psyment card industry requires the Group
to comply with data securily standards
{PCI-D35) as a condition in credi card
merchant agreements. Fajiure to comply
with these standards could result in
contractual penalties and withdrawal of
¢redit carg payment facililies.

During the last year the Group has
committed signiticani resources to
schizvement and maintenance of the
necassary (T Infrastructure, operating
controls and training asscclated with
data privacy and PLI-DSS.

&2




{t) Commitiee

ldentlfy the commiitee or ahy other body of corporate governance In charge of faying down and
suparvising these control machaniams, and give detalis of s functions: - ' '

Committoe/Unit

Cantrol Mechanilam

Detalfs of its Funstion

Board of Directors

The CG Manual provitdes thet i 1s the duty
of the Board to Identify key rizk areas 2nd to
monlter this factors with due diligence to
gnuble the Corporation fo anticipete and
prepare for possible threais (o fis
operational and finaneial viability.

These risks have been identified as: liquidity
tisk, cradit risk, and market risk.

The Board has overall responsibillty for the
estabilsnmant and  oversight of 1thse
Corparatlan’s risk managemaent

framework, The Board I8 responsible for
developing snd monitoring the Carporation’s
risk management peliciss. The - Board
identifies all lssues affecting the operations

| of the Corporation.

The Corporation’s risk managemant poilcies
arg eslablished to identify and analyze the
riske faced by the Corporation. to set
eppropriate risk limits and controls, and o
monitor risks and adhergnce to limis. Risk
management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changss in
market condilions and the Corporafian's
activities. All risks faced by the Corporation
are incorporated in the annual operating
budget. Mitigating strategles and proceduras
are gisp devised to address the risks that
Inevitably occcur so as not to affect the
Corporation's operations and  detriment
forecasted resulis. The Corporatien, through
Its training and managament siendards and
proceduras, aims o develop a disciplined
and constructive control  environment in
which all employess understand their

roles and obligaticns.

Audlf Committae

The Board constituled the Corporation’s
Audit Committes to assist the Board in
fuifiliing ta owvarsight responsibility for tha
Corporation's curporate governance
process, Ineluding evaluation of
maragament's proceszs to assess and
manage the Corporation's enterprise risk
isgues,

The Beard constifuted the Corporalion’s
Audit Commiites to assist the Board In
fulfiling its oversight responsibllity far the
Corporation's corporate governance procass
relating 1o the: a) quality and integrity of tha
Corporation’s  financial  staterments  and
financiai  reporing  process  and  the
Corperation’s systems of internal accounting
end financial controls; b) perfarmance of the
internal auditors; ¢) annual Independent audit
of the Corporation's financlal statements, the
engagement of the independent auditors and
the sveluation of the independent auditors’

qualifications, Independence and
parformance; d) compliance by the
Corporation wlth lagal sand regulatory

requirements, Including the Corporation'a
disclesure  control and  procedures; )
evluation of managemens process o
mnssess  and menage the Corporation's
enterprise risk issues; and f) fulfliment of the
other responsibiliies set out by the Board,
The Audlit Committes ahall also prepare the
reports required to be inctuded in tha
Corperation's annual report.

G. INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL

1) . Internal Gontrol System

Discloge the following Informatien pertaining to the Internal control eystam of the company:
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(&) Explain how tha Internal control system is defined for the company;

(b} A statement that the diractors have revigwed the effectiveness of the intarnal controt system and whather
thay conslder them effactive and adequats; '

{c) Pariod covared by the raview; o

{d) How often intarnal controle are reviewed and the diractors’ criteria for assessing the effectiveness of the
intarnal control system; and .

(o} Where no revisw was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.

For tha Corporalion, internal ecentrol means having an effective system of control that will ensure the intagrity of the-
financial raperts and protecilon of the nssats of the Corparations. According to the CG Marual, this is one of the duties of
{ns Managemaent, whith, in turn, is under the supervision of the Audit Commites. The Audit Commites, in turn, evaluates
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal sontral system as formulated by the Management,

The foliowing are the factors o be consldered, for the orpanizational and procedural controls of the Corporation, are the:
following: ’ .o U

nafure and somplexity of the business and the business culturs
volumae, size and complexity of transactions
degres of risk
degrae of ceniralization and delegation of authority
the exient of effectivensss of Information ieahnology
the extent of ragulatory compliance
I

moop T

Morsover, tha Charter mandates that the Corporstion shali have In pace an internal audit function which shall be
perdormad by an intema! auditor through which the Board, senior management, and sharehoiders shall ba provided with
reascrable assuranca that its key organizational and procedural contrals are effective, appropriate and complied with,

| .
Under the GG Manual, Management should formulate, under the supervision of the Audit Committee, the niles and
proceduses on financlal reporting and internal control in acserdance with the fallowing guidelines:

+  The axtant of s responsibilify in the preparation of the financial statamants of the Corparation, with the corresponding
dellneation of tne raspbnsibiities that pertain to the external auditar, should be clearly explained; -

s An effectve system of intarnal control thet wili ansure the Integrity of the financial reports and protection of the assate
of the Carporation shc}uld be maintaingd; -

+  On fhe basis of the approved sudit plans, intsrnal audit examinations should cover, at the minimum, the evaluation of
the adequacy and effsctiveness of controls that zover the Corporation's governance, eperations and Information
systema, including the reliability and Integrity of financial and eperatlonal information, sffsctiveness and efficiency of
aperations, protection of aasats, and compliance with contracts, lews, rules and, regulations;

s The Corporation should consistently comply with the finanslal reporting raguirements of the SEC,

s -The Infernal Auditer should submit io the Audit Committee and Management dn annual report on the internal audit
deparment's activities, responsibilities and performance refalive to the sudit pians and strategiss as approved by the
Audit Commitiee. The annual report should ingiuds signlficant risk expesures, contred issuss and such ather matters as
may be needed or requested by tha Board and Management,

The minimum internal senirel mechanisms for menagement cperational rasponsibllty shall center on the on the GEO,
balng uifimately accountable for the arganizational and procedural contrels of the Corporation. On the basls of appreved
augit plans. the internal gudit examinations cover, at the minimum, the svaluation of the edequacy and effectiveness of
controls that cover the Corporation's governance, operations and Informalion systems, in¢luding the relfability and integrlly
of financial and perational Information, effectiveness and efficlency of operations, protsction of assets, and compliance
with sontracts, laws, rules and, regulations,

The Group's internal Auditer conducts an intsrmnal audit review of the Corporation annualy, The formal audit report is -

aubmitied 10 the Audit Commites and to the Board. Based on tha result of the internal audit review, key controls and
management snviranment are sffective, Audit findings are few and indicale jow Haks {o the business overail,
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2) . internal Audlt

Rols, Scope and Internal Audit Function

Give & general description of the role, scope of the Internal audit work and gther details of the internal

gudlt function,
Indicate .
whether in- Name of Chlef
P house or Internal : .
Role Scope Outsoures Audttor/Auditing Reporting process
Internal Audit Firm
. Functlien i
An Intgrnal The scepa of the intars! audit In-house. The The interral audit | Ths Charter requires tha

auditer or & group
of inlerngl
audliers, through
which the Board,
‘genior
managersant, ghd
sharsholders shalt
be providad with
reasonehble .
assUrance that its
key organlzaticnal

L)

and pracedural )
conirols are

effective, (3)
appropriate, and (4}
complied with,

The intarna! augit
activities shail be
conducted In
aceordance with
the Standards for
the Profassional
Practice of
Internal Auditing,

shall at least cover the following:

an gvaluatlon of the
edequacy and elfectivanass
i controls pertaining fo the
govemnance, opsratons and
Infarmetion systems of the
Corparafion, including the
relfabilly and integrity of
financlal and cperational
information,

effectivensss and efficlency
of operatlons,

safsguarding of assets: and
4, complianca with
contracls, laws, riles and,
ragulations.

Board annually
appoints a Chisf
Audit Executive
whe gvarsess the
Internal augh of
the Corporation.

function of the
Corporation ls
currently being
performed by
Millennium &
Copthorne
Intarnational
Limbed ("MC",
which is based in
Singapore,
aithough MO s
nat engaged
directly by e
Corporation, Mr.
Yam Kit Sung,
the Chief Finance
Officer {*CFQ") -
and Compliance
Officer has been
dasigasted as
the Chief Audit
Exscutive of the
Corporation, and
is responsibie for
oversesing the
smrvice contract
with MCI {as
Intemat Auditor),
and tha overall
guality assurancs
of the interna
audit activities,
raporting to
senior
management amid
the Board
ragarding internal
auth activities,
and foliow-up of
angagement
results,

Internaf Auditor to submit
status reperis which
summarizes the
racommaendations of the
internal auditor, the
officars responsibie for
the Fmplementation of the
recommendations, and
the dates when such
recommendations shall
be implemented and
actomplished,

In edditign, the CG
Manua! requires the
internal Audftor to submit
1o the Audit Committae
and Mansgement and
anrual report on the
internal audit
departrent's activities, |
responsibilities and
parformance retative to. :
the audit plans and
sirategles as approved

by the Audit Commitiee.

Tha annual repart should
Inglude significant risk '
exposures, conirg]
issues and such other
matters as may ba
needed or requested by
tha Board and
Management.

The Internal Auditor
should certify that the
conduets his aclivities in
aceordance with e
international standerds
on the Professional
Praziice of internal
Auditing, If he doss net,
he shall disclose to the
Board and Management
the reasens why he has
not fully complied with
the said standards.
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Do the appointment andlor removat of the Internal Auditer or the accounting/auditing rm or corporation
towhlch the Internal audit function ls outsourced require the approval of the audit committea?

No. It is tha Board which appoints the Chisf Audit Executive who oversees the internal audit function of ths
Carporation. The appointmant and/or removal of the Chief Audit Exesutive or the accounting/auditing firm or
carporalion to which the internal audit functian is cutsourcad does not require the approval of the audit committes.

Discuss the intarnal auditors reporting relationshlp

Under the CG Manual, the Chisf Audit Executive should submit to the Audit Cemmittes and Management an
annual report on the Internal audit depariment's activities, responsibliities and psrformance relative to the audit
plans and stralegies, as approved by tha Audit Commities,

I addition, the Chartar requires. the Intemal auditor to submif status raperts which summarizes the
racommendations of the intsrmal audilor. The intsrnal audit funation i3 oulsourced to MCI. The intemal audit
examinations covar, at the minimum, the evaluation of the adegquasy and eHecliveness of controls that cover the
Corporation's govarnance, operations and information systems, including the refiability and intagrity of financial and
operational information, sffactiveness and eficiency of cperations, protaction of assets, and compliance with
sontracis, laws, rules and, reguiations.

Reslgnatlon,' Re-assignment and Reasunsg
Disclose any resignation/s or re-assignmeant of the Intamal audit staff {including those emplayed by the
third party auditing firm) and the reasen/s for them,

Name of Audit Staff Reason

N.A |

Other than the Chisf Audit Executive, the Corporation doas not have jts own internal audit staff, as the internal audit
function is outsourced to MG -

Pfagreas againat F!'l:'rns, lesues, Findings, and Examination Trends'

State the internal audit's p‘rogress agalnst plang, significant findings and examination trends.

! ' Internal audit work is carried out on 2n annual basis by the
| - Group internal Audit from Milisnnium & Copthorne Holels
Progress against Flans intgrnational Limited,
lssues Mo significant issues have been identified,
Findinga ' N significant findings such as fraud,
Internai audit carried out fulf audit cyele which tovered cash,
Examination Trends saley, purchases, health and sefety and athers,

[The relationship amang progrees, plans, lssues and findinge should be viewed as an internal controf reviaw cysle which
Involves the following step-by step activities: B '

1) Preparation of an audlt plan ingiusive of & timeline snd a milestones;
2} Conduct of examination basad on the plan; ’

3} Evaluation of the progress In the implemantation of the plan; ;

4) Documentation of ssuss and findings as a result of tha examination;
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5} Dstermination of the persuasive issuss and findings {'examinafion irends') based on singie year rasult

andf'or yegr-to-year results;

8) Conduct of the feregolng procedurss on a regular basis ]

Audlt Control Pulicies and Procedures

Digclose ail infornal audlt confrols, polloles, and procodures that have been establishad by the company
and the resulf of an assessment as to whethar the established contrals, policies and procedures have heen

Implemented under column implementation,’

Policies & Prosedures

Implementation

The Charter mandates that the Corgoration shall have in
place an Internal audit function which shall be performed by
an Internal audior frough which the Board, senier
managemenl, and shareholders shall be provided with
reasonable assurance that its key organizetional .and
procedural controls are effsctiva, appropriate and complied
with,

Under the CG Manual, Managamen! should formulate,
under the supervision of the Audil Cemmities, the rules.
and procedures on financial reporting and interna! controt In
accordance with the fellowing guidelines:

(1) The extent of its responsibillty in the preparation of the
fimancizl  staternents of the  Corporation, with the
cotrasponding dalinestion of the responsibiities that pertain
to the external audior, should be clearly explained;

(2) An effective system of internal control that will ensurs
the integrity of the flnancizl raports and protection of the
assety of the Corporetion should ba maintained;

(3) On the basls of the approved audit plans, internal audit
examinations should cover, at the minimum, the evaluation
of the adequacy and effectivenass of controis that cover the
Corporation's  governance, operations and Information
systemns, including the rellebllity ang integrity of financlal
and operational Information, effectiveness and efficlency of
operations, protection of assets, and compliance with
contracts, laws, rites and, reguiations;

(4) The Corporation should consistently comply with the
financial reporiing requirements of the SEC;

{5} The Iaternal” Awditor should submit to the Audit
Commiitea and’ Menagement an annual report on the
internal audit department's activittes, responslbilities and
perfarmance refative to the audit plans and siretegias as
approved by the Audit Commlites, The annual report should
intluda significant risk exposures, conirol Issues and such
other matters as may ba nasded or requesied by the Board
and Managament. . }

The Group's Internal Audltors, supervised by the Chlef Audit
Executive, conduct an Internal audit review of the
Cerporatfon annually, The formal audit repart is submitted fo
the Audit Commitiee and to tha Board. Based on the resuit
of the internal audit raviaw, key conirols and managsmant
environment are effactive. Audit findings ere few and
indicate fow risks to the business overall.

Mechanlam and Safeguards

State the mechanism established by the company to safsguard the Independencs of the auditors,
financlal analysf, investment banks and rating agencies {example, restriction on trad!ng In the company's
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shares and imposition of internal approval procedures for these transactlons, limitation on tha non-audit
services that an external auditor may previde in the company);

Finaneial Invesiment

Audltors (internal and Extarnal} Analysts Banks Rating Agencias

Ty Tha Audit Committes shall evaiants end determme e A, N.A, N.A.
non-audit work, if any, of the external auditor, and revisw
pericdically the non-gudit fees paid to the external audiior
in relation to their significance 1o the total annual incoms of
the external auditer and 1o the Corporatlon’s overall
consultancy axpénses, Tha committes shall disallow any
non-audit work that will conflict with his dutles as an
external auditer or may pose a threal fo his independence,
The non-audit work, if allowed, should be disciosed in the
Gorparation's annual report;

(2) The Audlt Cormmittee shal) enstire that, in the
performance of the work of the Internal Auditor, he shail ba
rea fram ihterfarence by outside pariss.

{3} Tha Board, aftar consuliations with the Audit
Commitiea, shail recommand tg the stockholders an
external auditor duly acoredited by the SEC who shall
underiake an Indapendent audit of the Corporation, and
shall provide an objective agsurance on the manner by
which the financial staternents shall be prapzred and
presented to the stockholders. The external auditer shall
nat, at the sames tims, provide Internal audit services to the
Corporation. Non-audit work may be given to the external
auditor, provided it does not conflicf with His duliss as an
independent auditor, or does not pose a threat to his
Independence,

(4} # the external auditor resigns, Is dismissed or ceases to
perform: his sarvices, the reascn/s for and the date of ’
effactivity of such action shall be raporiad In the
Corporation’s annual and current reponts. The reporf shall
include a discussion of any disagreement between the
exisral audifor and the Corporatien on secounting
principies or practices, financial disclosures or gudit
procadurag which the former audior and tha Corporation
falled to resolve satisfactorlly. A peaiiminary copy of the
said report shall be glven by the Corporation to the axternal
auditor befors its subm?ssﬁsr.

(8) lf the extarnal auditor batievas that any statement made
in an annual raport, mfua'mahon stetement or any report
flied with the BEC or any raqulatory body during the period
of his engagement Is Incorrect or incomplete, he shak give
his comments or visws on the matter in the said raporis,

(8) The external auditor should be rotated or changed every
five (5} years or earlier, or the slgning perner of the
extornal auditing firm assigred o the Ccrporatzon should
be changad with the sama frequency

(h) Stats the officers {preferably tho Ghalrman & CGEQ] who will have to attest to the company's full
compifances with the SEC Code of Corporate Governanse. Such confirmation must state ali dlrectors,
officers, and amployess of the company have bean given proper inatruction on their respective duties as
mandated by the Code and that Internal mechanisms are In place to ensure that compliance.
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The CG Manual provide the! the Soard shail appoint & Compliance Officer and an Assistant Compliance Officer who shall’ ”
report directly to the Beard. The Gompliance Officar, or In his absence, the Assistant Compllanca Officer, shalt perform the
following dutles;

(1) Menltor compfience #y the Carporation with the CG Manugl, Cede of Corporate Governance, Securities Regulation
Gode, Corperation Tode, and other applicable rulas and ragulations; and if any vicletions are found, to reporf tha
masfter to the Beard and recommend the impealtion of the propar penalty. .

{2) Appear befora the SEC when sumimened in relafion to compliance with the Code of Corpurate Governance.

{3) Issue a certification that every January 30th of the year on the extent of the Corparation's compliancs with the: Code !‘ar
the completed yaar and, if thare are any devietions, explain the reascn for such daviation. .

The CG Manual alao provides that tha reports or disclosures required under the CG Manual shall be preparad and
submitied Io the SEC by the responslble Committes or officer through the Corpareilcn s Gomplisnce Officer, Assistant
Compllansa Officer, or Corporate Secretary.

ROLE OF STAKEHOLDERS
1) Blaclose the Corporation's policy and activities relative to the following:

Palicy

Activition -

To offer quality and
innovative products,
unhsurpassed service and
-1 value for money,

Cugtomers’ Welfare

The Corporation continues lo improve the services,
praducts, and faciitles thet it offers to its customars.

The Corporation established a team of trained
employees 1o respond te possible disasters ke firs,
earthguakses and othar accidents cur guasis and
employesas might experience during their stay In the
Motel. Instructers from Philippine Nationat Aed Cross
trained the Hotel staff with basic fira! ald maragemant
and CPR (cardio-pulmonary resuscitation) while a team
from the local fire department taugh! the employees
with pracadires in emergency rescue transfar and use
of fire fighting equipment.

To select based on guality
of work and thel abillty o
complement our
commitment to
environmant, health and
safaty.

Suppliericortractor
selection practics

The Hotel purahases its raw material for food and
beverage from boih local and forsign suppliers, |

To continualy seek ways 1o
ensure a better quality af
Hite far the community and
environmaent whare wa lva,
work and play,

Enviranmantally friendly
valug-chain

{1} Energy and waler r:ensérvar.'on

The redustion of working days for adminlstrative
personnel or offices aims not enly o achieve work life
balance but alsa to reduce the hotel's energy
consumption. A Hotel wide campaign on

the hast cost management practices of deparimants
aducates and inspires asswciates to conssrve and
preserve supnlies and resoyrces. Enginesring
[Departmant haips in devising ways tg improve
elactrinity consumption by using

halogen and fluorescent lighty, Reom guests ars alse
encouraged to save water and faundry detergant
consumption by re-using bed lineny and lowals when

possible, Scraps and old nawspapers ara recycled into

flowers and pots to decorate cur restaurants and other
sections of
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the hotel,

{2} Earth Hour .

The Hotal actively participates in the annual Earth Hour,
a worldwide campaign of turning off the lights for an
hour in efforls to increase awaransgs on energy
consumgiich and tlimate change. -

Tris event is spearfieaded by the World Wildlife Fund
{WWF), an (nternational environmental advancament
group and reported to have remarkable drop in ensrgy
usaga in key cities of particlpating countries.

Community inferacion

To zarve tha somimunity we
operate in so as {u ¢reale a
bettar place for all,
especially caring for

the less fortunats,
enhanging youth
deveicpment, premoting the
ars and conserving the
enviresnment, -

(%} Blood lalting .
The Hote! is a consistent recipient of the Phillpping
National Red Cross Meriterious Service Award for its
continuous participation in biood letting activities. The
Corporation has organized gight blood donation
aclivitias since 2008 and have forwarded a total of
87,180 ml of blood to Red Cross.

{2) Readiness for carser

The Hots! offers educational experiences and hotetlife
skills training lor sludents intarested t have carsers in
hospitafity induséry. As contribution to the industry, the
Corporation helps prepare future hoteliers with the
compsatencles and atiitudes 1o make them confident and
fit lo explore thelr lobin the markeiplace, Students from
vatious unlversities and training centers across the
metro and provinces have seen and exparisnced the
Hotel standards in terms of cleantinees and service and
end the year-2012 with 47 gradusting studants fully
equlpped tha § star way. ’

(3) Job vpporlunities )

The Hotal is a fong-standing figure of stability providing
caresr opporiunities for professionals and paopls
racently graduatad frem achocl, We have provided
employment sacurity Pasay Cily and other neighboring
cities and provincas thus providing thelr families and
semmunities decent way of living.

(4) Funds for charitable institutions

The Hotal capitailzes on accumulating funds to support
our beneficiaries during Christmas seasen and Chinese
New Yaar, A wishing weil Is placed at the Hotet lobhy
where gussts and smployees can share their piece of
good foriune lv scholars and less privileged familizs of
Pasay City through "Our Lady of Sorrows Qutreach
Foundation”. A fotal of PRR17,000,00 was forwarded to
tha foundation from iha proceeds of Chinese New Year
donation drive end PhP20,000 in check

from the Christmas wishing well. '

Pangarap Foundation, & shelter for streed children and
out of school youth of Pasay Clty s a donee institution
of the Hotel through its donatien box ptaced at Front
Desi where guests can donate upen chack-in anhd cut,
Charming chiidren from Children’s Joy Foundailon are
invited to participate in the Christmas carcling in the
Hatel from December 16-25, 2012. it gives them tha
opporiunity to exhibit their tatents, entertain our guesis
any gather sigpificant amount of donations from the
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‘hotel's guests,

Antl-corruption programs
and procadures?

As a reaponsible
corporation, itis our goal to
be transparentand
accouniable to our
stakeholders

who have an Interest In our
operations,

The Chalrman's Statement In the Annual Report and
the dlseussion in the Information Statement on the
general and business informatlon pravidas & summary
ahd/or a simple presentation of the sompany's
financlal, operslional and legat highights fo eliow the
ardinary shareholdar or stakeholders to ba fully

aware of the company's status,

Safeguarding crediiors'
rights

it s i1s recognized policy In
favor of its investors "To
maintaln profitability and

achieve aptimum returns on

thair Investments.”

The Corporatioh's website disclosas up to-date
Infarmation on business cperation, fnangial statements,
press releases, shareholding siructure, organization
struclure, SEC Formas 17-A, Notice of Annual
Stockhoidars' Mestings, and contact

details for invastor refations.

Furthermcra, Tha Corporation expliciily mentions lis
obligations o its eraditors Including honoring debt
sgresmeni{s) and tmely payment of debt obligations in
its Notes to Financial Statements atteched to BEC Form
17-A and information Statements.

2} Doas the company have a separate corporate responslbiiity (CR} report’section or sustainabliity report/section?

Yes. Corporate Social Responsikility has been an integral part of the Corporatlon's vision and misslon. Founded on this
commitment; the Corporation takes inty consideration the interests of acclaty on key stakeholdars such as our Investors,

_customers, ampléyses, contrastors and suppllers as wall a8 tha community.

With this, the Corporetien provides fora section in lts Information Statement {SEC Farm 20-18) and Annuai ﬁeport {8EC
Form 17-A) which covars its Corporate $oriai Responsibility Report, .

3} Performance-enhanceing mechanlsms for employee participation,
a} What are the'company's polfcy for ite employoes' safaty, haalth and welfare?
b) Show data relating to health, sefety and welfare of its amployees.
¢} State the company's tralning and development programmes for ita employees. Show the data.
d) State the company's raward/compensation policy that accounts for the performance of the company beyond
shori-term financial measures

bevelopment Qpportunities for Employess

(1) Employes Empowarment:

Intemeai movement & succession

The Corperation provides opportunifias for employees to menage their carser path through an opsn and spomanecus
performance reviaw, Depariment Heads are enccuraged to train thelr stalf {n ail scopas of their jobs, mult-tasking and
taking accountabiiiies to prepare them for greater responsibility, Intemal movement or promation within departmant is put
on public krowledge through bulistin boaris and e-maiis and thelr colleagues celebrats and congratulate them for thair
achisvamaents. :

Staff dialogue and monthly fee parliss

Employses 2re empowered when they are given the oppertunity to share thelr thoughts and coneern abeut thelr jobs, Staft
dialegus is schedulad for each depariment each month where the top exacutives and General Manager take tims to listen
mnd answar employees’ Inquiries. Monthly tes parties alsc served as vanus for the General Manager to Insplre, mativate
and give vpdates on fhe direction the Hotel would take,

{2)Employee Davalopment:

OSE Training
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To adapt the Group carporele culture in terms of behavioral norms, the Holel condusts discussion and implementation of
Quistanding Service lhemesi {o #li employees at al lavels, Dally assignment of OSE or OSE calendar ia sent lo aff
departments as their point of discussion {n their daily briefing and endersement,

{3} Work Life Balance |

Sports aclivity '

The Holel holds an annual sports avent to prompt the importance of active lifestyles and dévelop sociai skills by engaging
in sports. Employees find fime to associate with other employces outside their depariment end develop friendships that
thrive even when ihay go back to their respactive offices. Sotlal values and behaviors such a3 tearn work, will ta win and
sporismanship ars demonstiatad and cuftivalet on thess activitias.

Ermployee tanfar
Employeas are encouragad to engags in sports aciivily within the comforts of their work.

Vinluan, an emply space in the Hote!, was transformad inio empioyee centar where they cen play table tennis, darts and
boatd games.

& day work week
The Hotel recently embracad the five-tay work week o all administrative personnel to giva weekands away for leisure,
relaxation and oiheractivéiles that would keep them refreshed and passionate for another week of challenges at work.

{4) Disaster Preparedrioss

The Corporation has established a ieam of trained emph oyeas 1o respond {0 possible disasters like fire, earthquakes ang
othar accidents our guests and smployees might experlence during thair stay in the hotel. instructors from Philippine
HNaticnai Red Cross tralned cur sta¥ with basic first aid management and CPR (cardic-pulmonary resuscitation) while a
taam from the local fire department faught sur employses with proceduras in amergensy rescus fransfer and use of fire
fighiing equipmeant,

4} What are the company's procedures for handiing complaints by employees concerning illagal {Including
cofruption) and unethical behavior? Explain how employses are protected from retallation.

Tha Corpcratson has net adopted proceduras for handling complainis by employges concarning iagal (inciuding
corruptlon} and  unethical behavior, However, the Code of Conduct providas that refusal to answer inquiries or
putticipate in any lvestigation authorized by the Hotel, provided such anawars or pariiclpation wii net violate
constliutivral rights, Is considersd a majior offense. Thus, employees are anjpined to participate in investigations of
the Hotel, which may include ilegal (mctudlng carruption) and unethical hehavior.

DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

1) Ownership Stmclure
{a} Holding 5% shareholding or more

Shareholder - Numberof Shares = Parcent Banaflclai Qwner

TPFL is swnad by:
(1) Hong Leong Hotels Pie, Lid. - 80%
(2} Pacific Far East fPFE) Holdmgs Corp. «

The Philippine Fund 20%

Limlted 28,656,037 32,820 - {3} Robina Manlia Hotel Limited -20%
I Republic Hotels & Resords Limited,, which

wholly owns Zatria Pia. Lid as its subsidiary.

Zatrlo Pte, Ud, 17,727,149 20.30%
PCD Nomines 8543841 - pyA% | RCBC Trust & Invasiments wasmn Is the
Corparation i P benaficial owner of 5,835,663 8
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& Number of Indirect Sharasl
Name of Senior Management Numbaer of Direct Through {(name of resord % of Capltal 8tock
Sharsa
owner)
Yam Kit Sung . 2,?89 0 lags than 1%
Eddle Yso 1,080 i 0 ' lass than 1%
Arlane de Guzman 1,000 1] ) ioas than 1%
Total
2) Does the Annuail Report dleclose the following:
Key Rlsks ) Yes
Corporate oblectives Yos
Flrancial performance Indizalors Yes
Non-Financial performance Indicators Yoo
Dividend Policy . Yas
Detalls of whistle-blowlng policy ) .| Yes
Blographical detaile {at (#ast aga, gualification, date of first ampioyment, relevant, and any
‘gther dlrgctorshjp of listed companies) of directors/commissioners ' Yes
Training and/ar conlinulng sducation programme attendad by each director/commissioner Ho
Number of beard of directers/commissioness meelings held during the yesr Yes
Attendance details of each directors/commissicner in raspect of meetings held ‘ Yes
Details of remuneration of the CEO end aazh mambar of the board of direetors/commissioners | Yes

3) External Auditor's fee
Name of Auditor Audit fee ) Non-Audlt fee
’ PhPE20,000 for the
|| KPMG R. G, Manabal& Co, year 2013 nene eo| Delgtagy]
) Sanaguslin

4) Medium of Communication .
List down the modsis ¢f communication that the company I8 using for dissemirating Information, o

s Corporafion has its own website: www arandplazahotelepm gom :
« At alisted company, ifs reports and doguments are also available at the Philippine Stock Exchange Wabsile
+ Also, tha CG Manual provide for the foflowing ¢ )
+ The Shareholders shall ba fumished, vpon raquest, with tha reports flad by the Corporation with the SEC
pertaining fo Information aboul the directors/ oHficers
» Tha minority sharsholdsrs {representing at least 10%;] have a right io prepose the holging of & mesting,
» The minority sharehalders has access to eny and all Infermation relating 1o matters for which the management s
seeountabla for and which concarns the stockholders making the request
e The Corporation also sends out coples of Its Information Statement to its stockhalders
»  Annyal Mesetings - held on the 14th of May svery yaar .

«  Spacial Meetings - may be called at any {ime by resoiution of the Board or by order of the Chalrman or the Praeident
or tpon writlen request of steckholdérs reprasenting at least 10% of the totel outsinnding siock entiled ic vote., ~




8) Date of releass of audited financial report:

| The Corperation’s audited financidl statements for the year end
Corporation's financlal statements are can
filed by the I

<013, which was
February 2014,

8) Company Website

Does the company have a webs!

tained in the Carpora

ot 31 December 2013and othar information «
tion's SEC Form 17-A for the year ended 3
fon wiin the Phillsping Stock Exchange en 21 Febreary 201 4 and with the SEC on 21,

te disclosing up;t‘o-daée Information about the following?

Business operations Yas
Financial staterments/report {current and prior yedrs) Yez
Materials provided in Drisfings to znalyst and medix Yes
Sharehalding slrdcture ) Ye3
Group Corporate structure Yog
Downloadahie annual report Yes
Notice of AGM and/or EGM Yes
Corporation's constitution (company's by laws, memorandum end aricles of

asscciation) : Yeg

Should any of the'forogcing_informa‘clnn he riot tlnclosed, please Indicate at tho reason thereto,

7} Discinsure of RPT

"RPT

Relationship

Nature

Vaiue

Cash Advances

Relatad sompanies ta,
or immediate or
Intermediate helding
companlas of the
Corporation

“The Corporation in the normal course of

husiness has enterad inte transactions
with its refated parties, principaily
conststing of cash advances, These
advances are shown as "Due to related
company”, "Due to immediate holding
company”, and

In 2013, P2,411,208

Lease Agraement

Harbour Land
Cerporation (HLC) is
40%-owned by

the Carporation and Ip
which the Corporaticn
has significant influence

The Corporation leases tha land
gocupied by the Hote! from 1SLC for &
porlod of 25 years up to January *,
2015. The lease agreement an the
Holst site requires the Corporation 1o
deposit PAPTS millicn to answer for any
and 8l unpald chiigations thal tha
Corporation may hava undar said
contract, On 11 February 2014, the
Board approved the renewal of the
leage agreement for snother 25 years
or uptll 2040 and suthorized tha
Managamant of tha Corperation to
negotlate znd approve the lncreass in
the rent to ba paid by the Corporation to
HLG effsctive January 2014 and
throughout the extanded term of the
lease.

The current rent s
PhP8E9,8E0.04 per month fora
total of PhP10,678,560.00 per
year, and the proposed
increased rental ia
BhP17,797,808.00 per year,
piug ar minus $%, or an
incraase of PhP6,22¢,167.60
te PhP8,008,828.40 per year,
subject to tha negotiations
between the Managameni of
the Corparation and HLG

Management
Agresmeant

Eilte Hote! o
Management Services
Pte. Lid.'s Phlippines
Branch is under the
canlrol of a principal
owner of the
Cotporation

Tha Carporation has enterad inte a
Management Agrasmaent with Elite
Hotel Management Services Ple. Lid's
Philippines Branch for tha laiter to act
as tha hotel's agminisirator, Under the
terms of the agreement, the
Corporafien 1s required to pay monthly
basic management and incentive fess

The managemant fee undar .
the Managemsani

Agrssmant is 2% of Gross
Revenue and incentive fue s
7% of Gross Cperating Profit.

hasad on g cartain percentepe of
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| revenue and gross operating prafft J

When RPTs are Involved what processes are In place to address them Int the manner that will safeguard tha
Interest of the eompany and In partleular of [ts minority shareholders and ether stakeholders? '

The Corporation’s CG Menual requiras Information ingfuding related party fransactions to be publicly and timely disclosod
through the appropriate machanisms of the PSE and submitted to the SEC.

in compllance with the SRC Rules, the Corporation s required to disclose the following details for a related party contrat:

‘8, the halure of the relatad party ralationship; .

b, the type of fransection (e.g. supply or services contract, loans, guarantsss);

¢ the total amaunts payable end recelvable in the transaction from or fo the ralated parly,

d. the elamenls of the transaction necessary o understand the listed company's financlal statements,

The Corporation Is alsc raguirad to disclose !ts transactions in which related peraang, such as directors, officars,
substantia! sharehoiders or any of their immediate famflies have a direct material interest, such as the related person’s
beneflcial ownership of the caunter party or share I the profits, bonus, or commissions out of the transaction,

No disciosure is heeded for any transacton where:

a  The transaction involves services at rates or charges fixed by iaw or governmentel authorlly, ‘
b, The fransacticn involves services as a bank depasitory of funds, transfer agent, registrar, trustee under a frust
inderitura, or similar services; [
¢, The amount involved in the {ransaction or a serfes of similar
. transsclions hes an aggragals value of iess than PhP2,500.000; or :
d. The interest of the parson erises salely from the cwnership of securities of the registrant and the parhon recelvies no
extra or spetlal benefit that was not shared equally (pro rata) by all helders of sgourities of the class. .

In compliance with the provisions of the Corporaticn Cade, a contract of the Carpc.’atEon with one or mare of its directors or
-officers musl be ratifiad by the vote of the slockholders representing at least twe-thirds {2/3) of the outstanding capltal stock
it any of the following condilicns are absent;

a, The presence of such girector in the board mesting in which'the contract was approved
was not necessary 1o sonstilute & guorum for such meeting,
b, Tha vole of such director was not negessary for the appraval of the contract,

Full dlsclosure of the advarse inlerast of the directors or officers invaived must be made at the stackholders’ meeting and
tha conlract must be fair and reasonable under the clrcumstances.

Furthermors, the Corporation must comply with the provisicn of the Corperation Code which requires a contract batweaen
two ¢r more corporations having interlocking directors, where () the interest of the interiocking director in one cerporation
is substantial and his isterest in the cther corporation is merely nominal, and (i) any of the follewing conditions are absent:

a. The presance of such dirsctor I the board meeting In which the contract was approved was nat necessary to
constifuta a quarum for such mesting
b. The vote of such director was not necessary for the approval of the contract

" 10 be rafified by the vote of the siockholders represanting at laast two-thirds {2/3) of the ovtstanding capital stock of the
cotparation whera the interlocking dlrector's tnterest is nominal. Similary, full disclosure of the advarse intersst of the
intedocking director’s involved must be made at the stackholders’ mesting and the contract must be feir and reasanable
undsr the clreumsiances, Stockholdings excaeding twanty (20%) parcen! of the cutstanding capital stock shall ba
considered substantial for purpeses of interlocking directors,

I accordance with the Carporation Code, managemant contracts antared into by the Corporation with another corporaticn
must be approved by the Board and by stockholders cwning et laast the majerity of the sutsianding capital stoek, of both |
the managing and the managed corporation, at a mesting duly cailed for the purpose. Whaers a stockholder or .
stockholders represeniing the same interest of both the managing and the menaged corparations own and contre! more
thar one-third (1/3) of the total cuistanding capita! stock entitied Lo vots of the managing corporation; or where 8 malorify of
the members of the Board of the managing corporatlon alse constitute & majority of the members of the Board of the
managed corporation, then the management centract must be approved by the stackhelders of the managed corporafian
owning at least two-thirs (2/3) of the total outstanding capltat stock entitied to vote. Furthermore, no management '




contract shall bis enterad Inte for & period longer than five years for any ons term,
H., RIGHTS OF STOCKHOLDERS -

1, Right to particlpate effbct'lvelg I and vote In Arnial/8pecial Stockholders Meetings

{a) Giuorum
Glve detalls on the quofum requlired to sonvens the Annual/Special Stockholders Meeting as set forth In Tta
By-laws, |

Quorur Raquired | " { The holders of a majority of the oulsianding capital stoek of the Corporation

i having voting powers, who are present in parsen or representad by proxy, shall
consthute a quorum for the transaction of business, save in thosa instances whare
] the Corporation Code reqiires a graater proporion,

{b} 8ystem Usedto Approv;a Corporata Acts
Explaln the system ussd to approve corporste soks
|

System Used ] Modified viva voce

Desoription . : In the systern of voting adepted by the stockhoiders of the Corporation, in

: order to faciltate the condluet of the procesdings of the slockhoiders'

) mesting, ¥ thare is no objection o 2 namination or motion to approve a

| proposed resslution regarding , it wilt be understood that tha slackhalders
prasem of represented In today's mesting vols in faver of the rasolution,

{c] Steckholders’ Rights .
List any Stockholders’ Rights concerning Annual/8peclal Slockholders” Mesting that ciffer from those laid
town in the Corpeoration Code, ’

Stockhoiders' Rights under the Corporatien Code Stockholdars' Rights pot in The Corporation Gods
Appralsal Right Each share of stock is given 2aual rights 1o dividends
Right to vate Shareholders are squally treatad In share buy-back offers,
+  right o elect, remove, and replace dirsstors ) :
and vole on certain corporate aots In . The Carporation has only ane class of shares and each share s

eccordance with tha Corporafion Code enlitlad to one vota.

»  Cumulative Voilng T '

s A ditacter shizll nol ba removad without
cause if it will deny minodly shareholders
repressniation In the Board

Pra-emptive righi Shares of stock are not subject 1o sny restrictions on transfer,
maortgage of encumbprances on thessa shares,

Power of Inspaction . ' . The Corporation is commiited 1o respect and promote
‘ ‘sharsholders’ rights

Right to Information ; {1} The sharehoiders shall be provided, upon request, with the
reports filed by the Corporation with SEG that disciess personal
and prefessional information abeut tha dirscters and officers and
certain other matters such as their hoidings of the Corporation's
shares, dealings with the Corparation, relationships among
diractors and key offlcers, and the aggregate compenselion of
directors and oificers,

(2} The minerity shareholders shak be granted the righ! to
propose the hoiding of a masting, And the right to propose jtems

86




o

In the agenda of the mesting, provided the ifems are for legitimate
business purposes. The By-Laws of ihe Corporafion provides thal’
sharsholders representing at iast ten parcent (10%) of the
outstanding capilal stock of the Corporation may requast the
holding of a special shareholding's meeting. :

(3) The minerity shareholders shall have access o any and al

Infarmation relating to matiers for which the managemant lg

accountable for and which concerns the stockhaiders making the

request, provided that such right shall be subject to existing law

4 and contract, A report on tha Information pertaining to such

] matters may ba Included In the agenda of any meeting of the
shareholders.

2} If such not Included in the agenda, then the minority
sherehclders shall be affowed to propuse to include slch matters
in the agende of shareholder's masting, such iters in the sganda
will ba consicaered a5 being within the definition of Ylegltimate
purposes”,

Right to Dividends The Carporation |8 raquired to declare dividends when its retained
@arnings exceeds 100% of ite pald-in capitat stock, except: a}
when Justified by dalinite corporste expansion projects or
programs approved by the Board or b) when the Corporation Is
prohibited under any loan agreement with ahy financlal Institution
or creditor, whether local or foreign, frem declaring dividends
withou! its consent, and suck consent has not been securad, or c)
when it can be cleery shown that such retention is necessary
under spesial circumatancas obtalning in the Corporation, such a8
when there is a nead for special reserve for probable

.confingencies,
. I
Dividenda i
Reclaretlon Date Record Date N Payrmeant Date
15 May 2012 29 May 2012 On or bafore 22 June 2042

. {d) Stockholdars Participation ' .

1)}  State, If any, the measures adopted to promots stockholder participation in the Annoal/Speclal Stockholdars
Meating, Inctuging the procedure on How stockhoiders and other parties Interested may ¢emmunicate
directly with the Chalrman of the Board, Individual directors or heard commitioes. Includs in the discussion
the staps the Board has taken to solieit and understand the views of the stockhelders as well as proceduras
for putting forward proposals at etockholdars' meetings, :

Measures Adopted Communleation Prockdure
Mincriy sharehslders may recommend candidates i the The Nemination Coemmittee sends out notices to ]
Nomination Cemmitiee end may cumulate thair votes for stockholders that the Nomination Committes is accepling
siection of diractors. racommendations for nominges, Than, the Stockholders

will submit thair recommended cendidates by aceemplish
the Recemmendation Farm aiteched 28 Annex 1 {o the
notics to the stock holders and sent back the same to the
Nomination Commlitea.

Minority shateholders, rapresenting at feast. 10% of the Dy written request, Such request shall siate the puriose
nitstanding capital stock entitled te vote, have the right to or purposes of the prapesed mesting. |

propase the halding of a mesting, and the right to propose .

itams In the agenda of the meeting, provided the tems are for
legifimete business purposaes.

During the annuai steckholders' meeting, stockholders are The Ghairman invites the stockheldars to ralse their

slven the opposunily to ralge questions and girectly address guestlons or air thelr comments during the annual
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the Chalrman of the Board, the individual directars, and the
Board commitlees,

stackholders’ meeting. There is also & qusstion and
answer portion during which the flcor 13 opaned o allow
stockholders to raise questions and directly address the
Chairman of the Board, the individusa! directers, the Board
committeas, and the officers of the Corporation,

{ Beleted: 3
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B, State tho company pollcy of asking sharaholders ta axtively partlsipate In corporate decisions regarding;
#) Amendmants fo tlis company's consiitution
b} Authorlzation of addliionai shares
¢) Transfer of all or substantiaily ali assets, whigh In effect results in the sale of the company

Authortzation of additional shares, and transfer of aif or substantially al! assets of the corporation are subject fo the
rafifieation of stockholders represeniing at isast 2/3 of tha outstanding capita! steck, as provided in the Corporation
Code,

8) Does the company nhsarva 2 minitmen of 21 buelness days for glving out of nntlcea ta the AGM whera [tams
to be resolved by shareholdars are taksn up?
8} Date of sending out notices: 22, Aprli 2014
b) Date of AnnuallSpaclal Stockhofders Meetmg 15 Maygml_

| .

o Y65, A3 2 matter of bractive, the Corporation disirbutes tha nofics of ihe mesting at least 21 days (ar 15 buginess devs) |
¢ befora the AGM. According to its By-Laws, sxcept as othenwise provided by law, written or printed notice of all annual
and special maefings of p:ockhciders stating the place and time of the masting, and if necessary, the genaral sature &f

the business to be cengidered shall be tranemitiad by parsanal delivery, mall, facsimile, telex, islegraph o cable o

oach slockholder of recard entitled 16 vote to his laat known address, at least 15 tays before the date of the meeting, in
case of an Annual Maeling, or at least 7 days before the date of tha hearing, if spacial meating,

The Corporation also supscribes {0 the isduiremsent under the SRG Rules, to file the Preliminary SEC Form 20-15 with
the SEC at least 10 busipess days prior {o the date dafinitve copies of the informaticn statement {"Definiiive SEC Form
20-15") are first sent or given to stockholders, The Corporation distributes the Definitive SEC Form 20-[5 to sacurity
holders atleast 15 buslness days froim the date of the anaual steckholders’ mesling.

10) Btate, I any, quastions and answers durlng the Annuai/Spacial Stockholders’ Meeting.

in the annual sicckhalders meetlng of e Corporation heid on 15 May 2414, Mr . Bdpar Ngo, a stockhalder of the

and (i} the Corgoratmn sc::mmgen”y glar ma dress the impa impact ol et 6! PAGLOR'S non repewat of its leass with the
orgoratmn The Qn |rmgg reptied that the ccnmbunan nf PAGCOR's business to me oopupancy and revanue of the

Chalrman confymed

1M1} Result of Annnal/Speclal Stockholdars’ Masting's Resolutions

Resolution Dissenting Abstalning

(1) Apgrovai of the Corporation’s 2013 annual report ¢
audited fingncia! statements

Approving
1L S
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(2} Approval and ratification of fhe Minules of the Arnual all nohe nene
Stockholders' Maetings of the Corporation held on 18 . ’
(3) Approval and ralrﬁcainon of all tna 3cts declsions, all nahe nong

Deleted: 2013
Deleted: how much

Deleted: cash dividends wars for 2012,

Delated; Yam Kit Sung answared that the car
dividends amounted to PhP 160,008 000,00 at
ii PhP2.00 per shara,

[ Deleted; Yam further

Deletad: this is highar compared to the
previoug year,

Dalatads Ngo asked how much retainad

] aamings the Corporation has at pressnt. Mr,

Yar teplied thal ai the end of 2012, retained
earnings amaunted to PhP168,005,000.00. Mr
Mgo further asked if the Corpetation is plannin
to taclara stock dividends. The Chairman
mentioned that afler tha Board meeting heid
bafore the anrual stockholders’ mesting, the
Beard approved a shars buyback exerciss.

1

Mr, Ngo then esked the Board if the Corporalic
has g plan te axpand the buslnsss of the Hote!
for Instance in the Manila Bay areaor in

| Boracay, The Chaitman raplisd that these
matters are baing considered by the Board. Tt
Chalrmarn addad that there are many factors it
be considered, and assured Mr. Ngo thai his
concarns wili be taken into accoun! in the
subsequent meelings of the Board.

1
Mr. Christopher Lim |
| Delated: regarding the business perisrmance

Ao

Daleted: . Mr. Eddie Yea replied that 2012 wi
challenging for e Hotel. Mr. Yeo manticnad
lacal challsngae such as tha travel advisorles
posted by tha United Statas, Ausiralia

Delatad: countries, arsl the terrltoral disputs

/i batwears China snd the Philippireas. Mr. Yeo

gise mentionad the impact of new players ke
the Resorts World and $olalre Rasarl and
Caslno. The aecupancy of the Haolel dropped h

-1 84% versus B7% from ihe previous year, The

total revanue alsc dropped by 4.4%.

- .| Furthermaore, the GOF of the hotal dropped to
| 45§% from 52%.4%

A1
- | 8r. Lim then asked about tha Impact of the 5%
.| drap in revenus and (he 10% drop In nal ncon

Deleted: . Mr. Lim also asked for an updata 0
the Corparation’s discussions with PAGCOR it
conngttion with is l2ase of the space for lts
casino. Mr. Yam argwerad that the Corporalie
has angoing nagoliatiens with PAGCOR and
that the Corporation's revenus will not oe
erodad significantly. Mr. Lim then asked [T

[ batated: 2012

| peleted: 2012




contracls and proceedings done, faken ahd effscted by
the Beard, as well as resolufions isswad by the Board,

acting within the scope of its delegated authorlty, during
the year 2013.2074

et ren{ Deleted: 2012-

(4) Elaction of the Board

5]| s

nana

to flx the auditor's remuneration

(5) Flection of pxternal suditor and authority of the Board 1

A

. hane

{ Deleted: extern al

lngerpgraltion and By-lLaws of the Corvoration to speelfy
its principal offics address

(6} Remuneration of the dlrectora all nong none
{7} Ratlfication of the amendment of the Arligles of al nepe DR

12) [Hite of publishing of the result of the volas faken during the most recent AGM for afl resclutions: i

The result of votes takén during he rivost racent annual stockholders’ meeting for all resofutions was announced by the
Chalrman immediately after the voles were taken for each resclulion during the meeting, using the modified system of
voling edopied by the stockholdars of the Corporation (i.2., if there Is no objection to @ nemination or motion to approve &
proposed resolution regarding the nomination, it will be understocd that the stockholders present or representsd in today’s

meeting vate In faver of the nemination).

(¢} Modifications

State, if any, the medifications made In the AnnualiSpacial Stockhalders’ Mesting regulations during the tnoat

recent year and the reason far such modification:

{f} Stockholders Attendance

s

() Details of Attendance In the Aniual/Speclal Stockholders' Meeting Held:

Bryan K, Cockreil,
Michala Dee-Santos,
Angélite C. Imperle
Mig G, Gentugaya
Yam Kit Sung

Alain Charles J.
Velose

In the system of
voting adopted by
the stockholders
of the
Corporation, in
order lo faciitate
the conduct ¢f the
proceedings of
the stockhalders'
meesting, If there
I8 no ebjectlon to
& nomination or
mation to approve
& propesed
resoiution
regarding the
nomination, {wilf
be understand-
that tha
stockholdars
prosant or
represanted In
today's meeting
vaole in faver of

Voting
Namsg of Board
pe of Cate of nrocedure (b Total % of 5H
mering  Members! Cificers Meeting pell, show(ca"' % of 34 in Proxy attondance . |- . i
ptesent hands, etc) . ‘ w
fi Annual Wlong Hong Ren, 15 May 2014 | Modified viva BEZER { Deloted: 2012
: Eddie Yeo voes.

{ Deleted: 4

[ Deteted: 4

the nemination.
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Shech! N.A.

)

"

Does the company appoint an Indepsndant party {Inspectors) to count and/or valldate the votes at the ASM/
88Ms? )

Na, Votlng and counting of votss are done by modlfied viva voce (Sec Form 20418, 2013} In the system of voting
adopted by the stockholders of the Corporation, in order to facilitats the conduct of tha proceedings of the
slockholdars' mesung, if there is no objection io a nomination or metion 1o approve & propesed resolution regarding
the nomination, it will be undarsiood that the stockholders present or represented in today's meeting vote in favor of
the nomination.

bo the company's commion shares carry one vote for one share? If not, disclose and glve reasons for any
divergence to this standard. Where the company has more than one class of shares, descnbe the vating
rights attached to each class of share.

Yes, At every stockholders' meeling. the By-Laws provide that each stockholder shall be enttied to one vole In
wersen of by proxy, end he shail have one vote for sach share of atock entitled to vote and recorded In his name
the books uf the Corporation,

{g} Proxy Votlng Pom:las

State the policlés followed by the company regardmg proxy vating In tha AnnualfSpaclal Stnckholdara
Mesting, :

Corporatlon's Pollcles

. Wi
Execuélon and asteptance pf proxies Proxy voting is facilltated by the fact that proxies ars presumed

regular and accepted In the ebsencs of a timely #nd valid challange.

Notary ‘ . .| Notrequired. The Corporation adopis a presuamption

of regularity in the execution of proxies and the same shall be
acceptad In the absance of a timely and valid challenge.

Submisalon of Proxy All praxies must be in the hand of the Cerporata Sacratary befors

the fime set for the maeeting.

Several Proxies ' The Gorporation subseribes to SEC Memorandum Circutar No, &,

Series of 1998, with regard to several proxias. If the slockhoidar
intends to designale several proxies, the number of shares of stock
te be reprasented by each proxy shall be specifically indiceted in the
proxy form., if some of the proxy forms de not indicate the number of
- shares, the total shareholding of the stockhclder shall be fallied and
{he bainnse thereof, if any, shall ba allattad to the holder of the
i | proxy form witheut the number of shares. If all are in blank, the
; slocks shall be distributed squally amang the proxles.

Valigity of Proxy . | The Corporation sdopts & prasumption of regularity in the execution

of proxies and the same shall be accepted in the absence of a
timely and valid shallengs,

Proxies executad abroad Pruxies executed abroad shall be duly aulhemicatad by the

Philippine Embassy ar Consutar Office,

Invalidated Proxy : Such praxles filsd with the Corparate Secretary may be revoked by

the stoskholdars elther in an instrument in writing duly presented
and recordad with the Secretary prier 1o a scheduled mesting, or by
their personal pressnce at the meeting.

Validation of Proxy Unieas the notice of meeting provides an earlier period, 2l proxles

may b2 validated on the date, and at the place and before time of
the raguiar or special meaeting of tha stcckheldars.

Viciation of Proxy As provided in the Corporatlon Code and SRC.

(h) 8ending of Nafices

State the company’s poiicies and procadiires on the sending of nafices of Annual/Special Slockholdery’
‘ 7




Mesting.

Policies

Procedure

Notice for Annual Stockholders' Meeling:

Writterr or printed nolloa, stating the place and time of the
maating, and if nacessary, the general riaturs of the
business o be consldared | shall be fransmitted to each
stockholder of redord.

How frensmitfed: the notice (e transmitted by paracnal
dellvery, mall, facsmila, talax, tniegraph or cable to each
stockholder of recond antitfed to vote to hls {ast known
gddress

When transmifted: at least 15 days before the dale of the

- mesting

Notice for Special Stockholders' Meatings

Wiitleh or prinlad notice, staling the piace and time of the
meeling, and if necessary; tha ganers! nature of the
business to ba considered | shall be transmittad to asch
stockholder of record, ) ‘

How transmitted: the nofics is transmitted by personal
dalivary, mall, facsimile, lelex, telegraph or czble to each

-stockholder of record entitled to vote to his last known

addrass

When transmifted: at laast 7 days befare tha date of the
hearing

(1} Definitiva Informative Statements and Managamani Roport

Number of Stockholdere entitfod to recsive Definitive
Information Btatements and Management Report and
Othor Materials

508

Date of Actua! Distribution of Dafinitive Information
Statements and Managemant Repert and Other
Mutarials held by market partlcipants/certain beneficial
owners

AP i e

g =

~{ Dalated: 2013

Date of Actual Distributlon of Definitive Infarmation
Staterhents and Management Report end Qther
Materials held by stockholders

23 ApTi2als

ifyas, indicate vshather roquesting stackholders were
provided hard coples

Yos.

{iy Does the Notiea of Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting Include the followlng:

Each resgiution o be taken up deals with only one ilem,

Yes.

Profiles of directars {81 lsast ags, qualiﬂéation. date of first
appeintment, experiance, and dractorships in other listed
companies} nominated for election/re-atection.

Yes. Individual profile of directors and Board meeting
gtendance and performance arg publicly disclosed apd
prosented to the shareholders in the information Statement
and during tha Annual Stockholdars' Meeting,

The audHors to be appointed or ra~appointed,

Yes. Adequale information on the external audlter Including
tha name of the handling partnar, their fees and othar
engagaements wih the company (lax, consuli'ng, elc.) ara
rblicly disclosed.

An axplanation of the dividend policy, If any dividend is to
be declared,

Yes. Dividends are declared by the Board hased on results
of operaiions and the balance of the unrestricted retained
agrrings. In e 8.1.5 of its CG Manrual, the

Comoration is required o dectars dividends when its

“unrastricted retained earnings axcead 100% of its paid-up

capital steck.

The amount payable for finat dividends.

Yes. Dividents are deciared by the Board hased on ragulis
of aperallons ant the balance of the unrestricted refained
earnings. In ltam 6.1.5 of its CG Manugl, the

Corporation is requlred {o declare dividends when its
unrastrictad refzined earnings sxcead 109% of #s pald-up
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capital stock,

Documents required for pro)_q-r vote. . .| ¥as, Tha Corporation adopts a presumption of regulgrty n
. the execution of proxies and the same shall by scceptad in

the absance of a timely and valid challenge.

Should any of the foregoing Information ve not disclosed, please inditats the reason thoreto.
7} Treatment of Minosity Steckholders

a) State the company’s policies with respect to the treatment of minctity stockholders.

Policles Implementation
Minority shareholders &re given full nemination &nd voling Shargholders shall have the right to sisct, remove and
rights ) teplace directors and vate on certain corporata acts in

accordance with the Corporation Code,
Cumulatlva voting shall be used in the election of dirsttars,

A director shall not be removed withoul cause If it will deny
minerity shareholders representation in the Board

Minorily shareholders have the right io parficipate In The minority shareholders shall ba granted the Aght to
carperate governanes propose the holding of a meating, and the right to propose
itemns in the agendz of the mesating, providad tha items are
for legitimate business purposes. The By-Laws of the
Corporation provides that sharaholders reprasenting at last
't ten parcent (10%) of the outstanding capital stock of the
Corporation may request the hoiding of & special
sharaholding's meating. )

Minority shareholdars hava the right to information The minority sharenalders shail have access to any and all

. : information relating to matters far which the management s
accountable for and which concerns tha stockholders
maklng the requast, provided that such right shall be
subject to exisling law and cornitragt. A report on the
informaticn partaining to such matters may be intluded In
{he agenda of any meeting of the shareholders.

if such not Included in the agenda, then tha minority
sharsholcers shall be sllowed to propose to include such
mattess in the agenda of shareholder's meeting, such item
in the agenda will be censidored as being within the
definition of ‘lsgitimate purpeses’”. :

b} Do minority stockhgldars have # right to nominate candidates for board of directors?

Yes. The Rulgs and Procedure of fne Nominalion Committee provide for such a procedurs.

1. INVESTORS RELATION_S PROGRAM

1) Discuss the company's extsrnal and intarnal sommunieetiona policies and how fraquently they ara reviewed.
Disclose who reviews and approves major company announcemants. ldentify ths commities with this
ragponsibllty, If It has been assignad ts committes.

Under the CG Manuai, one of the Board's fuhctions is to astablish and maintain an investor relations program that will keep

{he stockholders Informed of importan? developmeants in the Corporation. Tha Corporation's chiaf financial officer of such
other officer as may be deslgnated by the Board shall exarcise oversight rasponsibility over this program,

72



2) Desctlbe the company's Invester relation program includlng its communications strategy to promote effective
communleation with its stockholders, other stakehaiders and the publile in general, Dsscioaa the contact details
{e.q. telophone, fax and emall) of the offlcer responsible for investor ralations

Datalls

(1) Objectives

To keep the sinckheiders infarmed of mportanideve!opmmts in the
Corporation.

(5 Privcipies

The Corporalion recognizes thet the most cogent proof of good carporate
gevernance is that which is visible to the eyes of iis inveslors. .

Al matarinl information ebout the Corporation which could adversely
affect Its viability or the interests of the stockhoiders should ba publicly -
and timely disciosad. Such information should Include, among others, .
earnings results, acquisition or disposition of assetis, and reiated party
transactions, All such Information should be disclosed through the
appropriate PSE mechanisms and submissions (o the SEC,

Cthar Informaltion that shall always be disclosed Inciudes remtnaration
(inchading stock optlans) of all directors and =senicr management corporata
strategy, and off balance sheef fransactions,

Tha Board shall commit at aif times to fully disclose material infarmation
daalings, It shall cause tha fllng of all required Information tor the interest
of the stakehoiders,

(3) Modas of Communication

All material informatlon shiould be disclosed through the appropreata PSE
mechanisms and submissions fo the SEC.

The Gorporation's wabsite also discioass up-to-date Informatlon on
businese operstion, financial statements, press releases, shareholding
structure, organization strusture, SEC Forms 17-A, Netice of ASM, and
contact details for Investor relations.

The Corporation's website indicates the telsphone number/ fax number
and mmsil sddress of the Corporation’s investor relations afficer.

{4) Investors Reiations Officer

Yam Kit Sung, Chist Finencial Offlear of the Carperaticn

3) What are the company's rules and procedures governlng the acquisition of corperate control in the capltal
markets, and exiraordinary transactions such as mergers, and sales of substantlal pertions of corporate

nesels?

Name of the Indepandent party the board of directors of the company sppointsd to evaluate the fairness of the

fransection price

Other than whet is provided under the law and the appllcable rules and regulations, the Corparatien has not adopted
any rules and procedures governing the acquisition of corporate contral In the capital markets, and extraordinary

. transacilione such as mergers, and sajes of substantial portions of corporata asaata, Cons:n‘anng that the Corporation
doas not regularly entar inta the foregoing transactions, the Board has net appointad any indapandent party 1o evaluate

the fairness of fe transaclion price,

J. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIRILITY INITIATIVES

Discuss any inltlative undartaken or proposed to be undertaken by the company.
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nitlative

Beneficiary

Employee Empowermant:

intarmal movemen! & succession

Wa provide opportunllies for smployees fo manage their career path fhrough an
open and sportaneous parformance review, Departmen! Heads ars
encouragad to train thalr siaff in all scopes of thelr Jobs, multi-tasking ang taking
accountabilities to prepare them for greater rasponsibility. Internal movement or
promotian within department is put on public knowiedge through bulleiin boards
and e-mails and their colleagues celebrate and congratulata them for thelr
achievemsnts,

Staf dialogue and monihly tee partles

Employees are smpowered whan thay are given the oppcrﬂunlfy tc share thelr
thoughts and concers about thelr jobs, Staff dialogue s scheduled for each
department each month whare the top exesutives and Genersl Manager take
time to fisten and answer amployses’ inquiries, Monthly tea parties aiso served
s venue for the General Manager fo inapire, motivate and give updales an the
direction the Hate! would take.

Employea Devalopmeant: -

OS8E Training

To adapt the Greup corperate cullure in terms of bahavioral norms, the Hotel
conducts discussion and impiementation of Outstanding Service themss te all
empioyees af ali jeveis. Dally assignment of OSE or OSE calendar is sent o all
Hepariments as thek point of discussion In their daily briefing and endorsemant.

Work Life Balance

Sports activify

The Hotel helds &n annual sporis event to prompt the Impartance of active
fifesiylas and develop social skitis by angaging In sports. Emplayees find time to
nesociate with other employees outsids their department and deveiop
friendships that thrive even when fhey go back to thelr respective offices. Social
values and behaviers auch as team work, wit [0 win and spor‘tsmanship Eicd
demonsiraled and cultivated on thase activilies,

Emplovee center

Employess are sheouraped to engage in spcms activily within the comforts of
their work. Vinjuan, &n emply space in the Hotel transformed Into employee
center where they can play tabie fennis, darts and board games,

5 day work wask ‘

The Hotel racenty embra[ced tha fva-day work weeit to all edministrafive
personnel to give weekends away Tor lelsure, rataxation and othar activities that
would kesp them refreshed and passlonate for anoiner week of challanges at
work.,

Empio-yees

1

1
Disastor Preparadnoss g
The Corgoratien has estab“shed ateam of {rdined employees ta respend to
possible disasters iike fire, earthquakas and pther ascidents our guesis and
employees might experience durlng thelr stay In the Hotel, instructors from
Philippine Natianal Red Cross tralned our staff with basic first aid management
and CPR (cardio-pulmonary resuscitation) while a team from the local fire
deparimant taught our employess with procedures in emergency rescue
transfer and use of firg fighting equipment.

Cuslomars and empioyees
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Environmental Awareness

Ensrgy and wafer conservalion

The redudtlon of working days for administrative personnel or offices alme not
‘only to achleve work life balance but slso to reducs the Hotel's snergy
censumption, A Hotel wide campalgn on the best cost mansgément practices of
departments educates and inspires asstclales to conserve and préserve
supplies and resourees,

Engineering Depariment helps in dsvising ways to Improve electriclty
gonsymption by using halogen and fluorescent lighte. Roarm guests are alse
encouraged to save watar and lgundry detergent consumption by re-using bed

Inens and fowels when possible. Sarepe and old newspapers are retycled Into |

flowers and pots i decarate our restaurants and other secifons of the Holel,

Egrth Hour

Tha Hotel actively perticipaies in the annual Earth Hour, & wordwide camaalgn
of turning off the lights for an hour in efforts o Increasa awarenass on snergy
censumption and climate change, This avent Is spearheaded by the Weorld
Wildife Fund (AWF), &n International environmental advancement group and

reported fo have remarkable drop in energy usags in key cilles of pariicipating -

countrles,

Thae environment

Cammunity Involvemant

Biovd letfing

The Hotel I3 a conslstent reciplent of the Philippine National Red Cross
Marltorious Service Awsrd for lis contfinuoue participation In blood lafting
aclivitles, We have organized =ight blood donafion sctivitles since 2008 and
have forwardad a fotal of 97,150 m! of blood to Red (rogs,

Readinass for cerser.

The Hetel offers educationgl experiences and hoteblife skils tralning fer
students Interested to have cereers In hospliality industry, As contribution to tha
indtisstry, we halp prepare fulure hotelfers with the compelancias and aifitudes
1o make them confident and fit to explore thelr lof In the markelplace. Students
from varicus unlversities and tralning centars across the metro and provinces
have seen and exparisnced the Hotel standards in terms of cleanliness and
service. . '
Jok opporuniifas ‘
The Hotet [s 2 long-standing figura of Stability providing carear opporfunities fo
profassionals and people recenily graduated from school. We hava provided
employment security Pasay City and other neighboring cilles and provinces
thus providing their famlles and communities decent way of living.

Funds for charitable institutions .

The Hotei capitalizes on accumulating funds to supporl our beneficiaries during
Christmas season and Chinese Naw Year, A wishing well is placed af the Haotel
lobby where guests and employses can share thelr plsce of good forfune fo
scholara and less privileged familes of Pasay City througn "Our Lady of
Saorrows Qutreach Foundation”. The Hotel alse pariiclpated with Raed Cross
Internaticnal io asslst the victims of Typhoon Yolznda,

Pangarep Foundation, a shelter far sirest childran and out of school youth of
Pasay City is a donea Institution of tha Hotet through its donation box piaced at
Front Desk where guests can donate upon check-ln and aut,

Charming children from Children's Joy Faundation are Invited {0 perticipate In
the Chrisfmas caroling in the Hotel from December 16-25, 2013, } gives thein
the opporiunity % exhibit their tafents, entertain our guasts apd gather
significant amount of donations frem the Hotel's guasts.

The cemmunity and sociaty
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Bridging international Relations Philippine tounsm

The Hote! is a venue for many evants and functions of diplomatie erganizations
In the country. We have hosted & number of parties, exhibits, fashion shows to
promote distinetive dultures of our intemational cllents and improved our
relationships with them,

K. HOARD, DIRECTOR, COMMITTEE AND CEQ AFPRAISAL

Digclose the process feliowed and ¢riteria used in assessing the annual performanca of the board and its commitiees,
individual director, and the GEQ/President. '

Process Criterla
Board of Dlrectars e A N.A,
Board of Commitiess _ N.A. N.A.
individual Dirgctors . N.A, N.A,
CEQ/Praaldsnt N.A, N.A.

The Corporation does not assess the annuat performance of the board and Its committees, individual direcior, and the
CED/President, '

In accordance with the SEC's Guidelinea for the Assessment of the Performance of Audit Committees of Companies Listed
on the Exchange ('Guidelines, the Audit Committee conducts an annual assessment of ity practices In relation 1o the best
practices and standards provided In the Guidelines ("Assessment’). The Assessment process is documented and forms
part of the records of the Corperatlon, i

L. INTERNAL BREACHES AND SANCTIONS

Discuss the Intarnal policles on sanétlons Imposed for any viclation or breach of the corporate governance
manual involving directors, officers, njanagement and employses,

Viclations Sanctions

Viclation of the provisions of the C& Menual and the In casa of first violatlon, the subject perscn shall e
Revised CG Code reprimanded.

Suspension from office shali be impoesed in case of second
vialattan, The duration of the suspension shall depend on the
grayily of the viclation.

For third violation, the maxtmum penalty of removed from
office shall be imposed.

The commisslon of & third victation by any member of tha
Beard shall be a sufficlent cause for removal as direcior,

The Compliance Offiser shall resommand to the Beard the
procedure for defermining whether viclations have hesn
committed. Such procedure must ohiasrve tha pripciple of
dus process, particulary the requirements of prior notica and
hiaring,
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The Compliance Qlficer shall decide whethes any viclation of
tha G Manual has been committed and shall recommend o
the Chairman of the Board the Imposable pensliy for such
viglation, for further raview and approval by ths Board.

Pursuani to the requirement of the Securities and Exchange Commission, this Ansugl Cotporate Govérnance Report s
signed on beha!f of tha registrant by the undsrsigned, thereunto duly autharized, in the City of on
20 .

'
oo sn i e

BIGNATURER

WONG HONG REN'
Chalfman of the Board / Chlef Exscutive Officer:

ANGELITO C. IMPERIO

" MIA G GENTUGAYA
Indeperndant Diractor

Independsnt Girectar

YAM KIT BUNG
Compliance Offlcer

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN fo before me this day of

20, effient{s) exhibiting tome their
, as follows:

RAME/NQ. : DATE OF ISSUE . PLACE COF i88UE

NOTARY PUBLIC
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| Page 68: [1] Deléted el S ATRRGE: e T g L]
. Mr, Lim also asked for an update ¢n the Corpora;!cn s dlscussmns with PAGCOR in connectlcn With sés Iease of the
space for its casino. Mr. Yam answered that the Corporation has ongoing negotlations with PAGCOR and that the
Corporation’s revenue will not be eroded significantly. Mr. Lim then asked for the percentage of total Motel revenue
that the lease ravenus from PAGCOR constituted, Mr, Yam replied that the revenue from PAGCOR constifutes
around 20% of the total Hotel revenue, Finaliy, Mr. Lim asked if there was any gontingency plan in fhe event that
negetiations wilh PAGCOR do not succeed. Mr. Yam replied that the Corporation is already considering alternative
revenue generating aclivilies usmg the current PAGCOR casine space. Mr, Yam also mentionad that the Corporation
s In a viaile financlal posiiicn given that it has no leans from barks or shareholders,
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i - FOREIGN SERVICE OF THE
~ REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES

|
BASSY OF THE PHILIPPINES )

{>onsular Section ) S.8.
* Singapore )

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

- CATHERINE ROSE G. TORRES, CONSUL | of the Republic of

lippines, Singapore, duly commissioned and qualified, do hereby certify that
WILSON YIP ‘

whofn the annexed instrument has been executed to wit:
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# A BOARD MATTERS

1) Board of Directors

' Number of Diractors per Arllcles of incorporation

|7

ﬁ; I Actual numbsr of Directors for the year

(a) Composition of the Board

Complets the table with Information on the Board of Directors:
Nominator In . a?:et:?e??ftf
Type [Executlvs If the [ast ID state No. of
Director" {ED}, Non- nominee, election (if ‘Date Ithe Elseted when years
Nana © | Executive (NED) | identify | ID, state the | first humber of | (AnnualiSpecial { served
or Independent the relationshlp | elected years - Maeting) as
Director (ID}] principal with the served as i director
nominator) 1Dy
Wong Hong | ED The Cpen floor 15May | 15 May Annual 17
Ren Philippine | nomination 1606 2012
Fund
Limited
. (IITPFL"}
Bryan NER TPFL Cpen fioor 15 May 15 May Annual 18
Cackrell romination 1897 2012 . i
Michela 4 NED RCBC Open floor 7 15 May “Annual 7
Dee:Santos Trust nomination February | 2012
2006 :
Angslito - D N.A. Zatrio Pte. 5 August | 15 May Annual, 20
Imperio Lid.; No 1892 2012;
| relation Served ds.
1D 2001 -
2004, and
2008tp
present
Eddle Yeo ED TRFI. Open floor 13 Jan 15 May Annua| 8
' heminatlon 2005 2012
Eddie C. T. | NED TPEL Openficor | 17Jan | 15 May Annugi 8
Lau nomination 2005 | 2012
Wia B NA The Philippine | 5Aug | 15 May | Annaal 50
Gentugaya - Fund Limited: | 1082 2012; '
No relation Served as .
" ID 2005 - '
i prasent
" (b} Provide a brlef summary of the corporate governance policy that the board of directors has adopted. Please
. emphasize the pollcy/ies relative to the treatment of all shareholders, respect for the rights of minority
sharsholders and of other stakeholders, disclosure duties, and board responsibiities,
B'l The Comporation has adopted its own Revised Corporate Governance Manual ('CG Manual®), which Is aimed to
Institutionalize the principles of goad corporate governance in the entire organlzation. As g pelicy, the Board of

Directors ("Boara"), Manhagement, employees and sharsholders of the

Corporation belleve that good corporate




{c)

(c)
(i}

governance Is a necessary componant of what constitutes sound strategic business management and undertakes to
create and maintaln awareness within the arganization.

Sharehoiders - The CG Manual ensures that .sharsholders are afforded rights and that minority shareholders'
interests are protected,

Mincrity shareholders - the CG Manual emphasizes that the minority shareholders should be allowed to participate in
determination of corporate acts.  Specifieally, the Board shauld give minority stockholders the dght to propose the
holding of mestings and the items for discusslon in the agenda that ralate difectly to the buslness of the Corporation.
The By-Laws of the Corporation provides that shareholders representing at last ten percent (10%) of the outstand%ng
capital stock of the Corporation may request the holding of a special shareholding’s meeting.

Disclosure duties - Under the CG Manual, the Cerporation has adopted a policy that requires managemant to

disclose related-party fransactions. Also, tem 5 of the CG Manual reguires the disclosure of all material Information
about the Corporation which could adversely affect Ifs viability or the interests of the stockholders. This includes:

+ eamings results
» gcquisition or disposition of assets
* remunaration

Board Responsibiiities - It is the genaeral responsibliity of the Board to foster the long-term success of the Corporation
and securg, {ts sustained competitivenass in a manner conslistent with its fiduclary responsibllity, which # shall
exercise in the best interest of the Cormporation and its. shareholders. The Board shall conduet itself with utmost:
honesty and integrity in the discharge of its duties, functions and regponsibilities,
How often does the Board review and approve the vision and mission?
| .

Tha Corporatlon has na fixed perlod set for the Beard's review of the vision and mission.
Dlrectorshi‘p in Other Companles
Directorship In the Corporation's Group

|

Identify,l as and if applfcable, the members of the company's Board of Directors who hold the office of
director In other companies within Its group: :

Type of Directorship (Executive, Non-
Executive, Independent}. indicate If
diractor s also the Chalrman.

Corporate Name of the Group

. Director's Name Company

Worig Hong Ren Please refer to the Appendix “A’

(ii}

Diractorship in Other Listed Companies

ldentlty, as and if applicable, the members of the company's Board of Directors wh6 are also directors of
publlsly-listed companles outslde of ltg Group:

Director's Name | Namse of Listed Company

Type of Directorship (Executive, Non-Exacutive,
Independent). Indlcate if director is also the Chairman)

Bryan K. Cockrell (1) Southeast Asla 1 (1) Chairman

Cemant Holdings Ine. (2) Clrector

{2) Republic Cement Corp. {3) Director




(i) Rolatlonship within the Company and its Group

. Provide keen details. as and'if applicable, of any relatlon among the' membars of ths Board of Directors,

which links them to significant shareholders I the company andlor In its group: ’
.. Dlrocter's Name Name of the Significant Sharcholder Description of the Relationship
Wong Hong Ren TPFL Principal-nominee
Bryan Cockrall TPFL Principal-nomines
Michele Des-Santos RCBC Trust Princ[pal—nomlnee
Eddle Yeo TPFL Princlpal-nomines
Eddie C. T. Lau TPFL Pr!ncfpa!-nomines‘
|
(v Has the company set Iimit on the number of Board Seats [n other coempanies (publicly listed, ordinary and

companles with secondary licensa} that an Indlvidual director of CEQ may hold simultaneously? In

particular, Is tha Imit of flve board seats [n-other publicly listed companies imposed ;and‘ observed? If yes,
briefly describe other guldelines: i

|

Guldet[_nes

MaxImum Number of Directorship in other
companles

Executive Diregtor

| According to the CG Manual, the
following guidelines shall govam tha
detsrmination of number of
dirgctorships for the Board:

s  Tha nature of the business of
' the corporations of which he is
a director :

Non-Executive Director | «  Age of the cirector

s Number of directorships/ activa
“memkberships and official
positions held in other

[y

===

CED

corporations or organizations,
provided that directorships in
effillates, subsidiarles or other
carporations related fo the
Corporation shall not be
counted -

s Posslble contilot of interest

The optimum number shall be
related to the capacity of a director
to efficlently and diligantly perform
their duties to the hoards they serve.

The CG Manual does not provids a particular limit;
howevar, it provides that executive directors shall
subm|t themssives to a reasonabla number of

1 directorships In other companies and that in any case,

the capacity of each director to diligently and efficiently
perform his duties &s bosrd member shall not be
compromised, - P ;

e

The same limitation applies to independent, non-
axacutive directors who sarve as full-ime sxecutives In

other companies.

The s2me |imit applies.

(¢} Shareholding In the Company

Complete the following table on the members of the com
- own share in the company:

pany's Board of Directors who directly and Indirectly

Namme of Director Number of Direct ) Numl?er of Indirect shares ! Through {name of % of Capitai
- . Shares record owner) ‘ Stock
Wong Hong Ren 1 Less than 1%
Bryan Cockrell 1 Less than 1%,
Michsle Dee-
Santos 1 0 Less than 1%




i .

& Angalito tmperio |
# Eddie Yao
4 Eddie Lau
Mla Gentugaya
Total

Less than 1%
Less than 1%
Less thain 1%
Less than 1%
Less than 1%

~8 i 2 i s
o o oo io

2) Chalrman and CEQ

(a) De differsnt persons assume the role of Chalrman of the Board of Dirattors and CEO? If No, deseribe the
checks and balances lald down te ensure that the Board gets the beneflts of independent views,

Yes No

Generally, the Board is tha governing body of the Coiporation, and all corporate acts are appraved by the Beard. Thers
are adequate checks and batances in the corporate gevernance structurs of the Corporation to ensurs that there is an
appropriata balance of power, Increased accountability anhd better capacity for indepandsnt decision-making by the
Board (a.g. board review, internal control, and Audit Comemittes).

Firstly, there is a proper delineation of the functions of Chalr and CEQ provided by the Corporation's By-Laws:

* CArlcle V, Section 6 - defines the pasition of Chairman of the Board.
* Articie V, Ssctlon 7 -dafines the position of Presidenty CEO .

Secondly, the G Manual contains provislons to ensure that the Board has mechanisms o ensure proper checks and
balancss in the management and operation of the Corporation. These Include:

director ,

*  Section; 2.2.2.1 - on the craation and functions of the Audit Committes :

¢ Section 2.5 - which requires the Board ta provite stockholders with a balancad and comprehensiblo assessment
of the Corporatlon's performancs, position and prospests on a quarterly basis, inciuding interim and other repofts
that could adversely affect its business, as well as reports to regulators that are required by law,

*  Section 2.6 - requires the Management to provide adequate and Emely information to the Board, acknowledges
the Board's access to Management and the Corporate Secrstary, and the Board's discretion o make further
Inguiries on Management action and not to rely solely in Information provided by Management

) Sectlon?{.-‘i - Board's self-rating system to assess Board and Management performance

Under Sec. 2.2.1 of the GG Manual of the Corporation, the Board Is primarily responsible for the governance of the

Corporation. Corollary to selting the policies for the accomplishment of the corporate objectives, it shall provide an
Independant check on Management, ‘ ‘

° Sect?on); 2.2.1.3 (v} to (Ix) and Section 2,2.1.4 {iv) - on the powers, duties and responsibilities of the Board and &

Thirdly, the Corporation has an Audit Commiftes and fta ewn Audit Commiites Charter ("Charter"), which provides for the
duties and responsibillifes of the Audit Committes and lays down the rulss and procsdures that govern the conduct and
perfarmance of the duiies of the Audit Committes, The powers, duties, and responsibilities of the Audit Committes Includa
access to guditors and management, raview of audit procedures, and oversight of financiai management functions,

.

Identify the Chalr and CEO:

' Chairman of the Board : Wong Horig Ren
l_ CEQ/ Presidont Wong Heng Ren

(b} Roles, Accountabiilties and Deliverables
Define and clarlfy the roles, accountabllities and dsliverables of the Chalrman and CEQ,

L Chalrman ' Chlsf Executive Officer




g

ST

Accarding to the Corperation's By- Laws, The President Acts as the Chief Executive

the Chairman, if present, presides at all Officer of the Corporation. He presides over
maetings of the stockholdars and of the maetings in the absence of the Chairman.
Board. The Chelrman also performe all | He giso performs all dutiss incldent tp the
other duties as from time 1o fime may be office of the Prasident and such other duties
assigned to him by the Board. ’ as may from time to time be assigned to him
‘ by the Board or as prescribed by the By-
. Laws, :
Accountablilitles . ' He is responsible for the general care and

supervision of the business and affairs of
the Corporation. Corporate acts and
contracts outside of day-to-day operations
generally require Board approvat,

Deliverabies He slgns with the Corporate Secretary or

Assistant Corporate Secretary certificates of
stock of the Corporation, He also provides .
the stockholders and the Board such
repoerts, memoranda, accounts and data
which may be required of him. He alse
signs off on the psriodic filings and reports
of the Corporation {e.g., Annual Report,
Information Statement, Financlal
Statements, etc.) submitied (o regulatory

agencles and the PSE.

3) Explain how the board of directors plan for the suocossion of the CEO/Managing DirectorfPresident and the

-
-

top key management pesitions?

The CEOG/President and other key officers of the Corporation under its By-Laws, are elected every year in tha
organizational meeting of the Board, Except for the CEQ/President of the Corporation {who I8 not covered by an
employment contract with the Corporation), the key officars of tha Cortparation are also on two-year smployment
contracts that may be renewed for another twe years upon mutual of the parties. ‘

Furthermore, under Article VI, Saction 2 of the Corporation’s By-Laws, the Cha!rman,"Pres.ident', Vies-President(s), the
General Manager, the Secretary, and Treasurer shall hold office until his successer is eiected and qualified in his "~
stead, or untll he shali have resigned or shall have been removed in the manner as provided in the By-Laws,

Other Executive, Non-Executlve and independent Directors ¢

Does the company have a policy of snsuring diversity of experience and background of directors in the board? .
Please explain, T '

' Accdrding to Section 2.2.1.3 of the CQ Manual, itis a policy of the Corporation that the Board has a duty to implament 2

pracess for the selection of Directors who can add value and contribute indepsndent judgment for the formulation of
sound corparate strategies and policies. : .

Furthemmors, 2 ot of the 7 directors, or epproximately 28:6%, are required to be independent directors as dafinad by
the CG Manual,

Does it ensura at least ona non-sxecutive director has an expsrlence In the sector or Industry the company
belongs to? Please explain. _ :

!

Corporation alse requires that the non-executive director be a member In good standing In |a relevant industry,
business, or professionai organizations, More particularly, Section 2.2.1.4. of the CG Manuai ma dates that tha nan-
executive diractor should possess such qualifications and staturs that would enable them to effectively pariicipate In the
dsliberations of the Board, : : :

‘Yes. According to the GG Manual, Seq. 2.2.1.5, In addition to the qualifications requirad by iawaor all diractors, the

i

: i
The GG Manual aiso provides that a director should devote sufficient time to familiarize himself with the Corporation's
business. He should be constantly aware of and knowledgeable with the Corporation’s oparatiohs to snabls him to

|
| )

|




g Define and clarify the roles,
; Independent Directors:

i The Corporation's corporate govarnance documents do nict ey
J deflverables of the exacutive, hon executlve, and inds
i Corporation provide for the powars, duties, and respo

meaningfuily contribute to the Board's wo
meetings, raview mesting materials and, if caled for, ask auestions or seek exp
working knowledge of the statutory and regul
laws, the rules and regulations of the
regulatory agencies. A dlrector should also keep abreest wi
promote tha Corporation's competitiveness.

Incorporation and by-

atory require,.

tk. He should attend and actively perticipate in Board and commitiee
lanation. A dirsctor should have a
~ents that affect the Corporation, Including its articles of
BEC and, where applicable, the requirements of ralavant
th Industry developments and business trends in order to

accountabllities and deliverables of the Executive Non-Executive and '

pressiy provide far the roles, accountabllities, and
pendent dirsctors. However, the By-Laws and CG Manual of the
nsibilitfes of the Board and of each director of the Corporation.,

Executlve

Non-Executive

Independent Director

Roles

Article 1V, Saction 1 of
the By-Laws of the
Corporation provides
that unless otherwise
provided by law, the
powers, business and
property of the
Corporation shall be
exercissed, conductad
and controlled by the
Board, ‘

Artlete 1V, Section 1 of the
By-Laws of the Corporation
provides that unlass
otherwise provided by law,
the powaers, business and
property of the Corporation
shall be exercised,

condutted and controlled

hy the Board.

Article IV, Ssction 1 of the By-
Laws of the Corporation
provides that unless othenwise
provided by law, the powers,
business and property of the
Corpuoration shail be
exercigad, condusted and
cantrolled by the Board.

Accountabliitiss

Under Sec. 2.2.% of the .

CG Manual, the Board
I3 primarily responsible
for the governance of

" this Caorporation.

Corollary to setting the
policles for the
accomplishment of the
cerporate objactives, it
shall provide an
Independent check on
Management.

Under Ssec. 2.2.1.2 of
the CG Manusl, it shall
he the Board's
responsibllity to foster
the long-term success
of the Corporation and
sacyre Its sustainad
competitivenessin a
manner consistent with
Its fiduciary
responsibdlity, which it
shall exercise in the
bast interest of the
Corparation and its
sharsholders. The
Board shall conduct
itaelf with utmost

hanesty and integrity in’

the discharge of jts
dufles, furctions and

Under $ec, 2.2.1 of the CG

| Manugl, the Board Is

primarily responsibla for the
governance of the
Corporation. Gorollary to
setting the policies for the
ascomplishment of the
corporate objectives, it
shall providean
independent check on
Management.

Under Sec. 2.2.1.2 of the

CG Manual, it shall be the
Board's.rasponsibility to
foster the long-term
success of the Corporation
and secure its sustainad
competitiveness in a
mannhar consfistent with its
fiduciary responsibility,
which it shall exercise in
the best interest of the
Corporation and its
shareholders. The Board
shalt conduct itself with
utrmost honesty and
integtity in the discharge of
its duties, functions and
responsibilities. The Board
shall formulate the
Corporation's vision,
mission, strategic

Under Sec. 2.2.1 of the CG
Manual, the Board Is ptimarily
responsible for the
governance of the
Corporation. Corollary to
setting the policies for the
accomplishment of the
corporate oblectives, it shall
provide an independent check
oh Management,

Under Sec. 2.2.1.2 ofthe GG
Manual, it shall ba the Board's
responsibility to foster the
fong-term success of the
Corporation and securs Itg
sustained competitiveness In a
manner consistent with its
fiduciary responsibility, which -
it shall exercise In the best -
interest of the Corporation and
fts shareholders. The Board
shall conduct itself with utrnost
hanesty and integrity In the
discharge of Ifs ¢ utles,
functions and respansibiiities,
The Board shall forhulate the
Corporation's vision, mission,
strategic nbjectives, policies
and precedures that shall
guide its activities, including
the means to effectivaly
monitor Management's

i
ii
i
i
i




responsibiiities, The
Board shall formulate
the Corporation's vision,
mission, strategic
obJectivas, policies and
procedures that shafl -
guide its activities,
including the means fo
effectively monitor
Management's
parfarmanca,

See. 2.2.1.4 of the CG
Manual provides that a
diractor's office is one of
trust and confidence. A
director should act In
the best interest of the
Corporatlon in @ mannar
characterized by

transparency,
accouniability and
fairness. He should also
exercise leadership,
prudence and integrity
In directing the
Corporation towards
sustainad progress,

objectives, policies and
procgdures that shall guide
Its activities, including the
means fo effectively
menitor Managsmenti's
performance,

' Sec. 2.2.1.4 of the CG

Manual provides that a
director’s office is one of
trust and confldencs, A
director showld actin the.
best Interest of the
Corporation In 2 manner
characterized by
fransparency,

accountabllity and fairness.

He should also exerclse
teadership, prudence and
integrity in directing the
Corporation towards.
sustained progress.

!
1

performafcs.
|

|
Sec. 2.2.1.4 of the CG Manual
provides that a director's office
is one of trust and confldence.
A director should act in the
best Interest of the
Corporation In & manner
characterized by
transparency, accountability
and faimess. He should also
exorclse lsadership, prudence
and Integrity in directing the
Corporation towards sustained
pregress,

Delivarables

Under Sec. 2.2.1.7 of
tha CG Manual, th.
members of the Board
should attend itg regular
and special meetings in
person or through
teleconferencing
conducted in
accordance with the
rles and regulations of
the SEC.

Sse. 2.5 of the CG
Manual requires the
Board to provide
stockholders with a
balanced and

comprahensible
assessment of the
Corporation's
parformance, position
and prospects on g
duarterly basis,
Inciuding Interim and

other reports that could
adversely affect its
business, as well as
reports to regulatars

that are required by law.

Under Sec. 2.2.1.7 of the
CG Manual, the members
of the Board should attend
its regular and spscial
mestings in person or
through telecontersneing
conducted In accordance
with the rules and
regulations of the SEC,

Sec. 2.5 of the CG Manual
requires the Board to
provide stockholders with a
balanced and
comprehensible

assessment of the
Corporation’s performance,
position and prospects on g
quartarly basis, including
interim and other repors
that could adversely affect
its business, as well as
reports to regulators that .
are required by law.

Under Sec..2.2.1.7 of the CG
Manual, the members of the
Board should attend lts regular
‘and special meetings in
parsen or through ‘
telaconferencing conducted In
aceordance with the rules and
regulations of the SEC.

Sec. 2.5 of the GG Manual
requires’the Board to provide
stockhelders with a balanced
and comprahensible
assessmeni of the
Cotporation’s psrfamm ance,
position end prospacts on a
quartsrly hasis, including
Interim and ofher reporis that
could adversely affect its
buslness, as wsli as reports to
regulators that are required by
law,

|
Independent.directors should
always atteng Board
meslings. The Board may
require the presence of at
lsast one Independent director
in ali Board riesatings.
Howevar, the absence of an
independent director will not
affect the quorum
requirement, %

!
w0
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Provide the company’s deflnition of "independence” and describe the company compilancs to the definftion.

I The Cérpdration‘s Guidelines for Selection of Candldates for Independent Director ("Guidelines") provides the following
aefinition:

Definition of Independent Director - An Independent director Is a person other than en officer or employes of the
corporation, its parent or subsidiarias, ar any other individual having a financial or other intersst in the business of the

Corporation, lis parent or subsidiaries, or any other indlvidual having a relationship with the corporation which would

interfere with the exerclse of independent Judgment in carrying cut the responsibiilties of a director. It refers fo a person

who, apart from his fees and shareholdings, is independent of management and free from any business or other

relatlonship thet could, or could reasonably be percelved to, materially Interfere with his exercise of independent

judgment In carrying out his responsibilities as a director of the corporation. It Inciudes, among others, any ‘persen who:

s iy 4 LG

ﬁi (iy . Is not a director or officer or substantial stockholder of the Corporation or of its related companies or any of its
) substantial shareholders (other than as an Independent director of any of the foregaing);
(I Is not a relative of any director, officer, or substantial sharsholdar of the Corporatlon, any of its related

2 companies, or any of its substantial shareholders. for this purpose, relalives includes spouse, parent, child,
m brother, sister, and the spouse of such child, brother or sister. ‘
3 {ii} fs not acting as a nominae or representative of a substantial shareholder of tha Corporation, any of its related

: companies or by any of its substantial shareholders within the last five years, ;
P {iv} Has hot been employed in any executive capacity b the Corporation, any of its related companies or by any, of
gl its substantial shareholders within the last five years. ;
' (v) Is not retained as professional adviser by the Corporation, any of its relsted companies or any of its substantial

shareholders within the (ast five years, either personally or through his firm: .

; {vi) Has not engaged and does not engage In any transaction with the Corporation or with any of its related
E‘ cornpanies or with any of its substantial sharehalders, whather by himsslf or with any other persons or thraugh

a fim of which he is a partner or a company of which he is 2 director or substantial sharshoider other than
transactions which aie conducted at arms length and are immaterial or Insignificant,

In compliance with this définitian, only the candidates whose nominations are confirmad by the Nemination Committee
to be in acoordance with such rules, guidelines and crlteria to govern the conduct of the nomination shall be eflgibles to
be elected s independent diractors,

As such, both Atty. Gentligaya and Atty. Imperlo, the incumbent independent directors, hava no relation whatsesver to
their nominaters, TPFL and Zatrio Pte Ltd, raspeciivaly,

Does the company have a term limit of five consecutive years for independent directors? If after two years, the
company wishes to bring back an Independent director who had served for flvs years, does it limit the term for.
no more than four additional years? Plvase expialn.

The Corporatf'on complies with SEC Msmorandum No. 9, Seriss of 2011 ("SEC MC 9-11"), providing for term limits of
independent directors to ba reckoned from the torms commencing after 2 January 2013, Thus, the Corporation’s
independent directors can serve as such for five consecutiva years. After the completion of the five-year service period,
an indapendqnt director shall be ineligible for slection as such, unless the independent director has undsrgone a
"eooling off’ periad of two years. ARer the “cocling of" peried,” the independent director can serve for another five
consecutive ysars. After serving as independent direstor for 10 years, the independent director shall ba perpatually
barred from being élected as such in the sams company, . All the previous terms served bs existing independent
directors shall not be included In the appiication of the term Jimits. Thus, the independent directors of the Corporation .
shali be aligible for reelaction as independent dhiwctors for the next five consecutive y=ars from 15 May 2012, sulject to
the "sooling off" period previded in SEC MG §-11. ' f

§) Changes In the Boeard of Directors (Executlve, Non-Executive and Independent Directors)
{a) Reslignation/Death/Removal
Indleate any change In the compesition of the Board of Directors that happened during the perlod:

Name Positlon Date of Cessation ‘ Reason
N.A, ‘ ' '
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(b) Selection/Appoiniment, Re-alection, Risquallflcatlon, Removal, Relnstatement and Suspension
Describe the procedures for the aelection/appolntment, re-electlon, disqualification, removai
- Instatement and suspension of the members of the Board of Directors. Provide details of the
Processes adopted (including the frequency of election) and the criteria smployed in each procadure;

Procedure

Process Adopted

Criteria

a. Seloction/ Appointment

(i} Executive Diractors

(lixNon-Exscutive Directors

The By-Laws provide that all diractors
shall be elscted annually and shall hold
offica uniil the annua! meating hsld next
to his election and until his successor
shall have been elected and shall have

qualified, or until his death or untl he'

shall resign or shail have baen removed

* Annual meeting: held on the 15th of

May e, ory year

+ If the elaction i& not held on the
agnnual meeting, then it shall be
held at @ speciai mesting as soon
as thersafler ' as the same may be
convaniently haid

*  Notice: at least 15 days before the
mesfing

¢ Quorum: the holders of &t least the|

majority of the ouistanding capital
stock entifled to vote should be
present personaily or by proxy

= Nomination:
nominating candidates for elsction
shall  show proof that - such
candidates havé alf the
qualifications and nons of the
disqualifications '

+ Deliberations of the Nomination
Committes: At Jeast a majority of
the members of the Committes
shall attend and they shall
determine If one is qualifisd. Cnly
those 'qualified based on their
determination may be slacted.

*  Voling: cumulative voting

Stockholders |

iii.
Iv,

vi.

vii,

viii,

¥

He shall have at least one share of|
stock of the Corporation; .
He shall be &t least a college graduate
or he shall have been engagsd or
exposed to the business of the
corporation for st laast five years;

He shall possess intagrity/probity:

He shall be at least 21 years old;

He shall bs asslduous;

He must have a college sducation or
aquivalent academic degree;

He must have g practical understanding
of the business of the Corporation;

He must be a member in good standing
In relevant industry, business ‘or
professional

organizations; and

He must possess previous business
expsriance,

{

(i) Independent Directors

Under ths Carporation's By-Laws, the )i

Corporation shall efect such nurmbar of

independent direcior/(s) as the relevant|il,

laws er ragulations may raquire,

At least three (3) months before the
annual stockholders' masting in which
an independent director/(s) shall be

slscted, or at such time as the relavant
law or regulaticn may from time to fime

prescribe, the incurnbent Board shal!
meet tc  appoint @ Nominration
Committee,

ii.

tv.
v,

vl
vil.

viii,

He shall have at!least one share of
stock of the Corporation;

He shall be at least a collegs graduate
or he shal have besn engaged or
exposed to the | :

business of the cerporation for at least
five years; B :

He shall possess Integrityforebity;

He shall be at least 21 years old;

He shail be assiduoys; \ 1
He must have a college education or
squivalent academic degres; . -

Ha must have a praciical understanding
of the business of the Corparation:

12
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|submitted to the Chairman. No further

of at least three (3) members, ohe of

prepare the list of gandidates for
Independent dirsctor/(s) based upon
qualified candidates nominated by the
stockholders. The Nomination
Commlties, subject to the approval by
the Board, shall promulgate the rulas,
guidelines and criferia to govern the
conduct of the nomination. Only the
candidates whose - nominations ars
canfirmed by the Nomination Committes
to be in sccordance with such rules,
guidelines and criteria to govern the
conduct of the nomination. No other
nomination shall ba entertained after the
list of candidates has bean finalized and

nomination shall bs enlertained or
allowed "on the fleor during the
stockholdars' meeting.

The Chairman of the Board, or in his or
hier absence, the designated chairman
of the stockholders' meeting, shall
inform the stockholders attending the
stockholders' maating of the mandatory
requirement of -slecting independent
director/(s). In case of faiture to elect an
independsnt director, the Chalrman
shall call a separate election during the
same meeting to fill the vacancy,

The Nomination Commitiae shall consist |ix,

Xi.

whom shall be an incumbant
independent direstor. ' X
The Nomination Committee  shall

He must be & member in good standing
N relevant industry, business -;ior
professional :
organizations; andg ,

He must possess previous busines
experiance, ‘

b. Re-appointment

(i) Executive Directors

{* If the election Is not held on the

* Notice: at least 15 days befora the

The By-Laws provide that ail diractors
shall be elected annuaily and shali hold i
office until the annual meeting held next

to his slaction and until his stuccessor
shall have bean slected and shall have

|qualified, or untl! his death or until he i,

shall resign or shall have besn removed

¢ Annual meeting: he!d on the 15th of
May avery year :

annual meeting, then It shall be
held at a spacial mesting as soon
as thersafter as the same may ba |
conveniantly held :

mesting X.

¢ Guorum: the hoiders of at least the| x|,

inajority of the outstanding capital

stock entitled to vote should - be
present personally or by proxy

. He must have a college education or

. He must have a practical understanding

He shall have at lsast one shara of |
stock of the Corporation;
He shall be at laast 5 college graduats
or he shall have besn engaged or
expossd to the ]

busingss of the corporation for at least
five years;

Ha shall possess Integrity/prabity:

Ha shall be at laast 21 years old;

He shall be agsiducus;

aquivalent atademic degres;

of the business of the Corporation; .

He must be a member In good standing
in  relevant industry, businass or
professional

organizations; and

He must possess previous business
exparience.

13
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»  Voting: eumulative voting applles

{[INaon-Exscutive Directors

shall be electad annuailly and shall hold

to his election and-until hs successor
shall have been elected and shall have

shall resign or shall have been removed

s Annual meeting: held-on the 15th of
May every year
* If the election is not held on the

held at a special meeting as soon

conveniently hald

majority of the outstanding cepital
stock entlifed to: vote should be
presant personally or by proxy

»  Voling: cumulative voting applies

The By-Laws provide that all directors|i.

office untll the annual meeting held next| ii.

¢ Nolice: at least 15 days before the |’
mesating X,

*  Quorum: the holders of at least the | xi.

quaiified, or until his death or untll he| il

annual meeting, then it shall bs Vil

as thereaftar as the same may be i,

. He must have a college education or

. He must have a practical understandin

_experience, :

He shall have at least one share of
stock of the Corporation; 1
He shall be at lzast a college graduate
or he shall have been engaged or
exposad to the
buginsss of the corporation for at least
five ysars; :

Ha shall possess integrity/probity;
He shell be at least 21 years old,
He shall be assiducus;

eguivalent scademic degrae; .

of the business of the Corporation;

He must be a member In good standing
in relevant Industry, business or
professional

organizations; and

He must possess previous business

{iir) independer;i Diractors

Tha By-Laws provide that all directors
shall be electad annually ard shall hold
office untlf the annual meeting held next
to his election &nd until his succassor
shall have been elected and shall have
qualified, or until his death or until he
shall reslgn or shall have been removed

» If the slection is not held on the

held at a speclal meeting as soon
as thereafter as the same may be|;

majorlty of the outstanding capital
stock entitled to vole should bej’
present perscnally or by proxy

*  Valing: cumuiative voting appiles

In compliance. with MC 9-11, the
Corporation's Independent directors are
covered by a term lmit of five
consecutive years, sublect o the
“coaling-off' pericd of two years as
provided in MC 8-11.

A
»  Annual meeting: held on the 15th of :I
May every vear vli

annual meeting, then it shall be|,;

convenisntly hald >
» Nofice: at least 15 days before the
meeting X

»  Quorum: the holders of at least the | xi,

. He must have a

He shall have at least one share of
stack of the Corporation;
He shall be at [east a college graduate
or he shall have beesn engaged or
exposed to the ‘
busingss of the corporation for at least| -
five years; ‘ ¢
He shall possess Integrity/probity;
He shall be at least 21 years old;
He shait be assiduous;
He must have acollege education or
squivalent acad'enzic degrae;

pfactical understanding
of the business of Ikhe Carporation;
He must be'a member In goed standing
in  relevant industry, business or
professional |
organizations: .and .
He must possess previous businese
experfence.
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¢. Petmanent Disquallfication

(i) Executive Directers
(IHNon-Executive Directors
(il}) Independent Directors

The By-Laws provide that any director
may be removed, either with or without
cause, at any time, by the affirmative
vote of 2/3 of the ocutstanding capital
stock entiled to wvote at a regular
mesting or at a special meeting callad
for the purposs and held affer dus
notice. The wvacancy 'in .the Board
caused by any such removal may be
fited by the siockholders at such
mesting without further nofice, or at any
regular or special mesting called for the
purpese after due notice,

iif.

Furthermore, the CG Manual provides the .
foflowing additional disquaiifications: -

Any person who has been finally
convicted by & competent judicial or
administrative body of the fallowing: (i)
any crime involving purchass of
securities, (il) any crime arising out, of
the psrson's conduct as an underwrier,
broker, dealer, investment company,
Investmant adviser, principal distributor,
mutial fund dealer, futures commisslon
merchant, commodity trading advisor,
floor broker; and (iii) any crime arlsing
out of his relationship with a bank,
quasi-bank. #ust company, investment
hause or as an affiliatad person of any
of tham,

Any person who, by reasen of any
misconduct, after hearing or trial, Is
permanently or temporarlly enjoined by
order, judgment or decree of the SEC or
any court or other administrative body of .
competent Jurisdiction from: () acting
85 an underwrlter, broker, dealer,
investmeant company, investment
adviser, principal distributor, mutual
fund dealer, futures commission
merchant, commodity trading advigor,
fleor broksr; (i) acting as & director or
officer of a bank, quaskbank, trust
comparty, investment house, investmeant
company or an affliated person of any
of them; (ili} engaging in or eontinuing
any conduct or practice in connection
with any such activity or willfully
violating laws governing securitiss, and
banking activities. Such dlsqualificatign ‘
shall also apply when such person s
curreritly subject to an effactive arder of
the SEC or any court or other
administrative body refusing, revoking,
or suspending any registration, license,
or permit issued under the Corporation
Coda, Securities Regulation Code, or
any other law administered by the SEC
of the BSP, or under any rule or
regulation promulgated by the SEG of
BSP, or otherwise restrained to engage
in any activity Involving securittes and
banking. Such person s alzo
disqualified when he i surrently subject
to an effective ordar of 5 self-ragulatory
organization suspending or expelling
him from membership or participation or
from assoclating with a member or
particlpant of the organization.

Any parson finally convictad j'udtclally ar
administratively of an offenss involving
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vl.

morat turpitude, fraud, embezziement,
theft, estara, counterfeiting,
misappropristion, forgery, bribery, false |,
oath, perjury or other fraudulent act or
transgressions

Any person.finally found by the SEC or
a court or other administrative body to
have willfully viotated, or wilifully aided,
abetted, ocounseled, induced, or
Frocured the violation of , any provision
of the Securities Regulation code, the
Corporation Cods, or any othsr [aw
administered by the SEC or BSP, or any
ruls, regulation or order of the SEG or
‘BSP, or who has filad & materially falss
or misleading application, report or
registration statement required by the
SEG, or any rule, regulation or order of
the SEC, ‘

Any parson judiclally declared to be
insolvent.

Any person finally found gullty by a
foreign court or equlvalent financlal i
regulatory authority of acts, violations or
miseonduct similar to any of the acts,
violations or misconduct fisted above

I Any affillated person who s ineliginle,
by reason of paragraphs (i} fo (v} above
to serve or act In the capacities listed In
thoss paragraghs |

Il. Any person ccmviited by final judgment
of an offenss  punishable by
fmprisonment for a perlod exceeding 6
years, or a violation of the Corporation
Code, committed within 5 years prior to

the date of his election or appointment

d. Temporary Disquallfigation

{) Executive Dirsctors

(ii)Non-Executlvs Directors

A temporarity disqualified director shall,
within 80 business days from such
disqualification, take the approprigte
setion to remedy or cormect the
disqualificatlon, if he falls or refusss fo
do so for unjustified reasens, the
disqualification - ghall becoma
perrmanent.

U

shall bhe g

di

nder the CG Manual, any of the following
ground  for temporeffy
squalification of a director: .

Refusal to comply with tha disclosure
requirements  of the . Securities
Regulation Code and its Implemanting
Rules and Regufations, The
disqualification shall be in effect as fong
as the refusal parsists.

Absence in more than fifty (50) percant
of all regular and special mestings of
the Board during his Incumbency, or
any twelve (12) month perlod during the
said incumbency, unless the absence [s
due to illness, dsath In e immediate
family ~or seridus accident The
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disqualification shall apply for purposes
of the succaeding elaction,

ili, Dismissal or termihation for cause as
diractor of any corporation covered by
the Code. Tha disqualification shall be
in effect untll he has cleared himself
from any invclvement in the cause that
gave rise to his dismissal or termination.

Iv. If any of the judgmants or orders clted in
the grounds for permanent
disqualification has not yet become
final,

(i) Independent Directars

J
;
;
|

A temporerily disqualified director shall,
within 80 business days from such
disqualification, fake the appropriate
action to remedy or comrect the
disquatification. If he fails or refuses to
do so for unjustified reasons, the
disqualification shall become
permanent.

in compliancs with MC 9-11, the
Corporation’s independent directors ars
covered by a term Imit of five
consecutive  years, subject to ths
"cadling-off' period of .two years as
provided in MC 911,

According to the CG Manual, in addition to
the above-mentioned disqualifications, an
independent  director  shall also : be
disqualified if his beneficial equity owneffship
in the Cerporation or its subsidiarles and
affiliates exceeds 2% of its subscribed
capital stock, the disqualification ‘'shall be
fiftad or later complied with. :

e. Removal

{i) Executive Diractors

The By-Laws provide that any diractor

(INon-Executive Directors

may be removed, either with or withoyt
cause, at any time, by the affirmative

{1} Independent Diraciors

.

vote of 2/3 of the outstanding capital
stock eniltled to vote at a regular
meeting or at a speclal masting

called for the purpose and hald after due
notice. The vacancy in the Board

[ purpose after due notics.

caused by any such removal may be
filed by the stockholders at such
meeting without frther notice, or at any
regular or special meeting called for the

The Compllance Officer dacldes
whether or not any violation of the CG
Manual has been committed, and shell

May be with or without cause: An example
of a removal for cause is provided for by
Section 8 the CG Manual, which mandates
removal of the diractor for a third viclation of
the CG Manual,

recommend fo the Chairman the
Imposable penaity for such violatlon, for
further review and approval by the
Board, This s subject to the
requirements of due process, notice and
hearing.

{. Re-Instatemant

() Executiva Directors

The By-Laws provide that any vacancy

caused by disqualification may be filled

Under 8ec. 2.2.15 of the GG Manual, a
temporarily disqualifisd directar shall, within
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by the majority vote of the remaining|sixty (60) business days from such
directors then in office, constituting aldisqualification, take tha appropriate action

(iNan-Executive Directors quorum, and each director so elected|to remedy or correct the disqualification, If
- shall hold office for & he fails or refuses to do so for unjustified
{jii) Independent Directors term to expira at the next annuallreasons, the disqualification shall beccme

slection of “directors, and until his|psrmanent.
successors shall be duly elacted and
qualified, or.until kis death, until he shall
resign or shall have been removed in
the manner harein provided.

¢. Suspension

(i} Executive Directors . |According to the CG Manual, the| A director shall be.suspended from offlce for

Caompliance Officer decides whether or|a second viclation of fite provisions of the
(IhNon-Executive Directors not any violation of the CG Manual has |CG Maral,
~— besn committad, and shall recommend
(iii} Independent Directors to the Chairman the imposable penalty

for such violation, for further review and

approval by the Board, This is subject to

the requirements of due process, notice

and hearing. '
1

thlng’ Result of the last Annual General Meating

Name of Rirector Votes Recelved

Wang Hong Ren ‘ : .
To facliitale the conduct of the proseedings of the annual

Bryan Cockreil . ‘ stockholdars' meeting, the stockholders adopted a system of voting
7 whereby a motlon to elect tha diractors was presented and the
Eddie Lau ‘ . N N s
, meeting was advised that if thers is no objection to a nomination or
Eddie Yeo motion {0 approve a proposed resolution regarding the nominatlon,
. it will be understood that the stockhoiders present or represented in
Michele Dee-Santos today’s meeting vote in favor of the nomination. Based on this

system of voting, the five regular directors and the two independent

Angelito lmperio (Independent Director) directors, being the only nominees to the Board, wers uhapimously

Mia Gentugaya (Independant Director) slected in the last annual stockholders’ mesting.

§) Orientation And Education Program :
a) Disclose defalls of the company's orientation program for new dirsctors, if any.

. Adirector, before assuming his role as such, Is required to attend a seminar cn corporate governance conducted by a duly

recognized private or government institute. Furthermore, Section 4 of the CG Manual allows the Board to allocate funds for
the purpose of conducting an orientation program or workshop with regard fo the requirements of the CG Manual, ‘

b} State any In-house training and external courses attended by Directors and Senlor Management for the past
three (3) years: . :

On 23 November 2010, SyClp Gorres Velayo & Co. and Knowledge instifute conducted a 'ccrporate govsrnance seminar at
the Corporation's Boardroom, which was aftanded by Mr. Wong Hong Ren {Chairman and PresidentCEO) and Mr. Yam Kit
Sung (General Manager, GFQ, Compliance Officer, and Chisf Audlt Exacutive).

c) Contlnuing education pregrams for directors: programs and seminars and roundtables atfended during the
_year, .

|_Name of Director/ Officer | Date of Training Program Bl Name of Training |
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instittion

Wong Hong Ren

23 November 2010

Corporate Governance
Seminar

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co,
and Knowledge Instituta

Bryan Cockreft 24 July 2008 2008 Corporate Governance Corporate Governance
' Workshop Institute of the Philippines /
Flnancial Executives
Institute of the Philippines /
Management Association of
the Philippines
Eddia Yeo 2-3 March 2009 Orfentation Course on Institute of Corporate
Corporate Governanca Directors
Angslita C. Imperio 2-3 March 2608 Oriertalion Course on Institute of Corporate
Corporate Governance Dirgctors
Mia G, Gentugaya 2-3 March 2008 Qrientation Course on Institute of Corporate
Corporate Gavernanca Directors

Michele D. Santos 6 Decamber 2005

i

Corporate Governance
Orientation Courses

Institute of Corporate
Rirectors / Insurance
Institute for Asia and the
Pacific

Artene C. De Glzman 24 July 2008

|
i
|
i

Workshop

2008 Carporate Govarnance

Corporate Govarnance
Insiiiute of the Philippines /
Financial Executives

Managerment Association of
the Philippines

Yam Kit Sung 23 Novernber 2010 Corporate Governance 1 SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.
Seminar and Knowledge Institute
Alain Charles J. Veloso 5 Dacember 2008 / Compliance Seminar Philippine Stock Exchange
2 Decamber 2010/ 12 Annual Listing and Philippine Stock Exchange
December 2011/ 27 Disclosure Rules Semiinar
November 2012 '

_ B. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUGT & ETHICS

1. Dlstuss briafly the company's pelicies on the following business conduct or ethlcs afféctlng dlrectérs, senior

management and smployees:

Business Dlractors Senlor Management Empioyses
Conduct & ‘
Ethles
{a} Conflict of He should avoid situations that may | The Corporation adheres to Engaging in competitive
interest compromise his impartiaiity; the policies of the Group business operation is

requires full disclosura for any zetual
| or potential confiict of interest, as
wall as inhibition from participating
in decision-making. if there fs a
continuing material confilct of
Interest, he should serigusly
conslder reslgnation.

(Millennium & Copthame
Hotels ple) which outline the
standards of behavior
required of all employees
when acting on the Group's
behaif which Include acting
profassionally, with honesty,
integrity, objectivity and in
compliance with all
applicable lsgal and
regulatory requirements,

considered a grave offense.

(6) Condugt of

The basic pﬂncipia Is that & director
Business and

should net use his position to profit

The Board of Dirsctors has

implemented an anti-bribery

Engaging in compatitive
business operations with The

1@

Institute of the Philippines /




Fair Dealings

Oor gain soms beneflt or advantage
for himself and/ or his related
interests,

palicy which prohiblts the
offering, the -

glving, the solicitation or the
acceptance of any bribe,
whather cash or other
inducemen,

| Itis the Company's and

the Group's policy to agree
the tarms of payment with
suppliers at the
commencement of the
trading or contractuai -
relationship and to opsrate
within such terms

subject to satisfactory
complsiion of the suppliers’
obligations, It dues ot
fellow any particular
guidelines establishad by
third parties.

Heritage Hatel {"Hotel"
premises is a grave offenss,

Unauthorized foreign clirrency
dealings Js considered a grave
offense

Merchandising or engaging in
any kind of personal buginess
or activity during working hours
or while insids the Hotel
premises and/or anywhers
within its vicinity is considersd
a mino"r offanse.

{¢} Receipt of
gifts from third
pattiss

A director should not use his
position to profit or galn some
beneflt or advantage for himself
andfor his related interests, Ha
should avoid situations that may
compromise his impsrtiality. I an
actual or potentlal conflict of intsrest
may arise an the part of a director,
he should fully and Immediately
disclose It and should not particlpate
in the decision-making process, A
director who has a continuing
materfal cenflict of interest should
serfously consider resigning from his

" position,

The Board of Directors has
implemented an anti-bribery
policy which prohibits the
offering, the giving, the

_solicitation or the

acceptance of any bribe,
whether cash or other
inducement,

‘business relationship for the

benefit is 2 grave offense,

Borrow|ng or receiving money
commissions, promises or
soliciting material favors or ahy
other consfderation from
stippliers, customears or other
persens with which the
sommpany has an existing

purposs of parsonal gain or

Soliciting and collsction any
form of contributions or
donatlons for any purpose not
authorized by the Management
18 & minor offense.

{(d) Compliance
with Laws &
Regulations

A director is required to have a
working knowledge of the statutory
and regulatory requirements that
affact the Corporation, inchiding its
articles of incorporation and by-laws,
the rules and regulations of the SEC
and, whera applicable, the
requiremients of relevant regulatory
agencies.

The Corperation adheres fo
the policies of tha Group

which outfine the standards .

of behavior required of al)
empioyees when acting on
the Group's behalf which
Inciude acting

professlonaliy, with honesty,”

integrity, objectivity and in
compliance with all
applicable fegal and
regulatory requirements,

The Board of Dirsotors has

_fmplemented an anti-bribery

policy which prohibits the
offarirg, the .
giving, the soficitation or the
acceptance of any bribe,
whether cash or other
inducement.

Engaging or conniving in any
anomalous transactions not
covered In any other ruls of the
Hotsl Code of Conduct ("Coda
of Conduct") is a grave offenss.

Inducing, encouraging, or
abatting any employee to
engage in prohibited acts
erfany practica in vilstion of
company policles 8 a major
offensa,

Criminal conviction in any court
of law or commission of 2 crime
during working hours but within
the Hotel's premises is a grave

offense, '

{e) Respect for

Trade
Secrats/Use
of Nen-public

A director is requited 1o keep sacura
and confidential all non-publle ’
information that he may acquirg or
learn by reason of this position as

The Corporation adhares to
the polidies of the Group
which outline the standards
of behavior required of all

Leaiding one's salary
information or that of another Is
a major offanse.
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Information

director. He should not reval
confidentlal information to
unauthorized persons without
authority of the Board.

employees when acting on
the Group’s behalf which
inciude acting
professionaliy, with honasty,
integrity, objectivity and In
compliance with all
applicable legal and
regulatery requiremants.

Leaking out Hotel Trade
Secrets or confidental
informaticn to unauthorized
persons is a grave offenss

(f) Useof

' company
Funds, Asssts
and :
Information

Except for reasonabils per diams,
directors are entitied only to the
compensation as may be granted by
them by ths vate of majority of the
stockholders represanting at least 3
majority of the outstanding capital
siock,

The Corporation adheres to
the policies of the Group
which outline the standards
of behevior required of all

| ®mployees when acting on

the Group's behalf which
inciude acting
professionally, with honesty,
integrity, objectivity and in
compliarice with all
applicable legal and
regulatory requirements.

A number of provisions in the
Code of Cenduct consider
unauthorized use of company
assets for ons's benefit as g
mejor offsnse. Moreover,
Unauthorized access to
computer files by breaking
passwords is a grave offense.
Malversation of company funds
also a grave offensa,

{9} Employment
& Lahor Laws
& Policies

- the rules and regulations of the SEC

A diractor is required to havs a
working knowladge of the statutory
and regulatory requirements that
atfect the Corporation, including its
articies of Incorporation and by-taws,

and, where applicabls, the
requirements of relevant regulatory
agencles,

The Corporation adhares to
the policies of the Group
which outiine the standards
of behavior required of all
employees when acting on
the Group’s behalf which
include acting '
professionally, with honesty,
integrity, objactivity and in
campliance with alf
applicable legat and
regufatory requirements.

Inciting, instigating, provoking
of particlpating in any riots,
disorders, or any conzeriad
activities as slow downs or any
other act that intends to
sabotage the operations and
business of the Hotel is a grave
offanse.

{h) Disciplinary
action o

For violations of the CG Manual:
(1) First violation: reprimand

(2) Secand violation: suspension
{3) Third violation; removal

Under the Corporation Cods, and
prevailing jurisprudence, a director
of a.corporation may be held liable
for damages for the acte of the
corporation, under the following
circumstances:

{1} He willfully and knowingly vote
for or assent to patently

- unlawful acts of the corporation:
(2} He s guilty of gross negligencs
or bad faith in directing the
affalrs of the corperation:

{(3) He acquires any personal or
pecuniary interaest in conflict
with thelr duty as such

- diregtors;

{4) He consents to the lssuancs of
waterad stocks or who, having
knowledge hereof, does not
forthwith file with the corporate
secretary his written objection

therata; :

Any violatfan of the policies
of the Group which outline
the standards of bahavior
required of all employees
mey ke a ground for
disciplinary action {L.e.,
reprimand, suspension, or
removal} of a senior
management officer,

Issuing statements inkmizal to
the reputation of the
serporation is & major offense,

Minor Offenses
e 1zt offense - Verbal

© Waming
*  2nd - Written Warning
* 3rd - 1 week suspension
¢ 4th - dismlssal

.Major Offenses

»  1st- 1 week suspension
»  2nd - 2 wesks suspension
s« Jrd - dismissal

Grave Offenss

» st - dismissal
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(5) He agrees to hold himself
personafly and solidarily iabis
with the. corporation; or

(8) He Is made, by g speeific
provision of law, to personally
answer for his corperate action,

(i) Whiste
Blower

To enable the members of the
Board to prapsrly fulfill their duties
and responsibilities, Managemant
should provide them with complate,
adequate and timely information
about the matters to be taken in
their meetings.

Reliahce on Information voluntserad
by Managemant would not be
sufficlent in all circumstances and
further inguiries may have to be
made by a member of the Board to
enable him to properly perfarm his
.duties and responsibilities, Henge,
the members should be given ‘
independent access to Management
and the Cotporate Secretary.

The information may Include the
background or explanation on
matters brought bafore the Board,
disclosures, budgets, foracasts and
internal financial documents.

The members, elther individually or
as a Board, and in furtharance of
their dutles and responsibilitias,
should have access to indspendent
professional advice that directly
rglate to their functions and
responsibilities as diractors of the
Corporation, at such reasonable-
cost to be berne by the Corporation,

() Conflici
Resclution

Whistle-blowing procedurss
are in place to enable
employees to ralse
ccnecerns about any actlvity
they congider to be unlawful,
Is & breach of authority, falls
balow accepted standards
or practice, amounts to
improper conduct or could
damage the Group's
repuiation.

Refusal io answer Inquiries or
particlpate in any Invastigation
authorized by the Hotel,
previded such answars or
participation will not viclate
constitutional rights Is
cons!deire,d a major offense.

1

|

ftis the duty of the Board to
establish and maintain-an alternative
dispute resclution to amicably settie
conflicts between the Corparation
and stockholders or third parties or
regulatory authoritles,

" the Group's behalf which

i prafessionally, with honesty,
integrity, objectivity and in

The Carporation adheres to
the policies of the Group
which oufline the stardards
of behavior required of a||
employees when acting on

Include acting

Disciplinary procedures are
governed by the fallowing
steps: .

1. Submission of Incident report
2. Writtan explanation from
offender

3. Investigation by depariment
head '

compliance with all
applicable legal and
regulatory requiremaents.

4. Accomplishment of Offense
Subject to Corractive Action
("O8CA" form

& Submission of OSCA form o
HR department

8. Disciplinary interview

2." Has the code of ethies or conduct keen disse

Yes.

minated to afl directors, senlor management apd smployees?

3. Discuss how the company implements and monltors compliance with the code of athics or conduct.

'
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The CG Manual provides for the appoi.ntme'nt of the Compliance Officar who is responsible for monitoring cempliance with
the provisions and raquirsments, as well as violations, of the G Manval and the Revised Code of Corporate Governance,
" and iasuss a certification regarding the level of compliance of the Corporation. ‘

The Corporation compliss with the rules, regulations, and issuances Issued by government authorities pertaining to
corporate governance and is committed te adhering to good corporate governance principlas.

Saction 7.2 of the G Manyal provides that the CG Manual shall be reviewsd guarterly unless the Board provides
giherwise. Morsover, the Audit Committes of the Corporation reports regularly to the Board its quarterly review of the
financial petformance of the Corporation.

Implemantation of the Revised Cods of Corporate Governance

in compliance with Article 9 of the SEC Memorandum Cireular No. 8, Series of 2009 or the Revised Code of Corporate
Governance, the Beard, In g mesting hsld on 29 Cctober 2009, approved the amendment of the CG Manual. The
amendment of the Corporation's Manua! on Corporate Governance was mads to establish and implement the
Corporation's corporate governance rules in accordance with the Revised Code of Corporate Governance, For the year
2012, the Corporation, Ity directors, ofiicers and employess substantiaily complisd, and has taksn reasonakle action
towards complying, with the leading practices and principles on geod corporate governance as embodiad in the
Corporetion’s Manual on Corporats Governance, and |h the Revised Code of Corporate Governancs,

Parﬁc.’pétion in the Annual Corporate Govemance Scorscard for Listed Comparies

The Corporation annually participates in the SEC's and the Institute of Corporate Directors’ {ICD") Annual Corporate
Governance Scorecard for Listed Companles ("Scorecard”) to measure the performance of the Board and Management of
the Corporation in accordance with the Corporate govarnance best practices provided for In the Scorecard. The
Corperation’s overall average score in the Scorecard for 2008, 2010 and 2011 were 68%, 86%, and 82.52% respectively,
The Corporatian sndeavors to further Improve its corporate governance scores. '

Cornpliance wfti!{ the Corporate Governance Guidelines for Companles Listed on the Philippine
Stocit Exchangs

The Corporatioq‘ substantiaily complied with the Corparate Governance Guidelines for Companies Listed on the Philippine
Stock Exchange ("CG Guidelines'). The Corporation annually submits fts Corporate Governance Guidelines Disclosures
Templata to the Philippine Stock Exchange. Deviations from recommendad practices in the CG Guidefinas will not subjest
the Corperaticn to penalties, : :

For Senlor Ma_n‘agement ang other empioyegs

The Cede of Conduct provides for penaltles far any transgression of the Code of Conduct, ranging from verbal warning to
dismissal. It is the Immediate .Supervisor/ Head who is duty-bound to inform the Corporation of such a transgression
committed by his subardinate by fling an incident repart to his Department head within 24 hours. The offender will then be
required by the sald department head to issue a written explanation. After investigation, the Departmen{ head
accornplishes an OSCA raport which containg kis recommendation, and then submits it to the Human Resources
Dapartment for the Implementation of the penalty. :

4. Related Party Transactions
a} Policies and Procedures
Describe the company's policies and procedures for the review, approval or ratlfleation, monitoring and
recording of related party transaction betwesn and among the company and its parant, joint ventures,
subsidlarles, asscociates, affiliates, substantlal stockholders, officers and directors, including their spouses,
childrsn and dependent slblings ard parents and of Interlocking director relationships of members of the

Board:
Related Party Transaction Policies and Proceduras
{1} Parent Cornpeny The Corporation’s CG Manual requires Information including related party

fransactlons  to be publicly and timely disclosed through the appropriate
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{2} Joint Vantures

mechanlsn'}s of the PSE and submitted to the SEC, %

(3) Subsidiaries

(4) Entities Under Common
Control

In compliaﬁce with the Amended Implementing Rules and Re'gulations of the
Securities Regulation Code (“SRC Rules”), the Corporaticn must disciose the
: i

(5) Substantial Stockholders

following details for a related party contract;

) . f
the natura of the related party relationship; :

{8} Offlcers including
spouse/children/siblings/parents

8. .
b. the type of fransaction (e.g: supply or services contract, loans, guarantags);
c. the tolal amounts payable and receivable in the transactiop from or to the

{7} Directors including
spouse/children/siblings/parents

related party; i
the slements of the transaction necsssary to understand the llsted
company's flnancial statamants.

(8) Interlacking director
relationship of Board

- lunder the ¢lrcumstances,

No disclosure Is needed for any transaction where:

.|!In compliance with the provisions of the Corporation Code, a contract of the

The Corperatlon must also disclose its transactions In which related persons,
such as directors, officers, substantial shareholders or any of their immediate
famllles have a direct material interest, such as the related person's beneflcial
ownership of the counter party or shars in the profits, bonus, or commissions out
of the transaction. ‘

a. The transaction Involves services at rates oricharges fixad by law or
gevernmental authority: _ g
b. The transactlon invcives services ss a bank depository of funds, transfer
agent, registrar, trusies undera trust indentura, or similar services;
C. The-amauntinvalved in the transaction or a series of simllar |
transactions has an aggregate valua of less than PhP2,800,000; or
d. The interest of the person arises solely from the ownership of securities of
the registrant and the person recsives no extra or special benefit that was
not shared equally (pro rata) by all holders of securities of the class,

Corporation with one or more of its directors or officers must be ratified by the
vote of the stockholders reprasenting at least two-thirds {2/3) of the outstanding
capital stack if any of the fellowing conditions are absent:

& The presence of such director in the board mesting in which the contract
was apgroved wag not necessary to constitute a quarum for such meeting.
b. The vota of such director was not necessary for the approve! of the contract,

Full disclosure of the adverse interest of the dirsctors or officars involved must be
made et the stockholders' meeting and the contract must be falr and reasonable

Furthermore, the Corporation must comply with the provision of the Corporation
Code which required a contract betwsen two or more corporations having
interlocking directors, where (i) the interest of tha interlocking director in one

8, The presence of such director in the bgard meeting In which the contraat

corporation ls substantial.and his intersst In the other corporation s mersly
hominal,-and (il} any of the following conditions are absent:

" was approved was not hecessary to constitute a quorum for suph maeting,
b.  The vote of such director was net hecessary for the approval olthe contract.

to be ratified by the vote of the stockholders repressnting at least two-thirds (2/3)
of the outstanding capital stock of tha ‘eorporation where the Interlocking
director's Interest is nominal. Similarly, full disclosure of the adverse Interest of
the interlocking director/s involved must be made at the stockholders' meeting
and the contract must be fair and reasonabls under the circumstances,
Stockholdings excseding twenty {20%) percent of the outstanding' capital stock
shall be considered substantfal for purposes of interlocking directors.,
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(b} Conflict of Interest

- {i) Directors/Officers and 6% or more Shareholders”
Identify any actual or probahle conflict of Interest to which directors/officera/5% or more sharehoidars

may be involved.

Detalls of Conflict of Interest (Actual or Probable)
Name of Director/s Nene
Name of Officer/s ; None
Name of Significant Shareholders None

(i} Mechanlsm

Dascribe the mechanism laid dewn to detect, determine and rasolve any possible conflict of interest betwoeen
the company and/or its group and thelr directors, officer and significant sharsholders,

Directors/Officars/Significant Sharehotders

Corporation

The Corporation has adopted a pelicy that requires management to disciose
related-party transactiors, ltem 5 of the CG Manual requires the disclosure of
all material information about the Corporation which could adversely affects
its viabllity or the intarests of the stockheiders. This lhcludes:

earnings results

_acquisition or disposition of assets
related party transactions
remuneration

. o a9

Group

Please seg above,

5. Family, Commercial and Contractual Relations

{a) Indicate, If applicable, any relation of a family, commerclal, contractual or buslness nature that exlsts
betwaen the holders of slgnlificant equity (6% or more), to the extent that they are known to the company:

Names of Related Significant
Shareholders )

Type of Relationship Brief Description of the Relationship 7

N.A.

I
1
.
!
!
f
\

(b) Indicatel It appllcable, any relation

of a commercial, contractual or business nature that exigt between the

holders of significant equity (5% or more) and the company:

Names Related Slgnificant
Shareholders

Type of Reiatlonship Brief Description

Millsnnium & Copthorne Hotels pie

Indirect beneficlal ownsr of maore | The Corporation has enterad into .a
than 5% of the cutstanding shares Management Agreement with Elite Hotel
of the Corporation (through iis Managamant
indirect sharehcldings In TPFL)

Services  Pte. Ltd.'s
Philippines Branch for the lattar 1o act as
the fhotel's administrator. Under the terms of
the agreement, the Corporation is required
to pay monthly basic management and
Incentive fees based on @& cerain
percentage of revenus and gross oparating
profit,

{c) -indicata eny sharsholder agreements that méy impact on the contro, ownership and strategic direction of the

company,
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% of Capltal Stock affectod

i
Namos Sharsholders (Partle s) Brief Description of the Transaction

N.A.

8} Alterhative Dispute Resoiutlon \
Describe the alternative dispute resolutlon system adopted by the company for the last three (3) years in

amicably settling conflicts or differences between the corporation and Ita stockholders, and the corporation
and third partles, Including regulatory authorities, :

Alternative Dlspute hesclut!on Syatem .

Corporation & Stotkholders : Tha CG Manual empowers the Board to establish and
Corporation & Third Parties : maintain an alternative dispute resolution system in

: the Corporation that can amicably settls conflicts or
differences bstwsen fhe | Corporation and lts
stockholders, and the Corporation znd thirg partles,
Including the regulatory autherities. The Board has
yet to have the opportunity to adopt an aiternaftive
dispute resolution system,

Corporation & Regulatory Authorities

C. BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE _
1) Are Board of Directors' meetings scheduled before or at the baginning of the year?

Regular meetings of the Board are hefd at the end of each Guarter, and at such times as the Board shall from time to
time by resolution determine. Speclal meetings shall be held when called by the Chairman, the President, or by
the Secretary at the request of any 1 ofthe diractors, ‘ : :

2} Attendance of Directors

_ : Date of No. of Meetings | No, Of
Board Name . Election Held during'the | Mestings %
. _ year Atfended
Chalrman Wong Hong Ren 15 May 2012 11 9 84.82%
Member Bryan Cockrell 15 May 2012 1 10 80.91%
Member Michele Dee-Santos 15 May 2012 1 11 100.00%
Member Eddie Lau 15 May 2012 11 o | e182%
Member Eddie Yeo | 1§ May2012 1 I1 100.00%
Independent Angslito Imperio 15 May 2012 11 - 8 72.73%
Independent Mia Gentugaya 15 May 2012 11 o 80.91%
3} Do non-axecutive directors have a separate meoting durlng the year without the presence of any executive? If
yes, how many times? : .

No,

4) Is the minlmum quorum reciuirement for Board decisions setat two-thirds of board members? Please explain

No. In line with the requirements of the Carporation Gode, majortty of the dirsctors shall constitute a quorum for the .
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transaction!of business

B) Access to :informatfon

{a) How m:iany days in advance are Board papers for Board of Directors meetings provided to the Board?

No particular period by which Board papars should be provided to the Board is required. Nonetheless, the GG Manual
requires Management to provide the members of the Board with compiete, adequats, and timely informafion about the

matters o be discussed in the mestings, Usually, Board papers for Board meetings are provided to tha Board at least a
week before the date of the mesting. .

(b) Do board members have Independent access to Management and the Corporate Secretary?

Yes. The CG Manual expressiy provides Management should provids the Board with complete, adequate and timsly
infermation, and that directors be given direct access to Management and the Corporate Secretary, It alsg provides that
such information may include the background or explanation on matters brought before the Board, disclosures,

budgets, forecasts, and Internal financiai documents.

{c) State the policy of the role of the Company secretary. Does such role Include assisting the Chalrman in
preparing the board agenda, facifitating training of directors, keeping directors updated regarding any
relevant statutory and reg uiatory changes, efc.

Part of the dutles of the Corporate Secretary, as provided for by the CG Manual, is to be responsible for the
safekeeping and praservation of the Integrity of the minutes of the meetings of the Board and its committees, as well
as the other official records of the Corporation, and to inform all members of the Board of the agenda of mestings.
and to ensurs that the members have before them accurate information that will enable them to arrive at intelligent
decisions, Furthermore, he is required by the CG Manual fo be aware of the laws and regulations necessary in tha
performancs of his dutles and to use such knowledge to ensure that all Board procedures, rules and regulations are

strictly fellowed by the members; and 1o ensure that all Board proceduras, rules and regulations are strictly followed
by the members '

The Corperate Secretary is requirad to atiend all Board meatings, untess justifiable causes prevent him from deing
80. Moreover, the Corporation also has an Assistant Corporate Secretary who is required to attend such mestings in

the absence or unavailability of the Corparate Sscretary. As such, the Board members have easy access to the
services of the Corporate Secretary,

(d} Is the company secretary frained In legal, accountancy or company secretarlal practices? Please expiain '
should the answer be in negativs.

Yes. The Carparate Secretary, Ms. Christiha Macasast-Acaban is & partner of the law firm of Quisumbing Torres,
specializing in corporate and commerclal faw. The Assistant Corporate Secratary, Mr. Alain Charles Velosg, is a

- &enior associate also of the law firm Quisumbing Torres; he also specializes in carparate and commerclal law and
sacuritles law. In addition, Mr. Veloso is also a Certified Fublic Accountant.

Both Ms. jVIacasaet-Acaban and Mr. Veloso also serve as corporate secretary or assistant corporate secrataty of
various private companies. ‘

{e) CQmmlttee‘Proced ures

Disclosa whether there Is a procedure that Directors can avall of to srahle them to get information
necessary to be able to prepare In advance for the meetings of different committees:

Yes - No

Commitiee Detzils of the Pracedures

Exscutive N/A

Audit _ '

Tha Charter requires the Gereral Manager of the Corporation io
render to the Audit Committes an annual report on the activities,
purpese, authority, responsibility, and parformance of the intarnai
audit depar’cmenz of the Corporation.
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The Audit Committes shall have unlimited dirsct access to the
inernal and external auditors of the Corporatlon, as weali as to the
management and staff of the Corporation, particularly the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer. In this connection,
the Audit Committee may request the auditers and the management
of the Corporstion to be present at such meetings of the Audit
Commitiee as the Audit Committes may requirs,

Under the CG Manual, the Internal Auditer is required to submit to
the Audit Committee and Management an annual report on the
internal  audit department's activities,: responsibilites and
performance relative to the audit plans and strategies as approved
by the Audit Committes. The annual report should Ingiude
significant risk exposures, control fssues and sush other matters as
-may he needed or reqlested by the Board and Managemeri,

Nomination ) Tha Nomination Committes, subject to the approval of the Board,
shall promulgate the rules; guidelines and criterla to govern the
- conduct of the nomination. Only the candidates whose noeminations
are confirrned by the Nomination Committee to be in accordance
with such rules, guidslines and criteria shall be gligible fo be elected
as independsnt directors. ‘ '
Remuneration . ' The Hotel Management Executive Commities of the Corporation,
which performs the functions of te Remuneration Committes,
gathers and reviews market information on safary or compensation
of other hotels in making its declsions and recommendations.
Others{specify) N.A. . ‘ : :

in addition to the foregoing, the Secretary is raquired to inform the members of the Board, in accordance with the by laws,
of the agendea of their meetings and ensure that the members have before them accurate information that wili ensble them
- to arrive at Intalligent decisions on matters that require their approval, '

Under the CG Mahual, to enable the members of the Board to properly fulfill their duties and responsibifities, Management
is raquired to provide them with complete, adequate and timely information abaut the matters to be taken in their meetings.

Reliance 'on information volunteered by Management would not be sufficient In alf circumstances and further inquiries may
have to be made by 8 member of the Board to enable him to properly perform his duties and responsibilities. Hence, the
members should be given independent access to Management and the Corporate Sacretary, .

tneny

The information may include the background of explanation on matters brought before the Board, distlosures, budgets,
forecasts and internal financlal documents, :

‘ ' !
The members, either Individually or as a Board, and In furtherance of thelr duties and responsibilifies, should hava access
to Independent professional advice that directly relate to their functions and responsibilities as directors of the Corporation,
at such reasonable cost to be borne by the Cerporation

8) External Advleas

indleate whether or not a procedure exists whereby directors can receive external advice and, if so, provide
detalls: .

Procedures ' Detalls

- Management provides information to the Board To enable the members of the Board to properly fulfill their
duttsa and responsibilitiss, Management provides them with
complets, adequate and timsly information about the matters
to be taken In their mestings.

The_ Board has access to Independent profassional The members, elther Individually or as g Board, and in
advice ! furtherance of their cuties and responsibllities, has access fo
‘ independent professional advice that dirsctly relate fo thalr
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functions and responsibilities as- directors of the Corporation,
at such reasonable cost to be borne by the Corporation,

Internat Augditor reports to the Audit Committee
|

I
i
|

The Audit Committee is required to establish and Idantify the
raporiing line of the Internal Auditer to enable him fo properly
fulfili his duties and responsibilities. Ha shall functionally report
directly to the Audit Committes.

The Audit Committee shall ensure that, in the parformance of
the work of the Internal Auditor, he shall be fres from
interferance by cutside parties. ‘

internal Auditor has access 1o information and personnel

Pursuant to the conduct of the mternal audit, the infernal
auditors has free and full zccess to all relevant Information,
data, records, proparties and personnsl,

Augit Committee has access o audifors and
Management _

The Audit Committee has uniimited direct accass to the
internal and external suditors of ths Corporation, as well as fo
the managemert and staff of the Corporation, particularly the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Finaneial Officar. fn this
connection, the Audit Committee may request the auditors and
the managemant of the Comoration to be present at such
meetings of the Audlt Committes as the Audit Committee may
require,

7} Changels in existing policies

Indicate, If applicable, any changs/e Intraduced by the Board of Directors (durihg its most recent term) on
existing policies that may have an effact on the business of the company and the reason/s for change:

ExIsting Pollties Changes

Reason

N.A.

D. REMUNERATION MATTERS
1) Remuneration Progess ‘

Process . CEO Top 4 Highest Pald Management Officers ]
(1) Fixed remuneration | Under the By-Laws, the Board fixes ths Under the By-Laws, the Board fixes the
| salaries and bonuses of all officers of the salatles and bonuses of all officers of the
Corporation. Corporation.

{2) Variable . none fiche

remuneration ‘

{3) Per diem allowance nane nena

{4} Bonus Fixed by the Board as wall. Flxed by the Board as well.

(5) Stock Options!_ and none ‘none

ather financial ‘

instruments

]

ms) Others (spacify) none none

| .
Disclese the 'process used for tetermining the

reamuneration of the CEQ and ths four (4) most highly

compensated management officers: The Chaimman and President/CEQ does not receive remuneration from the
Corporatlon. ‘rl]e remuneration of other exacutives / management officers are based on thelr smployment contract and

bonus are based on the Corporation's performance and their individual performance.
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The CG Manual provides the following process and polley for the remuneration of directors and officers (Including thé CEO
and Management officers): '

The Beard shall fix the salaries and bonuses of all officers. The fact that an officer is also a director shalt nat pracieds him
from recsiving a salary or bonus, .

The levels of ramuneration of the Corporation should be sufficient fo be able to attract and retain the services of qualifisd
and compatent directcrs and officers. . :

Except for reasonabile per diems, diractors shall be entitled only compensation as may ba granted to them, as such, by the
vote of the stockholders representing at least a maority of the outstanding capital stock af a regular or spacial meeting of

- stockholders. No director should participate In deciding on his remunsration,

in no sase shall the total yearly compensation of diractors, és such, excesd ten percent (10%) of the net Income bhefore
income tax of the Corparation during the preceding year, .

The Corporation's annual reports and information and proxy statements shall Include a cleat, conclss and understandable
disclosure of all fixad and varighle compensation that may be paid, directly or indirectly, {o its directors and top four (4)
management officers during the preceding fiscal year, ‘

The Hotel Management Executive Committee s appolnted anrually by the Board to perform the functions of the
Remuneration and Compensation Committes, which fs to establish a formal and transparent procegurs for developing a
poiley ori remuneration of directors and officers to ensure that their compensation is consisten? with the corparation's
culturs, strategy and the business enviranment in which it operatas.

2) Remunaration Polley and Structure for Executlve and Non-Executive Directors .
Disclose the company's poiley of remuneration and the structured of its compensation package, Explain how

the compensation of Executive and Non-Executive Directors is calculated.

Structure of Compensation

Remunsration Policy Packages

How Cbmpensation is Calculated

Executive Directors The By- Laws/ CG Manual | The executive officers of the Remun;'eraﬂon &s exacutive diractors;

reasonable per dlems, | a monthly fixed salary with
directors, as such, shall be | variable borus depending on | Remuneration s diractors:
entiled only 1o the parformancs, proposed  ramuneration  will

of the stockholders | compersation as  one-tme. meeting,
fepresenting at least a | director's fees in their capecity j
majority of the outstanding ! as dirsctors.
at a regular or apecial '
meefing. In no cese shall
the fotal yearly
compensation of all
directors, as such, exceed
10% of the net income
before tax of the
Corporation  during  the
preceding year.

In addiffon, the Board fixes
the salaries and bonuses of
i alt offlcers. The fact that an
officer s also a director
shall not praclude him from
receiving a salary or bonus.
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Non-Exscutive The By- Laws/ CG Manual
Directors state that excaept for
reasonabla per diems,
directars, as such, shall ba
entitled only to the
compensation as may bs

| granted to them by the vote
of the stackhoiders

: representing at least a
maijority of the cutstanding
at a regular or special
mesting. In no case shall

| : the total yearly
compansation of all
directors, as such, excesd
10% of the net incomne
before tax of the
Cerporation during tha
preceding year.

The compensation of the
directors are one-time
dirsctor's fees and do not
involve any other form of
remuneration, There are no
arrangements, such as
compensatory plan or
arrangement or consulting
contracts, pursuant to whish
any director of the Corporation
is t¢ be compensated, directly
or indiractly.

There are no arrangements,
such as compensatory pian or
arrangement or consulting
conbracts, pursuant to which
any director of the Corporation
was compensated, or s tc be
compensated, directly or
indirectly, during the
Corporation’s iast completed
fiscal year, and the ensuing
yaar, for any service provided
as director,

Remunerailon as directors: the
proposed remunsration will be
prasented to the stockholders for
approval at the annual stockholders
meeting.

Do stockholders have the opporiunity to approve the decis|
kind and othsr emeluments) of hoard of directors? Provide detai

on on total remuneration

(fees, allowances, benefits-in
Is for the last (3)three years. :

Yes. The Board prasented the proposed remuneration o the stockholders for their approval at the annual stoc}}holcfer‘s

mesting. :
Remuneration Scheme Date of Stockholders Approval W
Year 2012 . 15 May 2011
Year2011 18 May 2010
Year 2010 18 May 2008

3) Aggregate Romuneration

Complete tha following table on the aggregate remurteration accrued during the most recant year:

i Non-Execuflve
— : Birectors {other
Remune_ration Item : Executive Directors than Independent Independent Directors
‘ ‘ diractors}
(a) Fixed Remuneration USD8,000 (nst of USDS,000 (net of USD8,200 (net of
_ o withhalding taxes / withhoiding taxes / withholding taxes /
diractor director director
{b) Variabla Remuneration '
{ o) Per Dlem Allowance
(d) Bonuses -
| (8)8tock Options and/or other financial
Instruments
{f) Other (specify ‘
Eatal_ ] .| USD8,000 (net of USDB,000 (net of USD6,200 (net of
- R i — withholding taxes / withholding taxes / withholding taxes /

31




,

directar ' director : dirsctor

Non-Execulive Director

Othar Benefits FExecutive Directors {other than Independent independent Directors
directors)
none . nons none
1) Advances
none none none
2) Credit Granted ‘ : _ :
L : ‘ none none . : ‘ none
3) Pension Plan/s Contributions ‘ ’ : ‘
{d) Psnsion Plans Cbligations nons nong ‘ nons
incurred ‘
nons none none
(e ) Life Insurance Pramium
S nong hohg | nene
f) Hospitalization Plan .
nons nons none
| {g) Gar Plan
C none none none
(h) Cthers {spacify) :
Total 0 0 0

4) Sack Rights, Options and Warrants
(a) Board of Directors i | |
Complete the following table, on the membars of the company's Board of Directors who bwn or are entitled
to stock rights, options or warrants over the company's shares:

_ - ‘ Total %
Director's Name Number of Direct Number of Indlirect ?:ﬁ&;;g; from
Options/RIghte/Warrants Optlon/Rights/Warrants i Capltal
shares ;
Stock
N.A.
b} Amendments of Incentive Programs

Inceritive Program Amentments Date of Stockhoiders Approval
NA. : | '

Indicate any amendments and discontinuation of any Incentive programs Introduced, inciuding the criterla

used In the creation of the program. Disclose whether these are subject to approval during the annual
Stockholders Meeting: : ‘ :

5) Remuneratlon of Management

Identlfy the five (5) members of management who are not at the same time exacutive directors and Indicate the
total remuneration recelved during the financial year; '
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Nams of Dfiicor/Positlon -

Total Remuneration

Johnay Yap « Executive Manager of the Hotel

Alex Cheong - Executive Chef of the Hotel

PhP3.12 million for 2012

E. BOARD COMMITTEES

1} Number of Membaers, Functions and Responsibilities

Provide details on the number of members o
Pewerfauthority delegated to It by the Board:
i

f-each committee, Its fuhctlnns, key rasponsibilities and the

No. Of Members

GCommlttes lep NED

Committas
Charter

Funetions

Key Responsibifities

Fawer

Audit G 2 1

Yes

CG Manual:

(1) Asslsts the Board
In oversight
rasponsibility for the
financial reporting
process, system of
internat control, audit
process, and
monitoring of
compliance with
applicable laws, rules

and regulations;

(2} Provida oversight
over Management's
activities In
managing cradit,
market, liquidity and
sther risks

(3) Oversight
functions over the
Corperation's interna!
and exiernal
audltors; fo ansure
that such auditors act

| effectivaness of the

Charter:

{1) Review and
approve the scepe
and frequency of the
audit of the
Corporation and the
annuat Infernal audit
plan that management
shall propose

(2) Raview the
progress and staius of
all internal audit and
external audit
recommendations and
thelr Implementation

(3} Monitor and
evaluaie ths adequacy

Cerporation's internal
control system

(4) Check all financla)
reparts with respect
to the proper

{1} Unlimited direct
access to the Internal
and external auditors
of the Corporaticn, as
well as to the
management and
staff, particularly the
CEO and CFO

(2) May require the

auditors and the
managament io be
present in meetings of
the Audit Committes

(3) Frae full and
access 1o all relevant
information, data,
records, preperiles
and personnel

(4) The Audit
Commitiee shall
resemmend to the
stockhoelders who shall
act a8 the external

Independently from compliance of the auditor of the
each other and that financial manegement Corparatlon
both auditors ars handbook and
given unrestricled pettinent accaunting
access 10 all records, | standards and
ele. ) regulatory

ratjuirements.
(4} Review the
annual internal audit | (5) Review the
plan to ensure Its Flnanclal
confarmity with the Management
Corporation's “Handbook ang
objectives perform aversight

financlal management
{8) Prior to functions, particularly
commencement of In areas of managing
the audit, fo discuss credlt, market,
with the external liquidity, sperational,
auditor the nature, fegal and other risks of
scope, and expenses | the corporation, as
of the audit, and well as crlsis
ansure proper managamant,
coordination If more
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than one audit firm Is
Involved in the
actlvity

{8) Monitor and
evaluate the
adequacy and
effectivenass of the
Corporation's inlernal
control system,
including financial
reporiing control and
infermation
technology security

(7) Review the
reports submifted by
the Internal and
external auditors

(8) Review the
quarterly, half year -
and anhual financlai
staternaents before
their submission {o
the Board

(9) Cocrdinsts,
meonitor and facllitate
compliance with
laws, rules and
regufationa

{10) Eveluate and
deterrnine the non-
audit work, If any, of

the externat auditor

(11) Establish and
identity the reparting
ling of the Intarnat
Audltor fo enable him
to propetly fulfill his
dutles and
responasibilities

{12) Ensure that In
the performance of
the work of the
Intermal Auditor, he
shall be fres from
any Interfarence from
cutside parties

(13} Lay down the
proper checks and
balances to ensure
that the Board gels
the benefit of
independent visws
and perspactives

{6) Elevate to
internaficral

.| standeards the

accounting and
auditing processes,
practices and
methodologles of the
Corperatlon, The Audii
Committee shalf
determine whether the
accounting system of
the Corporation s fully
compliant with
Intermationel
Accounting Standards,
If the Audit Gommitiee
determines that Is not
fully compllant, the
Audlit Committee shal
provide for an
accountabliity
statement that shall
specificslly idantlfy the
officers and perscrine
responsible for the
different tasks
required to raige fo
Internationat R
Accourting Standards)
1he accounting system
of the Corporation,
The Audit Committee
shall also provide for a
definlte limetabla
within which the
accounting system
shall becoma fully
compliant with
Internationat ‘
Accounting Standards.

Namination

None

The Nomination Corﬁmittee prepares the lst.of candidates for
independent directors based upen quallfied candldates nominated by the
st'ockhnlder_s. ] : :

It also promulgates fules, guidelines and criteriz to govern the conduct of
nomination, subject to the approval of the Board.

In addition, the Nominaifon Committes may also review and evaluate the

-+ gualifications of all pergons nominated to the Board and othar
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d) Remuneration and Com

appointmants that require Board approval
Remuneratl 1 None The Hotel Management Executive Committes is appointed annually by
on and the Board {o perform the functions of the Remuneration and
Compensati Compensation Committee, wivich Is to astablish a formal and-transparent
on procedure for developing a policy on rermuneration of directors and
officers to ensure that their compansation is consistent with the
corporation's aulture, strategy and the business enviranment in which it
opearates,
Others
{specify)
2} Committee Members
{a) Executive Committes
Date of No. of No. of - Length of
Office Name Appolntment Meetings Meetings % Sorvice In the
PP Held Attonded Committee
N.A., i
b} Audlt qul]mlttee
Office Name Date of Mr::t'i:s M?gii:;s % Length of Service |
Appomtmen; Held Attended in the Committee
Chalrman (1D} - Mia © 15 May 2012 5 5 100.00% 9 years
Gentugaya
Membar (NED) Bryan Cockrell | 15 May 2012 5 4 80.00% 11 years
Member. (NED) Michele Des- | 15 May 2012 5 5 100% 7 years
Santos ‘
t) Nominatingn Committes .
' Dats of No, of No. of Length of
Offlce Name Appointment Moetings Meeotings % - Servlce In the
' Held Attended Commitiee
i . Wong 15 May 2012 , N 10 years
Chairman Hong Ren _ ; : 2 1 50.00% _
Bryan 15 May 2012 ! o 10 years
Member (NED) Cockrel] : = 2 2 100.00%
' Michela 18 May 2012 7 ysars
Mamber {NED) Dee-Santos 2 2 100%
Angelito 15 May 2012 . : 10 years
Member (1D} Imperio 2 1 50.00%
Member (NED) EddieLay | 15 May2012 2 2 100.00% 8 years

pansation Committee (this function is performed by The Hotel Management Executlve

Committes)
No, of No. of Length of
Dffice Name APE :ft:ﬂfent Meotings Meetings % Ssarvice In the
- Held Attended Committes
Chalrman Yg{;g}l(it 16 May 2012 0 NA. NA. 10 years
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' ) 10 years
Member (ED) Eddie Yoo |  19May 2012 0 N.A, N.A. y
Geraidine 15 May 2012 A NA 4 years
Msmbe_r Nono Gaw 0 N.A. ' -
. Mary Grace 16 May 2012 NA years
Membear Magsalin 4 N.A. A, i
Catherine 28 July 2012 NA 9 months
Member Serrano 0 N.A, A, )
i
8} Others (Specify) ‘ i
Provide the game information on all other conimitteas consiituted by the Beard of Direct e
Date of No. of No. of . [ Length of
Cftlce Name A aj eto 4 Meetings Meetings % | Service In the
Ppeintmer " Held Attended .= Committse
Chalrman N.A, N.A. N.A, N.A, - N.AJ N.A.
Member (ED) N.A. N.A, N.A, NA, N.A) N.A.
Member (NED) N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A| - N.A.
Member (iD) N.A. N.A, N.A. N.A, N.A. N.A.
|
Member N.A, N.A. N.A. N.A, N.A.: N.A.

3)  Changes In Commitice Members -

Indicate any changes in committse membership that cecurred during the year and the reagon for the

changes:
Name of Committee Name Reason
Exacutive N.A, N.A,
Audit  NA, NA.
Nemination N.A. N.A,
Catherine Serrano replaced Ms. Lecnor Tabeta resigned effective 26 July
Remuneration Leonora Tabsta 2012, to pursue other personal interests,

Others (specify)

N.A,

NA, ]

4)  Work Done and Issues Addressed
Describe the work done by each sommittes and the si

gnificant lssues addressed during the year,

Name of Committas Work Done Issues Addressed
Executive N.A, N.A,
Audit The Audit Committee performed the | The Audit Commiftes was abls to address the

following functicns:

(1) Assisted the Board in oversight
responstbliity for the financia
reporting process, system of
Internal control, audit process, and
monitoring of compliance with
applicable laws, rules and
regulations;

(2) Pravided overslght over
Managsment's activities in -
managing credit, market
and other risks

{3) Perfarmed aversight functions v

 Niquiidity

following issues, amang others:

(1) Reviewed the quarterly, half-year and annual
financial statements before their submission to
the Board, with particular focus on the following
matters: .

Any change/s in accaounting poficies and
practices

Major }udgm'ental areas

Significant adjustments resulting from the -
audit

Going concarn assumptions
Cempliance with accounting standards

Compliance with tax, legal 2ng ragulatory
fequiraments, | :

over the Corporation's internal and
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external auditors; to snsure that
such auditors act indepandently
from each other and that both
auditors are given unrestricted
access o all records, ete,

(4) Reviewed the annual audit plan
ta ensurs its conformity with the
Corporation's objectives

{5) Prior to commencemaent of the
audit, discussed with the external
auditor the nature, scope, and

expenses of the audit, and ensure

proper coordination if more than
one audit firm Is involved in tha
activity

{8) Monitared and evaluated the
adequacy and effactiveness of the

Corporation's Internal control
system, including financial reporting
control and information tachnology
sacurity

(7) Reviewed the reports submitted
by the internal and external auditors

(8) Reviswead the quarterly, half
year and annual #nancial
statements before their submission
to the Board

(9) Coordinated, monttored and
facilitated compliance with laws,
rules and ragulations

1 {10) Evaluated and determined the

hon-audit work, if any, of the
external auditor

{11) Conducted a salf-asssssment
of the practices of the Audit
Committee, in relation to the best
practices and standards. .

' (2} Ensured that the performance of the wark of

the auditors are free from any interference from
outside parties

(3) Lald down the proper chacks and balancas ta
ensure that the Board gets the benefit of
Indspendent views and parspectives

(4) Identified areas of improvement in the
practices of the Audit Committes, in relation to
the bast practices and stendards
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Nomination

The Nomination Commities
petformed the following functions:

(1) Promulgated ruies, guldslines
and criteria to govern the conduct of
nomination of independent
dirsctors, subject to the approval of
the Board

(2) Prepared ths lIst of candidates
for independent dlrectors hased
upen gualified candidates
neminated by the stockholdars

(3) Reviewed and svajuated the
qualifications of all persons
nominated fo the Board and cther
appointments that require Board
approval

The Nomination Committeés was abis to review
and evaluats the quaiifications of nominees for
Independent directors and persons nominated to
the Board and other appointments that require
Board approval,

Remuneration and
Compensation Comrmittes

The Hotsl Management Exacutive
Committee, acting as the
Remuneration and Compeénsation
Committes, recommended the
remuneration of the regular
directors and the Indepandent
directors of the Corperation,

The Remuneration and Compensation
Commitiee was able to ensute that the
compensation of the directors is consistant with
the Corporation's culturs, strategy and the
business enviroriment in which It operates.

Othars (speaify)

N.A,

N.A,

'5) ‘Committee Program
Provide a list of programs that each committee

plans to undertake to atdress relevant issues In the

Improvem_e_nt or snfarcement of effactive governance for the coming year,

Name of Committee

Planned Program

issues to be Addressed

Executive

N.A,

N.A.

Audit

The Audit Committae plans to
continue performing its functions
and responsibilities, as provided In
its Charter and the CG Manual,

The Audit Committes will continue fo address the
following fssues, ameng others:

(1) Ravfew the quarterly, half-year éhd annual

financial statements before their submission to
the Board, with particuiar focus on the following
maiters:

*  Any change/s In aiccounting policies and
practices

*  Major judgmental areas

*  Significant adjustments resulting from the
audit ‘

s (Going concern assumpﬁons ‘

*  Compliance with accounting standards

»  Compliance with tax, lsga! and reguiatory
requiremants,

(2) Ovarsight for the financldl reporting process,
system of internal control, audit process, and
monltoring of compliance with applicable laws,
rules and regulations;
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(3) Oversight over Maragement's activities In
managing cradit, market, fiquidity and other risks

(4) Ovarsight aver the Corporation's Iriternal and

external auditors; to ensuire that such auditors

act independently from sach other and that both

auditors are given unrestricted access to alf
racords

(6) Ensure that the petformance of the wark of
the auditors are free from any intarference from
outside parties

(6) Lay down the proper checks and balances to
ansure thet the Board gets the bensfit of
independent views and perspectives

(7) ldentify areas of improvement in the practices
of tha Audit Committee, in relation to the best
practices and standards

Nomiration . The Nomination Committee plans to The Nomination Committee will continue to

continue performing its functions review and evaluats the qualifications of

and responsibilities, as provided in neminees for independant directors and persons

the CG Manual. : nominated to the Board and other appaointments
that require Board approval, :

Remuneration | The Remunaration and The Remunération and Compensation
: Compensation Committes plans to Committes will continue to ensure that the
continue perfarming its functions compensation of the direstors is consistent with
and responsibilities, as provided in | the Corporation's culture, strategy and the
the CG Manual, "t busiress snvironment in which it operates.
Others (specify) | N.A, N.A,

F. RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
1) Disclose the following:
{a) Overail risk management phliosophy of the company;

(b) A statement that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the Hsk management system and
commenting on the adequacy thereof;

{e) Period covered for the review;

{d} How ofte;m the risk management system Is roviewad and the directors' criteria for assessing its
effectivspess; and

(e} Where no revlew was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.

Qvergll Risk Managament Philesophy and Review

The CG Manual provides that it Is the duty of the Board to identify key risk areas and to monitor his fectors with due
diligence to enabls the Corporatlon to anticipate and prapare for possible threats to its operational and
financial viability,

These risks have been identified as: liquidity risk, credit risk, and market risk.

The Board has overall responsibllity for the astablishment and o_versfght of the-Corporation’s rigk managemant

framework. The Board s responsible for daveloping and monltoring the Corporation's risk management policies, The Board
Identifies all issues afiecting the operations of the Corperation.
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The Corporation’s sk management policles are established to identlfy and analyze the rieks faced by the Corporation, to
set appropriate risk limits and controis, and to monitor risks and adherence fo limits. Rigk management gollcles and
systems ara reviewed regularly to refiect changes in market conditions and the Corporation's activities. All risks faced by
the Corporaticn are incorporated In the annual operating budget. Mitigating strategies and procedures are afse davised to
address the rigks that inavitably sccur so as not to affect the Corperation’s operatlons ard detriment forecasted results.
The Corporation, through its training and management standards and procedures, alms to develop a disciplined and
constructive conirol envirenment in which ail employess understand their i
rofes and ohligations.

The Boerd constituted the Corporation’s Audit Committee to assist the Board in fulfiling its oversight responsibifity for the
Corporation's corporate. governance process relating to the: a) quality and integrity of the Corporation's financial
statements and financiel reporting process and the Corporation’s systems of internal accounting and financlal contrals: b)
performance of the internal auditors; ¢} annual independent audd of the Corporation's financial statements, the
engagement of the Independent auditors and the evaluatior: of the independent auditors’ qualifications, independsnce and
performance; d) compliance by the Corporation with legal and regulatory reguirements, including the Corporation’s
disclosure eontrol and procedures; g) evaluation of management's process to assess and menage the Corporation's
enterprise risk Issues: and f) fuifillment of the other responsibliities set out by the Board. The Audlt Committes shall also
prepare the reports required to be Included in the Carporation’s annual raport, ' ! :

2} Risk Policy
(a} Corporation ) i
Give a general description of the company's risk management policy setting out angd agssessing the risk/s

covered by the systom (ranked according to policy), along with the objective behind the pelicy for sach kind
of risk: ‘ | :

Rlsk Expos_ura Risk Management Poiicy Objective

Credit Rigk Credit risk repressnts the risk of The Investment of the Corporation’s cash resources
loss the Corparation would Ineur i | is managed sc as ty minimlze risk while seeking to
cradit customsrs and counterparties | enhance yield, ‘

fail to perform their contractual
abligations. The Corporation’s
eredit risk arises principally from the
Corporation's trade receivabies.

Liguidity Risk : Liquidity risk Is the risk that the " | Treasury controls and procedures are in placs to

‘ ’ Corporation will not be able to meet ensure that sufficient cash Is malntained to cover
its financial obligations as they fall daily operational ang werking capital requirements.
due. The Corporation manages
liquidity risk by forecasting
projected cash flows ang
maintaining & balance between
confinuity of funding and flexibility,

Markst Rigk Market risk Is the risk that cthanges | The objective of market risk management is {o

I market prices, such as foraign manage and control market risk exposures within
exchange rates, inferast rates and acceptable paramatars, while eptimizing the
other market prices will affect tha return.
Corporation's Income or the vaiue
of its holdings of financlal
instruments,

The Corporation Is subject to
various market risks, including risks
from changes in room rates,
interast rates and currency
exchange rates.

(b) Group
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Glve a genaral description of the Grou

p's risk management poiley, setting out and assessing the risk’s

coverad by the system (ranked according to priority), along with the objective bahind the pelicy for gach kind

of risk:

Risk Exposire

Rlsk Management Policy

Oblective

Events that adversely
Impact domestic or
international travel

| ragion or sould have a wider international

Sustained ievels of ocoupancy and room
rates can be advarssly affected by events
that reduce domestic or international
travel. Such events may include acts of
terrorlsm, war or perceived increased risk
of armed conflict, apidemics, natural
disasters, increased cost of travel and
industrial action, These events may

be localized to a particutar country,

perspective, especially where a large
airport, for example, is a major hub for
worldwids travel. Reduced demand will
impact on revenues and operational
profitabllity,

The Group has in place contingency and
racovery plans o enable it to respond fo
majer incidents or crises.

Contingenay and recovery plans ara put
In place to enable the Group to respond
to major incidents or orises.

Polltical and economic
developments.

Major events affeciing elther economic or
political stability on a global and regional
lavel represent.an axposure to the Group.
Economic events could inslude
recessionary pressures which would
“have an impact on the Group's revenuss,

operating costs and profitability. Politicat
Hske Inglude changes in the regulatory
environment in which the Group's
business activities operate, including
restrictions on the repatriation of funds ar
control over the ownership of assets.

Many of these risks are bayond the

contro! of the Group and the time-frames
for devaloping appropriate risk
management approaches can often be
very short. Managemant Is continually -
vigilant fo political and economic
developments and seeks to Identify
emerging risks at the earlisst oppartunity.
The Group implements ownership
structures, internal controls and takes
‘Such steps available to it to minimize
these exposures to tha greatest extent
possibie. - :

Management is continually vigilant to
political ang econemic davelopments and
seeks o identify emerging risks at the
earllest opportunity. The Group
Implemants ownership structures, internal
controls and takes such steps avaitable to
it to minimize these exposures to the
greatest extent possible.

:
The hotel Industry supply
and demand CVTG

I

The hotel industry eperates in an
inherently cyclical market place, A
weakening of demand, or an increase In
market room supply, may lead to
downwerd pressurs on room rates which
In turn would lead to & negative effsct on
operating performance,

The Group has management systems in
place designed to create flexibility in the
operating cost base so ag to optimize
operating profits in volatite trading

Managemant systems putin

place are designad fo creats faxibility In
the operating cost bass s0 as to optimize
operating profits In volatile trading
conditions, such as the profit protaction
plans [aitiated during previous market
down-turns. .

tonditiens, such as the profit protaction
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plans initlated during previous market
down-turna,

Human resources

Execution of the Group's strategy
depends on its ability t¢ attract, develop
and retain employses with the
appropriate skills, experience and
aptituds,

The Group has a strohg service culturs.
supported by recognition systems,
compensation and benefits
arrangsments, training and development
programmes. The Group has appropriate
gystems for recruitrment, reward and
compensation and performance
management, Labor relations are actively
maraged on a regional and local basis.

The Group has appropriate systems for
recruitment, reward and compansation
and parformance management. Labor
relations are actively managad on a
regional and local basis,

Management agresments

Anr element of the Group’s strategy

is to selectively increase the number of
management contracts to operate hotels
owned by third-parties, primartly focusing
on the Middle East region, In this regard,
the Group faces compatition from
established globa! and regional brands.
Successful execution of this strategy will
depend on the Group’s abliity to identify
suitable management opportunities,
8ecUre contfracts on suitabte contractual
terms and ensure that contractual
commitments are met and retainad going
forward, .

into the Group system.

The Group has develaped g management
team In the Middle East region that has
the necessary skills and resources to
pursue this element of the Group's
strategy. A structuted process for
acquiring new contracts has been
implemented and a priarity Is to ensure
that the critical rofes are filled and
operational management is Integrated

Joint ventures and
subsldlarles with minority
sharsholders

The Group has entered into a number of
Jolnt ventures in certain markets and is
therafore subject to the risk of non-
performance on the part of the minority
partners especially when the strategic
chjectives of the partners are net fulty
aligned.

For these jaint venturss, the Group has
appointed reprasentativas who are
assigned responsibilities to manage the
relationship with the joint venture
partners in order to enhance the
allgnment of business objsctives.

Manage the relationship with the joing
venture partiers in order to enhance the
alignment of business objsctives,

1

Treasury Hgk

The Group trades in numerous
internationai currencles byt reports its
finarclal results in sterling. Fluctuations in
currency exchange rates may either he
accretive or dilutive to the Group's
reported trading results and the Group's
net assst value, Unhedged interest

rate exposires pose a risk to the Group
when interast rates rise, resulting in
increased costs of funding and &n impact
on overall financial performancs. Cradit
risk arises from the risk of financlal loss i
a financial counterparty fails to meet its
contractual obligations in respect of its
depusits or short-term investments,

Manage forsign currengy trangactions
exposure | interest rate risk, and cradit
risk. ‘ ‘

|
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Fareign curreney transactions exposure
is primarlly managed through funding of
purchases from oparating income
streams arising in the same currsncey,
Interest rate hedges are used to manage
Interest rate risk to the extent that the
perceived cost is considered to outweigh
the benefit from the flaxibility of variable
rate borrowings. The Group actively
monitors the need and timing of such
hedges. Invesiments In short-term
instrumants ars with counterparties
approved by ihe Board taking into
account the counterparty’s cradit rating
and a maximum limit as to the amount
that may be deposited.

Tax risk

The Group's businesses operate in
fiumerous tax [urlsdictions. Changes in
tax laws in any of those jurisdictions may
have adverse conseguences on tha
Group's profits. Simitarly the Group's

interpretation and application of various
tax laws may be challenged. Tax
authoritles in man Jurisdictions are
Increasing their focus on corporate tax
affairs in order to maximizs tax receipts.

The Group seaks to minimize tax risk by
ansuiing that appropriate accounting
sysiems, processes and internal controls
are in place to ensure that taxes are
caiculated accurately and paid on a
timely basis, in comgliance with tax
laglslation, A co-operative approach Is
underiaken in respect of provision of
Information te tax authorities during tax
audits and investigations, and external
tax advisors are engaged in each tax
lurisdiction where necessary to advise
on such matters, and ta give guidance
on the implémentation of any changes in
tax legislation. Full review of tax
Impiicatons is carried out prior to
undartaking any fransactions invalving
new activities or structural changes, and
external tex planning advics is obtained
where appropriate. The Board and Audit
Committes receive regular updatas on
tax management issues,

Minimize tax risk,

Compliance and llitigation

The Group operatas In many |Orisdictlions
and is .exposed to the risk of non-
compliance with increasingly complex
statutory and regulatory requirements. in
addition the Group may be at risk of
litgation from various parties with

Monltor changes in the regulatory
énvironment |n which it oparates, idantlfy
its compliance obligatians and Implemant
appropriate compilance programmes and
has processes in placs to managa the
risks asstciated with its variaus

which it interacts, sither through direct
contractual arrangements or from the
provision of services. In certain countrias
where the Group operates, particularly in
emerging markets, local practices and
the legal envirenment may be such that it
Is sumetimas difficuit-for tha Group to

contraciual relationships,

anfores iis legal rights.
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1 charitable donations. There is tralning for

The Group continues to moniter changas
in the regulatory environment In which
1 operates, identify its compliance
obligations and implement appropriats
compliance programrries and has
processes in place to manage tha risks
assoctated with its various contractual
relationships, These include
comprehensive poiicies for ethics and
business conduct, anti-corruption and
bribery, gifts and hospitality and

relevant staff.

Safety, health and
environment

As a significant property ownar and
operator-of hotals in multiple iurisdictions,
the Group is exposed 1o a wide range of
regulatory requirements and obligations
concerning the health and safety of
employees, visitors and guasts. Fallurs to
Implement and maintain sufficient
controls regarding health and safety
Issues could expose the Group to
significant sanctions, boih civif and
criminal, financial penalties ang
reputational damage,

The Group has estabiished and

maintains health and safety and
environmental management sysisms that -
ara aligned with the reguirements of 1ISQ
14001 and OHSAS 18001. By working to
British standards, the Greup is committed
to working to the highest standards of
health and safsty and to an

internationally accredited system.

Work o the highest standards of heaiih
end safety and to an internationally
acoradited sysfem,

intellectual property rights”
&nd brands

Future development wili, in part, be
dapsndent on the recognition of the
Group's brands and perception of the
values inherent in those brands.
Consistent delivery of product quality s
vitally important to influencing consumer
preference and creating and maintaining
value psrception. Historically the Group
has mainly opsrated properties which it
owns. The trend towards managing
third-party properties, primarily in the
Middie East region Increases the risk that
product quality may not be delivered In
ascordance with the Greup's standards.
This may increase the Group’s exposlre
to iitigation, increase risks to reputation,
reduce revenues and beccme an
inhibiting factor on ongeing development. -

Substantial Investment continues to be
made in protacting the Group's brands
from misuse and infringement, by way of
trade mark registration and domain name
protection. Management sesks {0 ensure
maintenance of standards by developing
strong working relationships with hotel

Protect the Group'sbrands

from misuse and ln‘fringement, by way of
trade mark registration and domaln name
protectien and ensure maintenance of
standards by developing strong working
relationships with hotel owners and
undertaking regu!ar[monltoring of sarvice
delivery. ‘
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owners and undertaking ragular
monitoring of service delivery.

Property ownership
. |

The Group's strategy is o be both owner
and maneager of hotel properties. Growth
of the Group's portfolio of ownad assets
s dependent on the avallability of
suitable development sites, acquisitions
and access to funding. A limit on such
opportunities may have a negative impact
on future operational profitabllity,
Property ownership requires ongoing
Investment in the form of preventative
maintenance, rafurbishment, significant
capital expenditure and product
devalopment. There Is also the possibie
loss of sapital dus to uninsured events
and reductions in asset vslues as a resuylt
of demographic changes in the markets
In which the properties are jocated,

The Group continues to develop property
specific asset management pians which
focus on the cepital requirements of each
property In terms of regular maintenance
and product enhancement. The Group
has rigorous management systems to
monitor major capital projects fo ensure
they are properly managed and dslivered
on time and within budgated parameters,

insurance

Net all risks are Insured, sither bacause
the cover is not available in the markst or
that cover is not avallable on '
commercially viable terms. The Group is
éxposed to the risk of cover not being
continually availeble. Avallabllity may be
influsncad by factors cutside the Group's
control, which could reduce the market's
underwriting capacity, breadith of policy
coverage or sitmply make the cost of
cover too axpensive, The Group could be
exposed to Lninsured third-party claims,
losa of revenue or reduction of fixed
asset :

valuas which may, in turn, have an
adverse effect on Group profitability, cash
fiows and ability to satisfy banking
g¢ovenants. -

The Group's insurance requiremenis are
regularly reviewed to ensure that tha
covar obtained is appropriate to its risk
profile and after iaking Into account the
level of retained risk the Board considars
to be appropriate, refative 1o tha cost of
cover avaitable in the market place,
Insurance covers are arranged with a
variety of insurars to snsure that
arrangements are not overly
concentrated on a limited numbar of
carriers. Choice of insurance

carriers is dependant on satisfaction of g
number of relevant factors Including a
review of the insurers’ security ratings.

The Group's insurance reguirements are
reguiarly reviewed to ensure that the
cover obtained is appropriate to its-risk
profile.

Insurance covers are arrangsed with a
variety of insurers to ensure that
arrangements are not overly concentrated
on a limitsd number of carriers,

informatfon Technology
systems and Infrastructure

It ordsr to maintain its competitiveness
within the market place the Group will

- need 1o ensure its IT systems deliver the

hecessary trading platforms and provida
management with accurats and timely
information.

The Group invests in systems that are
tried and fested =0 that as much

1 operaticnal resillence as posslble, cost

considerations patmitting, can be
cbtaired. Investment Is made in robust
infrastructura tachnology to provide g
reliable aperating platform. Crisls
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management and disaster racovery
plans are in place for busineas critical
systems, Management ragularly reviews
IT requirements-and risks to prioritize
implementatien of changes and
improvemants,

Pata privacy

A significant proportion of the Group's
cperating ravenus is recelved from
customers through credit card
transactions and the Group has an
obiigation to keep secure customers’
credit card and other personsl detaiis.
Non-compliance with data privacy .
reguiations, which differ by jurisdiction,
could result in fines and/or othar ‘
damages being incurred. Additionally, the
payment card industry requires the Group
to comply with data sacurity standards
{PCI-DS8) as a condition in credit card
merchant agreements. Failure to cormply
with these standards couid result in
contractual penalties and withdrawal of

During the last year the Group has
cornmitted significant resources to
achievement and maintanance of ths
necessary |1 infrastructure, operating
contrefs and fraining assoctated with -
data privacy and PCI-DSS.

credit card payment faciiities.

{c) Minority Sharsholders

. Indigate the principal ri#k of the exercige of controlling shareholders' voting power,

Risk to Minority Shareholders

Although there are certain corparate gove
stockholders will be able to elect a majarity
effect corporate transactions without the concurrence of the
circumstances provideprovided in the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation or, By-Laws, and GG M‘anual pursuant {o laws

rmance measures in place, the combined sharehofdings of the principal
of the directors, control the management and policios f_hrough the Board and

minority stockholderssharehoqurs, except in limited

requiring minetity shareholder approval for certain transactions.

3) Control System Set Up

(a) Company

Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess,

company:

1
|

manage and control the maln Issuels faced by the

Risk Equsure

Rlsk Assessment :
(Monitering and Measuremant Process)

Risk Management Control .
{Structures, Procedures, Actlons Taken)

Cradit Risk

Exposure to credit risk is menltorad on an
ongoing basis. Credit checks are being
performed on all clients requesating credit
over certein amounts.

Credlt is not extended beyond authorized
limits, estabiished where appropriate through
consultation with a

professional creddt vetiing organization.

Credit granted Is subject to regulsr raview, to
énsure it remains consistent with the clients'
current credit worthiness and appropriate to

the anticipated volume of business,

The Gorporation’s holding of cash and money market
placements exposs the Carparation to credit risk of the
caunterparty if the counterparty ls unwilling or unable
to fulfill ite obligations and the Cerperation
ccnsequently suffers financial loss. Credit rigk
management Involves entering into finanaial
transactions only with counterparties with acceptable
credit rating. Tha treasury policy sets aggregate credit
limits of any one countarparty and managemant
annually reviews the exposure limits and credit ratings
cf the counterparties.

Receivable balance is being monltored on a regular
basfs to ensure timsly execution of necessary .
intervention efforts. :
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Liguidity Risic Managemant closely monitors tha Corporation's future
and contingent obligatiors and sets up required cash
feserves as necessary In accordance with Internat

. requirements.
Market Risk (1} Room Rafes (1) Reom Ratas
The risk from room rate changes relates to | The Corporation minimizes its exposure to risks in
the Corporation's” abllity to recover higher | changes In room rates by signing contracts with short
operating costs through price Increases to | pericd of expiry so this gives the Corporation the
customers, which may be limited due to the | flexibility to adjust its room rates in accordance fo
;| competitive pricing environment that exists In | market conditions. Alse, there are minimal changes in
! the Philippine hotel industry and the ropm rates in the hotel industry.
: willingness of customers to avail of hotel
g rooms at higher prices.
|
| (2) Inferest Rate Risk {2) Inferest Rate Risk
. | The Corporation has no interest-bearing | The Corporation has no intersst-bearing debt
{ | debt obligations to third parties. As such, the | obligations to third parties.
i Corporation has minimal interast rate risk. _
(3} Foreign Currency Risk {3) Foreign Currency Risk
| | Flnancial assets and financing facilities | The Corporation’s forelgn currency risk is minimal,
I | extended to the Corporation were mainly '
denominated in Philippine peso and have
minimal transactions in forelgn currency. As
such, the Corporation’s foreign currency risk
is minimal. ‘
(b} Group

Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, mana

company: -

ge and controf the main Issue/s faced by the

‘Risk Exposure

Risk Assessment
- {Menltoring and Measurement
Process)

Rlsk Management C'ont_rol
{Structures, Progadures, Actions
Taken}

Events that adversely
impact domestic or
internatlonal travel

Sustained levels of ocoupancy and room
rates can be adverssly affected by evants
that reduce domestic or intsrnational
travel. Such events may include acts of
terrorism, war of perceived increased risk
of armed conflict, epidemics, natural
disasters, increased cost of travel and
industriat action, These events may

be localized to a particular country, region
or could have a wider international
perspective, especiaily where a large
airport, for examgie, is a major hub for

-worldwide travel. Reduced demand will
. Impact on revenuss and operstional

profitability.

The Group has in place contingancy and
recovery plans to enable It to respond to
major incidents or crises,

Political and economie ~
developments

Major events a¥ecting sither economic or
political stability on a global and regional
levs! raprasent an exposure to the Group.

_Economic avents could include
‘recessionary pressures which would have

an impact on the Group’s revenues,
operating costs and profitability. Politica
ilsks include changes in the regutatory
anvironment in which the Group's
business activities oparate, including
restrictions on the repatriation of funds or
control over the ownership of ascets.

Many of these risks are beyond the
control of the Group and the time-frames
for developing appropriate risk
management approaches can often be
very short. Management is continually
vigitant to political and sconomic
developments and seeks to identlty
amerging risks at the earliest opportunity.
The Group implements ownership
structures, intarnat conirols and takas
such steps avallabls to it to minlmize
these expesures io the greatsst extent
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possible.

~ The hotel Industry supply
and demand cycle

The hotel industry operates in an
inherently cyclical market placa. A
weakening of demand, or an Increass in
markst reom supply, may lead to
downward pressure un room rates which
in turn would lead to a negative effect on
opserating performancs.

The Group has management systems in
place designed to create flexiblity in the
oparaling cost base 50 as io optimize
operating profits in volatlle trading

| conditions, such as the profit protaction
‘plans initiated during previous market

down-turns.

Human resoursos

Execution of the Group's stratagy
depends an its abllity to attract, develop
and retain employess with the
eppropriate skills, experience and
aptitude, '

The Group has a strong servics culture
supported by recognition systams,
compensation and beneflts
arrangsments, tfraining and development
progremmes. The Group has appropriate
systems for recruitment, reward and
compensation and performance
management. Labor relations are activaly
managed on @ regional and local basis,

Management agreements

An element of the Group's sirstegy

is to selectively increase the number of
managsmsnt contracts to operats hotels
owned by third-parties, primarily focusing
on the Middle East region. in this regard,
the Group faces compstition from
astablished global and regional brands.
Successful execution of this strategy will
depend on the Group's abillity to identify
suitable management cpportunities,
secure contracis on suitable contractual
terms and ensure that contractual

commiiments are met and retained going

forward,

The Group has developed a management
team in the Middle ;East region that has
the recessary skiils and resourcas to
pursue this element of the Group’s
strategy. A structured procass for
acquiring new contracts has been
Irmplemented and & priarity is to ensure
that the critical role$ are filed and
operational management is integrated
inta the Group syst'?m.

|

Joint ventures angd
subsldiaries with minority
shareholders

‘The Group has entered inta @ number of
Joint ventures In certain marksts and is
therafore subject to the risk of non-
perfoermance on the part of the minerity
partners especially when the strategic
ohjectives of the partrers are not fully
aligned.

For these Joint ventures, the Group has
appainted representatives whao ars
assigned responsibilities to manage the
relationship with tha joint venturs partners
In order to enhance the alignment of
business cbjectives.

_freasury risk

The Groug trades in numerous
international currencies but reports its
financlal results in sterling. Fluctuations in
Surrency exchange rates may either be
accretive or dilutive to the Group’s
reported trading results and the Group's
net asse! value. Unhedged interest

rate exposures pose & risk to the Graup
when interest rates rise, resulting in
increased costs of funding and an impact
on overall financial performance. Cradit
risk arises from the risk of financial loss If
a financial counterparty fails to meet its
contractual abligations in respect of its
deposits or short-term investmants.

Foreign currency transactions EXpOSUre is
primarily managed through fitnding of
purchases from operating income
streams atising in the same currency,
interest rate hedges are used to manage
inferest rate risk to the extent that the
percelved cost is considered to outweigh
the benefit from the flexibllity of variabie
rate borrowings. The Group actively
monitors the need and timing of suzh
hedges. Investments in short-larm
fnstruments ars with counterparties
approved by the Baard taking info
account the counterparty’s credit rating
and a maximum limit as to the amount
that may be deposited. '

Tax r]sk

The Group’s businessss cperate in
numerous tax jurisdictions. Changes in
tax laws in any of those jurlsdictions may
have adverse consequences on the
Group's profits. Similarly the Group’s
interpretation and application of variaus
tax laws may be challenged. Tax
authoriites In man jurisdictions are

The Group seeks to minimize tax risk by
ensuring that appropriate accouriing
systems, processes and internal controls
are in place to ensure that taxes are
calculated accurately and paid on a
timely basls, In compliance with tax

| legislation. A co-opatative approach is

Undertaken in respect of provision of
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increasing their focus on corporate tax
affairs in arder to maximize tax recaipts.

‘where appropriate. The Board and Audit

information fo tax authorities during tax
audits and investigations, and external
tax advisors are engaged in each tax
jurisdiction where nacessary to advise
on such matters, and to give guldance
on the implementation of any changes in
lax legislation. Full review of tax
Implications Is carried out prier to
undertaking any transactions invelving
new activities or structural changes, and -
external tax ptanning advice is obtainad

Commiitse receive regular updates on
fax managesment issues,.

Compliance and litigation

The Group operates in many jurisdictions
and Is exposed to the tisk of non-
compliance with increasingly complax
gtatutory and regulatory requiremants. In
addition the Group may be at risk of
litigation fram various partiss with

which it interacts, aither through direct
cortractual arrangements or from the
provision of services, In certaln countries
wherg the Group opearates, paricularly in
emerging marksets, local practices and the
legal environment may bs such that it is
sometimes difficult for the Group to
enforce its legal rights.

The Group continues to monitor changes
in the regulatory environment in which

it operates, identify its campliance
obiigations and Implemant appropriata
compliance programmes and has
processes in place o manage the risks
associated with its vartous contractual
relationships. These include
comprehensive pelicies for ethics and
business conduct, anfi-corruption and
bribery, gifts and hospitality and
charitable donations. There is training for
relevant staff,

Safety, health and
environment |

As a significant property owner and
operator of hotels in muitiple jurisdictions,
the Group is exposed to a wide rangs of
regulatery requiraments and obligations
concerning the health and safety of
employees, visitors and gussts. Failure to
implement and maintain sufficient
controls regarding health and safaty
issues could expose the Group to
significant sanctions, bath civil and
criminal, financial penalties snd
reputational damage.

The Groug has established and maintains
health and safety and environmental
management systems that are aligned
with the raquirements of IS0 14001 and
OHSAS 18001, By working to British
slandards, the Group 1s committed to
working fo the highest standards of health
and safety and to an internationally
accredited system. Datails of progress
made In Improving the Group's
management systems are contained in ‘
the Corporate Social Rasponsibility report
on pages 29 to 31. ‘

intellectual property rights -

and brands

Fuiure development will, in part, be
dependant.or the recognition of the
Group's brands and perception of the
values inherent in those brands. ‘
Consistent delivery of product quality is
vitally impertant to Influencing consumer
prafarence and creating and maintaining
value perception. Historlcally the Group
has mainly operatad propertlas which it
owns. The trend towards managing
third-party properties, primarily in the
Middle East region increases the rigk that
product quality may not be deliverad in
accordance with the Group's standards.
This may increase the Group’s exposure
to litigaticn, increase risks fo reputation,
reduce revenues and become an
Inhibiting fastor on ongoing development.

Substantial Invesiment continues to be
made in protecting the Group's brands
from misuse and infringement, by way of
trade mark registration and domain name
protection. Management seeks to ensure
malntenance of standards by developing
strong working relationships with hotel
owners ang undertaking ragular
menitoring of service dalivery,

Property ownership

The Group’s strategy Is fo be both owner
and manager of hote! propertiss. Growth
of the Group's. portfolio of owned assets
is '

The Group continues to develop propany
spacific asset management plans which

focus on the capital requirements of each
property in terms of regular maintenance
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dependsnt on the avajlability of suitable
development sites, acquisitions and
acecess to funding, A limit on such :
opportunities may have a negative impact
on future operational profitability. Property
ownership raquires ongolng investment in
the form of preventative mainienance,
refurblshment, significant capital
expenditure and product davslopment,
Thers is alsc the possible loss of capital
due to uninslired events and reductions in
asset values as a result of demographic
thanges in the markets in which the
properties are located.

and product enhancement. The Group
has rigorous management systams to
monitor major capital projects to ensurs
they are properly managed and delivered
on time and within budgeted parameters.

Insurance

Not all risks are Insured, sither because
the cover is not available in the markeat or

-that cover Is not available on

cemmerciglly viable terms. The Group is
axposed to the risk of cover not belng
confinually available, Availability may be
Influenced by factors outsids the Group's
control, which could reduce the market's
underwriting capacity, breadth of policy
coverage or simply make the cost of
caver too expensive. The Group could be
exposed to uninsured third-party claims,
loss of revenue or reduction of fixed asset
values which may, in turn, have an
adverse effect on Group profitability, cash
flows and ability to satisfy banking
covenants.

The Group's Insurance requirements are
reguiarly reviewed fo ensure that the
cover obigined Is appropriate to its risk
profile and after taking into account the
level of retalned risk the Board considers
o be appropriate, relative to the cost of
cover available in the market place,
Insurance covers are arranged with 2
varisty of insurers to ensure that
arrangements are not overly concentrated
on a limited

number of carrlers. Chaics of insurance
carrlers is dependant on satisfaction of 2
humber of relevant facters inciuding a
review of the insurers’ security ratings. -

information Technology
systems and fnfrastructurs

In order to maintain ts competitiveness
within the market place the Group wili
need to ensure its [T systems deliver the
necessary frading platforms and provide
management with accurate and timely
infermation.

The Group invests in systems that are
tried and tested so that as much
eperatlonal resilience as possible, cost
conslderations permitting, can be
obtalned. investment is made in robust
infrastructure technelagy to provide a
rellable opersting platform. Crisis
manragement and dlsaster recovary
plans are in place for businass crlfical
systems. Management regularly reviews
IT requirements and rigks to prioritize
implementation of changes and
Improvements, ‘

Data privacy

A significant proportion of the Group's
operating ravenue is received from
customers through cradit card
transactions and the Group has an
obligation to keep secure customers’
credit card and other personal datails.
Non-compliance with data privacy
reguiations, which differ by jurisdiction,
could resultin fines and/or other
damages being incurred, Additionally, the
payment card industry requires the Group
to comply with data sscurity standards
(PCI-DSS) as a condition in credit card
marchant agreements. Failure to comply
with these standards could result in
contractual penaities and withdrawal of

During the last yaar the Group has
committed significant resources to
achiavement and maintenance of the
necessary IT Infrastructure, operating
controls and tralhing associated with
data privacy and PCI-DSS.

credit card payment facilities,

50




=~

forees

{¢) Committes

Identify the committee or any other body of corporate

governance in charge of laying down and

supervising these control mechanisms, and give detalis of Its functions:

Committee/Unit

Control Mechanisem

Details of its Function

Board of Directors

The CG Manual provides that It Is the duty
of the Board to identify key risk aress and to
monitor ihis factors with dus diligence to
enable the Corporation to anticipate and
prepare for possible threats to its
operational and financial viability,

Thase risks have besn identified as: liquidity
risk, credit risk, and market risk,

The Board has overall respensibility for the
astablishment and oversight of the
Corporation's risk managerment

framework. The Board is responshble for
daveloping and monltoring the Corparation’s
risk management policies. The Board
identifies all lssues affecting the oparations
of the Corporation,

The Corporafion’s risk management policies
are established to identify and analyze the
risks faced by the Corporation, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk

[ management policies and systems are

reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Corporation's
activiies. All risks faced by the Corporation.
are Incorporated in the annual operating
budget. Mitigating strategies and procedures
are alsc devised to address the risks that
inevitabiy occur so as not to affect the
Corporation's operations and detriment
farecastad results. The Corporatien, through
its fraining and managemeant standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined
and constructive centrol envirorment in
which all smployees understand thair

roles and obligations,

Audit Commitise

The Board constituted the Corporation's
Audit Commitiee to assist the Board in
fuifiling its oversight responsibllity for the
Corporation’s corporate governance
process, ineluding evaluation ;| of
management’s process to assess . and
manage the Corporation's enterprise: risk
Issues. . '

The Board constituted the Comoration's
Audit Committee to assigt the Board in
fulfiling its oversight responsibliity for the
Corporation’s corporate governance process
relating to the: a) quality and integrity of the
Corporation’s  financial statements and
financlal  reporting process and  the
Corporation's systems of intemal accounting
and financial controls; b) performance of the
internal auditors; ¢) annual independent audit
of the Corporation's financial statements, the
engagement of the.Independent auditors and
the evaluation of the indepsndent auditors’
gusalifications, independsnca and
performance; d) compliance by the
Coerporation  with  legal and  regulatory
requirements, Including the Corporation's
disclosure contro!  and procadures; )
evaiuation of managements process to
assess and manage the Gorporation's
enterprise risk issues; and f) fulfliment of the
other responsiviiities set out by the Board.
The Audit Committes shall also prepars the
reports required to be included in tha
Corporation’s annual report,

G. INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL

1) Internal Gontrol Systam

Disclose the following informatlon pertaining to the Internal control system of the company:

(a) Explain how ths Internal control system is defined for the company;
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(b} A statement that the d.!rectors have reviewesd the effestiveness of the }nternal.control system and whather
“they consider them effectlve and adetguate;

{¢) Period coversd by the reviaw; .
{d) How ofian Internal controls are reviewed and the directors’ griteria for assessing th_s affectivenoss of the

Internal control system; and |
(8) Where no review was conducted during tha year, an explanatlon why not.

For the Corporation, internaf control means having an effective system of control that will ensure the Integrity of the
financial reports and protection of the assets of tha Corporations, Accorging to the CG Manual, this is one of the dutias of
the Management, which, In turn, is under the supervision of the Audit Committes. The Audit Committes, In turn, evaluates
the adequacy and sffectiveness of the Corporation’s internal contral system as formulated by the M?nagement.

The fdl%mwing are the factors to be considered, for the organizational and procedura! controls of the Corporation, are the
foltowing:

nature and complexity of the business and the business culture f
volume, size and complexity of transactions | |
degres of risk ‘ _ : ' : j
degree of centralization and delegation of authority '
the extent of effectiveness of information technotogy f
the extent of regulatory compliance

~eooow

Moreover, the Charter mandaies that tha Corporatiorn  shall have in place an !mefnal audlt function which shall be
performed by an internal auditor through which the Board, senior management, and shareholders ghall be provided with
reasonable assurance that its key organizational and procedural controls are effective, appropriate and complied with.

Under the CG Manugl, Management should formulate, under the supervision of the Audit Cori'zmittea. the rules and

procedures on financlal reporting and infernal contral in accordance with the following guidelines: |

e The extent of its résponsibill&y in the preparation of the financial statements of the Corparation, iwéth the corresponding
delineation of the responsiblities that pertain to the external auditer, should be clearly explained;

¢ An effective system of internal control that will ensure the Integrity of the financlal Eéports and protection of the agsets
: of the Corporatlon should be maintained: : : :

»  On the basis of the approved audit plans, internal audit examinations should cover, at the minimum, the evaluation of
the adequacy and effectivensss of controls that cover the Corporation's govarnance, operations and information
systems, including the reliability and integrity of financial and operational information, effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, protaction of assets, and sompliance with contracts, laws, ruies and, regulations;

+  Tha Corporation should consistently comply with the financial reporting requirements of the SEC:

* The Internal Auditor should submit to the Audit Committes and Management an annual report on the internai audit
department's activities, responsibilities and performance relative to the audit plans and strategiss as approved by the
Audlt Cornmittes, The annual report should include significant risk exposures, control issues and such other maiters as
may be neadad or requested by the Board and Management. . -

The minimum internal contral mechanisms for managsment operaticnal responsibillty shall center on the on the CEQ,
being ultimately accountable for the organizational and procedural controls of the Corporation. On the basis of approved
audit plans, the Internal audit examinaticns cover, at the minimum, the evaluation of the edequacy and effectiveness of
controls that cover the Corporation's governancs, operations and information systems, Including the reliability and integrity
of financial and operational infermation, effectivenass and efficiency of operations, protection of assets, and compliance
with contracts, laws, rutes and, regulations. : ‘

The Group's Internal Auditor conducts an internal audit review of the Corporation annuzlly. The formal gudlt report is
submitted to the Audit Committee and to the Board. Based on the result of the Internal audlt review, key controls and
management environment are sffective. Audit findings are few and indicate low risks to the business dverail.

2} Internal Audit

{a) Role, Scope and iInternal Audit Function
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Give a generai descriptfon‘of the role,

audit function.

scope of the internal audit work and other detalls of the internal

Indicate
whether In- Namae of Chlef
house or Internal
Rols . Scope Qutsource Auditor/Auditing Reporting process
Internal Audit Firm

Function
An internal - The scope of the internal audit in-house. The The internal audit | The Charter requires the
gudltor or 2 group | shall at least cover the following: | Baard annually function of the Internal Auditor to submit
of internal appeints @ Chief | Corporation is status reports which

auditors, through
which the Board,
senlor
management, and
shareholders shall
be provided with
reasonable
assyrance that its
key organizational
and procedural :
controls are
effactive,
approwriate, and
complied with, -
The internal audit
activities shall be
conducted in |
accerdancs with
the Standards for
the Professional
Practice of
Internal Auditing

{1

an svaluation of the

- adequacy and effsctiveness
- if controls pertaining to the

L (3)

{a) -

governanca, operations and
Information systems of the
Corporation, Including the
reliability and integrity of
financial and cperaticnal
Information,

effectiveness and efficlency
of operations,

safaguarding of assets; and
4, complianca with
contracts, laws, rules and,

- regulations,

Audit Executive
who oversees the
internal audit of
the Corporation.

currently being
performed by
Millennlum &
Copthorne
Internationat
Limited {"MCI"},
which Is based in
Singapore,
although MCl is
nat engaged
directly by the
Corporation. Mr,
Yam Kit Sung,
the Chief Financs
Officer ("CFQO")
and Compliance
Officar has baen
designated as
the Chief Audit
Exacutive of the
Corperation, and
is responsible for
overseeing the
service contract
with MCI (as
internal Auditor),
and the overall

 quality assurance

of the interna|
audlt activitias,
reporting to
senior .
managemeant and
the Board
regarding intarnaf
audit activities,.
and follow-up of
engagement
results.

summarizes the
recommendations of the
internal auditor, the
officers responsible for
the Implementation of the
recemmendations, and
the dates when such
recommendations shall
be impiemented and
accomplished.

In addition, the CG
Manual requires the
Internal Auditor o submit
to the Audit Commities
and Management and
annual report on the
Internal audit
departmeni's activities,
responsibitities and
performance ralative o
the audit plans and
strategies as approved
by the Audlt Committee.
The annual report should
include significant rigk
éxposures, control
issues and such other
mattars as may be
needed or requested by
the Board and
Managament,

The Internal Auditor
should cerfify that the
conducts his activities in
accordance with the
International standards
oh the Professional
Practice of intarnal
Auditing. If he does not,
he shall disclose to the
Board and Management
the reasons why he has
not fully comptied with
the said standards,

{b} Do the appointment and/or remov
which the Internal audit function |

al of the Internal Auditor or the accounting/auditing firm or corporation to
$ outsourcad require the approval of the audit committee?
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No. It is the Board which appoints the Chief Audit Executive who oversees the internal audit functlon of the
- Corporation. The appointment and/or removal of the Chief Audit Executive or the acc{)unting/auditing firm or
eerporation to which the internal sudit funstion is outsourcad does not require the approval of the audit committee.

E

Under the CG Manal, the Chief Audit Executive should submit to the Audit Committee and Management an
annual report on the internat audit department's activities, responsibilities and performance relative to the audit
plans and strategles, as approved by the Aa_dit Commiites. i

(c) Discuss the Ihternal audltor's teparting relationshlp

In addition, the Charter requires the internal auditer fo submit status reporis which summarizes the
recommendations of the internal auditor. The internal audit function is cutsourced to MCIL  The internal audit
examinations cover, at the minimum, the. evaluation of the adequacy end effectiveness of controls that cover the
Corporation’s governance, operations and information systems, including the reliability and integrity of financial and
operational information, effectiveness and efficiency of operations, protection of asssts, and compfiance with
contracts, laws, rules and, regulations, i ; )

‘ (d) Resignation, Re-asslgnment and Reasons Co
Disclose any reslgnatlon/s or re-asslgnrnent of the internal sudit staff (including those employed by the
third party auditing flrm) and the reason/s for them.

Name of Audit Staff : . Reason
N.A, o

Other than the Chief Audit Executive, the Corporation does not have I own Internal audit staff, as the intarnal sudit
function is outsourced to MCI. ; ol

(s} Progress against Plans, issues, Findings, and Examination Trends

State the Internal audit's progress against pians, significant findings and examination trends,

Internal audit work is carried out on att annual basis by the
. Group Internal Audit from Millennium & Copthorne Hotels
Progress against Plans | Internaticnal Limited, ' :
Issues No significant Issues have been identified. -
Findings No significant findings such as fraud.
o | internal audit carried out full audit oycle which covered cash,
Examination Trends salss, purchases, health and safety and others.

[The relationship among progress, plang, lssues and findings should be viewed as an internal sontrol review cycle which
involves the following step-by step activities: j . ! '

1) Preparation of an audit plan inclusive of a-timefine and a milestones;
2} Conduct of axamination based on the plan;
3) Evaluation of the progress in the Implementation of the plan:

- 4) Documentation of issues and findings ae a result of the examination;

5) Determination of the persvasive issues and findings {'examination trends') based En single year resuit
andf'or year-to-year results:

8) Conduct of the foregoing procedures on a regulsr basfs.)

(f) Audlt Control Pollcles and Procedures
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Discloso &il internal audit controls, pelicles, and procedures that have bean established by the company
and the result of an assessment as to whether the eatablished controls, policies and procedures have been

Implernented under column 'implementation.'

Pollcles & Proéedures

implementation ' ' 7

The Charter mandates that the Corperation shall havs in
place an intemai audit function which shal! be performed by
an internal suditor through which the Board, senior
managsment, and shareholders shail be provided with
reasonable assurance that its key organizational and
procedural controls are effactive, apprepriate and compiled
with,

Under the CG Manual, Management should formulate,
undar the supervision of the Audit Committes, the rules,
and procedures on financial reperting and internal control in
accordance with the following guidelines:

(13 The extent of its responsibility in the preparation of thg
financlal statements of . the Corporation,  with ~ the
corresponding delineation of the responsibilities that pertain
to the external auditor, should be Clearly explained;

(2) An sffective system of internal control that will ansurs
the Integrity of the financial reports and protection of the
assets of the Corporation should be maintained;

{3) On the basis of the approved audit plans, internal audit
examinations should cover, at the minimum, the evaluation
of the adequacy and sffectivenass of controls that cover the
Corporation's  governance, Operations and information
systems, including the reliability and integrity of financial
and operational informatlon, effectiveness and sfficiency of
operations, protection of assets, and compliance with

contrascts, laws, riules and, reguiations;

{(4) The Corporation should consistently comply with ths

financial reporting[v reguirements of the SEC;

(8) The Internal Auditor should submit to the Audit

Committes and ‘Management an annual report on the
internal audit department's aciivities, responsibilities and
performance relative to the audit plars and stratogies as
approved by the Audit Committee. The annual report should
include significant risk exposures, control issues and such
other matters as may be nesded or requested by the Board
and Management; : .

The Group's Internal Auditors, supervised by the Chief Audit
Executive, conduct an internal audit review of the
Corporation annually. The formal avdit report Is submitted to
the Audit Commitiee and to the Board., Based on the rasuit
of the interns! audit revisw, key conirols and management
snvironment are effective. Audgit findings are few and
indicate fow risks to the business overall,

{g) Mechanism and Safeguards

State the mechanism established by the com

pany to safeguard the Independence of the auditors,

- financial analyst, iInvestment banks and rating agencles (example, restriction on trading In the company's
shares and lmposltfon of internal approval procedures for these transactions, limitation on the non-audit
sarvices that an external auditor may provide in the company); ‘ '

65



.....

jf

Financlal : Investment%

Auditors (Iniernal and External} Anaiysis Banks Rating Agencles

| free from Interference by outside pariies.

‘external auditor duly accredited by tha SEC who shall . ‘ '

" i-shall provide an objective assurance on the manner by

(1) The Audit Committee shall evaluate and determine the N.A N.A, i N.A,
non-audit work, If any, of the external auditor, and review . ! ‘
periodically the non-audit faes pald to the external auditor
in relation to their significance to the total annual income of
the external auditor and to the Corporation's overall
consultancy expsnses. The commitiee shall disallow any
nen-audit work that will conflict with his duties as an
external auditar or may pose a threat to his independance.
The non-audit work, if allowed, should be disclosad in the
Corporation's annual report;

(2) The Audit Committee shall ensure that, in the
performance of the work of the Internal Auditor, ha shall be

(3) The Board, after consultations with the Audit
Committes, shall recommend to the stockholders an

undertake an independeni audit of the Comporation, and

which the financial statements shall be prepared and
presentad {o the stockholders. The extarnal auditar shall
not, atthe same time, provide internal audit ssrvices to the _ |
Caorporation, Non-audit work may be given fo the external ;
auditor, provided it does not conflict with his duties as an !
Independent auditor, ordoes not pase a threat to his i :
independences. .

(4} If the external auditor resigns, is dismissed or ceases o
perform his services, the reason/s for and the date of
effectivity of such action shall be reported in tha
Corporation's annual and currant reports. The report shall
Include a discussion of any disagreement betwsen the
external auditer and the Corporation on accolinting
principles or practices, financial disclosures or audit
procedures which the former auditor and the Corporation’
failed to resolve satisfactorily. A preliminary copy of the.
said report shafl be given by the Corporation to the external
auditor before its submission.

(8) If the external auditor beliaves that any statement made
in an annual report, information statsment or any report
filad with the SEC or any rsguiatory body during the period . |
of his engagement is incorract or incompiete, he shall give
his comments or views on the matter in the said repcris,

(8) The external auditor should be rotated or changed every
five (5) years or sarlier, or the signing partrer of the : .
external auditing firm assigned to the Corporation, should i
be changad with the same frequency. ) :

(h) Stato the officers {preferably the Chalrman & CEO) who will have to attest to|the company's full
compliances with the SEC Code of Corporate Governance. Such confirmation must state afl directors,
offlcers, and employees of the company have been given proper instruction on their respactive dutles as
mandated by the Code and that internal mechanisms are in piace to ensure that compliancs,

The CG Manual provide that the Board shall eppoint a Compllance Officer and an Assistant Complience Dfficer who shall
report directly to the Board. Tha Compliance Officer, or in his absence, the Assistant Compliance Officer, shail perform the
following dutles: : |
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(1) Monitor compliance by the Corpération with the CG Manual, Code of Corporate Gevernance, Securities R

Code, Corporation Code, and other applicable rules and reguiations; and

matter to the Board and recommend the imposition of the propar penalty,

{2) Appesar befora the SEC when summoned In refation to compliance with the Code of Corperate Governance.

(3) Issue & cerification that every Jénuary 30th of the year on

for the complsted year and, if thers are any deviations, axplain the reason for such deviation,

The CG Manusl also provides that the reports or disclosures required under the CG Manua!

submitted to the SEC by the responsible Committee
Compliance Officer, or Corporate Secratary.

H. ROLE OF 8TAKEHOLDERS :

1) Disclose the Corporation's pollcy ia_nd activities relative to the following:

sgulation
if any violations are found, to report the
the extent of the Corporation's compliance with fhe Code

shall be prepared and
or officer through the Corporation’s Compliance Officer, Assistant

Policy

Activitles

Custemers’ Welfare Teo offer quality and
inrovative products,
unsurpassed saervice and

:value for money,

The Corporation continues ta imprave the services,
products, and facliities that it offers to its customers.

The Corporation established a team of trained
employess to respond to possible disasters liks firg,
earthquakes and other accidents our guests and
empioyees might experiance during their stay In the
Hotel, Instructors from Philippine National Rad Cross
trained the Hotel staff with basic first ald management

. and CPR {cardio-pulmenary resuscitation) while a team

from the lacai fire depariment taught the smployees
with procedures in emergsney rescus transfer and use
of fire fighting equipment,

To selact based on quality
of work and thelr ability to
complement our
-commiiment to
environment, health and
safaty, .

Supplierfeontractor
selaction practice

The Hotel purchases Its raw materlal for food and
beverage from both local and foreign suppliers,

Environmantally friendly
value-chain

To continually seek ways to
ensure a better quality of
life for the community and
environment where we live,
work and play.

(1} Energy and water conservation

The reduction of working days for administrative
personnel or offices aims not only to achlsve wark life
balance but also to reduce the hotel's energy
consumption.-A Hote! wide campaign on

the best cost management practices of departments
educates and Inspires associates o conserve and
pressrve supplies and resoursas. Engineering
Department helps in davising ways to improve
elactricity consumption by using

halogen and fluorescent lights. Room guests are slso
encouraged to save water and laundry detergent
consumption by re-using bed linens and towsls when

possible. Scraps and old rewspapers are recycled into -

flowers and pots to degorate our restaurants and other
sections of .
the hotel. |

(2) Earth Hour
The Hote! actively partlcipates in the annual Earth Hour,

a worldwide campaign of turning off the lights for an
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hour in efforts to increase awareness on snergy
consumption and climate changs,

This avent is spearheadad by the World Wildlife Fund
(WWF), an international environmental advancement
group and reported to have remarkable drep in énergy
usage in key cities of participating countties,

Community interaction

To serve the community we
operate In so as to create a
better place for all,
especially caring for

the iess fortunate,
enhancing youth
develepment, promoting the
arts and conserving the
environment.

“The Haotel is & long-standing figure of stability providing

(1) Blood letting i i ‘

The Hotei Is a consistent recipient of the Phillppine
National Red Crese Meritorious Service Award for ks
cantinuous participation in blood Istting activities, The
Corporation has organized eight blocd donatian
activities since 2008 and have forwarded a total of
27150 ml of blood to Red Cross. '

{2) Readiness for career _
The Hotel offers educations) sxperisnces and hotel-Ife
skills training for students interested to have carsars In
hospitality industry. As centribution to the industry, the
Corporation helps prepare future hoteliers with the
competencies and atiitudes to make them confident and
fit to explore their lot in the marketplace. Students from
various universities and training centers across the
melro and provinces have seen and experienced the
Hotel standards in terms of cleanliness and service and
end the year-2012 with 47 graduating students fully

aquipped the 5 star way.
{3) Job opportunitiss

caresr opportunities for professionals and pacple
recently graduated from school. We have provided
employment sscurlly Pasay City and other neightoring
cities and provinces thus providing their familles and
communities decent way of living.

(4} Furids for charitable institutions ‘ ‘ ‘
The Hotel capitalizes on accumulating furgds to support
our beneficiaries during Christmas seasap and Chinese
New Year. A wishing well Is placed at the! Hotel lobshy
where guests and employees can share their piecs of
gocd fortune to scholars and less privileged familles of
Pasay City through “Cur Lady of Sorrows Cutreach
Foundation”. A total of PRP17,000.00 was forwarded fa
the foundation from the proceeds of Chinsse New Year
donation drive and PhP20,000 in check |

from the Christmas wishing well.

Pangarap Foundatlon, a shetter for street chiidren and
out of school youth of Pasay City is a donee institution
of the Hatel through its denation box placed at Front
Desk where guests can donate upon check-In and out.
Charming children from Children's Joy Foundation are
invited to participate in the Christras caroling in the
Hotel from December 16-25, 2012, It gives them the
opporiunity to exhibit their talents, entertain our guests
and gather significant amount of donations from the
hote!'s guests, i :

Anti-corruption programs
L and proceduras?

As a responsible
corperation, it is our goal to
be transparent and

The Chairman's Statement in the Annual Report and
the discussion In the Information Statement on the

general and business information pravides a summary
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accountabls to our

and/or a simple presentation of the company's

stakehoiders financlal, operational and legal highlights to allow the

s who have an interest in ou ordinary shareholder or stakashcider to be fuily
{ t operations, : aware of the company's status.
{ ;

| .
o Safeguarding craditors' Itis its recognized policy in | The Corporation's website discloses up to-date
| rights . favor of His investors “To Information on business operation, financiaf statements,
{ ! maintain profitability and press reieases, sharsholding structure, organization

achieve optimum returns on | siructure, SEC Forms 17-A, Notics of Annual

| Btockholders' Meatings, and contact

P J their invastments.”
: detalis for investor relations.

Furthermors, The Corporation explicitly mentions its

g obligations to its creditors including honoring debt

i agreement(s) and timely payment of debt obligations In

i its Nofes to Financial Staiements attached to SEC Form
17-A and Information Statements.

2) Does the company have a separate corporate respo'nsibillty {CR) reportisection or sustainabllity rlaportisect!oh?

f~ Yes. Corporate Social Responsibility has baen an Integral part of the Corporation’s vision and mission. Founded on this
! commitment, the Corporation takes into consideration the interests of sociely on key stakeholders such as our investors,
' customers, amployees, contractors and suppliers as well as the commupnity.

[ With this, the Corporation provides for a section in its Information Statement (SEC Form 20418) and Arnual Report (SEC
_§ Form 17-A} which covers its Corporate Social Responsibility Report. :

- 3} Performance-enhancing mechanisms for employee participation.
l' a} What are the company's policy for its employess' safety, health and weifare?
! b) Show data relating to health, safety and welfare of ite smployess.
¢} State the company's training and development programmes for Its employees. Show the data.

i d) State the company's reward/compensation policy that accounts for the performance of the company beyend
f short-term financial measures

Pevefopment Opportunitles for Employees

i (1) Employee Empowerment:

Internal movemant & succesgsion
The Corporation provides oppartunities for employses to manage their career path through an open and spontaneous
I performance raview. Department Heads are encouraged to train their ataff in all scopes of their jobs, multi-tasking and
‘ taking accountablities to prepare them for greater responsibiiity. Internal movement or promotion within department is put

on public knowledge through buttetin boards and e-mails and their colleagues celebrate and congratulate them for thelr
f achisvements. : '

Staff dislogue and monthly tea partios . )
‘‘‘‘‘ Employees are empowsred when they ara given the opportunity to share thelr thoughts and conesrn about their jobs. Staff
f ‘ diatogue fs schachiled for sach department each month where tha top exacutives and General Manager take time to listen
f and answer employess’ inquiries. Monthly tea parties also served as verue for the General Manager to Inspire, motivate
and give updates on the direction the Hotel would take,

| .

i

{2)Employee Déveicpment: '

s

QSE Training |

_ Ta acapt the Group cm;p'arate culiure In terms of behavioral norms, the Hotel conducte discussion and implementation of
r' Cutstanding Beryics themes to ail employeas at all levels, Dally assignment of OSE or QSE calendar Is sent to all
departments as thelr point of digcuesion in thelr daily briefing and andorsemant,

(3) Work Life Balance
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Sports activity : ' ; :

The Hotal holds an annual sports event to prompt the Impartance of active fifestyles and develop social skills by engaging
in sports. Employess find time to assoclate with other employses outside their department and develop friendships that
thrive even when they go back to their respective offices. Social values and behaviors such as team work, wili to win and
sportsmanship are demonstrateciand cultivated on these activities, : !

Employse center

. Employees are encouraged to engage in sports activity within the comforts of their work,

Vinluan, an empty space in the Hotel transformed inte employee cehter where they can play table ténnis, darts and board
gamss, ' : ‘ i

5 day work week _ ; '

The Hote! recently embraced the five-day work week to al! adminigtrative parsonnel to give weekends away for leisurs,
relaxation and other activitias that would keep them refreshed and passionate for another week of challenges at work.

(4} Disaster Preparedness

The Gorporation has gstablished a team of trained employees to respond to possible disasters like fire, earthquakes and
other accidents our guests and employess might experience during their stay In the hotsl. Instructors from Philiopine
Nationa! Red Cross trained our staff with basic first aid management and CPR (cardio-pulmonary resuscitation) while a
tearn from the local fire departmeant taught our employees with procaedures in emergency rescue transfer and use of fire
fighting equipment, ‘

4  What are the company's procedures for hand!ing complaints by employses concerning Hlegal {including
* cortuption) and unethical behavior? Expiain how employees are protected from retaliation.

The Corperation has not adepted procedurss for handilng complaints by employees concerning lllegal {including
corruption) and unethical behavior. However, the Code of Conduct provides that refusal to answer inquiries or
participate in any investigation authorized by the Hotel, provided such answers or participation will not violats
. ‘corstitutional rights, is considered a major offense. Thus, employses are enjoinad to participate in investigations of
the Hotel, which may includs Hegal {Including corruption) and unethical behavior. ‘ ‘

. DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

1) Ownership Structure
(a) Holding 5% shareholding ormore |

Shareholder Number of Shares Percent Beneffc}al Cwner

TPFL is owned by: |
(1) Hong Leong Hotels Pta. Ltd. - 60%

. : (2) Pacific Far East (PFE) Holdings Corp, -
The Philippine Fund . 20% !

Limited 30,722,733 35.18% (3) Robiria Manila Hotel Limited -20%

Republic Hotels & Resorts Limlted,, which
wholly owns Zatrlo Ptg. Lid as its subaidiary.

Zatrio Pte, Lid, 19,005,714 21.77%

FCD Nomines 7,020,972 8.05% RCBC Trust & Invastmants Division Is the

Corporation : beneficial owner of §,256,564 shares, or
[7 718%.
X Number of Indirect Shares/
Name of Senior Management Numg?:‘a‘:;? Irect Through (name of record % of Capital Stock
‘ ownerj : 3 )

Yam Kit Sung 2,998 0 K less than 1%

Eddie Yao 1,000 9] : less than 1%

Atiene de Guzman 1,600 0 1 l8ss than 1%

Total ? T

+2) Does the Annual Report disclose the folioWing:

a0




Key Risks : _ ' Yes ]
o Corporals objectives Yes

Finangiai psrfor,fnancs indicators | Yes
- Non-Financial pie:formance indicators Yos
[ Dividend Poﬁcyj: Yes
- Details of whistle-blowing policy ‘ Yes

Biographical details (at least ags, qualification. date of first employment, relevant, and any

other dirgctorship of listed companies) of directora/commissioners Yas
- Tralning and/or j;continujé'l_giciucation Brogramms attended by each directoricommissicnsr No

Number of boarc!j of directors/commlssioners meetings held during the year Yeos
oy Attendance details of sech directorsicommissioner in raspect of mestings held Yes

.LDetails of remuneration of the CEQ and each membar of the board of directorsfcommissioners Yes

o 3) Extarnal Auditor's fee

Name of Auditor Auditfee Non-Audlt fee

KPMG Manabat PhP820,0C0 for the
- Sanagustin & Co. ' year 2012 nons

4) Madium of Communlcation
List down the mode/s of communication that the company Is using for disseminating informatlon,

o »  Corporation has lts own website; www.grandplazahote|corp.car
!

*  As alisted company, its reports and documents are also available at the Philippine Stock Exchange Websits
*  Also, the CG Manual provide for the following .

» The Sharshoiders shall be furnished, upon request, with the reports filed by the Corporation with the SEC
I—-M pertaining to information about the dirsctors/ officers

“» The minority sharsholders (repressnting at loast 10%) have a right to propose the holding of a meeting,

s The minority shareholdars has access to any and all informaticn relating 4o ratters for which the managemeht is
accountable for and which concerns the stockholders making the request

F *  The Corporation also sends out copias ofits Information Statement to its sfockholders
' *  Annual Meetings - hald on the 15th of May avery year

‘ *  Special Meetings - may be called at any time by resolution of the Board or by order of the Chalrman or the President
[ﬂ or upon written request of stockhoiders reprasenting at least 10% of the total cutstanding stock sntitlad to vote.

5) Dats of release of audited financlal report:

The Corp'oration's audited financial statements for the vear ended 34 Decerhber 2012 and other information relatad to the
Corporation’s financlal statements ars contained in the Corporation's SEC Form 17-A for the year ended 31 Decembar

2012, which was filed by the Corporation with the Phillppine Stock Exchangs on 19 February 2013 and with the SEC on 19
February 2013, - . : o : ' :

, 8} Company Websits '
Does the company have a website disclosing up-to-date Information about the following?

[raw,
i

' Business operatiobs Yes
Financial statements/raport (current and prior yaars) Yes
= Materigls provided'in brisfings to analyst and madia Yes
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Sharshelding structure ] Yos
Greup Corporate structure : : ‘ Yes
Downloadable annual report 1 Yes
Nctice of AGM andior EGM ' Yas
Corporation's constitution (company's by laws, memorandum end eriicies of

association) Yes

Should any of the foregoing Information be no.t disclosed, please Indlcate at the reasen thereto.

7} Disclosure of RPT

RET Relationship T Nature T Value

Cash Advances Related compantes to, The Corporation in the normal course of | in 2012, P6,843,486
: or immediate or business has sntered into transactions .

intermediate holding with Its refated parties, principally
companies of the consisting of cash advances. These
Corporation advances are shown as "Due to relatsd

sompany”, “Due to immediate hoiding
company’, and '

Harbour Land The Corporation jeases the land _
Corporation (HLC) Is occupled by the Hotsl from HLC for a

40%-owned by pariod of 25 years up to January 1, . ;

Lease Agreerment P 10,678,560 annuai rental

the Corporation and in | 2015. The lease contract on the Hotsi

which the Comeration site requires the Caorporation to depasit

has significant influsnce | PhP78 midllon to answar for any and all _ . ‘
unpald obligations that the Corporation l

may have under sald contract.

The maniagement fee under
the Mandgement

Elite Hote!
Management Services

Management

-| The Corporation has entered into a
Agreement

Managemant Agreement with Ellte

Pts. Lid.'s Phiiippines
Branch is under the
control of a principal
owner of the
Cerporation

Hote! Management Services Pte. Lid.'s
Philippines Branch for the |atter to act
a3 the hotel's administrator. Under ths
terms of the agreement, the

Agreement is 2% of Groas

Revenue and Incentive fee is

7% of Gross Operating Profit,
|

basic management and incentive fass

Corporation is required to pay monthly i
based on a certain percentage of

revenue and gross operating proi,

When RPTy are Involved what processes ars in plate to address them in the manner that will safeguard the
Interest of the company and in particular of Its minority sharehoiders and other stakeholders?

The Corperation's CG Manual requlres information including relatsd party fransactions to be ‘pubh‘cEy énd timsly disclosed
through the eppropriate mechaniams of the PSE and submitted to the SEC. '

in compliance with the SRC Rules, the Corporation Is required to disclose the following detsils for a related party contract;

the nature of tha relatad party relationship; :

the type of transaction (e.g. supply or services cantract, loans, Quarantses); i

ths total amounts payable and receivable in the trensaction from or to the related party, i
the elements of the transaction necessary 1o understand the listed company's financlal staterments.

Lo o

The Corporation Is also required te disclose its transactions in which related persons, s‘uch=as directcré‘ officers,
substantial shareholders or any of their immediate familiss have a direct matarial Interest, such as the ralated person’s
beneficial ownership of the counter party or share in the profits, bonus, or commissions out of the transaction.

No disclosure is nesded for any fransaction where:

a. The transaction involves services at rates or charges fixed by law or governmental authority,

b. The transaction invoives_services as a bank depository of funds, transfer agent, registrar, trustes under a trust
indenturs, or similar services;

. The amount involved in the transaction or a series of similar
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transactions has an aggregate valus of less than PhP2,500,000; or
d.  Thea nterest of the persen erises solely from the cwnership of securities of the registrant and the person receives no
exira or special bensfit that was not sharad agually (pro rata) by afl holders of securitles of the class.

In complianca with the provislons of the Corporation Code, a contract of the Corporation with one or mare of its directors or-

officers must be ratified by the vote of the stookholdars representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the cutstanding capital stock
if any of the following conditions are absent: )

& The presence of such director in the Board maseting in which the contract was approved
was not necessary to constitute a quorum for such meeting.
b. The vole of such director was not necessary for the approva! of the contract,

Full disclosure of the advarss Interest of the directors or officars involved must be made at the stockhaclders’ mesting and
the contract must be falr and reasohable under tha circiimstances.

|
Furthermore, the Corporation must comply with the provision of the Corporation Cods which raquires a contract batwean
bwo or more corporations having Interlocking directers, where {i ) the interest of the interlocking director in one corporation
is substantial and his interest In tha ofher corporation Is meraly nominal, and (1) any of the following conditions are absent:
| .

a, The presen‘ce of such director in the board meeting In which the contract was approved was not nacessary to
constitute & guorum for such meeting

b, The vote of such director was not necessary for the approval of the contract

to be ratified by the vote of the stockholders representing af least two-thirds {2/3) of the outstanding capiial stock of the
corporation whare the interlocking director's interast is nominal, Similarly, full disclosure of the adverse interast of the
interfocking director/s involved must be made at the stockholders' meeting and the contract must be fair and reasonable

under the cireumstances. Stockholdings exceeding twenty (20%) percent of the outsianding capital stock shall be
consldered substantial for purposes of Interiocking directors.

In accordance with the Corporation Cotle, management contracts entered into by the Corparation with another corporation
must be approved by the Board and by stockholders owning at isast the majority of the outstanding capitaf stock, of both
the managing end the managed corporation, at a mesting duly called for the purpose. Where 8 stockholder or
stockholders representing the same interest of both the managing and tha managed corporations own and cantrol mors
than one-third {1/3) of the total outstanding capital stock entitlsd to vots of the managing corparation; or where a majority of
the members of the Board of the managing corporation also constitute a majority of the membars of the Board of the -
managed corporation, then the management contiact must be approved by the slockholders of the managed corparation
owning at least two-thirds (2/3) of the total outstanding capital stock entitled to vots, Furthermore, no management
contract shall be sntered into for a period longar than five years for any one term.

J. RIGHTS OF STOCCKHOLDERS

1. Right to particlpate effectively in and vote In Annual/Speclal Stockholders Mestings

(a) Quorun;a .
Give detalls on the quorum required to convenae the Annual/Speclal Stockholders Meeting as set forth in its
By-laws, : '

Quorum Required | The holders of a majerity of the outstanding capital stock of the Corporation

having voting powsrs, who are present in person ar reprasented by proxy, shall
constitute a guorum for the transaction of business, save in those instances whera

the Corporation Code requires a gragtsr proportion.

(b} System Used :to Approve Corporate Acts

Explain the system used o approva sorporate acts

System Used I Medified vive voce
Description : . ‘ ' In the system of voting adopted by the stockholders of the Corporation, In
: ; ‘ order to faciiitate the conduct of the proceedings of the stockhofders'
L 1 - mesting, if there is no objection to a nomination or motlon to approve a
breposed resolution regarding |, it will be understood that the stockhclders
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presant or represented in today’s meeting vote in favor of the resojution.

(¢} Stockholders' Rights

Llst any Stockholders' Rights concerning Annual'!speblal Sfockholdar_s' Meeting that differ from those lald

down I the Corporation Code,

Sto’ckholders' Rights under the Corporatlon Code |

Stockholdsrs’ Rights not In The Corporation Code

Appraisal Right

Each share of stock Is given equal rights o dividends

Right fo vote

+  right to elect, remove, and replace directors

and vote or cartain corporate acts in
. -accordance with the Corporation Code

s Cumulative Voting

e A director shall not be removed without
cause i it wilt deny minority shareholders
reprasentation in the Board.

Shafeholders are equally treated in share buy-back offers.

The Corporation has only one class of shares and gach shars is
antitled to one vote.

Pre-emptive right

. S
Shares of stock are not subject to any restrictions on transfer,

mortgage or encumbrances on these sharés,
: |

Power of Inspection

The Corporation is committed to respect aqd promote
sharehcldaers' rights : i

Right to information

(1) The shareholders shall be provided, upbn raquest, with the
reports filad by the Comoration with SEC that disciose persanal
and professioral information about the directors and officers and
certain other matters such as thelr holdings of the Corporaticn's
shares, dealings with the Corporation, relationships amang
directars and key officers, and the aggregate compensation of
diraectors and officers. oo

(2) The minority shareholders shall be granted the right to
propase the holding of a meeating, and the right to proposa Iterms
in the agenda of the meating, provided the items are for legitimate
business purposes. The By-Laws of the Corporation provides that
shargholders representing at.last ten percent {(10%) of the
outstanding capital stock of the Corporation may raguest the
holding of a special shareholcing's meating.

(3) The minority shareholders ,shall have ac'cess to any and alf

[ infermation relating to maftsrs for which the manageiment is

accountable for and which concerns the stockhoiders making the
request, provided that such right shall be subject to existing law
and contract, A report on the information pertaining to sugh
mattars may be inciuded in the agenda of any meating of the
shareholders, ) ;

{4) If such not included in the agenda, then the minority
sharehciders shall be aliowed to prepose {0 inciude such matiers
in the agenda of shareholder's meeting, stch item in the agenda
will be considered as being within the definifion of "lagitimate
puUrposes”,

Ri_ght te Dividends

The Corporation Is required to declare dividends when its relzined
eamings exceeds 100% of its paid-in capital stock, except: a)
when justifiad by definite corporate sxpansion projects or
programs approved by the Beard or b) when the Corporation Is
prohibited under any loan agreement with any financial institution
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[ or creditor, whether local or foreign, from declaring dividends
without its consent, and such consent has not besn secured; or ¢)
when it can be clearly shown that such retention is necessary
under speclal circumstances obtaining in the Corporation, such as
when thera s a need for special reserve for probable
condingencles,

Dividends

Daclaration Déte Record Date

Payment Date

16 May 2012 29 May 2012

On or before 22 Juna 2012

{d) Stockhoiders Participation

1) State, If any, the measures adopted to promote stockholder participation in the Annuai/Special Stockholders
Meeting, Including the procedure on how stockholders and other partles interested may communicate
directly with the Chairman of the Board, individual directors or board committees. Include In the discussion

the steps the Board has taken to soliclt and undere

tand the views of the stockholders as well as procedures

for putting forward proposals at stockholders’ meetings,

b

‘ Measures Adopted

Communication Procedure

Mirority shareholders may recommend candidates to the
Nemination Committee and mey cumulate their votes for
election of direciors. :

t

The Nomination Commities sends out notices to all
stockholders that the Nomination Committee is aceepting
recommendations for nominses. Then, the Stockholders
will submit thelr recommended candidates by accomptish
the Recommendation Form attached as Annhex 1 to the
notice to the stock hoiders and sent back the same to the
Nomination Committea.

Minority shareholders, representing at least 10% of the
autstanding capital stock entitled to vote, have the right to
propese the halding of & mesting, and the right to proposs
ltems in the agenda of the meeting, provided the items are for
legitimate business purposes.

By written request. Such request shall state the purpose
or purposes of the proposed meeting, .

During the annual stockholdars' ms‘eting, stockhoiders are

the Chaiman of the Board, the individual directors, and the
Board committess,

given the opportunity fo raise questions and directly addrass i

The Chairman Inviies the stockhoiders to raise their
questions or air thalr comments during the annyal
stockholders’ meefing. There is also a question and
answer portion during which the fioor is opened to allow

.| stockholders to raise questions and directly address the -
- Chairman of the Board, the individual directars, the Board

committees, and the officers of the Corporation.

8. State the 'company policy of agking shareholders to actively participate in corporate decisions regarding:

a} Amendments to the company's constitution
b) Autherlzatlon of additional sharas

c) Transfer of all or substantlai ly all assets, thcH in effect results In the sale of thé company

Authorization of additiohal sharas, and transfer of all or substantiaflly all asssts of the corporation are subject to the
ratification of stockholders representing at least 2/3 of the outstanding caplital stock, as providad In the Corporation

Code, _ .

9) Does ths cdmpany observe a minimum of 21 business days for giving out of notices to the AGM whare items

to be resolved by shareholdars are takan up?
&) Date of sending out notices: 23 April 2013

b} Data of AnnuaifSpecial Sto;kholders Meeting: 15 May 2013

Ng, Acccrding to its By-Laws, except as otherwise provided by law, written or printad notice of all annual and spegial
meetings of stockholders, stating the place and time of tha reeeting, and if nacessary, the general nature of the
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business to be considersd shall be transmitted by personal delivery, m'ail, facsimile, telex, telegraph or cable to each
stackholder of record entitlad to vole to his last known address, at least 15 days bafore the dats of e meeting, in case
of an Annual Mesfing, or at least 7 days before the date of the hearing, if a special meeting.

The Corporation also subscribes to the requirement under the SRC Rules, to file the Preliminary SEC Form 20-(S with
the SEC af least 1G business days prior to the date definitive copies of tha information statement (“Definitive SEC Form
20418} ara first sent 6r glven io stockhalders. Tha Corporation distributes the Definitive SEC Form 20-I5 to securlty
holders at least 15 business days from the date of the annual stockholders’ meeting.

10) Stats, if any, questions and answars during the AnnualiSpecial Stockholders' Meating.

In the annual steckholders' meeting of tha Corporation held on 15 May 2012, Mr. Edgar Ngo, a stockholder of the
Corporatlion, inguired about the occupancy rate of the Hotei for the year 2011 and subsequently, if the rate is higher than
the occupancy rate of other hotels. Mr. Eddie Yeo, the General Manager of the Hotel, end a director of the Corporation,
repliad that tha occupancy rate for the yaar 2011 is 67% and this rate is 6.2% higher than the occupancy rafe of the
previous vear, ‘

Mr. Edgar Ngo then asked the Board if the Corporation has a plan to expand the Hotel business, forlinstance In the bay
area or in Boracay, ta which Mr. Wong Hong Ren, the Chairman replied that there's none as of the moment, but the
Management Is considering the sald prospects and is thinking of reinvesting its accumulated profits,

Mr. Ngo also asked the Chaiman of the lattar's opinion on the status and prospects of the Philippine tourism industry
under the Aquino administration. Mr. Yeo answered that presently, there are thras million tourlst arrivals In the Phillppines
and that the Department of Tourlsm |s targeting six milllon arrivals by 2015. He addad that as of the momeant, the
Philippines is Just experiencing e slight downturn because of extarnal factors wiich invalve our neighboring countries {i.e.,
China) and that such might eontinue untif the poiitical situation is resclved, The Chairman assured the sharsholders though
that the general long term progpect of the tourism industry in the Philippines is goed. Co : :
Lastly, Mr. Ngo asked how much will the cash dividend be for the next year, Mr. Yam answered that there is an increase In
the cash dividands declared for 2012 of PhPZ.00 pershare compared to the previcus cash dividend of Ph?1.00 per share
(Le., In 2010). Mr. Yam added that the Board also approved & share buyback of PhPS( per share, based on a ratie of one

share for every 25 shares held by the stockholders of recerd, and that the total amount for the share buyback is PhR239

11) Result of Annual/Special Stockholders Meeting's Resolutions

Resolution Approving Dissenting Abstalning

(1) Approval of the Corporation's 2011 annual report and il none hane
audited financlal statements

(2) Approval and ratification of the Minutes of the Annual | all : nong , nore
Stockholders' Meetings of the Corporation held on 13 i '

May 2011 ' .

(3) Approval and ratification of all tha acts, decisions, alf : none none
contracts and procesdings done, taken and effected by i

the Board, as well a5 resolutions issued by the Board,

acting within the scope of Its delegated autharlty, during

the year 2011-2012 :

(4) Election of the Board all nore - - nohg
{8) Elaction of extern al auditor and authority of the ail . nohe : nong
Board 1o fix the auditor's remuneration . : ’ S '

{6) Remuneration of the directors all none ‘ none

12) Date of publishing of the result of the votes taksn during the most recent AGM for all resolutions:.

Thelrésurt_of votes taken during the most recent annual stockholders' mesting for all resolutions was announced by the
Ch{;urman ‘mmedislely after the votes were taken for sach resclution during the mesting, using the modified system of
voting adopted by the stockhoidars of the Corporation (l.e., if there is no objection to a nomination or motion to approve a

proposed resolution regarding the nomination, it witl be understood that the steckholders present or represented in today's
meeting vote in favor of the nomination), _ ' .
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{e} Modifications

State, if any, the modifications made in the Ann

recent year and the reason for such modification:

(N Stockholders Attendance
{i) Detalls of Attandance In the An

nualiSpatlal Stockholders' Meeting Held:

ual/Spacial Stockholders’ Meeting regulations during the most

Type of
Mseting

Name of Board
Members/ Offlcors
present

Date of
Meeting

Voting
procedure (by
poll;, show of

hands, etc)

% of 8H In Proxy

Total % of SH
attendance

Annual

Wong Hong Ren,
Eddie Yeo

Bryan K. Cockrell,
Michels Dee-Santos,
Angelito C. Imperio
Mia G. Gentugaya
Yam Kit Sung

Alain Charles J,
Veloso :

15 May 2012

Modified viva
voce.,

In the system of
voting adopted by
the stockholders

of the
Corporation, in
order to faciliate
the conduct of the
preceedings of
the steckholders'
meeting, if there
is no objection to
a nomination or
motion to approve
a propcsed
resoiution
regarding the
nomination, it will
be undersiood
that the
stockholders
present or
representad in
today's meeting
vate in favor of
the nomination.

86.67%

86.67%

Spectal
P ,

N.A,

{li} Does the com

S5Ms?

No. Vioting and counting of votes are done by m
adopted by the stockholders of the Corporat)
stockholders' meeting,
the nomination, it will b
the nomination, -

il Do the company's common shares carry one vote for one sha
Whera the company has more t
of share,

tivergence to thls standard,
rights attached to gach class

Yes. At évery stockholders' meeting, the By-Laws provide that each
person or by proxy, and he
the books of the Corparation

odifed viva voce (Sec Form 20-1S, 201 3
on, In order fo facilitate the conduct of t
It there Is no cbjection to a nemination or motlon to approve a propo
& understeod that the stoskholders present of represented in today's

stackho
shall have one vote for each share of stock entitied

pany appelint an independent pary {inspectors) to count and/or validate the votes at the ASM/

In the system of voting
he proceadings of the
sed resolution regarding
mesting vote In favor of

re? If not, disclose and give reasons for any
han one class of shares, describe the voting

tder shall be entitied to one vots In

to vote and recardad in his name in
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(9) Proxy Voting Policles

. Il
State the policles. followed by the company regarding proxy voting In the AnnuallSpecla!i Stockholders’

Meeting.
" : : Corporation’s Policies
Executior and acceptance of proxies i Proxy voting is faciiftated by the fact that proxies are presumad
: regular and accepted in the absence of & timely and valid challenga,
Notary ‘ Not required. The Corporation adopts a presumption
, . of regutarity in the execution of proxies and the same shall be
i accapted in the absence of a timaly and valld chaflenga.
Submission of Proxy All proxias must be In the hand of the Corporate Secretary before
' the time set for the meeting. ‘
™ Several Proxies The Corporatian subscribes to SEC Memorandum Cireular No, 5,
Series of 1996, with regard to severdl proxies. if the stockhalder
Intends to designate several proxies, the number of sharas of stock
‘ te be represented by sach proxy shall be spscifically indicated in the
: proxy form. If seme of the proxy forms do riot indicate the Aumber of
‘ shares, the total shareholding of the stockholder shall be tallied and
the balance theraof, if any, shall be allottad o the hotder of the
' proxy form without the number of shares. If all ara in blank, the
o . stocks shall be distributed equally ameng the proxies.
Validity of Proxy The Corporation adopts a presumption of regularity in the exacution
of proxies end the same shall be accepted in the ahsence of a
timely end valid chellengs. 'f
Proxies executsd abroad | Proxies executed abroad shall be duly authenticated by the
: Philippine Embassy or Cansular Office, ‘
Invalidated Proxy Such proxles filed with the Comorate Secretary may ba revoked by
: the stockhoiders either In an instrument In writing duly presented
B ‘ and recorded with the Secretary prior to a scheduled meeting, or by
: : : ' their personal presence at the mesting. !
Vatidation of Proxy Unless the notice of mesting provides an earier period, all proxies
. : ' ' rmay be vafidated on the date, and at the place and before time of
ths reguler or special meeting of the stockholders,
Violation of Proxy As provided in the Corporaticn Code and SRC.
{h) Sending of Notices
State the company's policles and procedures on the sending of notiges of Annual/Spaclal Stockholders'
B Meeting. g
B ) : Poilcies ' . - Procedure '
Notice for Annual Stockhaiders' Meeting: : How fransmitted: the notice is fransmitied by persanal

dalivery, mall, facsimile, telex, telegraph or cavle to sach
Wiitten or printed notice, stating the place and tima of the stockholder of record entitfed to vote to his last known

meeting, and If necessary, the general nature of the addrass
. business to be considered , shall be transmitted to each . : ‘ '
: * | stockholder of record. When transmitted: at Isast 15 days befors the date of the
‘ mesting _

Notice for Special Stockholders' Meetings
. ) How transmited: the nofice is transmitted by personal
Wrilten or printed notice, stating the place and time of the delivery, mall, facsimile, telex, telegraph or cabie to each
meeting, and if hecessary, the genaral nature of the stockhaldar of record entitled to vote to his last known
business to be considersd , shall be transmitted {0 gach address
stockholder of record,

When transmitted: at legst 7 days beforg the date of the
_hearing . !

1
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{1) Definitive Informative Statements and Management Raport

Number of Stockholdars entitled to receive Definitive
Information Statements and Management Report and
Other Materials : :

506

Cate of Actual Distribution of Dofinitive Information
Statements and Managament Report and QOther
Materials hetd by market participants/certaln benaficlal
ownars

23 April 2013

Date of Actual Distribution of Deflnitive Information
Statemoents and Management Report and Other
Materials held by stockholders

23 April 2013

If yes, Indicate whether requesting stockholders were
provided hard copies

Yes.

() Does the Notice of AnnualiSpeciai Stockhciders' Mesting Include the following:

Each resoiution to be taken up deais with only one item,

Yes.

Profiles of directors (at least age, qualification, date of first
appointmant, experience, and directorships in other listed
companies) nominated for election/re-slaction,

Yes. Individual profils of directors and Board meeting
attendance and parformance are publicly disclesed and
presented to the shareholders in the information Statement
and during the Annual Stackholders’ Mesting.

The auditors t; be appointed or re-appointad.

Yes. Adequate Information on the external auditor including
the name of the handling pariner, their fees and other
sngagememts with the company {tax, consulting, etc.) are -
publicly disclosed.

An explanation of the dividend policy', if any dividend is to
be declared, |

Yes. Dividends are dsclared by the Board based on resuits
of operations and the balance of the unrestricted retained
earnings. In item 6.1.5 of its CG Manual, the

Corporation is required to declare dividends when its
unrestricted retained earnings exceed 100% of it paid-up
capital stogk, © - : ) ] L

The amount pay?ble for finai dividends.

Yes. Dividends are declared by the Board based on results
of oparations and the balance of the unrestricted retained
edrnings. In tem 6.1.5 of lts CG Manual, the ‘
Corporation is required to declare dividends whan its
unrestricted retained eamirigs excoed 100% of Its paid-up
capital stock. : - B o

| Documents requi}ed for'proxy vote,

i ‘

Yes. The Corporatlon adapts a presumption of regulariy in
the execution of proxies and the same shall be accepted in -

the ‘abs'enc_e of a timely and valid challenge.

Should any of the foregoing Information be not disclosad,

2) Treatment of Minority Stockhoiders

plaase indicate the reason thersto.

a) State the company's policies with respect to the treatment of minority stockholders.

Pof!cles

Implementation

Minority shareholders are given full nomination and voting
rights - _ ceer

Shareholders shall have the right to elact, remove and
repiace directors and vote on certain corporate acts in
acsordance with the Corporation Cods,

Cumulative voting shall be used In the election of directors.

A director shall not be remaved without cause if it will deny
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mingrity shareholders representation in the Board

Minority shargholders have the right to participate in The minority shareholdars shall be grarted the right o

corporate governance

proposs the holding of a meating, and the right fo propese
items in the aganda of the meeting, providad the items are
for legitimate business purposss, Tne By-Laws of the
Corporation provides that sharehaiders representing at last
ten percent {10%) of the outstanding capital stock of the
Corporation may request the holding of a special
shareholding's meeting. ‘

Minority shareholders havs the right to Informatien The minarity shareholciers shall have access to any and all

information relating to matters for which the managemant is
accountabls for and which congerns the stockholders
making the request, provided that such right shail be
subject 1o existing law and contract. A report on the
information pertaining to such matters may be included in
the agenda of any mesting of the sharehalders.

If such not Included in the agends, than the minority
sharehoiders shall be allowed to propose to include such
matters in the agenda of sharehoider’s meating, such item
in the agenda will be considerad as belng within the
definition of “legitimate purposes”, |

b) Do minorlty stockholders have a right to nominate candidates for board of :’dfiractors? ] ?

‘Yes. The Rules and Procedure of the Nominatien Committes provide for such a p'rocediu_re.

K. INVESTORS RELATIONS PROGRAM

1) Discuss the company's external and Internal sommunications policfes and f_mw frequently they are reviewed,
-Disclose who reviews and approves major company announcements. Idenﬂfy the commitiee with this
responsibllity, If it has been assigned to committes. : ' 3

Under the CG Manual, ona of the Board's functions s to establish and maintain an Investor relations program that will keep
the stockholdere Infermed of important developments in the Corporation. The Corporation's chief financial officer or such
othar officer as may be designated by the Board shall gxercise ovarsight respongibility over this program.

2} Describe the company's Investor relation program including lts communfcatic;ns strategy to promote effective
communication with its stockholdere, other stakeholders and the pubtic in gen}‘era!. Disclose the contact details
(e.d. telephone, fax and email) of the officer responsible for investor relations

Details

{1) Objactives

| To keep the stockhalders infarmed of important devgla!cpments in the

Corporation. i

(2) Principles

. . j i
The Corporation recognizes that the most cogent proef of gaod corporate

* | governance is that which is visible to the eyes of its investors,

All materlal information about the Corperation which!could adversaly

- affect its viability or the interests of the stackholdars should be pubiicly

and timely disclosed, Such information shoutd include, among others,
earnings results, acquisition or disposition of assets,'and related party
transaciions. All such information should be disclosed through the
appropriate PSE mechanisms and submissions to the SEC.
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| Cther information that shall always be disclosad inciudes remuneration

{including stock options) of alf diractors and senior managemsent corporate
strategy, and «if balance sheet transactions, '

The Board shall commit at all times to fully disclose material information
dealings. It shall cause the filing of all requirad Information for the interest
of the stdkeholders, '

(3) Modes of Communieation

All material information should be disclosag through the apprapriate PSE
.mechanisms and submissions to the SEC. o

The 'Corpcraiion‘s wabsite also discloses up-to-date information on
business operation, financial statements, press relesses, shareholding

structure, organization structura, SEC Forms 17-A, Notica of ASM, and

contact details for investor relations.

The Carporation’s website indicates the telephone numbers fax number
and email sddress of the Corporation's investor reiations officer.

(4} Investors Ralations Officar

Yam Kit Sung, Chief Financial Officar of the Corporation

3} What ars ths fi:ompa'ny‘s ruleg and proceduras governing the acguisition of corporate control In the capital
marksts, and sxiraordinary trana;actions such as morgsers, and sales of substantial portlons of corporate

assets? - ! 3

Mame of thé Iﬁdepende_nt party the board of directors of the tompany appointed to evaluate the fairness of the

{ranzaction price

Othar than what Is provided under the law and the applicable rules and regulations, the Corporation has not adopted
any rulos and procedures goveming the acquisition of corporate gontrol in thi capital markets, and extraord inary
tranzactions such as mergers, and sales of substantial portions of corporate assets. Consldaring that the Corporation
does not regularly anter into the foregoing transactions, the Board has not appointed any independent party to evalyate

the fairness of the transaction price,

L, GORFORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

Discuss any fnitl_atlve undertaken or proposed to be undertaken by the company.

i “Tnitiative

Benoficiary

Emplayee Empowerment;

Internal movermant & sticcession

them for their achisvements,

Staff dialogue and manthly tea paities

airastion the Hote) would tuka,

i Employee Devalopmant;

The Corporation provides opportunities for employees to manage their career
path threugh an open and spontansous performance review. Department
Heads are encoureged to train their staff in all soopes of their jobs, multi-tasking
and teking accountabliities to prepare them for Qreater responsibility. Internal
moverment or promotion within department Js put on public knewlsdge through

| bulletin boards end s-mails end their celleagues cogbrate and congratulate

i Empioysez ars smpowoered whan they are given the opperiunity o share thair
thoughts end cencern about their fobs. Staff dialogue is scheduisd for each _
deparimeant each month whare tha top executives and Generagl Manager taka
time to listen and answar amploysss' inguiries. Monthly tea parfies also served
s venue for the General Manager to inspire, motivate ard give Updates on the

Employees

Al




O8E Training : S

To adapt the Group corporats sulture In terms of behavioral norms, the Hotel
conducts discussion and implementation of Qutstanding Service themes to afl
employees at all levels, Dally assignment of OSE or OSE calendar is ssnt to sl}
dapartments as their point of discussion in their daily briefing and endorsement,

Work Life Balance

Sports activify

The Hotel holds an annual sperts event to prompt the importance of active
lifestyles and develop social skills by engaging in sports. Employees find time to
assaciate with other employees outside their departiment and develop
frisndships that thrive even when they go back to their respective offices. Soclal
values and behaviors such as team work, will to win and sportsmanship are
demenstrated and cultivated on these activities.

Emplayee center :
‘Emptoyees are encouraged to engage In sports activity within the comforts of
their work. Vinluan, an empty space in the Hote! transformed into employes

center where they can play table tennis, darts and board games,

5 day work wesk DL : . T
The Hotel recently ambraced the five-day work week to all agministrative -
personnel to give weekends away for Isisure, relaxation and other activities that
weuld keep them refreshed and passionate for another week of challenges at
work,

Disaster Prepa _redhess

The Corporafion has established a team of trained employees o respend to
rossible disasters like fire, earthquakes and other accidents our gussts and
emplaysss might experienca during their stay in the Hotel. Instructors from
Philippine National Red Cross trained our staff with basic first aid managemant
and CPR (cardig-pulmonary resuscitation) while a team from the local fire
department taught our employses with precadures In emergency rescue
transfer and use of fire fighting equipment,

Customers and employees

Environmental Awareness

Ensrgy and water conservation

The reduction of working days for administrative parsonnsl or offices aims not
oniy to achieve work life balance but also to reduce the Hota's shergy
consumption. A Hotel wide campalgn on the best cost management practicas of
departments educates and inspires asscciates to consetve and preserva
supplies and resocurces.

Engineering Department helps In devising ways to Improve electricity
consumption by using halogen and Juorescent lights. Room guests are also
encouraged to save water and laundry detergent consumption by re-using had
iinens and tawsls when possible, Scraps and old newspapers are recycled into -
flowers and pots to decorate our restaurants and other sections of the Hotal,

Earth Hour :

The Hotel actively participates in the annual Earth Hour, & woridwide campaign
of turning off the lights for an hour in efforts to increase awareness on snergy
consumption and climate change. This event s spearheadad by the World
Wildlife Fund (WWF), an infernatioral envirenmental advancemant group and
reported to have remarkable drap in ehargy usage in key cities of participating
countries.

The environment

Community Invoivement

The commhnity and society
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Bioad letting F .
The Hotel is a consistent recliplant of the Fhilippine National Red Cross
Meritorious Service Award for its continuous participation In biood letting
activities. The Corporation have erganized eight blood doration activities since

2008 and have ferwardsd a total of §7,150 mi of blood to Red Cross. .

Readiness for career

The Hotel offers educational experiences and Hotal-life skills training for
stiudents interested to have careers in hospitality Industry. As contribution to the
industry, the Corporation heips prepare future hoteliars with the competenciss
and attitudes to make them confident and fit to explora their It in the
marketplace. Students from varlous universities and training centers across the
metlro and provinces have saen and axperienced the Hotel standards in terms
of cleanliness and service and end the yeer-2012 with 47 graduating students
fully equipped the 5 star way. : o

Job opportunities

The Hotel is a leng-standing figure of stabllity providing career apportunities for
professionals and peopls recently graduated from school, The Corporation have
provided smpioyment security Pasay City and other nelghbaring cities and
provinces thus providing their famlliss and communities decent way of living.

Funds for chantable institutions
The Hotsl capitalizas on eccumulating funds to support our beneficiaries during
Christmas season and Chinese Now Year, A wishing wall is placed at the Hotel
lobby where guests and employses can share their place of good fortune to
scholars and less privileged families of Pasay City through “Our Lady of
Sorrows QOutraach Foundation®, A fotal of PhP17.000.00 was forwardad to ths
foundation fram the proceeds of Chinese New Year donation drive and PhP20,
000 in chack from the Christmas wishing wel,

| i

Pangarap Foundation, a shaiter for streat chifdren and out of schoo! youth of
Pasay City is a dones Institution of the Hotel through its donation hox placed at
Front Desk where guests can donate upon check-in and out.

Charming children from Childran's Joy Foundatlon are invited to participate in
the Christmas caroling in the Hotel from Dacembar 16-25, 2012, 1t glves them
the opporiuniiy to exhinit thelr talents, entertain our guests and gather
sighificant amount of donations from the hotel's guests,

Bridging International Relations ',' ) Phifipping tourism

The Hote! is a verus for many events and functions of dipfomatic arganizations
in the country. The Corporation have hosted a number of partias, exhibits,
feshion shows to promote distinative cultures of our international clients and
Improved our reijtionships with them :

The Corporation hava also participated in the Bowling Tournament in honor of
H.E. Dato’ Seri Dr. Ibrahim Saad, Malaysian Ambassador to the Republic of the
Philippines last thne 16, 2012 and brought the honor as sacond placer.

|
M. BOARD, DlRLﬁC"I‘OR, COMMITTEE AND CEO APPRAISAL

1 ;
Disclose the ;.Srocass followed and criteria usad in assessing the annua! performance of the board and its committees
indlvidual director, and the CEO/Presidenit, ‘ '

' . Process Critaria

Lﬂoard of Diractors , N.A, N.A,
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Board of Committeos N.A, N.A,
Individual Disectors N.A, N.A.
CEO/Prasidsnt NLA.

N.A,

The Corporation does not assess the annual perfarmance of the beard and lts committass, individual diractor, and the

' CEO/President.

N, INTERNAL BREACHES AND SANCTIONS

Discuss the Internal policies on sanctions imposed for any violation or breach of the corporate governance
manual involving dirsctors, officers, management and employees.

Violations

Sanctions

Revised CG Code

Violation of the provisions of the CG Manual and the

In case of first violation, the subject person shall be

| reprimanded.

-Suspension from office shall be imposed in case of second

viclation. The duration of tha suspensicn shall depend on the
gravity of the violation.

For third violatlon, the rmaximum penalty of removal from
cffice shall be imposed.

i The commission of & third violation by any member of the

Board shait be a sufficient cause for removal as director.

The Compliance Officer shall recommend to the Beard tha
precedure for detarmining whethér violations have been
committed. Such procedure must nbserve the principis of
due process, particularly the requirsments of prior notice and
hearing. _ '

The Complience Officer shall decide whether any violation of
the CG Manual has been committed ard stall recommend 1o
the Chairman of the Board the Imposable penalty for such
violation, for further review and approv?i by the Board,

I

|

Pursuant to the raquirement of the Securities and Exchange Commission, this Annual Corporate Governance Report is

- sighed on behalf of the registrant by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Singgpore on
22 May ,2013 :

notary attestation
. G

SIGNATURES

INefof

Chalrman of the Board / Chief Executive Officer

wiison Yip
N2013/0378
4 Agr 2013 - 41 Mar 2014
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LIST OF MR WONG'S DIRECTORSHIPS WITHIN THE GROUP

Appendix “A”

Corporate Nams of the Group Company

. Type of Directorship

1 ATOS Holding AG Management Boaid:
2 | Beijing Fortune Hotel Co,, Ltd. Director
2 | Birkenhead Holdings Pty. Ltd. Director
4 Birkenhead Investments Pty, Ltd. Director
5 Birkenhead Services Pty. Ltd. Director
6 (DL Entertainment & Leisure Pte Ltd Director
7 | CDLHotels (Korea) Ltd. Director
8 | CDLHotels (Labuan) Limited Director
g CBL Hotels Holdings New Zealand Limited Director/ Chairman -
10 | CDL Hotels Japan Fte. Ltd. Director
11 | CDL Investments New Zealand Limiited Director
12 | CDL Land New Zealand Limited - ' Diractor
13 | City Hotels Pte, Ltd. Director .
14 | Copthorne Orchid Hotel Singapore Pte Ltd Director- f
15 | First Sponsor Capltal Limited Director \
16 | First Sponsor Group Limited | Director |
17 | Grand Plaza Hote] Corporation | Dlrector/Cha:rman/Premdent
13 Harbour Land Corporation Director ‘ ;
19 | Harrow Entertainment Pte Ltd Director ’
20 | Hospitality Holdings Pte. Ltd. ; Director
21 | Hotelcorp New Zealand Pty Ltd ‘Director
22 | Idea Valley Group Limited Director |
23 | International Design Link Pte Ltd Director !
24 | KIN Holdings Limited Director
25 | Kingsgate Holdings Pty. Ltd: Director
26 | Kingsgate Hotel Pty. Ltd. Director
27 | Kingsgate International Corporation Limited Non-Executive Director
28 | Kingsgate International Pty Ltd. Director ;
25 Kingsgate Investments Pty. Ltd. Director
30 | London Britannia Motel Limited Director
31 | M&C {india) Holdings Pte. Ltd. Director !
32 | M&C (Mauritius) Holdings Limited Director !
33 | M&C Business Trust Management Limited Non-Executive Dn’ector/ Chairman
34 | M&C Holdings (Thailand} Ltd. ' Director
35 | M&C Hospitality Holdings (Asia) Limited Director
36 | M&C Hospitality International Limited Cirector
37 | M&C Hotel Enterprises (Asia) Limited Director
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38 | M&C Hotel investments Pte. Ltd. Director

39 | M&C Hotels Holdings Japan Pte. Ltd. Director

40 | M&C Hotels Holdings Limited Director

41 | M&C Hotelis Holdings USA Limited Director

42 | M&C Hotels Japan Pte. Ltd. Director

43 | M&CREIT Management Limited Non-Exacutive Director/ Chairman
44 | Millennium & Copthorne Hotel Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited | Director

45 | Millennium & Copthorne Hotels {Hong Kong) Limited Director

46 | Millenniurm & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited Director/ Chairman
47 | Millennium & Copthorne Hotels pic Executive Director, Chief Executive

| ‘ Officer

48 | Millennium & Copthorne Hotels Pty Ltd Director

49 1 Millennium & Copthorne International Limited Director

50 | Millennium & Copthorne Middle East Holdings Limited Director.

51 | Newbury Investments Pte Ltd Director

52 | Quanturn Limited Director =

53 Republic Hotels Suzhou Pte Ltd Director

54 | Republic Iconic Hotel Pte, Ltd. Director

55 | RHR Capital Pte. Ltd, . Director

56 | Rogo Realty Corporaticon Director

57 | The Philippine Fund Limited Director & President
58 | TOSCAP Limited Director .
59 | Zatrio Pte Ltd Director

60 | Director

Zillion Holdings Limited




